
 

Accommodation for Physical Impairments: In order to accommodate persons with physical impairments, please notify the City of any special physical 
or language accommodations you may require as far in advance of the meeting as possible.  To make arrangements, Contact City Hall at 541-782-2258.  
For the hearing impaired, the City’s TTD Number is 541-782-4232. 

 
July 01, 2021 
6:30 pm City Council Meeting 
Audio/Video Teleconference 
Willamette Activity Center Room 8 
47674 School Street 
Oakridge OR, 97463 
 
REGULAR SESSION 

 
 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER  
2. Pledge of Allegiance  
3. Roll Call 
4. Additions, Corrections or Adjustments to the Agenda  
5. Public Comment– 30 Minutes 

Individual speakers must be recognized by the presiding officer, provide their name and address, and will be allowed 
up to 3 minutes or less with Council approval. The Council will not engage in any discussion or make any decisions 
based public comment at this time.  The Council may take comments under advisement for discussion and action at 
a future Council meeting.  The Mayor may direct the City Administrator to follow up on comments received. 

6. Mayor Comments / Announcements / Proclamation 
7. Council Comments / Announcements  
8. Consent Agenda 

8.1 Approval of minutes from April 29, May 20 & June 3.  
9. Business from the City Council 
10. Business from the City Administrator 

10.1 Oakridge Westfir Police Intergovernmental Agreement 
10.2 Infrastructure Finance Loan Approval 
10.3 RTMP Request 
10.4 4th of July Celebration 
10.5 Concerts in the Park 

11. Reports of Boards, Commissions and Committees 
11.1 Administrative Advisory Committee 
11.2 Parks and Community Services Committee 
11.3 Public Safety Advisory Committee  
11.4 RTMP Committee 

12. Items Removed from the Consent Agenda 
13. Ordinances, Resolutions and Public Comments 

13.1 Resolution 07-2021 Schedule of Fees 
13.2 Resolution 08-2021 Supplemental Budget 

14. Public Hearings 
14.1 Open Public Hearing -- Sale of Public Property 

14.1.1 Statements in Favor 
14.1.2 Statements in Opposition 
14.1.3 Statements in General 

14.2 Close Public Hearing 
14.3 Council Discussion / Motion 

15. Appointments 
16. Public Comment 
17. Adjourn 

 



 

Accommodation for Physical Impairments: In order to accommodate persons with physical impairments, please notify the City of any special physical 
or language accommodations you may require as far in advance of the meeting as possible.  To make arrangements, Contact City Hall at 541-782-2258.  
For the hearing impaired, the City’s TTD Number is 541-782-4232. 

This will be a remote participation meeting. Citizens have four ways of attending and commenting: 
1. Use your computer, tablet or smartphone and go to: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/3664311610, meeting ID: 3664311610. 
2. Use your telephone and dial: +1 669 900 9128. Meeting ID: 366 431 1610.  
3. Send comments by email to: cityadministrator@ci.oakridge.or.us by 2pm the day of the meeting.  
4. It is discouraged due to COVID precautions, but citizens may can attend in person at the Willamette Activity Center, Room 8. There will be an audio 
and video feed.   

Detailed instructions are available at City Hall, on the city website, and the city Facebook page. 



April 29, 2021 City Council Minutes Page 1 of 2 

 T+  
                                                            
 
 
 

 
April 29, 2021 

Special Session City Council Meeting (Via Zoom) 

Willamette Activity Center Room 8 
47674 School Street 

5:00 p.m. 

 

MINUTES 
 

 
1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER- 6:00 pm 
 
Council Present: Mayor Kathy Holston, Councilors, Dawn Kinyon, Michele Coker, Audy Spliethof 

 
Staff Present: City Administrator Bryan Cutchen, City Recorder Jackie Sims 
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
3. Roll Call – all present 
  
4. Business from the City Council 
 
 4.1 City position on Lane County Remand Hearing of 05/04/2021 
 
Mayor Holston-she invited Linda McMahon to the meeting to answer questions from Council.  In the past the City took a neutral 
position and she wants to know if we want to keep this position. 
 
Councilor Kinyon-thanked the citizens who reached out to her. 
 
Councilor Spliethof-agrees, we have had a lot of citizen comments come in. 
 
Councilor Kinyon-asked if we could have the attorney review the contract, we don’t want the city to be liable if something 
happens.  Has LRAPA been asked about what this will do to the air quality in Oakridge?   
 
Linda McMahon-yes, they did weigh in and said it would exceed the levels in the air quality. 
 
Motion:  Councilor Kinyon moved to form a subcommittee to draft a letter for signature by the council to present to the Lane 
County of Commissioners that is not in support of the land use change of the Hazeldell Quarry.  Councilor Spliethof seconded the 
motion. 
 
Bjarnson (aye), Whitney (aye), Coker (aye), Spliethof (aye), Hollett (aye), Kinyon (aye), Mayor Holston (aye).  Motion carried 7-0 
 
Comments need to be in by Tuesday the 4th at noon. 
 
Mayor Holston-asked if they will take public testimony? 
 
Linda-yes they will. 
 



April 29, 2021 City Council Minutes Page 2 of 2 

Councilor Whitney- she believes the tank is on an easement, she doesn’t recall anything about them getting water from us.  They 
are on an old dump site and there could be toxic waste from that.   
 
Councilor Hollett- suggested the subcommittee members be Mayor Holston, Councilor Hollett and Councilor Kinyon. 
 
6. Public Comment-None 
 
7. Adjourn 5:51 p.m. 
 
 
Signed:  _______________________________ 
  Kathy Holston, Mayor 
 
Signed:  _______________________________ 
               Jackie Sims, City Recorder 
 



May 20, 2021 City Council Minutes Page 1 of 5 

 T+  
                                                            
 
 
 

 
May 20, 2021 

City Council Meeting (Via Zoom) 

Willamette Activity Center Room 8 
47674 School Street 

7:00 p.m. 

 

MINUTES 
 

 
1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER- 7:00 pm 

 
Council Present: Mayor Holston, Councilors Bobbie Whitney Dawn Kinyon, Michele Coker, Melissa Bjarnson, Audy 

Spliethof and Chrissy Hollett 
 

Staff Present: City Administrator Bryan Cutchen, Finance Director Eric Kytola, Police Chief Kevin Martin and City 
Recorder Jackie Sims 

 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
3. Roll Call – all present 
  
4. Additions, corrections or adjustments to the agenda 
 
Bryan-add 10.1.6 RTMP Allocation 
 
Councilor Kinyon-added discussion regarding having a table at the Firewise event 
 
5. Public Comment 
 
Sarah Altemus-Pope (SFWC)- spoke about the upcoming Wildfire safety event at Greenwaters Park 
 
Deb Borton- Is in support of the Osprey Park Disc Golf expansion. 
 
6. Mayor Comments / Announcements / Proclamations 
 
Mayor Holston- reminded everyone about the Firewise event on Friday from 3-7 p.m. at Greenwaters Park.  We will not have a 
table there this year, we did not have time to get it together.  If any councilors go, please identify yourselves as councilors. 
 
Thanked UBRA for the flower baskets uptown. 
 
The Johnson & Johnson COVID-19 vaccine clinic is on May 26, 2021, you need to register in advance. 
 
7. Council Comments / Announcements 
 
Councilor Kinyon-Did we get a copy of the original ODOT contract?  Did we sell or lease another lot out at the OIP? 
 



May 20, 2021 City Council Minutes Page 2 of 5 

Bryan- he already sent out the original contract, he has been in contact with Jim Gamble at ODOT and he is not comfortable with 
the back payments.  With the new contract in place, we can file for fiscal year 2021. 
 
We have a short-term lease with Cascadia Lumber Works, the owner is Tim Wooley, he sells online and is interested in joining 
the chamber.   
 
Councilor Hollett- a few meetings back there was a motion to decrease the water rate increase, has there been any movement 
on that? 
 
Bryan-he had Eric research this, he does have information, but he is not ready to bring to the agenda yet. 
 
Councilor Kinyon-she wants to add the allocation of the COVID money to the next agenda. 
 
Bryan-we have a 150-page document to review, discussion is fine, but we have a lot to get through. 
 
Councilor Kinyon-it’s ok if it goes to the next meeting, she just wants to make sure the city council has a chance to go through 
and make the decisions.   
 
Bryan-it is on the treasury website. We do not have to be in a rush to spend this, we have until 2026, and it is very specific to 
what we can spend it on. 
 
8. Consent Agenda 
 
 8.1 Approval of minutes from May 6, 2021 
 
Motion:  Councilor Whitney moved to approve the consent agenda.  Councilor Coker seconded the motion. 
 
Mayor Holston (aye), Coker (aye), Hollett (aye), Kinyon (aye), Bjarnson (aye), Whitney (aye), Spliethof (aye).  Motion passed 7-0 
 
9. Business from the City Council  
 
 9.1 Volunteer Program – Councilor Spliethof 
.   
Mayor Holston-read the issue. The template was sent to council along with a policy for the council to go over and she hopes you 
all looked at it, it is on Google drive forms. 
 
Skipped ahead to 15.1 appointments 
 
Could not do appointment, applicant lost connection.  
 
Councilor Kinyon- in the policy it says something about a person that leads the volunteer program, potential volunteers must 
contact (blank) prior to performing volunteer projects or jobs, how do we want to fill that in? 
 
Mayor Holston-she is a little frustrated, because the documents she sent out to the council were all filled in so we could talk 
about them and see what was missing and wasn’t. 
 
Bryan- suggested bringing this back to the next meeting instead of going line by line right now. 
 
 9.2 Charter Review Commission- Councilor Kinyon 
 
Councilor Kinyon-the council needs to make a decision whether or not the Admin committee will be taking on the task of a Charter 
review and update of the Charter. The Admin committee can solicit and form a sub-committee of citizens to work along with us.  
The council will decide the size of the committee.  The Admin committee along with Councilor Kinyon would like to take on the 
Charter update.   
 
Mayor Holston-do we want to leave this in the hands of the Admin committee? 
 



May 20, 2021 City Council Minutes Page 3 of 5 

Councilor Whitney-this should be a citizens-only committee, ex-parte contact could come into play, the council can provide 
direction on issues that we have seen come up. 
 
Councilor Hollett-disagrees with Councilor Whitney, ex-parte contact has nothing to do with this. She thinks Councilor Kinyon or 
any other Councilor would be an asset to the committee. 
 
Mayor Holston-read what the charter manual recommends.   
 
Councilor Coker-a separate citizen committee would be better, we could have a councilor on the board, but it should be a separate 
board.   
 
Councilor Bjarnson-she doesn’t like the idea of a city councilor deciding who sits on the committee that gives them too much 
sway. 
 
Mayor Holston- is in agreement of putting a citizen charter committee together, vetted by the city council.  This will be a very 
long and slow process. We don’t need to have a councilor on the committee, we have people who don’t want to work with 
councilors.  It is important that the charter review be separate from the council.   
 
Councilor Kinyon-she agrees it should be a citizen only committee, the city council passed to have the admin committee do a 
charter review, she advocates for the admin committee to form a sub-committee. 
 
Mayor Holston- League of Oregon Cities and LCOG can help guide us through the process.   
 
Motion:  Councilor Hollett moved to form a Charter Review Committee as a sub-committee under the Admin Committee.  
Councilor Bjarnson seconded the motion.   
 
Mayor Holston-she disagrees with this process, she doesn’t disagree with the charter review, she has spoken on how important 
this is, and we will rely on our resources at hand to assist us.   
 
Whitney (nay), Spliethof (aye), Bjarnson (aye), Hollett (aye), Coker (nay), Mayor Holston (nay), Kinyon (aye).  Motion passed 4-3 
  
10. Business from the City Administrator  
 
 10.1 City Administrator Update 
 
  10.1.1 Nuisance Ordinance Review for Fire Safety 
 
Bryan-introduced Leslie Neu  
 
Leslie Neu- gave a wildfire mitigation presentation. 
 
Councilor Whitney-gives this a stamp of approval, what would be the appropriate next step? 
 
Mayor Holston- we can put this on a different agenda for a later discussion. 
 
  10.1.2 Chamber of Commerce TRT Request 
 
Bryan-read the issue and he gave the council a briefing sheet on the balances of what we have in the TRT fund. Bryan introduced 
Lynda Kamerrer from the Chamber of Commerce 
  
Lynda- introduced herself and explained what the Chamber does for the community.   
 
Councilor Kinyon-recommends postponing making any decisions on this until the council has had time to review and revise our 
policy and distribution of our TRT funds. 
 
Mayor Holston-we are not revising our TRT funds we are looking at revising our RTMP funds. 
 
Councilor Kinyon- disagrees. 



May 20, 2021 City Council Minutes Page 4 of 5 

 
Motion:  Councilor Kinyon moved to postpone discussions for TRT until we make a TRT decision.  Councilor Spliethof seconded 
the motion. 
 
Councilor Whitney-we are always receiving emails from the Chamber updating us on different things they are doing or just 
keeping us informed on what is going on in the city.  She supports this, they are vital to our community. 
 
Mayor Holston-this is not something we should postpone; we have had this in our packet for some time.  The Chamber has done 
an outstanding job during Covid helping our businesses.  We have a pot of money in our TRT and it behooves us to use it and use 
it wisely.  This is another example of the council’s inability to decide, and she is saddened by this motion. 
 
Councilor Hollett-she does not disagree about the Chamber, they have really stepped up.  She does believe Dawn is correct and 
we agreed that we are not going to be issuing money out of this fund. 
 
Councilor Spliethof-he appreciates what the Chamber is doing, we agreed to look at this and we haven’t done that. 
 
Bryan-his concern is the speed at which this council deliberates, it could be many, many months before you get to have a 
consolidated and approved TRT program.  Like you admitted, it is on the council for dragging your feet and you are going to 
penalize a very vital member of our economic development community and you are going to hurt your city more than you are 
going to be disappointing your constituents for not doing due diligence, there is plenty of money in the TRT fund. 
 
Councilor Bjarnson- we shouldn’t penalize the Chamber for our failures, she thinks we should award this and what they do is 
important. 
 
Councilor Kinyon-she wanted to let Lynda and Jason know she does support the chamber; she just feels really strongly with 
council following through with their procedures.  They didn’t know you were going to apply, and she is sorry and she is not trying 
to postpone something here. 
 
Mayor Holston (nay), Hollett (nay), Coker (nay), Spliethof (aye), Whitney (nay), Bjarnson (nay), Kinyon (aye).  Motion failed 2-5 
 
Motion:  Councilor Whitney moved that we grant the Oakridge/Westfir Area Chamber of Commerce $15,360 in Transient Room 
Tax funds for FY 21-22.  Councilor Coker seconded the motion. 
 
Mayor Holston (aye), Whitney (aye), Coker (aye), Spliethof (nay), Hollett (aye), Kinyon (nay), Bjarnson (aye).  Motion passed 5-2 
 
  10.1.3 OLCC Permit 
 
Bryan- read the issue 
 
Motion:  Councilor Kinyon moved we recommend the OLCC liquor license for the Campfire restaurant be approved.  Councilor 
Spliethof seconded the motion. 
 
Mayor Holston (aye), Whitney (aye), Coker (aye), Spliethof (aye), Hollett (aye), Kinyon (aye), Bjarnson (aye).  Motion passed 7-0 
 
  10.1.4 Fee Waiver 
 
Motion:  Councilor Kinyon moved we recommend the fee waiver for Greenwaters Park rental to conduct the National Flag Day 
retirement ceremony be approved.  Councilor Coker seconded the motion. 
 
Coker (aye), Hollett (aye) Spliethof (aye), Kinyon (aye), Mayor Holston (aye), Whitney (aye), Bjarnson (aye).  Motion passed 7-0 
 
*Went straight to public comment due to time restraints 
 
  10.1.5 Oakridge-Westfir Fire Protection IGA 
 
  10.1.6 RTMP Allocation 
 
 10.2 Finance Director Update-  



May 20, 2021 City Council Minutes Page 5 of 5 

 
  10.2.1 April Financial Report 
 
 10.3 Economic Development Update 
 10.4 Police Update 
 10.5 Fire Department Update 
 10.6 Public Works/Community Services Update 
 
  10.6.1 Water Quality Status Report 
  
11. Reports of Boards, Commissions and Committees-skipped due to time restraints 
 
 11.1 Parks and Community Services Committee 
 
  11.1.1 Osprey Park Disc Golf Proposal  
  
12. Items Removed from the Consent Agenda-none 
  
13. Ordinances, Resolutions and Public Comments-None 
 
14.  Public Hearings- None 
 
15. Appointments 
 
 15.1 RTMP (OEDAC) Committee-applicant lost connection 
 
16. Public Comment 
 
Trudy Hammond- Supports the charter review committee and we need to all work together. 
 
Sarah Altemus-Pope- thoughts on the Charter discussion, should be a citizen led committee. 
 
 
17. Adjourn-9:27 p.m. 
 
 
Signed:  _______________________________ 
               Kathy Holston, Mayor 
 
Signed:  _______________________________ 
               Jackie Sims, City Recorder 
 



June 3, 2021 City Council Minutes Page 1 of 5 

 T+  
                                                            
 

 
June 3, 2021 

Work Session and City Council Meeting (Via Zoom) 

Willamette Activity Center Room 8 
47674 School Street 

6:30 p.m. 

 

MINUTES 
 

 
1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER- 6:30 pm 

 
Council Present: Mayor Holston, Councilors Dawn Kinyon, Michele Coker, Melissa Bjarnson, Audy Spliethof and 

Chrissy Hollett**was in and out of the meeting due to poor connection. 
 

Staff Present: City Administrator Bryan Cutchen, Finance Director Eric Kytola, Police Chief Kevin Martin and City 
Recorder Jackie Sims 

 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
3. Roll Call – Councilor Whitney was absent and Councilor Spliethof arrived at 6:44 
 
Work Session began 6:30 
 
Councilor Kinyon-do we need the vehicle policy or would we be reimbursing for gas? 
 
Bryan-if volunteers go to an event they need to be included on the insurance. 
  
There was discussion on evacuation routes and PPE, Bryan said there are evacuation routes and first aid kits in city buildings. 
 
Councilor Kinyon-she likes the new application and the reason she is asking all of the questions is because she wants to make 
sure we adhere to it. 
 
Bryan-he is required to send all of the volunteer hours to the insurance company monthly. 
 
Councilor Kinyon-will our current volunteers need to sign the new form? 
 
Mayor Holston- that will be up the council. 
 
Councilor Kinyon-she would just like to see the current volunteers read the new application and sign it. 
 
Councilor Coker-she had a citizen ask about the code of conduct and if that will be included in the new form. 
 
Mayor Holston-we do have a code of conduct, she asked Bryan if it was in the list of forms required.  Code of conduct needs to 
be added.   
 
Work Session ended: 6:56 
  
4. Additions, corrections or adjustments to the agenda 
 
Bryan-took out 15.1, the applicant has chosen to delay her application. 



June 3, 2021 City Council Minutes Page 2 of 5 

Councilor Kinyon-asked if we are going to be able to cover the RTMP distributions since we didn’t have time at our last meeting. 
 
Mayor Holston- she sent an email out to the RTMP committee to see when a good time to meet is. 
 
5. Public Comment 
 
Dan Barclay 47501 Hwy 58- spoke about lack of professional behavior at meetings. 
 
6. Mayor Comments / Announcements / Proclamations 
 
Mayor Holston- she would like to review the nuisance ordinance that was presented to us at the last meeting.   
 
It is time to begin to resume meeting in person, she suggests September for beginning to meet in person again.  That will give us 
the opportunity to get the court chambers ready.  She would like to also use Zoom to limit the number of in person citizens.   
 
Oakridge Air had its quarterly meeting today.   
 
We had a tragic week with the car accident and a shooting. 
 
She made a post on FB asking the community to look at the problems, not individual personalities.  That is tearing our community 
apart. 
 
7. Council Comments / Announcements-None 
 
8. Consent Agenda 
 
 8.1 approval of minutes from May 20, 2021 
 
Motion:  Councilor Kinyon moved to approve the consent agenda.  Councilor Coker seconded the motion. 
 
Spliethof (aye), Kinyon (aye), Mayor Holston (aye), Bjarnson (aye), Coker (aye) Motion passed 5-0 (Councilor Hollett lost 
connection) 
 
Councilor Hollett lost connection 
 
9. Business from the City Council  
 
 9.1 Action from work session –City Volunteer Program 
 
Motion:    Councilor Kinyon moved to approve the Volunteer Policy including the new application with the addition of the code 
of conduct to the policy. Councilor Bjarnson seconded the motion. 
 
Councilor Kinyon-would like to see this added to the website. 
 
Mayor Holston-she agrees. 
 
Bjarnson (aye), Coker (aye), Spliethof (aye), Kinyon (aye), Mayor Holston (aye).  Motion passed 5-0 (Councilor Hollett lost 
connection) 
  
10. Business from the City Administrator  
 
Bryan- some time ago we received a grant from DEQ for a community smoke safety plan that effort is complete and we are closing 
out the grant. 
 
He will have the request for the RFP for the City Engineer posted shortly as requested several months ago.    
 
 10.1 Westfir Fire Protection Intergovernmental Agreement 
Bryan-read the issue 



June 3, 2021 City Council Minutes Page 3 of 5 

 
Motion:  Councilor Spliethof moved to approve the Intergovernmental agreement to provide fire services to the City of Westfir 
at a cost of $16,800 for fiscal year 2022.  Councilor Kinyon seconded the motion. 
 
Mayor Holston (aye), Coker (aye), Spliethof (aye), Kinyon (aye), Bjarnson (aye).  Motion passed 5-0 
 
 10.2 Event Street Closure request 
 
Bryan-read the issue. 
 
Councilor Kinyon-asked if the community will still be able to get around down there? 
 
Bryan-yes they will. 
 
Motion:  Councilor Kinyon moved to approve the closure of 1st Street between Pine and Cedar Streets on June 12, 2021 from 6 
am until 6 pm.  Councilor Coker seconded the motion. 
 
Coker (aye), Spliethof (aye),  Kinyon (aye), Mayor Holston (aye), Mayor Holston (aye), Bjarnson (aye).  Motion passed 5-0 
 
 10.3 Property Rental Fee waiver 
 
Bryan- read the issue. 
 
No motion. 
 
Councilor Bjarnson-she thinks this is really odd.  It’s strange that it was paid, it was $100 and now they are asking for it back. 
 
Mayor Holston- are you saying you don’t think it should be paid back or is it an inappropriate request. 
 
Councilor Bjarnson- fee waivers are a tough issue for her right now because of the budget. 
 
Motion:  Councilor Spliethof moved to disapprove the property rental fee waiver for the Tree Planting Princess event.  Councilor 
Kinyon seconded the motion. 
 
Councilor Spliethof-the fee has already been paid and the budget is tight right now. 
 
Bjarnson (aye), Mayor Holston (nay), Kinyon (aye), Spliethof (aye), Coker (aye).  Motion passed 4-1 
 
 10.4 Intent to Award Approval 
 
Bryan-read the issue. 
 
Motion:  Councilor Kinyon moved to approve the Intent to Award to Riverbend Construction, Inc providing they are willing to cap 
the changes orders to 15%.  Councilor Spliethof seconded the motion.  
 
Councilor Kinyon-is worried about excessive amounts of change orders. 
 
Bryan-they are just repaving to make it affordable.  The project has to be completed by either late July or early August.  He is 
concerned about the 15% cap, it would limit what he can do. 
 
Amended motion:  Councilor Kinyon moved to approve the Intent to Award to Riverbend Construction, Inc and that all change 
orders will come to council. Councilor Spliethof seconded the motion. 
 
Spliethof (aye), Bjarnson (aye), Mayor Holston (aye), Coker (aye), Kinyon (aye).  Motion passed 4-0 
 
Mayor Holston-Councilor Hollett texted her and said she doesn’t think she will be able to attend the rest of the meeting. 
 
 10.5 Speed Sign Intergovernmental Agreement 



June 3, 2021 City Council Minutes Page 4 of 5 

 
Bryan-read the issue. 
 
Motion:  Councilor Spliethof moved to approve the Intergovernmental Agreement with Oregon Department of Transportation 
concerning speed feedback signs.  Councilor Coker seconded the motion. 
 
Chief Martin-one sign will be by the Arbor Inn and the other one will be by the Tire Center. 
 
Mayor Holston (aye), Bjarnson (aye), Kinyon (aye), Coker (aye), Hollett (aye).  Motion passed 5-0 
 
 10.6 LTD RAISE Application Endorsement 
 
Bryan-read the issue. 
 
Motion:  Councilor Kinyon moved to approve signing on to the letter of support for the RAISE application being submitted by 
Eugene/Springfield-LTD for Franklin Boulevard Improvements.  Councilor Spliethof seconded the motion. 
 
Hollett (aye), Spliethof (aye), Bjarnson (aye), Kinyon (aye), Mayor Holston (aye), Coker (aye).  Motion passed 6-0 
 
 10.7 Alcohol permit Extension 
 
Bryan-read the issue 
 
Motion:  Councilor Spliethof moved to approve extending the alcohol permit for the Gravel Grinder Event to include June 25, 
2021.  Councilor Coker seconded the motion. 
 
Mayor Holston (aye), Coker (aye), Spliethof (aye), Bjarnson (aye), Kinyon (aye), Hollett (aye).  Motion carried 6-0 
 
 10.8 Lane County Dispatch Contract 
 
Bryan-read the issue 
 
Motion:  Councilor Bjarnson moved to approve the Lane County Dispatch Services for fiscal years 2022-2023.  Councilor Spliethof 
seconded the motion. 
 
Bryan- they decided to extend this for two years to cut avoid having to do this annually.  The cost will be split three ways between 
police, fire and public works. 
 
Mayor Holston (aye), Hollett (aye), Coker (aye), Spliethof (aye), Bjarnson (aye), Kinyon (aye). Motion passed 6-0 
 
 10.9 Water Rate Adjustment 
 
Bryan- read the issue 
 
Eric-gave a briefing on what they are proposing. 
 
Councilor Kinyon-is this adjustment to the base rate something we can do now and the public safety fee is completely separate? 
 
Eric-yes. 
 
Bryan-  This won’t take effect until July 1.  This will come back on 6/17/2021 in the schedule of fees. 
  
11. Reports of Boards, Commissions and Committees 
 
 11.1 Parks and Community Services Committee 
 
  11.1.1 Osprey Park Proposal  
 



June 3, 2021 City Council Minutes Page 5 of 5 

Bryan-read the issue. 
 
Jason Nehmer- the Parks Committee is removing the request. 
 
Councilor Hollett asked to add the Fireworks show to the agenda, she missed the beginning of the meeting so she couldn’t ask to 
get add it to the agenda. 
 
Councilor Hollett-she wasn’t sure what the precautions were going to be and if they would be able to have the fireworks this 
year.  She is asking the council to consider funding the cost of the event.  Tannerite will be doing the fireworks and Harry Rumor 
will be helping again and his company will match the amount that the city provides. She thinks the RTMP fund would be a good 
source for the funds from but is open to receiving them from wherever. 
 
Councilor Spliethof-this would be a good use of RTMP funds. 
 
Councilor Coker-this is a great idea, and she is willing to help out, she is not sure of the funding though. 
 
Councilor Kinyon-is there any other funds in the budget that we can take this from? 
 
Mayor Holston-asked who is on the Fireworks Committee? 
 
Councilor Hollett-named the committee members. The non-profit 501C3 did not get set up. 
 
There was discussion on using the council training budget line for the fireworks. 
 
Motion:  Councilor Kinyon moved that the City sponsor the 4th of July Fireworks Committee with $2,500 from the budget for this 
year’s show.  Councilor Bjarnson seconded the motion. 
 
Mayor Holston (aye), Bjarnson (aye), Hollett (aye), Spliethof (aye), Coker (aye), Kinyon (aye).  Motion passed 6-0 
 
12. Items Removed from the Consent Agenda-None 
  
13. Ordinances, Resolutions and Public Comments-None 
 
14.  Public Hearings- None 
 
15. Appointments 
 
 15.1 Oakridge Economic Development Advisory Committee-removed from agenda 
 
16. Public Comment 
 
Trudy Hammond 47753 Berry Street- thanked Eric for the work he has done, she understands this a lot better now. 
 
17. Adjourn- 8:53 p.m. 
 
 
Signed:  _______________________________ 
               Kathy Holston, Mayor 
 
Signed:  _______________________________ 
               Jackie Sims, City Recorder 
 



   

 
 
 
 
                                          
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ISSUE: The City of Oakridge currently provides police protection services to the City of Westfir. 
The agreement is reviewed annually to consider updates. This is the proposed agreement for 
FY22 which includes an increase in the fee of $3,660.50, making the new total $40,263, billed 
in quarterly installments.     
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: $40,263 in revenue.  
 
 
OPTIONS: (1) Approve the IGA. 
                   (2) Modify or reject the IGA.  
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends option (1).  
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: I move we approve the intergovernmental agreement to provide 
police protection services to the City of Westfir at a rate of $40,263 for fiscal year 2022.   
 

Business of the City Council 
City of Oakridge, Oregon 

July 01, 2021 
 

Agenda Title:  Approval of Police 
Protection Intergovernmental Agreement 
 

 

 

 

Proposed Council Action: A motion from 
the floor to approve. 

Agenda Item No: 10.1 
 
Exhibit: (1) IGA 
                                 
 
Agenda Bill Author: Bryan Cutchen 
City Administrator: Bryan Cutchen 













   

 
 
 
 
                                          
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ISSUE: The drinking water source for the city water system is a municipal well field with four 
wells. The primary production of water during the dryer months comes from Well No. 2. Well 
No. 2 is past its useful life expectancy and in need of improvements before it fails, and the city 
loses significant production of water. The improvements are expected to increase the efficiency 
and current output of the well.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: $260,000 of debt obligation.  
 
 
OPTIONS: (1) Approve the application submission. 
                   (2) Disapprove the application submission.  
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends option (1).  
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: I move we approve the submission of a loan application to Business 
Oregon for $260,000 to fund improvements to Well No. 2.    
 

Business of the City Council 
City of Oakridge, Oregon 

July 01, 2021 
 

Agenda Title:  Approval of Business 
Oregon (IFA) Safe Drinking Water 
Revolving Loan Fund Application 

 

 

 

Proposed Council Action: A motion from 
the floor to approve. 

Agenda Item No: 10.2 
 
Exhibit: (1) Application 
                                 
 
Agenda Bill Author: Bryan Cutchen 
City Administrator: Bryan Cutchen 

































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
 LANE COUNTY, OREGON 
 
 
 2019-2020 
 
 ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 
 
 ******* 



 

 CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
 LANE COUNTY, OREGON 
 
  
  
   
  
  
 

CITY COUNCIL TERM EXPIRES   
 
 
  
 Paul Forcum December 31, 2020 
 
 Dawn Kinyon December 31, 2020 
 
 Trisha Maxfield December 31, 2020 
 
 John McClelland December 31, 2020 
 
 Christina Hollet, Council President December 31, 2022 
 
 Bobbie Whitney December 31, 2022 
 
 Kathy Holston, Mayor December 31, 2022 
  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
All Council members receive mail at the address listed below. 

 
 
 
 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE 
 

Bryan Cutchen, City Administrator  
Eric Kytola, Finance Director 

 
City of Oakridge 
P.O. Box 1410 

Oakridge, Oregon 97463 



 

CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
T A B L E O F C O N T E N T S 

 PAGE    
 NUMBER  

 
  Independent Auditors’ Report 1 
 
 Management’s Discussion and Analysis 4 

 
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

  
Government-Wide Financial Statements:  

    Statement of Net Position 12 
   Statement of Activities  13 
    
  Fund Financial Statements: 
   Combined Balance Sheet – Governmental Funds 15 
   Reconciliation of Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds to 
    Statement of Net Position 16 

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in  
Fund Balance – Governmental Funds 17 

   Reconciliation of Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in 
    Fund Balance – Governmental Funds – To Statement of Activities 18 
  Proprietary Financial Statements: 

Statement of Net Position 19 
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in 
 Net Position 20 
Combining Statement of Cash Flows 21 
 

  Notes to Basic Financial Statements 22 
     
 REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 
  Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance –  
   Actual and Budget: 

 General Fund 52 
 Street Fund 53 
 Emergency Service Fund  54 
    Industrial Park Fund 55 

  Schedule of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (PERS) 
   and Schedule of Contribution (PERS) 56 
  Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios 57 

 
 SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 
  Non-Major Governmental Funds Combining Statements: 
   Combining Balance Sheet 58 
   Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 59 
 
  



 

 
CITY OF OAKRIDGE 

LANE COUNTY, OREGON 
 

T A B L E O F C O N T E N T S - continued 
 PAGE  
 NUMBER  

 
  Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance –  
    Actual and Budget – Budgetary Basis: 
     Non-Major Governmental Funds: 
      Water Reserve Fund 60 
      Water Bond Reserve Fund 61 
      Woodstove Replacement Fund 62 
      Bicycle / Pedestrian Path Fund 63 
       
  Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance –  
    Actual and Budget – Budgetary Basis: 
     Proprietary Funds: 
      Water Fund 64 
      Wastewater Fund 65 
      Storm Water Fund 66 
   
  Schedule of Property Tax Transactions and Balances of Taxes Uncollected 67 
 

REPORTS ON LEGAL AND OTHER REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS 
 
 Independent Auditors’ Report Required by Oregon State Regulations    68 
 

 
 
 



 
 
 
 
To the City Council 
City of Oakridge 
Lane County, Oregon 
 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City 
of Oakridge, Oregon (the City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related 
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements 
as listed in the table of contents. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant 
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. 
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinions. 



 

-2- 
 

 
Opinions 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Oakridge, Oregon, as of 
June 30, 2020, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows 
thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 
 
Other Matters 
Required Supplementary Information 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management’s discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, net pension liability 
information, and the other post-employment benefit information, be presented to supplement the 
basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it 
to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an 
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited 
procedures to this information, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during 
our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance 
on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to 
express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
The budgetary comparison statements for the general and special revenue funds are the 
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information 
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. In our opinion, the  budgetary comparison statements for the general and special 
revenue funds are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements 
as a whole. 
 
Other Information 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The combining nonmajor fund 
financial statements, budgetary comparison schedules and schedule of property tax transactions, 
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial 
statements.  
  



 

-3- 
 

 
The combining nonmajor fund financial statements are the responsibility of management and were 
derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare 
the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and 
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial 
statements are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as 
a whole.  The budgetary comparison schedules and schedule of property tax transactions have not 
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements 
and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them. 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
In accordance with Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, we have 
issued our report dated December 15, 2020, on our consideration of compliance with certain 
provisions of laws and regulations, including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as 
specified in Oregon Administrative Rules. The purpose of that report is to describe our testing 
of compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on compliance. 
 

 
Brenda Bartlett, CPA 
 
SGA Certified Public Accountants and Consultants, LLP 
Bend, Oregon 
 
December 15, 2020



 

- 4 - 

 
 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
 
The management of the City of Oakridge, Oregon, presents this narrative overview and analysis to facilitate 
both a short and a long-term analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ending June 
30, 2020 (FY20).  This Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is based on currently known 
facts, decisions, and conditions that existed as of the date of the independent auditor’s report. 
 
Financial Highlights 
 
       Note: Amounts in the MD&A are rounded to thousands except tables and Budget Highlights 
 

• The City’s overall net position in FY20 increased $218,000 from last year. This was a result of 
using grants to fund certain major equipment purchases rather than liquid fund assets, active 
management of resources and a mix of other events which increased or decreased the City’s net 
position. The most significant item is Non-Operating Revenue in the Business-type Activities, 
which increased by $776,000 due primarily to a loan forgiveness of $765,000 related to the 2017 
Water Improvement Project. 

• The City’s General Fund fund balance decreased approximately $197,000 in FY20. This is because 
of the Emergency Services fund’s continued reliance on receiving support from the General Fund. 
The General Fund transferred $650,000 to the Emergency Service Fund in FY20. 

• The General Fund ended the year with a deficit balance of $49,000 after providing the support 
necessitated by the Emergency Services fund. 

• Emergency Services continued to experience significant operating deficits in FY20 and required 
significant support from the General Fund. Management is taking steps to transition the ambulance 
service to an entity other than the City, either through a partnership with Lane County or a private 
ambulance service. 

 
Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
The following discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial 
statements and other required supplementary information.  The City’s basic financial statements comprise 
three components: 
 

• Government-wide financial statements 
• Governmental and Proprietary Fund financial statements 
• Notes to the basic financial statements



 

- 5 - 

 
Government-wide financial statements:  The government-wide financial statements are designed to 
provide readers with a broad overview of the City’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector 
business. 
 
The Statement of Net Position presents information on the City’s assets, deferred inflows, liabilities, and 
deferred outflows, as applicable, with the difference between them reported as net position.  Over time, 
increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of 
the City is improving or deteriorating. 
 
The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the City’s net position changed during the 
most recent fiscal year.  All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise 
to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of cash flow.  Thus revenues and expenses are reported in 
this statement for some items that will result in a cash flow in a future period.  Examples of such items 
include earned, but uncollected property taxes, and earned, but unused compensated absences. 
 
Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally 
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are 
intended to recover all (or a significant portion) of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type 
activities). 
 
The governmental activities include: 
 

• Administration 
• Police 
• Parks 
• Library 
• Willamette Activity Center 
• Woodstove Replacement Funds 
• Streets and Local Improvement Districts 
• Emergency Services Fund 
• Oakridge Industrial Park 
• Debt Reserves 
• Capital Projects Funding 

 
The business-type activities include: 
 

• Water 
• Wastewater 
• Storm Water 

  



 

- 6 - 

 
Fund financial statements:  A fund is a group of accounts that is used to maintain control over resources 
that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives.  The City uses fund accounting to ensure and 
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.  All of the funds of the City can be divided 
into two categories:  governmental funds and proprietary funds. 
 
Governmental Funds:  Governmental funds are used to account for activities where the emphasis is placed 
on available financial resources, rather than upon net income determination.  Therefore, unlike the 
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on the acquisition and 
use of current resources available at the end of the fiscal year.   
 
The City of Oakridge maintains four major governmental funds:   
 

• General Fund 
• Street Fund 
• Emergency Services Fund 
• Oakridge Industrial Park Fund (OIP) 

 
The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for all government funds.  The City also maintains two non-
major governmental programs:   
 

• Water Capital Reserve Fund 
• Water Bond Reserve Fund 

 
The following funds are accounted for individually by the City, but are combined with the General Fund in 
the basic financial statements: 
 

• Woodstove Replacement Fund 
• Bicycle/Pedestrian Path Fund 

 
To demonstrate compliance with the budget, a “Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund 
Balances – Budget and Actual” is included for these funds. 
 
Business-Type Funds:  Business-type funds are used to account for activities where the emphasis is placed 
on net income.  The City maintains three business-type funds:  
 

• Water Fund 
• Wastewater Fund 
• Storm Water Fund 

 
A “Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual” is included 
for these funds. 
  



 

- 7 - 

 
Notes to basic financial statements.  The notes provide additional information that is essential for a full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.  They are an 
integral part of the financial statements and should be read in conjunction with them. 
 
Required supplementary information.  In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying 
notes, this report also presents certain required supplementary information concerning budgetary 
comparisons for the general fund, street fund, and emergency services fund, information about the City’s 
progress in funding its obligation to provide pension and other post-employment benefits to its employees 
and budget to GAAP reconciliation schedule. 
 

 
 
Government-wide Financial Analysis 
 

The largest portion of the City’s net position reflects its net investment in capital assets (e.g. land and right-
of-way, buildings, improvements, equipment, and infrastructure less related debt).  The City uses these 
assets to provide services to its citizens.  Consequently, these assets are not available for sale or alternative 
use.  Resources to pay the related debt used in acquiring these assets must come from other sources such as 
taxes, service fees, licenses and permits etc. Significant additions to capital assets in FY20 are described 
below. 
  

6/30/2020 6/30/2019 6/30/2020 6/30/2019 6/30/2020 6/30/2019

Current and Other Assets 1,329,053$ 1,455,518$ 686,387$    657,214$    2,015,440$ 2,112,732$ 
Capital Assets, Net 2,943,915   3,125,056   6,544,489   6,247,737   9,488,404   9,372,793   
Asset for Held for Sale 1,693,992   1,705,461   -              -              1,693,992   1,705,461   
Total Assets 5,966,960   6,286,035   7,230,876   6,904,951   13,197,836 13,190,986 

Deferred Outflows 840,276      929,271      224,764      245,973      1,065,040   1,175,244   

Current Liabilities 500,615      607,183      328,596      436,022 829,211 1,043,205
Net Pension, OPEB Liabilities 2,326,316   2,005,260   607,293      530,780 2,933,609 2,536,040
Other Long Term Liabilities 35,437        60,885        4,606,705   5,037,541 4,642,142 5,098,426
Total Liabilities 2,862,368   2,673,328   5,542,594   6,004,343   8,404,962   8,677,671   

Deferred Inflows 120,073      159,319      32,819        42,171        152,892      201,490      

Net Position:
Net Investment in
   Capital Assets 2,859,900   3,015,593   1,821,804   1,002,740   4,681,704   4,018,333   
Restricted 2,530,612   2,527,538   -              -              2,530,612   2,527,538   
Unrestricted (1,565,717)  (1,160,472)  58,423        101,670      (1,507,294)  (1,058,802)  

Total Net Position 3,824,795$ 4,382,659$ 1,880,227$ 1,104,410$ 5,705,022$ 5,487,069$ 

Net Position

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total



 

- 8 - 

 
Governmental activities.  The net position of the Governmental activities decreased $578,000 in FY20 
due to a number of factors. The net position decreased due to a $367,000 increase in Pension balance plus 
a $4,000 increase in OPEB balance. Accounts receivable decreased by $37,000, while grants receivable 
increased by $11,000 and Notes receivable increased by $12,000 due to selling a lot in the Oakridge 
Industrial Park.  The net position was further decreased by the $36,000 increase in Payroll liabilities. A 
$75,000 increase in Interfund loan payable due to the interfund loan not being repaid by end of year. The 
City also wrote off $63,000 of abandoned CIP related to the initial IMBA Ride Center project. The 
remaining decrease in net position results primarily from operational results shown in the change of current 
assets and current liabilities balances in the table above.   
 
Business-type activities: The net position of the three business-type activities (Water, Wastewater and 
Storm Water) increased $776,000 compared to the prior year. Non-Operating Revenue increased by 
$776,000 due primarily to a loan forgiveness of $765,000 related to the 2017 Water Improvement Project. 
The remaining insignificant change in net position results from the increase in operating income that is 
partially offset by an increase in transfers out compared to the prior year. 

 

 
  

Source Water Wastewater Storm Water        Total

Revenues 1,050,941$     692,924$        27,765$         1,771,630$     
Operating Expenses 804,146         746,683         8,098             1,558,927       
Operating Income 246,795         (53,759)          19,667           212,703         
Non-Operating Revenue (Expenses) 617,196         (42,499)          (5,775)            568,922         
Transfers In (Out) (5,808)            -                -                (5,808)            
Change in Net Position 858,183         (96,258)          13,892           775,817         

Beginning Net Position 225,569         738,997         139,844         1,104,410       

Ending Net Position 1,083,752$     642,739$        153,736$        1,880,227$     

Change in Net Position – Business-type Activities



 

- 9 - 

 
Fund Financial Statement Analysis 
 

 
 
The decrease in the General Fund is directly related to the $655,000 transfer to the Emergency Services 
fund, due to its continued and ongoing need to be subsidized. Emergency Services requirements are 
outpacing increases in property taxes, other revenues, and other resources (such as the Administrative 
overhead allocation charged to other funds). The increase in the Emergency Services Fund is due to the 
General Fund subsidy.  
 
Capital Assets   
 
Additions to capital assets include the completed 2017 Water Improvement project. The additions in the 
Water Project were primarily financed by borrowings from the Infrastructure Finance Authority (IFA). The 
City’s net investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities totals approximately 
$4.7 million as of June 30, 2020.  The investment in capital assets includes land, right-of-way (included 
with land), buildings and improvements, improvements other than buildings (such as parks and park 
improvements), equipment  and infrastructure including streets and utilities, all depreciated through normal 
accounting practice.  The net investment amount is also shown net of the related long term and current debt. 
Capital assets are used to provide services to City residents and others and are therefore not available for 
sale or other disposition except for the occasional surplus property. 
 
Debt Management 
 
During FY20 the City completed the 2017 Water Improvement Project and $765,000 of the loan was 
forgiven. Additional activity related to long-term obligations can be found in Note 7. 
  



 

- 10 - 

 
Budget Highlights 
 
The City’s general fund budget includes adjustments made during the year by Council resolution and/or 
Supplemental Budget.  All functional appropriations were within budgeted amounts, except as follows: 

• In the General Fund  the following department was overspent: 
o Library appropriations were overspent by $2,429 

 
The General Fund balance at year end was a deficit of $49,471. 

 
For FY21 the City administration intends to closely monitor operating revenues and expenditures to ensure 
that all funds finish the year with a positive fund balance, in addition it is the administration’s intent to 
eliminate spending in excess of appropriations. 
 
Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget 
 
During the preparation of the budget for the ensuing fiscal year, the primary objective is to achieve financial 
stability.  The City Council and staff of the City are accountable for expending City funds.  The following 
are the major assumptions used in developing the FY21 budget and operating plan. 
 

1. Emergency Services Operations and Support  
              
The Emergency Services fund will continue to require significant subsidies from the General Fund 
in FY22 to cover its operating deficits and will continue to receive a waiver of administrative 
overhead charges. The operating deficits are attributed to the expenditures of providing EMT and 
ambulance services. The revenue that is intended to fund the EMT and ambulance service is 
inadequate, due to low reimbursement rates from government sources and from serving a 
disadvantaged community without the resources to pay for these services. Management is taking 
steps to transition the ambulance service to an entity other than the City, either through a partnership 
with the county or a private ambulance service. At the date of this report no definitive option or 
options have been determined.  It should be noted that there was a Public Safety levy for the City 
of Oakridge on the November 2020 ballot.  The citizens of Oakridge overwhelmingly rejected the 
levy. 

 
2. Debt Service on the 2017 Water improvement Project and Water Rates 

 
During FY20 the City completed the 2017 Water Improvement Project and made the final draws 
on the original loan with IFA. The loan repayment starts in December 2020. 
 

  



 

- 11 - 

3. Trends in Revenues and Expenditures 
 
Revenues in the General Fund are expected to be relatively flat compared to FY20. An increase in 
General Fund expenses is expected. General fund administrative expenses are partially allocated to 
other funds based on centralized services provided to those funds by the Administration Department 
of the General Fund.  Revenues in the significant Proprietary funds, Water and Waste Water, are 
expected to increase due to the annual rate increase based on an index method.  Increases in 
expenses in the Proprietary Funds and additional debt service requirements are expected to largely 
offset the revenue increases. 
 

4. Grants 
 
During FY21 the City will use funds from the Oregon Department of Transportation/ International 
Mountain Bicycle Association (ODOT/IMBA) grant to build park structures. The City received a 
grant administered by the Lane Regional Air Protection Agency (LRAPA) to provide a code 
enforcement officer to monitor for burning and wood smoke violations. The City received CARES 
Act grant funds to offset additional costs related to COVID-19. The City received two grants from 
the Ford Family Foundation related to rural economic development.  

 
5. Cash and Working Capital 

 
Having adequate liquid resources to fund current operating needs and meet any unexpected cash 
requirements that arise is important to the financial health of the City and provides a basis for 
continuing operations in the next year. As of June 30, 2020 the City had cash and cash equivalent 
balances of $1,201,000, of which $796,000 was restricted to use by the Street Fund, Oakridge 
Industrial Park Fund and Debt Service Funds. Cash and cash equivalents comprised most of the 
City’s working capital balance as other current assets and current liabilities netted to a negative 
$15,000. City Administration will monitor cash and working capital balances closely for each fund 
and in total in FY21.   

 
Requests for Information 
 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances and activities for those 
with an interest in government financing.  Questions concerning any of the information provided in this 
report or requests for additional information should be addressed to: 
 
 City Administrator 
 P.O. Box 1410 
 48318 E. First Street 
 Oakridge, Oregon 97463 
 541-782-2258  
 
Please visit our website at www.ci.oakridge.or.us. 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
 LANE COUNTY, OREGON 
 
 
 BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2020

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 70,560            $ 334,972          $ 405,532          
Restricted Cash and Investments 795,915          -                      795,915          
Receivables:

Taxes 44,172            -                      44,172            
Accounts (Net) 324,060          267,415          591,475          
Grants 20,955            -                      20,955            
Assessments 40,380            -                      40,380            

Interfund Loans Receivable -                      84,000            84,000            
Capital Assets:

Land, Land Improvements, and Construction in Progress 854,941          20,300            875,241          
Other Capital Assets, Net 2,088,974       6,524,189       8,613,163       

Notes Receivable 33,011            -                      33,011            
Assets Held for Sale 1,693,992       -                      1,693,992       

Total Assets 5,966,960       7,230,876       13,197,836     

Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Pension Related Deferrals 836,872          223,943          1,060,815       
Other Post-employment Benefits 3,404              821                 4,225              

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 840,276          224,764          1,065,040       

Total  Assets and Deferred Outflows 6,807,236       7,455,640       14,262,876     

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND NET POSITION

Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 147,613          35,836            183,449          
Payroll Liabilities 92,849            23,890            116,739          
Interfund Loans Payable 84,000            -                      84,000            

Compensated Absences 91,358            31,349            122,707          

Accrued Interest -                      38,912            38,912            
Customer Deposits -                      70,491            70,491            
Unearned Revenue 36,217            12,138            48,355            
Current Portion of Long Term Liabilities 32,660            157,808          190,468          
Long Term Liabilities:

Net Pension Liability 2,256,904       589,239          2,846,143       
Other Post-employment Benefits Liability 69,412            18,054            87,466            
Note Payable and Capitalized Lease Obligation 51,355            4,564,877       4,616,232       

Total Liabilities 2,862,368       5,542,594       8,404,962       

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Net Pension Related Deferrals 82,930            22,850            105,780          
Other Post-employment Benefits 37,143            9,969              47,112            

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 120,073          32,819            152,892          

Net Position:
Net Investment in Capital Assets 2,859,900       1,821,804       4,681,704       
Restricted: Streets 135,272          -                      135,272          
Restricted: Debt Service 120,683          -                      120,683          
Restricted: Oakridge Industrial park 2,274,657       -                      2,274,657       
Unrestricted (1,565,717)      58,423            (1,507,294)      

Total Net Position $ 3,824,795     $ 1,880,227      $ 5,705,022     

- 12 -



Operating
Charges for Grants and

Expenses Services Contributions

Functions/Programs

Primary Government
Governmental Activities

General Government $ 622,750                    $ 184,016          $ 22,852            $ 20,739                        
Public Safety 2,352,443                 421,955          -                      19,473                        
Highways and Streets 279,460                    -                      -                      -                                  
Culture and Recreation 91,137                      -                      -                      -                                  
Interest on Long Term Debt 2,900                        -                      -                      -                                  

Total Governmental Activities 3,348,690                 605,971          22,852            40,212                        

Business-Type Activities
Water 939,868                    990,335          -                      785,000                      

Wastewater   778,739                    690,846          -                      -                                  
Storm Water 13,873                      27,765            -                      -                                  
Interest on Long Term Debt 42,525                      -                      -                      -                                  

Total Business-Type Activities 1,775,005                 1,708,946       -                      785,000                      

Total Primary Government $ 5,123,695               $ 2,314,917     $ 22,852           $ 825,212                     

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Program Revenues

Capital
Grants and

Contributions

CITY OF OAKRIDGE
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

- 13 -



Net Revenue (Expense)

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

Functions/Programs

Primary Government
Governmental Activities $ (395,143)            $ -                        $ (395,143)         

General Government (1,911,015)         -                        (1,911,015)      
Public Safety (279,460)            -                        (279,460)         
Highways and Streets (91,137)              -                        (91,137)           
Culture and Recreation (2,900)                -                        (2,900)             
Interest on Long Term Debt (2,679,655)         -                        (2,679,655)      

Total Governmental Activities

Business-Type Activities -                         835,467            835,467          
Water -                         (87,893)             (87,893)           

Wastewater   -                         13,892              13,892            
Storm Water -                         (42,525)             (42,525)           
Interest on Long Term Debt -                         718,941            718,941          

Total Business-Type Activities
(2,679,655)         718,941            (1,960,714)      

Total Primary Government

Property Taxes 1,112,279          -                        1,112,279       
Franchise and License Fees 273,404             -                        273,404          
Intergovernmental 216,705             -                        216,705          
License, Permits, and Misc. Taxes 497,864             -                        497,864          
Assesments 1,366                 -                        1,366              
Interest and Miscellaneous 32,220               62,684              94,904            
Transfers 5,808                 (5,808)               -                      
Insurance Proceeds 31,148               -                        31,148            
Gain (Loss) on Sale of Property (49,003)              -                        (49,003)           

           Total 2,121,791          56,876              2,178,667       

Change in Net Position (557,864)            775,817            217,953          

Beginning Net Position 4,382,659          1,104,410         5,487,069       

Ending Net Position $ 3,824,795        $ 1,880,227        $ 5,705,022     

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

CITY OF OAKRIDGE
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

- 14 -



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

COMBINED BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30, 2020

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

OTHER

STREET SERVICES GOVERNMENTAL

FUND FUND FUNDS TOTAL

ASSETS:

Cash and Investments $ 2,752           $ -                   $ 44,576         $ -                   $ 23,232           $ 70,560         

Restricted Cash and Investments 28,389         47,510         -                   599,333       120,683         795,915       

Receivables:
Accounts, Net 164,306       53,043         103,877       2,834           -                     324,060       
Grants 7,026           -                   -                   13,929         -                     20,955         

Assessments -                   40,380         -                   -                   -                     40,380         

Taxes 44,172         -                   -                   -                   -                     44,172         
Notes -                   -                   -                   33,011         -                     33,011         

Total  Assets $ 246,645       $ 140,933       $ 148,453       $ 649,107       $ 143,915         $ 1,329,053    

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND FUND BALANCES:

Liabilities:

Accounts Payable $ 84,371         $ 2,134           $ 44,709         $ 16,399         $ -                     $ 147,613       

Payroll Liabilities 59,136         3,527           30,186         -                   -                     92,849         

Interfund Loans Payable 84,000         -                   -                   -                   -                     84,000         

Unearned Revenue 252              -                   14,938         21,027         -                     36,217         

Total  Liabilities 227,759       5,661           89,833         37,426         -                     360,679       

Deferred Inflows:

Unavailable Assessment Revenues -                   32,232         -                   -                   -                     32,232         

Unavailable Receivables 28,727         -                   39,786         -                   -                     68,513         

Unavailable Notes Receivable -                   -                   -                   31,016         -                     31,016         

Unavailable Property Tax Revenues 39,630         -                   -                   -                   -                     39,630         

Total Deferred Inflows 68,357         32,232         39,786         31,016         -                     171,391       

Fund Balances:

Restricted for:

Streets -                   103,040       -                   -                   -                     103,040       

Oakridge Industrial Park -                   -                   -                   580,665       -                     580,665       

Debt Service -                   -                   -                   -                   120,683         120,683       

Assigned 28,389         -                   -                   -                   23,232           51,621         

Unassigned (77,860)        -                   18,834         -                   -                     (59,026)        

Total Fund Balances (49,471)        103,040       18,834         580,665       143,915         796,983       

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows 

and Fund Balances $ 246,645       $ 140,933       $ 148,453       $ 649,107       $ 143,915         $ 1,329,053    

GENERAL

FUND

PARK

FUND

INDUSTRIALEMERGENCY

- 15 -



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

RECONCILIATION OF BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2020

Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the government-wide Statement of Net Position.

Fund Balances $ 796,983                 

(2,256,904)             

(69,412)                  

Deferred Outflows 840,276                 
Deferred Inflows (120,073)                

Net Capital Assets 2,943,915              

Assets Held for Sale 1,693,992              

Loans Payable (84,015)                  

Compensated Absences (91,358)                  

Unavailable Assessment Revenues $ 32,232          
Unavailable Receivables 68,513          
Unavailable Notes Receivable 31,016          
Unavailable Property Tax Revenues 39,630          

171,391                 

Total Net Position $ 3,824,795             

Accrued compensated absences are not due and payable in the current period and
therefore are not reported in the funds.

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and
therefore are unavailable revenue in the funds.

The cost of assets held for sale is reported as an expenditure in governmental funds.
The Statement of Net Position includes those capital assets among the assets of the
City as a whole.

The net pension liability is the difference between the total pension liability and the
assets set aside to pay benefits earned to past and current employees and
beneficiaries.

Deferred inflows and outflows of resources related to the pension plan and other
post-employment benefits include differences between expected and actual
experience, changes of assumptions, differences between projects and actual
earning, and contributions subsequent to the measurement date.

The other post-employment benefit liability is the difference between the total other
post-employment liability and the assets set aside to pay benefits earned to past and
current employees and beneficiaries.

The cost of capital assets (land, buildings, improvements, machinery and
equipment, infrastructure, and construction in progress) is reported as an
expenditure in governmental funds. The Statement of Net Position includes those
capital assets among the assets of the City as a whole.

Long-term liabilities applicable to the City's governmental activities are not due and
payable in the current period and accordingly are not reported as fund liabilities. All
liabilities, both current and long-term, are reported in the Statement of Net Position.

- 16 -



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, 
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

 
 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS  

OTHER
GENERAL STREET SERVICES GOVERNMENTAL

FUND FUND FUND FUNDS TOTAL
REVENUES:

Property Taxes $ 1,109,027     $ -                  $ -                  $ -                   $ -                   $ 1,109,027   

Franchise and License Fees 273,404        -                    -                    -                    -                    273,404        
Rental Revenue 21,029          -                  -                  77,944        -                   98,973        
Licenses, Permits, and Misc. Taxes 196,746        301,118      -                  -                   -                   497,864      
Intergovernmental 124,290        3,105          89,310        -                   -                   216,705      
Charges for Services -                    -                  443,145      -                   -                   443,145      
Fines and Forfeitures 65,359          -                  -                  -                   -                   65,359        
Grants and Donations 42,325          -                  -                  20,739        -                   63,064        
Assessments -                    19,736        -                  -                   -                   19,736        
Interest and Miscellaneous 16,622          1,642          1,627          769             -                   20,660        

Total Revenues 1,848,802     325,601      534,082      99,452        -                   2,807,937   

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
General Government 305,940        -                  -                  84,704        -                   390,644      
Public Safety 978,404        -                  1,032,233   -                   -                   2,010,637   
Highways and Streets -                    316,986      -                  -                   -                   316,986      
Culture and Recreation 84,394          -                  -                  -                   -                   84,394        

Capital Outlay 59,721          3,442          -                  22,368        -                   85,531        

Total Expenditures 1,428,459     320,428      1,032,233   107,072      -                   2,888,192   

Excess of Revenues Over, 
(Under) Expenditures 420,343        5,173          (498,151)     (7,620)         -                   (80,255)       

Other Financing Sources, (Uses)
Proceeds from Sale of Property -                    -                  -                  37,360        -                   37,360        
Insurance Proceeds 31,148          -                  -                  -                   -                   31,148        
Transfers In 7,000            -                  650,000      -                   5,808            662,808      
Transfers Out (655,000)       (2,000)         -                  -                   -                   (657,000)     

Total Other Financing
Sources, (Uses) (616,852)       (2,000)         650,000      37,360        5,808            74,316        

Net Change in Fund Balance (196,509)       3,173          151,849      29,740        5,808            (5,939)         

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year 147,038        99,867        (133,015)     550,925      138,107        802,922      

Fund Balance - End of Year $ (49,471)         $ 103,040      $ 18,834        $ 580,665      $ 143,915        $ 796,983      

EMERGENCY INDUSTRIAL
PARK

FUND

- 17 -



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

RECONCILIATION OF STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - TO

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Net Change in Fund Balance $ (5,939)          

(370,805)      

Capital Asset Additions, Net of Disposals (3,172)      
Depreciation Expense (177,969)  

Net Adjustment (181,141)      

Historical cost of Assets Held for Sale sold in the current period (11,469)        

Payments on Long-term Obligations 25,448          
Compensated Absences 2,666            

Property Taxes 3,252       
Notes, Assessments and Other Receivables (19,876)    

Net Adjustment (16,624)        

Change in Net Position $ (557,864)      

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial resources
are not reported as revenues in the funds.

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement
of Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which depreciation exceeded
capital outlays in the current period.

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting used in the governmental funds,
expenditures are not recognized for transactions that are not normally paid with
expendable available financial resources. In the Statement of Activities, however, which
is presented on the accrual basis of accounting, expenses and liabilities are reported
regardless of when financial resources are available. This adjustment combines the net
changes in liability balances.

Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance 
and the government-wide Statement of Activities is as follows:

Expenses include the changes in net pension liability and other post-employment
benefits liability from year to year due to changes in total liability and the fair value of
pension plan net position that is available to pay pension benefits.

- 18 -



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
 PROPRIETARY FUNDS

June 30, 2020

WATER WASTEWATER
FUND FUND FUND TOTAL

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS:
Cash and Investments $ 157,157         $ 150,783         $ 27,032             $ 334,972         
Accounts Receivable, Net 195,446       69,009         2,960              267,415        
Interfund Loans Receivable 4,500           79,500         -                      84,000          

Capital Assets:

Land 6,300             -                     14,000             20,300           
Other Capital Assets, Net 5,633,756      780,689         109,744           6,524,189      

Total  Assets 5,997,159      1,079,981      153,736           7,230,876      

Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Pension Related Deferrals 107,050         116,893         -                       223,943         
Other Post-employment Benefits 393                428                -                       821                

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 107,443         117,321         -                       224,764         

Total  Assets and Deferred Outflows $ 6,104,602    $ 1,197,302    $ 153,736         $ 7,455,640      

LIABILITIES. DEFERRED INFLOWS AND NET ASSETS:

Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable $ 27,389           $ 8,447             $ -                       $ 35,836           
Payroll Liabilities 11,589           12,301           -                       23,890           
Unearned Revenue -                     12,138           -                       12,138           
Compensated Absences 21,243           10,106           -                       31,349           
Accrued Interest 38,912           -                 -                       38,912           
Customer Deposits 70,491           -                 -                       70,491           
Loans Payable, due within one year 142,808         -                 -                       142,808         
Bonds Payable, due within one year 7,500             7,500             -                       15,000           

Total  Current Liabilities 319,932         50,492           -                       370,424         

Long Term Liabilities:

Loan Payable, due in more than one year 4,224,877      -                 -                       4,224,877      
Bonds Payable, due in more than one year 170,000         170,000         -                       340,000         
Net Pension Liability 281,724         307,515         -                       589,239         
Other Post-employment Benefits Liability 8,632             9,422             -                       18,054           

Total  Liabilities 5,005,165      537,429         -                       5,542,594      

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Pension Related Deferrals 10,920           11,930           -                       22,850           
Other Post-employment Benefits 4,765             5,204             -                       9,969             

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 15,685           17,134           -                       32,819           
.

Net Position:
Net Investment in Capital Assets 1,094,871      603,189         123,744           1,821,804      
Unrestricted (11,119)          39,550           29,992             58,423           

Total Net Position 1,083,752      642,739         153,736           1,880,227      

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows
and Net Position $ 6,104,602    $ 1,197,302    $ 153,736         $ 7,455,640      

NON-MAJOR
STORM WATER

- 19 -



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

NON-MAJOR
WATER WASTEWATER STORM WATER
FUND FUND FUND TOTAL

OPERATING REVENUES

Charges for Services $ 990,335         $ 690,846         $ 27,765            $ 1,708,946 
Other Revenues 60,606           2,078             -                     62,684      

     Total Revenues 1,050,941      692,924         27,765            1,771,630 

OPERATING EXPENSES

Personnel Services 278,245         279,218         -                     557,463    
Materials and Services 525,901         467,465         8,098              1,001,464 

Total Operating Expenses 804,146         746,683         8,098              1,558,927 

Income, (Loss) From Operations 246,795         (53,759)          19,667            212,703    

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Capital Contributions 20,000           -                     -                     20,000      
Capital Contribution - Debt Forgiveness 765,000         -                     -                     765,000    
Accrued Interest Forgiveness (11,404)          -                     -                     (11,404)     
Interest Expense (20,678)          (10,443)          -                     (31,121)     
Depreciation (135,722)        (32,056)          (5,775)            (173,553)   

Total Nonoperating Expenses 617,196         (42,499)          (5,775)            568,922    

Income, (Loss) Before Transfers 863,991         (96,258)          13,892            781,625    

Transfers Out (5,808)            -                     -                     (5,808)       

Change in Net Position 858,183         (96,258)          13,892            775,817    

Beginning Net Position 225,569         738,997         139,844          1,104,410 

Ending Net Position $ 1,083,752    $ 642,739       $ 153,736         $ 1,880,227

- 20 -



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

NON-MAJOR
WATER WASTEWATER STORM WATER
FUND FUND FUND TOTAL

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash Received from Customers $ 994,677         $ 693,231         $ 27,465           $ 1,715,373      
Cash Payments to Suppliers (610,739)        (511,414)        (8,098)            (1,130,251)     
Cash Payments to Employees & Related Payroll Costs (229,282)        (223,967)        -                     (453,249)        

Net Cash From Operations 154,656         (42,150)          19,367           131,873         

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Payment of Principal of Bonds, Contracts Payable (107,480)        (7,500)            -                     (114,980)        
Capital Asset Additions (455,181)        (15,124)          -                     (470,305)        
Interest Paid (32,760)          (10,445)          -                     (43,205)          
Issuance of debt 450,143         -                     -                     450,143         
Capital Grants and Contributions 20,000           -                     -                     20,000           
Interfund Transfer to Reserve Fund (5,808)            -                     -                     (5,808)            

Net Cash From Capital and Related
 Financing Activities (131,086)        (33,069)          -                     (164,155)        

Cash Flows From Non-Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Loan to General Fund -                     (75,000)          -                     (75,000)          
Repay of short-term Loan to General Fund (cash deficit) -                     67,349           -                     67,349           
Repay of short-term Loan to EMS Fund (cash deficit) -                     144,220         -                     144,220         

Net Cash From Non-Capital and Related
 Financing Activities -                     136,569         -                     136,569         

Net Increase (Decrease) In Cash and Investments 23,570           61,350           19,367           104,287         

Cash and Investments at Beginning of Year 133,587         89,433           7,665             230,685         

Cash and Investments at End of Year $ 157,157       $ 150,783       $ 27,032           $ 334,972       

Reconciliation of Cash Flows From Operating 
Activities to Operating Income

Operating Income $ 246,795         $ (53,759)          $ 19,667           $ 212,703         
Adjustments

(Increase), Decrease in Accounts Receivable (61,280)          127                (300)               (61,453)          
Increase, (Decrease) in Accounts Payable (84,838)          (43,949)          -                     (128,787)        
Increase, (Decrease) in Payroll Liabilities 5,367             5,809             -                     11,176           
Increase, (Decrease) in Unearned Revenues -                     180                -                     180                
Increase, (Decrease) in Pension Related Activities 41,835           45,601           -                     87,436           
Increase, (Decrease) in OPEB Related Activities 447                487                -                     934                
Increase, (Decrease) in Compensated Absences 1,314             3,354             -                     4,668             
Increase, (Decrease) in Customer Deposits 5,016             -                     -                     5,016             

Net Cash From Operations $ 154,656       $ (42,150)        $ 19,367           $ 131,873       

 - 21 -



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

- 22 - 

 
1.   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
THE FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY 
 
The City of Oakridge is a municipal corporation governed by a mayor and an elected council who comprise the City 
Council. The daily functioning is under the supervision of the City Administrator.  As required by Generally 
Accepted Accounting Principles, all activities of the City have been included in these basic financial statements.   
 
The basic financial statements include all financial activities, organizations, and functions for which the City Council 
has financial accountability as defined by GASB Statement No. 61.  The financial reporting entity consists of (a) the 
primary government (City), (b) organizations for which the City is financially accountable, and (c) governmental 
organizations for which the City is not financially accountable, but for which the nature and significance of their 
financial relationship with the City are such that exclusion would cause the basic financial statements to be 
misleading or incomplete.  Component units are legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the 
City are financially accountable.  In addition, component units can be governmental organizations for which the City 
is not financially accountable, but for which the nature and significance of their financial relationship with the City 
are such that exclusion would cause the City’s basic financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.  No 
organizational units meet the criteria for inclusion as a component unit. 
 
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
The basic financial statements are presented at both the government-wide and fund financial level.  Both levels of 
statements categorize primary activities as either governmental or business-type.  Governmental activities, which are 
normally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, 
which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. 
 
Government-wide financial statements display information about the City as a whole.  Interfund activity has been 
eliminated from funds that are consolidated for reporting in the statements. These statements focus on the 
sustainability of the City and the change in aggregate financial position resulting from the activities of the fiscal 
period.  These aggregated statements consist of the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities.  
  
The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment is 
offset by program revenues.  Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or 
segment.  Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit 
from goods, services or privileges provided by a given function or segment, and 2) grants and contributions that are 
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment.  Taxes and other 
items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 

 
Fund financial statements display information at the individual fund level.  Each fund is considered to be a separate 
accounting entity.  Funds are classified and summarized as governmental or proprietary.  Major individual 
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial 
statements.  Non-major funds are consolidated into a single column within each fund type in the financial section of 
the basic financial statements and are detailed in the supplementary information. 

 
 



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

- 23 - 
 

 
1.   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
BASIS OF PRESENTATION 
  
The financial transactions are recorded in individual funds.  Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of 
self-balancing accounts that comprises its assets, liabilities, fund balances, revenues and expenditures/expenses.   
 
There are stated minimum criteria (percentage of the assets, liabilities, revenues or expenditures/expenses of either 
fund category or the governmental and enterprise combined) for the determination of major funds.  Management can 
designate a fund as major even if it does not meet these criteria.  Non-major funds are combined in one column in the 
fund financial statements and detailed in the supplementary section. 
 
These are the major governmental funds: 
 

General Fund – This fund accounts for all financial resources and expenditures, except those required to be 
accounted for in another fund.  The principal revenue sources are property taxes, franchise fees, fines and 
forfeitures, planning fees, charges for services and interest on investments. 
 
Street Fund – This fund accounts for the maintenance, construction or reconstruction of streets and 
sidewalks.  These costs are paid primarily from moneys received pursuant to the State of Oregon Gas Tax 
Apportionment, from Lane County road funds. 
 
Emergency Services Fund – This fund is a combination of the ambulance and fire departments.  Costs are 
paid primarily from ambulance user charges and a transfer from the general fund. 
 
Industrial Park Fund – This fund accounts for activities of the Oakridge Industrial Park.  Costs are paid 
primarily from rental revenues and proceeds from the sale of properties. 

 
These are the major proprietary funds: 

 
Water Fund - This fund accounts for the revenues and expenses of the water utility.  The primary revenue 
source is fees for services. 
 
Wastewater Fund - This fund accounts for the revenues and expenses of the sewer utility.  The primary 
revenue source is fees for services. 

 
MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 
 
Measurement focus is a term used to describe which transactions are recorded within the various financial 
statements.  Basis of accounting refers to when transactions are recorded regardless of the measurement focus. 
 
Government-wide Financial Statements and Proprietary Funds Financial Statements are presented on a full accrual 
basis of accounting with an economic resource measurement focus.  An economic resource focus concentrates on 
equity or a fund’s net position.  All transactions and events that affect the total economic resources (net position) 
during the period are reported.  An economic resources measurement is inextricably connected with full accrual 
accounting. Under the full accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded 
at the time liabilities are incurred regardless of the timing of related cash inflows and outflows. 
  



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

- 24 - 
 

 
1.   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED) 
 
Governmental Funds Financial Statements are presented on a modified accrual basis of accounting with a current 
financial resource measurement focus.  This focus concentrates on the fund’s resources available for spending 
currently or in the near future.  Only transactions and events affecting the fund’s current financial resources during 
the period are reported.  Similar to the connection between an economic resource measurement focus and full accrual 
accounting, a current financial resource measurement focus is inseparable from a modified accrual basis of 
accounting.  Under modified accrual accounting, revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and 
available.  Revenues are considered to be available when they are collected within the current period or soon enough 
thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.  For this purpose, revenues are considered to be available if they are 
collected within two months of the end of the current fiscal period.  Expenditures generally are recorded when a 
liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.  Property taxes, franchise fees, licenses and permits, and interest 
associated with the current financial period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been 
recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period if received within two months of year end.  All other revenues are 
considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received. 
 
An unavailable revenue liability arises in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet when potential revenue does not 
meet both the measurable and available criteria for recognition in the current period.  This unavailable revenue 
consists primarily of uncollected property taxes, assessments, and other receivables not deemed available to finance 
operations of the current period.  In the government-wide Statement of Activities, with a full accrual basis of 
accounting, revenue is recognized as soon as it is earned regardless of its availability.  Thus, the liability created on 
the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet for unavailable revenue is eliminated.   
 
Unearned revenues arise outside the scope of measurement focus and basis of accounting, such as when resources are 
received before there is legal claim to them.  For instance, when grant moneys are received prior to the incurrence of 
qualifying expenditures. 
 
Similar to the way its revenues are recorded, governmental funds only record those expenditures that affect current 
financial resources.  Principal and interest on general long-term debt are recorded as fund liabilities only when due.  
Vested compensated absences and pension costs are recorded as expenditures only to the extent that they are 
expected to be liquidated with expendable financial resources.  In the government-wide financial statements, 
however, with a full accrual basis of accounting, all expenditures affecting the economic resource status of the City 
are recognized.  Thus, the expense and related accrued liability for long-term portions of debt and compensated 
absences must be included. 
 

Since the governmental fund statements are presented on a different measurement focus and basis of accounting than 
the government-wide statements, reconciliation is provided to explain the differences between the fund based 
financial statements and the governmental column of the government-wide presentation.  This reconciliation is part 
of the financial statements. 
 
Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or 
privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions.  Internally 
dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues.  Likewise, general revenues 
include all taxes. 
 
 
  



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

- 25 - 
 

 
1.   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED) 
 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.  Operating revenues and 
expenses generally result from providing services, and producing and delivering goods in connection with a 
proprietary fund’s principle ongoing operations.  The principle operating revenues of the Water and Wastewater 
Funds are charges to customers for sales and services.  Operating expenses for enterprises funds include the cost of 
sales and services, administrative expenses and overhead, and depreciation on capital assets.  All revenues and 
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 
 
The City first applies restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and 
unrestricted net position are available. 
 
DEFFERED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
 
In addition to assets, the financial statements include a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This 
separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that 
applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. 
At June 30, 2020, there were deferred outflows representing pension-related and other post-employment benefits 
deferrals reported on the statement of net position.  

 
In addition to liabilities, the financial statements include a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This 
separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that 
applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The City 
has four types of items which qualify for reporting in this category. At June 30, 2020, unavailable revenue from 
property taxes, loan repayments, assessments, and other receivables is reported on the governmental funds balance 
sheet. Deferred inflows representing pension-related and other post-employment benefit deferrals are reported in the 
statement of net position. 
 
BUDGETS 
 
A budget is prepared for all funds in accordance with a modified accrual basis of accounting and legal requirements 
set forth in the Oregon Local Budget Law.  For governmental fund types, the budgetary basis of accounting is the 
same as generally accepted accounting principles, except for the differences noted under the measurement focus and 
basis of accounting footnote above.  The budget process begins early in each fiscal year with the establishment of the 
Budget Committee.  Recommendations are developed through late winter with the Budget Committee approving the 
budget in early spring.  Public notices of the budget hearing are published generally in early spring with a public 
hearing being held approximately three weeks later. City Council may amend the budget prior to adoption; however, 
budgeted expenditures for each fund may not be increased by more than ten percent without further public hearings.  
The budget is then adopted, appropriations are made, and the tax levy declared no later than June 30th. 

 
Expenditure budgets are allocated to, and appropriated by, program or organizational unit when possible.  
Expenditure budgets that are not allocated to a program or organizational unit are appropriated at the following levels 
of control: Debt Service, Contingency, and Transfers Out. 
 
 
 
  



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

- 26 - 
 

 
1.   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
BUDGETS (CONTINUED) 
 
The General Fund is appropriated at the department level along with transfers and contingencies. Expenditures 
cannot legally exceed the above appropriation levels except in the case of grants which could not be estimated at the 
time of budget adoption.  Appropriations lapse at the fiscal year-end. Management may amend line items in the 
budget without Council approval if appropriation levels (the legal level of control) are not changed. Supplemental 
appropriations may occur if the City Council approves them due to a need which exists which was not determined at 
the time the budget was adopted. 
 
Budget amounts shown in the basic financial statements reflect the original budget amount and appropriation 
transfers.  Expenses of the various funds were within authorized appropriations for the year ended June 30, 2020, 
with the exception of General Fund – Library Program by $2,429. 
 
ESTIMATES 
 
The preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts 
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the basic financial statements 
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from 
those estimates. 
 
ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY 
 
Deposits and investments 
Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term investments with 
original maturities of three months or less from the date of inception. 
 
Receivables and payables  
Activity between funds that represent short-term lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal 
year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds”.  All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as 
“interfund loans receivable/payable”. 
 
Recorded property taxes receivable that are collected within two months after year-end are considered measurable 
and available and, therefore, are recognized as revenue in the fund financial statements.  The remaining balance is 
recorded as unavailable revenue.  Property taxes are levied and become a lien on July 1.  Collection dates are 
November 15, February 15, and May 15 following the lien date.  Discounts are allowed if the amount due is received 
by November 15.  Taxes unpaid and outstanding on May 16 are considered delinquent. 
 
Uncollected property taxes are shown in the government-wide Statement of Net Position.  Uncollected taxes are 
deemed by management to be substantially collectible or recoverable through liens; therefore, no allowance for 
uncollectible taxes has been established. 
 
Receivables of the enterprise funds are recognized as revenue when earned, including services provided but not 
billed. Receivables in governmental and enterprise funds are stated net of any allowance for uncollectibles. 
 
 
 
  



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

- 27 - 
 

 
1.   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (CONTINUED) 
 
Supply Inventories and prepaid items  
Detailed supply inventory records are not maintained.  Supply inventories are considered to be immaterial by 
management at year end. 
 
Capital assets  
Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks, 
and similar items) are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-
wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 
(amount not rounded) and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or 
estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market 
value at the date of donation.  
 
Additions or improvements and other capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an asset, or that 
significantly increase the capacity of an asset are capitalized.  The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do 
not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized. 
 
Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.  
 
Property, plant, and equipment of the City is depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated 
useful lives: 
 
Buildings and improvements 20-30 years 
Infrastructure 33-50 years 
Furniture, equipment and vehicles 10 years 
 
Assets held for sale 
Various properties located in the Oakridge Industrial Park are currently held for sale/lease by the City. 
 
Grants 
Unreimbursed expenditures due from grantor agencies are reflected in the basic financial statements as receivables 
and revenues.  Grant revenues are recorded at the time eligible expenditures are incurred.  Cash received from 
grantor agencies in excess of related grant expenditures is recorded as a liability in the balance sheet and statement of 
net position. 
 
Compensated absences                                   
It is the policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick leave. All vacation leave is 
accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary financial statements. Sick leave may or may not be 
accrued based on whether there is a liability to pay such amounts upon termination. A liability for compensated 
absences is not reported in governmental funds in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
Statement No. 16 Accounting for Compensated Absences, except when matured. 

 
 

  



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

- 28 - 
 

 
1.   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (CONTINUED) 
 
Long-term obligations  
In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-term 
debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities or business-
type activities Statement of Net Position. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of 
the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or 
discount.  
 
In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts during the current 
period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances 
are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses.  
 
Retirement Plans 
Substantially all of the City's employees are participants in the State of Oregon Public Employees Retirement System 
(PERS).  For the purpose of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows 
of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about fiduciary net position of PERS and 
additions to/deductions from PERS’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are 
reported by PERS.  For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized 
when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.  Investments are reported at fair value. 
 
Net position 
Net position comprises the various net earnings from operations, non-operating revenues, expenses and contributions 
of capital.  Net position is classified in the following three categories. 
 

Net investment in capital assets – consists of all capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced 
by the outstanding balances of any bonds or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, 
construction, or improvement of those assets. 

 
Restricted – consists of external constraints placed on asset use by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws 
or regulations of other governments or constraints imposed by law through constitutional provisions or 
enabling legislation.  

 
Unrestricted – consists of all other assets that are not included in the other categories previously mentioned. 

 
 
  



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

- 29 - 
 

 
1.   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

 
ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (CONTINUED) 
 
Fund Balances 
GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund-type Definitions, is followed. The 
objective of this statement is to enhance the usefulness of fund balance information by providing clearer fund 
balance classifications that can be more consistently applied and by clarifying the existing governmental fund-type 
definitions. This statement establishes fund balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the 
extent to which a government is bound to observe constraints imposed on the use of the resources reported in 
governmental funds. Under this standard, the fund balance classifications are non-spendable, restricted, committed, 
assigned, and unassigned.  
 

• Non-spendable represents amounts that are not in a spendable form.  
• Restricted represents amounts that are legally restricted by outside parties for a specific purpose (such as 

debt covenants, grant requirements, donor requirements, or other governments) or are restricted by law 
(constitutionally or by enabling legislation).  

• Committed represents funds formally set aside by the governing body for a particular purpose. The use of 
committed funds would be approved by resolution.  

• Assigned represents amounts that are constrained by the expressed intent to use resources for specific 
purposes that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed.  Intent can be stipulated by 
the governing body or by an official to whom that authority has been given by the governing body.  The 
authority to classify portions of ending fund balances as assigned has been granted to the City Administrator.  

• Unassigned is the residual classification of the General Fund.  Only the General Fund may report a positive 
unassigned fund balance.  Other governmental funds would report any negative residual fund balance as 
Unassigned. 

The order of spending regarding fund balance categories is as follows: restricted resources are spent first when both 
restricted and unrestricted (committed, assigned or unassigned) resources are available for expenditures.  When 
unrestricted resources are spent, the order of spending is committed (if applicable), assigned (if applicable) and 
unassigned.   
 
There were no non-spendable or committed fund balances at June 30, 2020.  
 
Fair Value Inputs and Methodologies and Hierarchy 
 
Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.  Observable inputs are developed based on market 
data obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity.  Unobservable inputs are developed based on the best 
information available about the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset.  The classification of 
securities within the fair value hierarchy is based upon the activity level in the market for the security type and the 
inputs used to determine their fair value, as follows: 
 
  



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

- 30 - 
 

 
1.   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
Fair Value Inputs and Methodologies and Hierarchy (Continued) 
 
Level 1 – unadjusted price quotations in active markets/exchanges for identical assets or liabilities that each Fund 
can access 
 
Level 2 – other observable inputs (including, but not limited to, quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in 
markets that are active, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, inputs 
other than quoted prices that are observable for the assets or liabilities (such as interest rates, yield curves, 
volatilities, loss severities, credit risks and default rates) or other market–corroborated inputs) 
 
Level 3 – unobservable inputs based on the best information available in the circumstances, to the extent observable 
inputs are not available (including each Fund’s own assumptions used in determining the fair value of investments) 
 
The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
(Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). Accordingly, the 
degree of judgment exercised in determining fair value is greatest for instruments categorized in Level 3. The inputs 
used to measure fair value may fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In such cases, for disclosure 
purposes, the fair value hierarchy classification is determined based on the lowest level input that is significant to the 
fair value measurement in its entirety. 
 
2.   CASH AND INVESTMENTS 
 
A cash pool is maintained that is available for use by all funds.  Cash and cash equivalents consisted of: 
 

  

Deposits with Financial Institutions:
Demand Deposits and Cash on Hand $ 1,163,198       
Local Government Investment Pool 38,249           

Total Cash and Investments $ 1,201,447       

Reconciliation of Cash Reported In:
Governmental $ 866,475         
Business Type 334,972         

Total Cash and Investments $ 1,201,447       

Restricted and Unrestricted Cash:
Restricted Cash* $ 795,915         
Unrestricted Cash 405,532         

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1,201,447       

*Cash restricted for Woodstove Replacement, Bicycle/Pedestrian Paths, 
 Street Fund, Water Bond Reserve, and the Industrial Park.



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

- 31 - 
 

 
2.   CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
Deposits  
Deposits with financial institutions include bank demand deposits.  The total bank balance per the bank statements as 
of June 30, 2020 was $1,224,239, of which $250,000 was covered by federal depository insurance and the remainder 
was collateralized by the Oregon Public Funds Collateralization Program (PFCP).  Oregon Revised Statutes require 
deposits to be adequately covered by federal depository insurance or deposited at an approved depository as 
identified by the Treasury.  
 
Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits 
In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the deposits may not be recovered.  There is 
no deposit policy for custodial credit risk. As of June 30, 2020, all deposits are insured or at qualified institutions. 
 
Investments 
Policy is to follow state statutes governing cash management.  Statutes authorize investing in banker’s acceptances, 
time certificates of deposit, repurchase agreements, obligations of the United States and its agencies and 
instrumentalities, and the Oregon State Treasurer's Local Government Investment Pool.   
 
Investments in the Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) are included in the Oregon Short-Term Fund, which is 
an external investment pool that is not a 2a-7-like external investment pool, and is not registered with the U.S. 
Securities and Exchange Commission as an investment company. Fair value of the LGIP is calculated at the same 
value as the number of pool shares owned.  The unit of account is each share held, and the value of the position 
would be the fair value of the pool’s share price multiplied by the number of shares held.  Investments in the Short-
Term Fund are governed by ORS 294.135, Oregon Investment Council, and portfolio guidelines issued by the 
Oregon Short-Term Fund Board, which establish diversification percentages and specify the types and maturities of 
investments. The portfolio guidelines permit securities lending transactions as well as investments in repurchase 
agreements and reverse repurchase agreements.  The fund’s compliance with all portfolio guidelines can be found in 
their annual report when issued.  The LGIP seeks to exchange shares at $1.00 per share; an investment in the LGIP is 
neither insured nor guaranteed by the FDIC or any other government agency. Although the LGIP seeks to maintain 
the value of share investments at $1.00 per share, it is possible to lose money by investing in the pool.  We intend to 
measure these investments at book value since it approximates fair value. The pool is comprised of a variety of 
investments.  These investments are characterized as a level 2 fair value measurement in the Oregon Short Term 
Fund’s audited financial report.  Amounts in the State Treasurer’s Local Government Investment Pool are not 
required to be collateralized. The audited financial reports of the Oregon Short Term Fund can be found here: 
 
http://www.oregon.gov/treasury/Divisions/Investment/Pages/Oregon-Short-Term-Fund-(OSTF).aspx  
If the link has expired please contact the Oregon Short Term Fund directly. 
 
As of June 30, 2020 there were the following investments and maturities: 
 

  

Investment Maturities (in months)
Investment Type Fair Value Less than 3 3-17 18-59

State Treasurer's Investment Pool 38,249$      38,249$      -$           -$           

Total 38,249$      38,249$      -$           -$           



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

- 32 - 
 

 
2.   CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
Interest Rate Risk 
Oregon Revised Statutes require investments to not exceed a maturity of 18 months, except when the local 
government has adopted a written investment policy that was submitted to and reviewed by the OSTFB.  There are 
no investments that have a maturity date beyond three months. 
 
Custodial Credit Risk 
Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of a failure of the counterparty to a transaction, the 
value of the deposit will not be recovered.  There is no formal investment policy for custodial credit risk.  All of the 
investments are with the LGIP.  Oregon Revised Statutes do not limit investments as to credit rating for securities 
purchased from US Government Agencies or USGSE.   
 
Concentration of Credit Risk 
 
Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss due to a large portion of investments with a single issuer.  To avoid 
incurring unreasonable risks inherent to over-investing in specific instruments or in individual financial institutions, 
the investment policy sets maximum limits on the percentage of the portfolio that can be invested in any one type of 
security.  State statutes do not limit the percentage of investments in the LGIP.  As of June 30, 2018, 100% of the 
investments were in the LGIP. 
 
3.  ACCRUED COMPENSATED ABSENCES 
 
The compensated absences balances on June 30, 2020 were as follows:  
 

 
 

All are considered by management to be current liabilities. 
 
4. NOTES RECEIVABLE 
 
In June 2016, the City entered into an agreement for a $50,000 loan as partial consideration for the purchase of 
property.  The note bears interest at 4.25% per annum and is to be paid at $929.21 per month for 60 months 
beginning July, 2016.  The balance due on June 30, 2020, is $10,214. 
 
In fiscal year 2020, the City entered into an agreement for a $23,200 loan as partial consideration for the purchase of 
property in the Oakridge Industrial Park. The note bears interest at 6.00% per annum and is to be paid monthly over 
15 years.  The balance due on June 30, 2020, is $22,797. 
 
 
  

Compensated Absences

Governmental $ 94,024   $ 44,346 $ (47,012) $ 91,358   
Business Type 26,681   18,009 (13,341) 31,349   

$ 120,705 $ 122,707 

Beginning 
Balance Additions Deletions

Ending 
Balance



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

- 33 - 
 

 
4. NOTES RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED) 
 
At June 30, 2020, expected future payments on notes receivables consisted of: 

Year Ending
2021 $ 11,223
2022 1,071
2023 1,137
2024 1,207
2025 1,282

2026-2030 7,697
2031-2036 9,394

Total notes receivable $ 33,011

 
5.  CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
Capital asset activity for governmental activities for the year ended June 30, 2020 was as follows: 
 

  

Non-Depreciable Capital Assets
Land and Land Improvements $ 850,560          $ -              $ -              $ 850,560          
Construction in Progress 63,334            4,381           63,334         4,381             
    Total Non-Depreciable 913,894          4,381           63,334         854,941          

Depreciable Capital Assets
Buildings and Improvements 2,052,054        44,339         -              2,096,393       
Vehicles and Equipment 1,870,760        11,442         -              1,882,202       
Infrastructure 726,101,849    -              -              726,101,849    
    Total Depreciable 730,024,663    55,781         -              730,080,444    

Accumulated Depreciation
Buildings and Improvements 934,656          38,527         -              973,183          
Vehicles and Equipment 1,253,601        80,548         -              1,334,149       
Infrastructure 725,625,244    58,894         -              725,684,138    
    Total Accumulated Depreciation 727,813,501    177,969       -              727,991,470    

      Net Depreciable Capital Assets 2,211,162        2,088,974       

Total Governmental Activities $ 3,125,056        $ 2,943,915       

GOVERNMENTAL CAPITAL ASSETS

July 1, 2019 Additions Deletions June 30, 2020



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

- 34 - 
 

 
5.  CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED) 
 
Depreciation Expense for governmental activities is charged to functions as follows: 
 

 
 
Capital asset activity for business-type activities for the year ended June 30, 2020 was as follows: 
 

 
  

General Government 45,348$     
Public Safety 110,323     
Highways and Streets 17,584      
Culture and Recreation 4,714        

 Total 177,969$   

Non-Depreciable Capital Assets
Land and Improvements $ 20,300        $ -               $ -               $ 20,300        
Construction in Progress -                 -               -               -             
     Total Non-Depreciable 20,300        -               -               20,300        

Depreciable Capital Assets
Buildings and Improvements 1,809,536    -            -               1,809,536    
Furniture, Equipment and Vehicles 680,393       14,938       -               695,331      
Infrastructure 6,434,556    455,367     -               6,889,923    
      Total Depreciable 8,924,485    470,305     -               9,394,790    

Accumulated Depreciation
Buildings and Improvements 851,796       34,613       -               886,409      
Furniture, Equipment and Vehicles 607,736       10,595       -               618,331      
Infrastructure 1,237,516    128,345     -               1,365,861    
      Total Accumulated Depreciation 2,697,048    173,553     -               2,870,601    

       Net Depreciable Capital Assets 6,227,437    6,524,189    

Total Business-Type Activities $ 6,247,737    $ 6,544,489    

June 30, 2020

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES CAPITAL ASSETS

6/30/2019 Additions Transfers



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

- 35 - 
 

 
5.  CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED) 
 
Depreciation Expense for business-type activities is charged as follows: 
 

 
6.  ASSESSMENTS RECEIVABLE 
 
Assessments receivable represents the uncollected amounts levied against benefited properties for the costs of local 
improvements.  Since the assessments are liens against the properties, an allowance for uncollectible amounts is not 
deemed necessary.  Assessments are payable over a period of ten years and bear interest at 7% to 10.64%.  At June 
30, 2020, the assessments receivable totaled $40,380. 
 
7.  LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS 
 

In the following section, long-term debt information is presented separately with respect to governmental and 
business-type activities.  The table below presents current year changes in those obligations, and the current portions 
due for each issue. 

Outstanding Matured Outstanding
Interest July 1, And June 30, Due Within

Issue Rates 2019 Issued Redeemed Forgiven 2020 One Year

Governmental
Notes from direct borrowings and direct placements:

Oregon DEQ Note Payable 0.00% 20,000$          -$              -$              -$              20,000$       20,000$     
Capital Lease - Motorola 3.89% 89,463            -                25,448       -                64,015         14,174       

Total Governmental 109,463$        -$              25,448$     -$              84,015$       34,174$     

Business-Type
Notes from direct borrowings and direct placements:

OECDD Water Loan 1.00% 2,231,670$     -$              99,980$     -$              2,131,690$   100,980$   
IFA Safe Drinking Water Loan 1.00% 1,785,852       442,148     -                -                2,228,000     41,828       
IFA Safe Drinking Water Forgivable Loan 1.00% 765,000          -                -                765,000     -                  -                
IFA New Source Well Study 1.99% -                    7,995         -                -                7,995           -                
2009A Series LOCAP Bonds 1.25-6.00% 370,000          -                15,000       -                355,000       15,000       

Total Business-Type 5,152,522$     450,143$   114,980$   765,000$   4,722,685$   157,808$   

 
Governmental Activities 
 
Oregon DEQ Note Payable – Based on an intergovernmental agreement entered in to with the Oregon Department 
of Environmental Quality on June 5, 1995, the City is obligated to repay the Oregon DEQ $180,000 for funds 
borrowed to help plan and develop the Bald Knob Mill site.  This loan is non-interest bearing. The balance of 
$20,000 will be paid in the upcoming fiscal year. 

  

Water $ 135,722        
Wastewater 32,056          
Storm Water 5,775            
Total $ 173,553        



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

- 36 - 
 

 
7.  LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 
 
Governmental Activities (continued) 
 
Capital Lease – Motorola – In October 2017, the City executed a City-wide lease for cell phone equipment. The 
original capital lease liability for governmental activities was $88,744, which will be paid over six (6) years at 3.89% 
starting October 2018. Future annual requirements are as follows: 

Principal Interest Total
2021 12,660$     2,662$       15,322$     
2022 13,153       2,169         15,322       
2023 13,665       1,657         15,322       
2024 14,196       1,126         15,322       
2025 10,341       574            10,915       

64,015$     8,188$       72,203$     

 
Business-Type Activities 
 
OECDD Loan – Proceeds from this loan were used to improve the water systems and the quality of the drinking 
water in the City.  The total amount of the original loan was $3,406,383, but the City was granted $250,000 in loan 
forgiveness.  The loan repayment term is 30 years with an interest rate of 1.00%.  Future annual requirements are as 
follows: 

Principal Interest Total
2021 100,980$      21,317$       122,297$       
2022 101,990        20,307         122,297         
2023 103,010        19,287         122,297         
2024 104,040        18,257         122,297         
2025 105,080        17,217         122,297         

2026-30 541,376        70,111         611,487         
2031-35 568,991        42,494         611,485         
2036-40 506,223        13,168         519,391         

Total 2,131,690$   222,158$     2,353,848$    

 
Under the terms of the OECDD loan and related Promissory Notes, the City pledges its full faith and credit and 
taxing power within the Oregon Constitution to pay amounts due. Amounts due OECDD are payable from all legally 
available funds of the City including the net revenues of the water system. Events of default include 1) failing to 
make loan payments when due, 2) failing to make required payments on any other loan made by the State of Oregon 
or any other Financing Document if the default is not cured within the grace period, 3) proceedings or petitions filed 
by or against the City under bankruptcy or insolvency laws and similar actions such as appointment of a receiver, and 
4) failure of the City’s governing body to appropriate sufficient funds to fully fund all of its obligations to make loan 
repayments.  In the event of default the OECDD may 1) declare the Note due and any other amounts due and payable 
immediately, 2) foreclose liens or security interests, 3) bar the City from future awards, or 4) the State of Oregon 
may withhold amounts otherwise due the City and apply them to payments due under these loans.  
  



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

- 37 - 
 

 
7.  LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 
 
Business-Type Activities (continued) 
 
The City is required to maintain a debt service ratio in the Water Fund on an annual basis based on the ratio of net 
operating revenue to debt service requirements on the IFA loans, debt senior to the IFA loans and certain other types 
of debt obligations. 
 
2009A Series LOCAP Bonds – On June 18, 2009 the City entered into a purchase contract to participate in the 
League of Oregon Cities Cooperative Asset Financing Program Certificates of Participation, Series 2009A.  This 
issue calls for annual repayments which include interest at 1.25 to 6%.  Future annual debt service requirements to 
maturity for this bond issue are as follows: 
 

 
 
Under the terms of the Contract and related Financing Agreement events of default include 1) failing to make loan 
payments when due and 2) proceedings or petitions filed by or against the City under bankruptcy or insolvency laws 
and similar actions such as appointment of a receiver. In the event of default the Trustee  may 1) without terminating 
the Agreement declare payable all installment payments past due or due until the end of the City’s current budget 
year, and 2) terminate the Agreement or accelerate all outstanding payments  due  requiring the City to defease the 
Agreement in its entirety. 
 
IFA Safe Drinking Water Loan – In December 2015 the City entered in to a financing contract (the Contract) with 
the Infrastructure Financing Authority.  Proceeds from this loan are being used for the 2017 Water Improvement 
Project, a project that is expected to be completed in the upcoming fiscal year.  The total amount of the original loan 
was $2,653,000 evidenced by two Promissory Notes (the Notes). Upon completion of the project and satisfaction of 
certain other conditions, $765,000 of the loan was forgiven.  
 
The City received an extension of the loan beyond the original completion date of December, 2018 and received an 
additional $340,000 in loan proceeds from IFA to fund payments agreed to under mediation with contractors on the 
project primarily related to contractor claims of extra costs incurred by the contractors based on conditions occurring 
during construction.  
 
The loan repayment term is 30 years with an interest rate of 1.00%. Repayment of principal on the loan is expected 
to begin in December, 2020 based on the extension of the loan and final draws under the original Contract.  
 
 
  

Principal Interest Total
2021 15,000$      20,530$      35,530$      
2022 20,000        19,780        39,780        
2023 20,000        18,660        38,660        
2024 20,000        17,540        37,540        
2025 20,000        16,420        36,420        

2026-30 130,000      62,420        192,420      
2031-34 130,000      20,100        150,100      

  Total 355,000$    175,450$    530,450$    



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

- 38 - 
 

 
7.  LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 
 
Business-Type Activities (continued) 
 
Future annual requirements are as follows:  
 

 
Under the terms of the Contract with IFA and related Promissory Notes the City pledges its full faith and credit and 
taxing power within the Oregon Constitution to pay amounts due. Amounts due IFA are payable from all legally 
available funds of the City including the net revenues of the water system. The City is required to maintain a debt 
service ratio in the Water Fund on an annual basis based on the ratio of net operating revenue to debt service 
requirements on the IFA loans, debt senior to the IFA loans and certain other types of debt obligations.  
 
Events of default include 1) failing to make loan payments when due, failing to make required payments on any other 
loan made by the State of Oregon or on any other Financing Document if the default is not cured within the grace 
period 2) Proceedings or petitions filed by or against the City under bankruptcy or insolvency laws and similar 
actions such as appointment of a receiver. In the event of default the IFA may terminate its obligation to make 
further payments under the Contract, declare the Note due and any other amounts due and payable immediately, 
foreclose liens or security interests or bar the City from future awards. 
 
IFA New Source Well Feasibility Study Loan – In September 2020, the City entered in to a financing contract with 
the Infrastructure Financing Authority (IFA) to finance a feasibility study for a new source well. The study was 
completed.  The total amount of the contract was $40,000, $20,000 of which was a grant and $20,000 of which was 
loan proceeds. 
 
The loan repayment term is 6 years with an interest rate of 1.99%. The project is expected to be completed in Fall, 
2020, with repayment of principal beginning in December, 2020 based on the extension of the loan and final draws 
under the original Contract.  The amount due under the loan portion of this arrangement was $7,995 at June 30, 2020. 
 
 
  

Principal Interest Total
2021 41,828$       45,389$       87,217$       
2022 65,356        21,862        87,218        
2023 66,009        21,208        87,217        
2024 66,670        20,548        87,218        
2025 67,336        19,881        87,217        

2026-30 346,915       89,171        436,086       
2031-35 364,612       71,475        436,087       
2036-40 383,212       52,875        436,087       

2041-2045 402,759       33,329        436,088       

2046-2050 423,303       12,783        436,086       
Total 2,228,000$  388,521$     2,616,521$  



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

- 39 - 
 

 
7.  LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 
 
Business-Type Activities (continued) 
 
Under the terms of the Contract with IFA and related Promissory Notes the City pledges its full faith and credit and 
taxing power within the Oregon Constitution to pay amounts due. Amounts due IFA are payable from all legally 
available funds of the City including the net revenues of the water system. The Recipient irrevocably pledges and 
grants to the lender a security interest in the net revenues to pay all of its obligations under this contract and the other 
financing documents. The City shall not incur, without the prior written consent of the lender, any obligation payable 
from or secured by a lien on and pledge of the net revenues that is on parity or superior to the lender’s lien. 
 
The City shall charge rates and fees in connection with the operation of the water system which, when combined 
with other gross revenues, are adequate to generate net revenues each fiscal year at least equal to one hundred twenty 
percent (120%) of the annual debt service due in the fiscal year on (i) the Loan; and (ii) any outstanding obligations 
payable from or secured by a lien on and pledge of net revenues that is on parity with the lender’s lien. 
 
Events of default include 1) failing to make loan payments when due, failing to make required payments on any other 
loan made by the State of Oregon or on any other Financing Document if the default is not cured within the grace 
period and 2) proceedings or petitions filed by or against the City under bankruptcy or insolvency laws and similar 
actions such as appointment of a receiver. In the event of default the lender may terminate its obligation to make 
further payments under the contract, declare the note due and any other amounts due and payable immediately, 
foreclose liens or security interests or bar the City from future awards. 
 
The City has no lines of credit or loan or financing commitments from other parties as of June 30, 2020. 
 
8.  DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN 
 

PLAN DESCRIPTION 
 

The Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) consists of a single cost-sharing multiple-employer 
defined benefit plan.  All benefits of the system are established by the legislature pursuant to Oregon Revised 
Statute (ORS) Chapters 238 and 238A.  Oregon PERS produces an independently audited Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Report which can be found at:   
 
http://www.oregon.gov/pers/Pages/Financials/Actuarial-Financial-Information.aspx 
 
If the link is expired please contact Oregon PERS for this information. 

 
  



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

- 40 - 
 

 
8.  DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 
 
PLAN DESCRIPTION (CONTINUED) 

 
a. PERS Pension (Chapter 238). The ORS Chapter 238 Defined Benefit Plan is closed to new members hired 

on or after August 29, 2003. 
 
i. Pension Benefits.  The PERS retirement allowance is payable monthly for life.  It may be selected from 

13 retirement benefit options.  These options include survivorship benefits and lump-sum refunds.  
The basic benefit is based on years of service and final average salary.  A percentage (2.0 percent for 
police and fire employees, and 1.67 percent for general service employees) is multiplied by the 
number of years of service and the final average salary.  Benefits may also be calculated under either 
a formula plus annuity (for members who were contributing before August 21, 1981) or a money 
match computation if a greater benefits results. 

ii. Death Benefits.  Upon the death of a non-retired member, the beneficiary receives a lump-sum refund of 
the member’s account balance (accumulated contributions and interest).  In addition, the beneficiary 
will receive a lump-sum payment from employer funds equal to the account balance, provided on or 
more of the following contributions are met: 
 member was employed by PERS employer at the time of death, 
 member died within 120 days after termination of PERS covered employment, 
 member died as a result of injury sustained while employed in a PERS-covered job, or 
 member was on an official leave of absence from a PERS-covered job at the time of death. 

iii. Disability Benefits.  A member with 10 or more years of creditable service who becomes disabled from 
other than duty-connected causes may receive a non-duty disability benefit.  A disability resulting 
from a job-incurred injury or illness qualifies a member (including PERS judge members) for 
disability benefits regardless of the length of PERS-covered service.  Upon qualifying for either a 
non-duty or duty disability, service time is computed to age 58 (55 for police and fire members) 
when determining the monthly benefit. 

iv. Benefit Changes After Retirement.  Members may choose to continue participation in a variable 
equities investment account after retiring and may experience annual benefit fluctuations due to 
changes in the market value equity investments.  Under ORS 238.360 monthly benefits are adjusted 
annually through cost-of-living changes.  The cap on the COLA will vary based on the amount of the 
annual benefit. 
 

b. OPSRP Pension Program (OPSRP DB).  The ORS Chapter 238A Defined Benefit Pension Program 
provides benefits to members hired on or after August 29, 2003. 

     
i. Pension Benefits.  This portion of OPSRP provides a life pension funded by employer contributions.  

Benefits are calculated with the following formula for members who attain normal retirement age:   
    Police and fire: 1.8 percent is multiplied by the number of years of service and the final average 

salary.  Normal retirement age for police and fire members is age 60 or age 53 with 25 years of 
retirement credit.  To be classified as a police and fire member, the individual must have been 
employed continuously as a police and fire member for at least five years immediately preceding 
retirement.   

    General service:  1.5 percent is multiplied by the number of years of service and the final average 
salary.  Normal retirement age for general service members is age 65, or age 58 with 30 years of 
retirement credit. 

     
  



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

- 41 - 
 

     
 
8.  DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 
 

PLAN DESCRIPTION (CONTINUED) 
 

Pension Benefits (continued) A member of the pension program becomes vested on the earliest of 
the following dates:  the date the member completes 600 hours of service in each of five calendar 
years, the date the member reaches normal retirement age, and, if the pension program is terminated, 
the date on which termination becomes effective. 

   ii. Death Benefits.  Upon the death of a non-retired member, the spouse or other person who is 
constitutionally required to be treated in the same manner as the spouse, receives for life 50 percent 
of the pension that would otherwise have been paid to the deceased member. 

iii. Disability Benefits.  A member who has accrued 10 or more years of retirement credits before the 
member becomes disabled or a member who becomes disabled due to job-related injury shall receive 
a disability benefit of 45 percent of the member’s salary determined as of the last full month of 
employment before the disability occurred. 

iv. Benefit Changes After Retirement.  Under ORS 238A.210 monthly benefits are adjusted annually 
through cost-of-living changes.  The cap on the COLA will vary based on the amount of the annual 
benefit. 

 
CONTRIBUTIONS 

 
PERS funding policy provides for monthly employer contributions at actuarially determined rates.  These 
contributions, expressed as a percentage of covered payroll, are intended to accumulate sufficient assets to pay 
benefits when due.  The funding policy applies to the PERS Defined Benefit Plan and the Other Postemployment 
Benefit Plans.  The state of Oregon and certain schools, community colleges, and political subdivision have 
made unfunded actuarial liability payments and their rates have been reduced.  Employer contribution rates 
during the period were based on the December 31, 2016 actuarial valuation, which became effective July 1, 
2018.   
 
PENSION LIABILITY 
 
At June 30, 2020, the City reported a net pension liability of $2,846,143 for its proportionate share of the net 
pension liability.  The pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total pension liability used to 
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2017. The City’s 
proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the City’s long-term share of contributions to 
the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined.  At 
June 30, 2019, the City’s proportion was .016 percent unchanged from the prior year. 
 

  



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

- 42 - 
 

 
8.  DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 
 

PENSION LIABILITY (CONTINUED) 

Deferred Outflow Deferred Inflow
of Resources of Resources

Difference between expected and actual experience 156,956$         -$                    
Changes in assumptions 386,112           -                      
Net difference between projected and actual

earnings on pension plan investments -                      80,685             
Net changes in proportionate share and differences between 

City contributions and proportionate share of contributions 98,416             24,638             
Differences between employer contributions and 

proportionate share of contributions 62,991             457                 
Subtotal - Amortized deferrals (below) 704,475           105,780           

City contributions subsequent to measurement date 356,340           -                      

Net deferred outflow (inflow) of resources 1,060,815$      105,780$         

 
FUNDING POLICY  

 
The deferred outflows of resources resulting from contributions made subsequent to the measurement date 
($356,340) will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ending June 30, 2021. Other 
amounts of pension-related deferred outflows and inflows of resources will be recognized in pension expense as 
follows: 

Year ending June 30, Amount
1st Fiscal Year 322,398$          
2nd Fiscal Year 69,158              
3rd Fiscal Year 119,086            
4th Fiscal Year 81,448              
5th Fiscal Year 6,605                
Total 598,695$          

 
All assumptions, methods and plan provisions used in these calculations are described in the Oregon PERS 
system-wide GASB 68 Report as of and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019. Oregon PERS produces an 
independently audited CAFR which can be found at:  http://www.oregon.gov/pers/EMP/Pages/GASB.aspx 
 

  



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

- 43 - 
 

 
8.   DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

 
ACTUARIAL VALUATIONS 

 
The employer contribution rates effective July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2021 were set using the entry age 
normal actuarial cost method.  For the Tier One/Tier Two component of the PERS Defined Benefit Plan, this 
method produced an employer contribution rate consisting of (1) an amount for normal cost (estimated amount 
necessary to finance benefits earned by employees during the current service year), (2) an amount for the 
amortization unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities, which are being amortized over a fixed period with new 
unfunded actuarial liabilities being amortized over 20 years.   

 
For the OPSRP Pension Program component of the PERS Defined Benefit Plan, this method produced an 
employer rate consisting of (a) an amount for normal cost (the estimated amount necessary to finance benefits 
earned by the employees during the current service year), (b) an actuarially determined amount for funding a 
disability benefit component, and (c) an amount for the amortization of unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities, 
which are being amortized over a fixed period with new unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities being amortized 
over 16 years.  

 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: 
 

 
 
Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of value of reported amounts and assumptions about 
the probability of events far into the future. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as 
actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.  Experience studies 
are performed as of December 31 of even numbered years.  The method and assumptions shown are based on the 
2016 Experience Study which is reviewed for the four-year period ending December 31, 2016. 
 

  

Valuation Date
Measurement Date
Experience Study Report
Actuarial Cost Method
Actuarial Assumptions:

Inflation Rate
Long-Term Expected Rate of Return 7.20 percent
Discount Rate
Projected Salary Increases
Cost of Living Adjustments (COLA)

Mortality

December 31, 2017
June 30, 2019
2016, published July 26, 2017
Entry Age Normal

Active Members: RP-2014 Employees, sex-distinct, generational with Unisex, Social Security
Data Scale, with collar adjustments and set-backs as described in the valuation.   
Disabled retirees: RP-2014 Disabled retirees, sex-distinct, generational with Unisex, Social
Security Data Scale.

2.50 percent

7.20 percent
3.50 percent
Blend of 2.00% COLA and graded COLA (1.25%/0.15%) in accordance with Moro decision,
blend based on service.

Health retirees and beneficiaries: RP-2014 Healthly annuitant, sex-distinct, generational with
Unisex, Social Security Data Scale, with collar adjustments and set-backs as described in the
valuation.   



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

- 44 - 
 

 
8.   DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

 
ACTUARIAL VALUATIONS (CONTINUED) 
 
Discount Rate – The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.20 percent for the Defined 
Benefit Pension Plan, a reduction from the prior measurement date discount rate of 7.50 percent.  The projection 
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from the plan members and those of 
the contributing employers are made at the contractually required rates, as actuarially determined.  Based on 
those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected 
future benefit payments of current plan members.  Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension 
plan investments for the Defined Benefit Pension Plan was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to 
determine the total pension liability.   

 
Assumed Asset Allocation: 

 

 
Source: June 30, 2019 PERS CAFR; p. 42 

 
Long-Term Expected Rate of Return: 

 
To develop an analytical basis for the selection of the long-term expected rate of return assumption, in July 2019 
the PERS Board reviewed long-term assumptions developed by both Milliman’s capital market assumptions 
team and the Oregon Investment Council’s (OIC) investment advisors. The table below shows Milliman’s 
assumptions for each of the asset classes in which the plan was invested at that time based on the OIC long-term 
target asset allocation. The OIC’s description of each asset class was used to map the target allocation to the 
asset classes shown below. Each asset class assumption is based on a consistent set of underlying assumptions 
and includes adjustment for the inflation assumption. These assumptions are not based on historical returns, but 
instead are based on a forward-looking capital market economic model. 

 
  



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

- 45 - 
 

 
8.   DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

 
ACTUARIAL VALUATIONS (CONTINUED)  
 
Long-Term Expected Rate of Return (continued): 

 

 
Source: June 30, 2019 PERS CAFR; p. 74 

 
Sensitivity of the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate – The 
following presents the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 
7.20 percent, as well as what the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-perentage-point higher than the current rate. 
 

 
  

Decrease Rate
(6.20%) (7.20%)

City's proportionate share of
the net pension liability (asset) 4,557,848$       2,846,143$       1,413,685$           

(8.20%)
Increase



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

- 46 - 
 

 
8.   DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

 
ACTUARIAL VALUATIONS (CONTINUED)  
 
Changes Subsequent to the Measurement Date: 

 
As described above, GASB 67 and GASB 68 require the Total Pension Liability to be determined based on the 
benefit terms in effect at the Measurement Date. Any changes to benefit terms that occurs after that date are 
reflected in amounts reported for the subsequent Measurement Date. However, Paragraph 80f of GASB 68 
requires employers to briefly describe any changes between the Measurement Date and the employer’s 
reporting date that are expected to have a significant effect on the employer’s share of the collective Net 
Pension Liability, along with an estimate of the resulting change, if available.  
 
INDIVIDUAL ACCOUNT PROGRAM 
 
In the 2003 legislative session, the Oregon Legislative Assembly created a successor plan for OPERS.  The 
Oregon Public Service Retirement Plan (OPSRP) is effective for all new employees hired on or after August 29, 
2003, and applies to any inactive OPERS members who return to employment following a six month or greater 
break in service.  The new plan consists of the defined benefit pension plans and a defined contribution pension 
plan (the Individual Account Program or IAP).  Beginning January 1, 2004, all OPERS member contributions 
go into the IAP portion of OPSRP.    OPERS’ members retain their existing OPERS accounts, but any future 
member contributions are deposited into the member’s IAP, not the member’s OPERS account.  Those 
employees who had established an OPERS membership prior to the creation of OPSRP will be members of both 
the OPERS and OPSRP system as long as they remain in covered employment. Members of OPERS and 
OPSRP are required to contribute six percent of their salary covered under the plan which is invested in the 
IAP. 

 
Additional disclosures related to Oregon PERS not applicable to specific employers are available online at the 
below website, or by contacting PERS at the following address: PO BOX 23700 Tigard, OR 97281-3700. 
 
http://www.oregon.gov/pers/EMP/Pages/GASB.aspx 

 
9.   POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) GASB 75 
 

PLAN DESCRIPTION 
 

The City operates a single-employer retiree benefit plan that provides postemployment health, dental and vision 
insurance benefits to eligible employees and their spouses.  There are active and retired members in the plan. All 
classes of employee are eligible to continue coverage upon retirement. Qualified spouses, domestic partners, and 
children may qualify for coverage. Coverage for retirees and eligible dependents continues until Medicare 
eligibility for each individual (or until dependent children become ineligible).  
 
Benefits and eligibility for members are established through the collective bargaining agreements.  The post-
retirement healthcare plan is established in accordance with Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) 243.303.  ORS 
stipulated that for the purpose of establishing healthcare premiums, the rate must be based on all plan members, 
including both active employees and retirees.  The difference between retiree claims cost, which because of the 
effect of age is generally higher in comparison to all plan members, and the amount of retiree healthcare 
premiums represents the City’s implicit employer contribution. The City did not establish an irrevocable trust (or 
equivalent arrangement) to account for the plan. 

  



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

- 47 - 
 

 
9.   POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) GASB 75 (CONTINUED) 
 
 FUNDING POLICY 

 
The benefits from this program are paid by the City on a self-pay basis and the required contribution is based on 
projected pay-as-you go financing requirements. There is not obligation on the part of the City to fund these 
benefits in advance.  
 
ACTUARIAL METHODS AND ASSUMPTIONS 
 
The City engaged an actuary to perform an evaluation as of July 1, 2018 using entry age normal, level percent of 
salary Actuarial Cost Method. The Single Employer Pension Plan liability was determined using the following 
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods including the measurement:  
 

 
 

Health Care Cost Trend Medical and vision:
Year Pre-65 Trend
2018 6.75%
2019 7.00%
2020 5.50%

2021-2025 5.00%
2026-2029 4.75%
2030-2033 5.00%

2034 5.25%
2035 5.75%

2036-2038 6.00%
2039-2045 5.75%
2046-2050 5.50%
2051-2061 5.25%
2062-2065 5.00%

2066+ 4.75%

Dental: 4.50% per year

Health care cost trend affects both the projected 
health care costs as well as the projected health 
care premiums.  

 
Mortality rates were based on rates adopted by the Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) for its 
December 31, 2016 actuarial valuation of retirement benefits. 

  

Discount Rate per year 3.50%
General Inflation Rate per year 2.50%
Salary Scale per year 3.50%



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

- 48 - 
 

 
9.   POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) GASB 75 (CONTINUED) 

 
ACTUARIAL METHODS AND ASSUMPTIONS (CONTINUED) 
 
Turnover rates were based on percentages developed for the valuation of benefits under Oregon PERS and vary 
by years of service.  
 
Disability rates were not used. 
 
Retirement rates were based on Oregon PERS assumptions.  Annual rates are based on age, Tier / OPSRP, and 
duration of service. 
 
The projection of benefits for financial reporting purpose does not explicitly incorporate the potential effects of 
legal or contractual funding limitations.  

 
Changes in Medical Benefit OPEB Liability: 

 

 
Sensitivity of the Net Other Post-Employment Benefit Liability to Changes in Discount and Trend Rates:  
 
The following presents the net other post-employment benefit liability (NOL), calculated using the discount rate 
of 3.50 percent, as well as what the liability would be if it was calculated using a discount rate 1-percentage-
point lower (2.50 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (4.50 percent) than the current rate.  A similar sensitivity 
analysis is then presented for changes in the healthcare cost trend assumption. 

 

 
 
 
  

Changes in Total OPEB Liability
June 30, 2019 to June 30, 2020
Balance as of June 30, 2019 $ 72,493
Changes for the year:

Service cost 9,601
Interest on total OPEB liability 3,167
Effect of changes to benefit terms 0
Effect of economic/demographic gains or losses 0
Effect of assumption changes or inputs 2,712
Benefit payments (507)

Balance as of June 30, 2020 $ 87,466

Increase (Decrease)
Total OPEB Liability

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate

Total OPEB Liability 95,306$           87,466$           

Current
1% Decrease Trend Rate

Total OPEB Liability 76,526$           87,466$           

1% Increase
80,270$                

1% Increase
100,611$              



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

- 49 - 
 

 
9.   POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) GASB 75 (CONTINUED) 
 

ACTUARIAL METHODS AND ASSUMPTIONS (CONTINUED) 
 
Amounts reported as deferred outflows or inflow of resources related to pension will be recognized in pension 
expense as follows: 

Difference between expected and actual experience $ -                  $ 34,643             
Changes in assumptions or inputs 2,423               12,469             

2,423               47,112             
Benefit Payments 1,802               -                      
Total as of June 30, 2020 $ 4,225               $ 47,112             

Deferred Outflow Deferred Inflow
of Resources of Resources

 
Benefit payments made subsequent to the measurement date in the amount of $1,802 will reduce the post-
employment obligation in the year ending June 30, 2021. 
 
Other amounts currently reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
other postemployment benefits will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 

Year ending June 30, Amount
2021 $ (6,121)               
2022 (6,121)               
2023 (6,121)               
2024 (6,121)               
2025 (6,121)               
Thereafter (14,084)             
Total $ (44,689)             

 
10.   INTERFUND TRANSFERS AND BALANCES 

 
Transfers were made during the year to fund operations and reserves.  Transfers and Due To/From Other Funds 
balances are comprised as follows: 

Due From Due To 
Transfers Out Transfers In Other Funds Other Funds

General Fund 655,000$     2,000$         -$                84,000$       
Woodstove Replacement Fund -                 5,000          -                 -                 
Street Fund 2,000          -                 -                 -                 
Emergency Services Fund -                 650,000       -                 -                 
Water Fund 5,808          -                 4,500          -                 
Water Capital Reserve Fund -                 5,808          -                 -                 
Wastewater Fund -                 -                 79,500         -                 

662,808$     662,808$     84,000$       84,000$       
 

 



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

- 50 - 
 

   
10.   INTERFUND TRANSFERS AND BALANCES (CONTINUED) 

 
Interfund loans as of June 30, 2020, include: 
 

• a $9,000 balance due from General Fund to the Water ($4,500) and Wastewater ($4,500) Funds for 
purchase of a Police vehicle. The loan is to be repaid over four (4) years at 0% interest with the final 
payment to be made in the next fiscal year, and 

• a $75,000 interfund loan from Wastewater Fund to the General Fund to fund a subsidy transfer to the 
EMS Fund and cover unexpected expenses for maintenance and capital outlay at the Willamette 
Activity Center. The loan amount is to be repaid by the General Fund upon receipt of sufficient 
property taxes and other general operating funds. 

 
11.  PROPERTY TAX LIMITATIONS 

 
The State of Oregon has a constitutional limit on property taxes for schools and non-school government 
operations.  The limitation provides that property taxes for non-school operations are limited to $10.00 for each 
$1,000 of property market value.  This limitation does not apply to taxes levied for principal and interest on 
general obligation bonded debt. An additional limit reduces the amount of operating property tax revenues 
available.  This reduction was accomplished by rolling property values for 1997-98 back to their 1995-96 values 
less 10% and limiting future tax value growth of each property to no more than 3% per year, subject to certain 
exceptions.  Taxes levied to support bonded debt are exempted from the reductions.  The Constitution also sets 
restrictive voter approval requirements for most tax and many fee increases and new bond issues.  

 
12.  RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

There is exposure to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; and 
omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.  Commercial insurance is purchased to minimize its 
exposure to these risks.  Settled claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage for the past three years. 

 
13.  COMMITMENTS & CONTINGENCIES 
 

Substantially all amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by 
grantor agencies, principally the federal government.  Any disallowed claims, including amounts already 
collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds.  The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be 
disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time, although the management expects such amounts, if 
any, to be immaterial. 
 
As of June 30, 2020, the City did not have any outstanding contract commitments or contingencies.  
 

  



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

- 51 - 
 

 
14.  DEFICIT FUND BALANCES, NET POSITION 
 

At June 30, 2020, the following funds had a negative fund balance and/or unrestricted net position: 
 

General Fund – Unassigned Fund Balance ($  77,860) 
Governmental Activities – Unrestricted Net Position ($ 1,565,717) 

   
The deficit unassigned fund balance for General Fund is primarily the result of a $650,000 subsidy to the EMS 
Fund to avoid a fund balance deficit in that fund. The General Fund’s fund balance on budgetary basis is 
$3,140. 
 
The deficit unrestricted net position for Governmental Activities is primarily the result of net pension liability, 
net of related deferred inflows and outflows. 
 

15.  SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 

On July 22, 2020, City Council approved a resolution to approve short-term operating interfund loans of up to 
$200,000 be made from each of the Water and Wastewater funds to the General Fund between July 1, 2020 and 
December 31, 2020. In September 2020, General Fund borrowed $150,000 from the Wastewater Fund and 
$200,000 from the Water Fund. Loan amounts are to be repaid by the General Fund upon receipt of sufficient 
property taxes and other general operating funds. 
 
On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared a world-wide pandemic related to COVID-19 
coronavirus.  The pandemic continues to cause significant disruption to the United States economy.  Tax 
collections in the state of Oregon, including highway tax revenues, have been impacted.  We consider potential 
future impacts on property tax collections to be possible as homeowners continue to face economic uncertainty.  
The future impact of the pandemic on the City’s operations is unknown as of the date of this report. 
 

 
 



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
 LANE COUNTY, OREGON 
 
 
 REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 

  



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
ACTUAL AND BUDGET - BUDGETARY BASIS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

GENERAL FUND

VARIANCE
TO FINAL
BUDGET

ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

REVENUES:
Property Taxes $ 1,054,300       $ 1,054,300       $ 1,109,027       $ 54,727               
Franchise and License Fees 268,000         268,000         273,404         5,404                 
Charges for Internal Services 671,000         671,000         671,000         -                        
Licenses, Permits, Miscellaneous Taxes 198,500         198,500         196,746         (1,754)               
Intergovernmental Revenues 180,506         180,506         124,290         (56,216)             
Planning Fees 4,000             4,000             1,345             (2,655)               
Fines and Forfeitures 91,000           91,000           65,359           (25,641)             
Interest 7,500             7,500             9,428             1,928                 
Grants and Donations 186,600         186,600         42,325           (144,275)           
Rentals and Leases 16,500           16,500           21,029           4,529                 
Miscellaneous 27,510           27,510           5,849             (21,661)             

Total Revenue 2,705,416       2,705,416       2,519,802       (185,614)           
 

EXPENDITURES:
Administrative 867,756         873,756         (1) 826,968         46,788               
Building/Planning 64,000           64,000           (1) 30,598           33,402               
Police 1,156,729       1,162,729       (1) 989,404         173,325             
Library 29,270           29,270           (1) 31,699           (2,429)               
Parks 192,200         223,350         (1) 67,662           155,688             
Willamette Activity Center (WAC) 23,100           31,100           (1) 28,395           2,705                 
Municipal Court 76,862           76,862           (1) 71,834           5,028                 
Not Allocated:

Materials & Services 48,112           48,112           (1) 47,897           215                    
 Total Expenditures 2,458,029       2,509,179       2,094,457       414,722             

Excess of Revenues Over, (Under) Expenditures 247,387         196,237         425,345         229,108             

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES, (USES):
Interfund Loan Proceeds -                     75,000           75,000           -                        
Insurance Proceeds -                     31,150           31,148           2                       
Transfers In 144,000         144,000         -                     144,000             

Transfers Out (600,000)        (655,000)        (1) (655,000)        -                        

Total Other Financing Sources, (Uses) (456,000)        (404,850)        (548,852)        144,002             

Net Change in Fund Balance (208,613)        (208,613)        (123,507)        85,106               

Beginning Fund Balance 208,613         208,613         129,647         (78,966)             
Ending Fund Balance $ -                     $ -                     6,140             $ 6,140                 

Reconciliation to Governmental Fund Balance as required by GASB 54 - Ending Fund Balance:

Interfund Loan from Water/Sewer (9,000)            

Interfund Loan from Sewer (75,000)          
Woodstove Replacement Fund 22,313           
Bicycle / Pedestrian Path Fund 6,076             
Fund Balance reported in accordance with GASB 54 $ (49,471)          

(1)  Appropriation Level

 - 52 -



CITY OF OAKRIDGE

LANE COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

ACTUAL AND BUDGET- BUDGETARY BASIS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

STREET FUND

VARIANCE

TO FINAL

BUDGET

ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE

BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

REVENUES:

Gas Taxes $ 230,000          $ 230,000          $ 225,386          $ (4,614)                 

Licenses, Permits, Miscellaneous Taxes 60,000            60,000            75,732            15,732                

Intergovernmental Revenues 103,500          3,500              3,105              (395)                    

Assesments 14,841            14,841            19,736            4,895                  

Miscellaneous 1,000              1,000              1,642              642                     

Total Revenues 409,341          309,341          325,601          16,260                

EXPENDITURES:

Street Program 486,297          386,297          (1) 320,428          65,869                

Not Allocated:

Contingency 6,044              6,044              (1) -                     6,044                  

 

      Total Expenditures 492,341          392,341          320,428          (71,913)               

Excess of Revenues Over, (Under)

Expenditures (83,000)          (83,000)          5,173              88,173                

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES, (USES):

Transfer Out (2,000)            (2,000)            (1) (2,000)            -                          

Total Other Financing Sources, (Uses) (2,000)            (2,000)            (2,000)            -                          

Net Change in Fund Balance (85,000)          (85,000)          3,173              88,173                

Beginning Fund Balance 85,000            85,000            99,867            14,867                

Ending Fund Balance $ -                      $ -                      $ 103,040          $ 103,040              

(1)  Appropriation Level

- 53 -



CITY OF OAKRIDGE

LANE COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

ACTUAL AND BUDGET- BUDGETARY BASIS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

EMERGENCY SERVICES FUND

VARIANCE

TO FINAL

BUDGET

ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE

BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

REVENUES:

Charges for Services $ 458,000          $ 458,000          $ 443,145          $ (14,855)               

Intergovernmental Revenue 85,090            85,090            89,310            4,220                  

Interest 75                   75                   38                   (37)                      

Miscellaneous 10,000            10,000            1,589              (8,411)                 

Total Revenues 553,165          553,165          534,082          (19,083)               

EXPENDITURES:

Emergency Medical Services 993,165          1,043,165       (1) 1,032,233       10,932                

Total Expenditures 993,165          1,043,165       1,032,233       10,932                

Excess of Revenues Over, (Under) Expenditures (440,000)        (490,000)        (498,151)        (8,151)                 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES, (USES):

Transfers In 600,000          650,000          650,000          -                          

Net Change in Fund Balance 160,000          160,000          151,849          (8,151)                 

Beginning Fund Balance (160,000)        (160,000)        (133,015)        26,985                

Ending Fund Balance $ -                      $ -                      $ 18,834            $ 18,834                

(1)  Appropriation Level

- 54 -



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
ACTUAL AND BUDGET- BUDGETARY BASIS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

OAKRIDGE INDUSTRIAL PARK FUND
VARIANCE
TO FINAL
BUDGET

ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

REVENUES:

Loan Repayments $ 11,079          $ 11,079          $ -                     $ (11,079)             
Rental Income 75,000          75,000          77,944           2,944                
Grants and Donations -                    -                    20,739           20,739              
Interest -                    -                    629                629                   
Miscellaneous 10,000          10,000          140                (9,860)               

Total Revenues 96,079          96,079          99,452           3,373                

EXPENDITURES:

Oakridge Industrial Park 355,500        355,500        (1) 107,072         248,428            
Not Allocated:

Contingency 116,579        116,579        (1) -                     116,579            

Total Expenditures 472,079        472,079        107,072         365,007            

Excess of Revenues Over, (Under) (376,000)       (376,000)       (7,620)            368,380            
  Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES, (USES):
Proceeds From Sale of Property 20,000          20,000          37,360           17,360              
Transfers Out (144,000)       (144,000)       (1) -                     144,000            

Total Other Financing Sources, (Uses) (124,000)       (124,000)       37,360           161,360            

Net Change in Fund Balance (500,000)       (500,000)       29,740           529,740            

Beginning Fund Balance 500,000        500,000        550,925         50,925              

Ending Fund Balance $ -                    $ -                    $ 580,665         $ 580,665            

(1)  Appropriation Level

- 55 -



(a) (b) (b/c) Plan fiduciary
Oakridge Oakridge NPL as a net position as

Year proportion of proportionate share (c) percentage of a percentage of
Ended  the net pension  of the net pension Covered of covered the total pension

June 30, liability (NPL) liability (NPL) payroll payroll liablity

2020 0.016% 2,846,143$             1,292,592       220.2% 80.2%
2019 0.016% 2,463,547               1,217,781       202.3% 82.1%

2018 0.015% 2,023,247               1,179,331       171.6% 83.1%

2017 0.016% 2,335,232               1,131,680       206.4% 80.5%
2016 0.016% 910,219                  1,100,465       82.7% 91.9%

2015 0.020% (340,884)                784,684          -43.4% 103.6%
2014 0.020% 767,445                  725,066          105.8% 92.0%

(b) (b/c)
(a) Contributions in (a-b) (c) Contributions

Year Statutorily relation to the Contribution Oakridge as a percent
Ended required statutorily required deficiency covered of covered

June 30, contribution contribution (excess) payroll payroll

2020 356,340$        356,340$                -$                    1,396,650       25.5%
2019 329,874          329,874                  -                      1,292,592       25.5%
2018 218,306          218,306                  -                      1,217,781       17.9%
2017 214,396          214,396                  -                      1,179,331       18.2%
2016 223,873          223,873                  -                      1,131,680       19.8%
2015 82,196            82,196                    -                      1,100,465       7.5%
2014 85,423            85,423                    -                      784,684          10.9%

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

The amounts presented for each fiscal year were actuarial determined at December 31 and rolled forward to the measurement 
date.

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirements to show information for 10 years.  However, until a full 10-year 
trend has been compiled, information is presented only for the years for which the required supplementary information is 
available.

CITY OF OAKRIDGE
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - PERS
June 30, 2020

SCHEDULE OF THE PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET OPEB BENEFIT LIABILITY

- 56 -



2018 2019 2020

Total OPEB, Beginning 99,538$              108,969$            72,493$              

Service Cost 14,929                14,003                9,601                  
Interest on Total OPEB Liability 3,251                  4,366                  3,167                  
Effect of changes to benefit terms -                      -                      -                      
Effect of Economic/Demographic Gains/Losses -                      (44,007)               -                      
Effect of Assumptions Changes or Inputs (7,916)                 (8,801)                 2,712                  
Benefits Payments (833)                    (2,037)                 (507)                    

Net Change in OPEB Liability 9,431                  (36,476)               14,973                

Total OPEB, Ending 108,969$            72,493$              87,466$              

Covered-employee Payroll 1,217,781$         1,292,592$         1,396,650$         

Total OPEB Liability as a percentage
    of Covered-employee Payroll 8.9% 5.6% 6.3%

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirements to show information for 10 years.  However, until a full 10-
year trend has been compiled, information is presented only for the years for which the required supplementary 
information is available.

HEALTH INSURANCE IMPLICIT RATE SUBSIDY

CITY OF OAKRIDGE
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - OPEB
June 30, 2020

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

- 57 -



 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
 LANE COUNTY, OREGON 
 
 
 SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 
  



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TOTAL

ASSETS:
Cash and Investments $ 23,232              $ -                        $ 23,232          
Restricted Cash and Investments -                        120,683            120,683        

Total Assets $ 23,232              120,683            $ 143,915        

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS, AND FUND BALANCES:

Fund Balances:
Restricted for:

Debt Service $ -                        $ 120,683            $ 120,683        
Assigned 23,232              -                        23,232          

Total Fund Balances 23,232              120,683            143,915        

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Fund Balances $ 23,232              $ 120,683            $ 143,915        

FUND

June 30, 2020

FUND

BOND
RESERVE

FUND

CAPITAL
PROJECTS

WATER
CAPITAL
RESERVE

DEBT
SERVICE

FUND

WATER

- 58 -



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

TOTAL

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES, (USES):
Transfers In $ 5,808                $ -                        $ 5,808              

Total Other Financing
  Sources, (Uses) 5,808                -                        5,808              

Net Change in Fund Balance 5,808                -                        5,808              

Beginning Fund Balance 17,424              120,683            138,107          

Ending Fund Balance $ 23,232              $ 120,683            $ 143,915          

CAPITAL

FUND FUND

WATER
BOND

RESERVE
FUND

RESERVE
FUND

DEBT
SERVICE

CAPITAL
PROJECTS

WATER

- 59 -



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
ACTUAL AND BUDGET- BUDGETARY BASIS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

WATER FUND RESERVE
VARIANCE
TO FINAL
BUDGET

ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES, (USES):
$ 5,808            $ 5,808            $ 5,808             $ -                        

Total Other Financing Sources, (Uses) 5,808            5,808            5,808             -                        

Net Change in Fund Balance 5,808            5,808            5,808             -                        

Beginning Fund Balance 17,424          17,424          17,424           -                        

Ending Fund Balance $ 23,232          $ 23,232          $ 23,232           $ -                        

(1)  Appropriation Level

Transfers In

- 60 -



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
ACTUAL AND BUDGET- BUDGETARY BASIS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

WATER BOND RESERVE FUND
VARIANCE
TO FINAL
BUDGET

ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

Net Change in Fund Balance $ -                    $ -                    $ -                    $ -                        

Beginning Fund Balance 120,683        120,683        120,683         -                        

Ending Fund Balance $ 120,683        $ 120,683        $ 120,683         $ -                        

(1)  Appropriation Level

- 61 -



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
ACTUAL AND BUDGET- BUDGETARY BASIS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

WOODSTOVE REPLACEMENT FUND
VARIANCE
TO FINAL
BUDGET

ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

EXPENDITURES
Woodstove Replacement Program $ $ 5,000            (1) $ 5,000            $ -                        
Not Allocated:

Contingency 20,831          20,831          -                    20,831              

20,831          25,831          5,000            20,831              

(20,831)        (25,831)        (5,000)           20,831              

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES, (USES)
Transfers In 5,000            (1) 5,000            -                        

Total Other Financing Sources, (Uses -                    5,000            5,000            -                        

(20,831)        (20,831)        -                    20,831              

Beginning Fund Balanc 20,831          20,831          22,313          1,482                

Ending Fund Balance $ -                    $ -                    $ 22,313          $ 22,313              

Note: This fund's activities have been combined with the General Fund activities in accordance with GASB 54 because there w
no substantial restricted or committed revenues

(1)  Appropriation Level

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues, Over (Under) Expenditures

Net Change in Fund Balance

- 62 -



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
ACTUAL AND BUDGET- BUDGETARY BASIS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

BICYCLE / PEDESTRIAN PATH FUND
VARIANCE
TO FINAL
BUDGET

ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

EXPENDITURES
Bicycle/Pedestrian Path Program $ 15,000            $ 15,000            (1) $ -                         $ 15,000                
Not Allocated:

Contingency 6,076              6,076              (1) -                         6,076                  

Total Expenditures 21,076            21,076            -                         21,076                

Excess of Revenues Over, (Under) (21,076)          (21,076)          -                         (21,076)               
     Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES, (USES):
Transfer In 2,000              2,000              2,000                  -                          

Total Other Financing Sources, (Uses) 2,000              2,000              2,000                  -                          
  

Net Change in Fund Balance (19,076)          (19,076)          2,000                  21,076                

Beginning Fund Balance 19,076            19,076            4,076                  (15,000)               

Ending Fund Balance $ -                    $ -                    $ 6,076                 $ 6,076                

Note: This fund's activities have been combined with the General Fund activities in accordance with GASB 54 because there were
no substantial restricted or committed revenues.

(1)  Appropriation Level

- 63 -



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
ACTUAL AND BUDGET - BUDGETARY BASIS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

WATER FUND
VARIANCE
TO FINAL
BUDGET

ORIGINAL FINAL  POSITIVE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

REVENUES:   

Charges for Services $ 854,500          $ 854,500          $ 990,335          $ 135,835              
Miscellaneous 1,500              1,500              60,606            59,106                

Total Revenues     856,000          856,000          1,050,941       194,941              

EXPENDITURES:

Water Utility 778,377          1,260,377       (1) 1,215,759       44,618                
Not Allocated:

Debt Service 140,762          140,762          (1) 140,240          522                     
Contingency 21,053            21,053            (1) -                      21,053                

Total Expenditures 940,192          1,422,192       1,355,999       66,193                

Excess of Revenues Over, (Under) 
    Expenditures (84,192)          (566,192)        (305,058)        261,134              

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES, (USES):
Loan Proceeds -                      482,000          450,143          (31,857)               
Capital Grants and Donations -                      -                      20,000            20,000                
Transfers Out (5,808)            (5,808)            (1) (5,808)            -                          

Total Other Financing Sources (5,808)            476,192          464,335          (11,857)               

Net Change in Fund Balance (90,000)          (90,000)          159,277          249,277              

Beginning Fund Balance 90,000            90,000            83,857            (6,143)                 

Ending Fund Balance $ -                      $ -                      243,134          $ 243,134              

Reconciliation to Net Position:
Capital Assets, net of depreciation 5,640,056       
Interfund Loan to PD 4,500              
Net Pension Liability (281,724)        
Pension Related Deferred Outflows 107,050          
Pension Related Deferred Inflows (10,920)          
Other Post-employment Benefits (OPEB) Liability (8,632)            
OPEB Related Deferred Outflows 393                 
OPEB Related Deferred Inflows (4,765)            
Accrued Interest (38,912)          
Long Term Debt (4,545,185)     
Compensated Absences (21,243)          

Total Net Position $ 1,083,752       

(1)  Appropriation Level

- 64 -



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
ACTUAL AND BUDGET - BUDGETARY BASIS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

WASTEWATER FUND
VARIANCE
TO FINAL
BUDGET

ORIGINAL FINAL  POSITIVE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

REVENUES:

Charges for Service $ 666,700          $ 666,700          $ 690,846          $ 24,146                 
Miscellaneous 6,000              6,000              2,078              (3,922)                  

Total Revenues 672,700          672,700          692,924          20,224                 

EXPENDITURES:

Wastewater Utility 917,086          917,086          (1) 712,365          204,721               
Not Allocated:

Debt Service 18,121            18,121            (1) 17,943            178                      
Contingency 112,493          37,493            (1) -                      37,493                 

Total Expenditures 1,047,700       972,700          730,308          242,392               

Excess of Revenues Over, (Under) 
  Expenditures (375,000)        (300,000)        (37,384)          262,616               

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES, (USES):
Interfund Loan to General Fund -                      (75,000)          (75,000)          -                           

Total Other Financing Sources, (Uses) -                      (75,000)          (75,000)          -                           

Net Change in Fund Balance (375,000)        (375,000)        (112,384)        262,616               

Beginning Fund Balance 375,000          375,000          299,290          (75,710)                

Ending Fund Balance $ -                      $ -                      186,906          $ 186,906               

Reconciliation to Net Position:
Capital Assets, net of depreciation 780,689          
Interfund Loan to PD 79,500            
Net Pension Liability (307,515)        
Pension Related Deferred Outflows 116,893          
Pension Related Deferred Inflows (11,930)          
Other Post-employment Benefits (OPEB) Liability (9,422)            
OPEB Related Deferred Outflows 428                 
OPEB Related Deferred Inflows (5,204)            
Long Term Debt (177,500)        
Compensated Absences (10,106)          

Total Net Position $ 642,739          

(1)  Appropriation Level

- 65 -



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
ACTUAL AND BUDGET - BUDGETARY BASIS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

STORM WATER FUND
VARIANCE
TO FINAL
BUDGET

ORIGINAL FINAL  POSITIVE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

REVENUES:

Charges for Services $ 24,506            $ 24,506            $ 27,765            $ 3,259                   
 

Total Revenues 24,506            24,506            27,765            3,259                   

EXPENDITURES:

Stormwater Utility 19,000            19,000            (1) 8,098              10,902                 
Not Allocated:

Contingency 10,506            10,506            (1) -                      10,506                 

Total Expenditures 29,506            29,506            8,098              21,408                 

Net Change in Fund Balance (5,000)             (5,000)             19,667            (18,149)                

Beginning Fund Balance 5,000              5,000              10,325            5,325                   

Ending Fund Balance $ -                    $ -                    29,992           $ (12,824)               

Reconciliation to Net Position:
Capital Assets, net of depreciation 123,744          

Total Net Position $ 153,736        

(1)  Appropriation Level

- 66 -



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF PROPERTY TAX TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
OF TAXES UNCOLLECTED

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

IMPOSED BALANCE
LEVY OR DISCOUNTS/
BALANCE ADJUSTMENTS

TAX UNCOLLECTED
YEAR

Current: 

2019-20 $ 1,138,367         (27,203)           1,089,407         $ 21,757                  

Prior Years:
2018-19 18,906              (611)                9,058                9,237                    
2017-18 8,686                172                 3,863                4,995                    
2016-17 5,110                461                 3,395                2,176                    
2015-16 2,503                424                 2,077                850                       
2014-15 932                  59                   504                  487                       
2013-14 & Prior 5,177                215                 722                  4,670                    

  Total Prior 41,314              720                 19,619              22,415                  

Total All
  Funds $ 1,179,681         $ (26,483)         $ 1,109,026       $ 44,172                  

 
GENERAL

RECONCILIATION TO REVENUE: FUND

Cash Collections by County Treasurer Above $ 1,109,026             
Accrual of Receivables:

June 30, 2020 (4,542)                   
June 30, 2019 4,936                    
Other adjustments (393)                     

Total Revenue - General Fund $ 1,109,027             

 

AT 6/30/19

COLLECTIONS
CASH UNCOLLECTED

OR
UNSEGREGATED

AT  7/1/18
BY COUNTY
TREASURER

TO
ROLLS

- 67 -



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
 LANE COUNTY, OREGON 
 
 
 INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT REQUIRED BY OREGON STATE REGULATION 
 
 
 
 
 



 

-68- 
 

 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
REQUIRED BY OREGON STATE REGULATIONS 

 
 
City Council 
City of Oakridge 
Lane County, Oregon 
 
 
We have audited the basic financial statements of the City of Oakridge, Lane County, Oregon (the 
City) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020 and have issued our report thereon dated December 
15, 2020.  We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 
 
Compliance 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grants, including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified 
in Oregon Administrative Rules 162-10-000 through 162-10-320 of the Minimum Standards for 
Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the determination of financial statements amounts.  However, providing an 
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, 
we do not express such an opinion. 
 
We performed procedures to the extent we considered necessary to address the required comments 
and disclosures which included, but were not limited to the following: 
 
 Deposit of public funds with financial institutions (ORS Chapter 295). 
 Indebtedness limitations, restrictions and repayment. 
 Budgets legally required (ORS Chapter 294). 
 Insurance and fidelity bonds in force or required by law. 
 Programs funded from outside sources. 
 Authorized investment of surplus funds (ORS Chapter 294). 
 Public contracts and purchasing (ORS Chapters 279A, 279B, 279C). 
 
The results of our testing identified one reportable violation related to Oregon Local Budget Law.  
On June 18, 2020, the City approved a resolution making changes to the original budget 
appropriations.  The resolution created a new appropriation category and increased expenditures 
by 24% in the Woodstove Replacement fund.  The City did not hold a public hearing or comply 
with publishing requirements for these changes as required by Oregon Local Budget Law.   

 
  



 

-69- 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
REQUIRED BY OREGON STATE REGULATIONS - CONTINUED 

 
No other instances came to our attention that caused us to believe the City was not in substantial 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants, including the 
provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules 162-10-000 
through 162-10-320 of the Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations. 
 
OAR 162-10-0230 Internal Control 
In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal control over financial 
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion 
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the City’s internal control over financial reporting.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial reporting.   
 
We noted certain matters that we consider to be material weaknesses in internal control and have 
reported these findings in to management and the Council in a separate letter dated December 15, 
2020. 
 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the City Council, and 
the Oregon Secretary of State and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other 
than these specified parties. 
 
 

 
 
Brenda Bartlett, CPA 
SGA Certified Public Accountants and Consultants, LLP 
Bend, Oregon 
 
December 15, 2020 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
 LANE COUNTY, OREGON 
 
 
 2018-2019 
 
 ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 
 
 ******* 



 

 

 CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
 LANE COUNTY, OREGON 
 
  
  
   
  
  
 

CITY COUNCIL TERM EXPIRES   
 
 
 Paul Forcum December 31, 2020 
 
 Christina Hollet December 31, 2022 
 
 Bobbie Whitney December 31, 2022 
 
 Donald Hadley December 31, 2022 
 
 Trisha Maxfield December 31, 2020 
 
 Kathy Holston, Mayor December 31, 2022  
    
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
All Council members receive mail at the address listed below. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE 
 

Bryan Cutchen, City Administrator  
William Jones, Finance Director 

 
City of Oakridge 
P.O. Box 1410 

Oakridge, Oregon 97463 
  



 

 

CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
 LANE COUNTY, OREGON 
 
 T A B L E O F C O N T E N T S 

 PAGE    
 NUMBER  

 
  Independent Auditors’ Report 1 
 
 REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 

 Management’s Discussion and Analysis 4 
 
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

  
Government-Wide Financial Statements:  

    Statement of Net Position 14 
   Statement of Activities  15 
    
  Fund Financial Statements: 
   Combined Balance Sheet – Governmental Funds 16 
   Reconciliation of Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds to 
    Statement of Net Position 17 

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in  
Fund Balance – Governmental Funds 18 

   Reconciliation of Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in 
    Fund Balance – Governmental Funds – to Statement of Activities 19 
  Proprietary Financial Statements: 

Statement of Net Position 20 
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in 
 Net Position 21 
Combining Statement of Cash Flows 22 
 

  Notes to Basic Financial Statements 23 
     
 REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 
  Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance –  
   Actual and Budget – Budgetary Basis: 

 General Fund 52 
 Street Fund 53 
 Emergency Services Fund  54 
 Oakridge Industrial Park Fund 55 

  Schedule of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (PERS) and 
    Schedule of Contributions (PERS) 56 
  Schedule of Changes In Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios – Health Insurance 
    Implicit Rate Subsidy 57 

 
 SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 
  Non-Major Governmental Funds Combining Statements: 
   Combining Balance Sheet 58 
   Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 59 
 
  



 

 

CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
 

 PAGE  
 NUMBER  

 
  Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance –  
    Actual and Budget – Budgetary Basis: 
     Non-Major Governmental Funds: 
      Water Reserve Fund 60 
      Water Bond Reserve Fund 61 
      Woodstove Replacement Fund 62 
      Bicycle / Pedestrian Path Fund 63 
  Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance –  
    Actual and Budget – Budgetary Basis: 
     Proprietary Funds: 
      Water Fund 64 
      Wastewater Fund 65 
      Storm Water Fund 66 
  Schedule of Property Tax Transactions and Balances of Taxes Uncollected 67 
 
 GRANT COMPLIANCE REVIEW 
 
  Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 68 
  Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 69 
 

REPORTS ON LEGAL AND OTHER REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS 
 

  Independent Auditors’ Report Required by Oregon State Regulations 70 
  Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting And 
   on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements 
   Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 72 
  Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on 
   Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance 74 
  Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 77 
  Corrective Action Plan 81 
  Summary of Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 84 
 
 



 
 
 
 
To the City Council 
City of Oakridge 
Lane County, Oregon 
 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City 
of Oakridge, Oregon (the City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related 
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements 
as listed in the table of contents. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant 
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that 
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. 
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinions. 



 

-2- 
 

 
Opinions 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Oakridge, Oregon, as of 
June 30, 2019, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows 
thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 
 
Other Matters 
Required Supplementary Information 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management’s discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information on pages 52-55, net 
pension liability information presented on page 56, and the other post-employment benefit 
information on page 57, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the management’s discussion 
and analysis, net pension liability information, the net other post-employment benefit information, 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which 
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial 
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the 
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance. 
 
The budgetary comparison statements for the general and special revenue funds are the 
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information 
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. In our opinion, the  budgetary comparison statements for the general and special 
revenue funds are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements 
as a whole. 
 
Other Information 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The combining nonmajor fund 
financial statements, budgetary comparison schedules and schedule of property tax transactions, 
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional 
analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and is also not a 
required part of the basic financial statements. 
  



 

-3- 
 

 
The combining nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal 
awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and 
the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated in all material respects in relation 
to the basic financial statements as a whole.  The budgetary comparison schedules and schedule of 
property tax transactions have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit 
of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on them. 
 
Reports on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
December 15, 2019, on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting 
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, 
and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Oakridge, Oregon’s internal 
control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City of Oakridge, 
Oregon’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 
In accordance with Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, we have 
issued our report dated December 15, 2019, on our consideration of compliance with certain 
provisions of laws and regulations, including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as 
specified in Oregon Administrative Rules. The purpose of that report is to describe our testing 
of compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on compliance. 
 

 
Brenda Bartlett, CPA 
 
SGA Certified Public Accountants and Consultants, LLP 
Bend, Oregon 
 
December 15, 2019



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
 LANE COUNTY, OREGON 
 
 
 REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 



-4- 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

 
 
The management of the City of Oakridge, Oregon, presents this narrative overview and analysis to facilitate 
both a short and a long-term analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ending June 
30, 2019 (FY 19).  This Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is based on currently known 
facts, decisions, and conditions that existed as of the date of the independent auditor’s report. 
 
Financial Highlights 
 
       Note: Amounts in the MD&A are rounded to thousands except tables and Budget Highlights 
 

• The City’s overall net position in FY 19 increased $72,000 from last year. This was a result of using 
grants to fund certain major equipment purchases rather than liquid fund assets, active management 
of resources and a mix of other events which increased or decreased the City’s net position. Some 
of the more significant items were: 
 
1) Accounting for pension liabilities and related inflows and outflows which decreased the City’s 

net position $ 251,000  in FY 19; 
2) Net investment in capital assets (assets less related debt) increased $70,000 net of annual 

depreciation primarily due to acquisition of firefighting vehicles and equipment using grants 
and additional assets related to the 2017 Water Improvement Project net of the related debt. 

3) A significant sale in Oakridge Industrial Park (OIP) generated revenues significantly in excess 
of the cost of the property sold with an increase of $ 223,000 in net position. 

4) Insurance recoveries on properties destroyed or damaged by the winter storm increased 
cash balances by $166,000 with an increase in net position. 

 
Exclusive of these items overall operating and other activities generated a decrease of 
approximately $136,000 in the City’s net position. Certain funds as described below generated 
operating deficits that reduced the City’s overall operating results and required the support of the 
General Fund and through charges from the General Fund indirectly the Proprietary funds (business 
type activities). Please see discussions below for additional details on financial results. 
 

  



-5- 
 

• The City’s General Fund fund balance decreased approximately $20,000 in FY 19. This was due 
in part by operating deficits occasioned by personnel expenses associated with severance of certain 
administrative personnel and other increased benefit costs and to its continued support of the EMS 
fund.   

 
• Emergency Services continued to experience significant operating deficits in FY 19 and required 

support from the General Fund.  The EFS fund ended the year with a deficit fund balance of 
$133,000 after this support. Management and the City Council continue to research approaches to 
make the services provided by EMS financially viable or to take other action to resolve the issue 
while maintaining the public safety.  

 
Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
The following discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial 
statements and other required supplementary information.  The City’s basic financial statements comprise 
three components: 
 

• Government-wide financial statements 
• Fund financial statements 
• Notes to the basic financial statements 

 
Government-wide financial statements:  The government-wide financial statements are designed to 
provide readers with a broad overview of the City’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector 
business. 
 
The Statement of Net Position presents information on the City’s assets, deferred inflows, liabilities, and 
deferred outflows, as applicable, with the difference between them reported as net position.  Over time, 
increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of 
the City is improving or deteriorating. 
 
The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the City’s net position changed during the 
most recent fiscal year.  All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise 
to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of cash flow.  Thus revenues and expenses are reported in 
this statement for some items that will result in a cash flow in a future period.  Examples of such items 
include earned, but uncollected property taxes, and earned, but unused compensated absences. 
 
Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally 
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are 
intended to recover all (or a significant portion) of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type 
activities). 
 
  



-6- 
 

The governmental activities include: 
 

• Administration 
• Police 
• Parks 
• Library 
• Willamette Activity Center 
• Woodstove Replacement Funds 
• Streets and Local Improvement Districts 
• Emergency Services Department (Fire and Ambulance Funds) 
• Oakridge Industrial Park 
• Debt Reserves 
• Capital Projects Funding 

 
The business-type activities include: 
 

• Water 
• Wastewater 
• Stormwater 

 
Fund financial statements:  A fund is a group of accounts that is used to maintain control over resources 
that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives.  The City uses fund accounting to ensure and 
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.  All of the funds of the City can be divided 
into two categories:  governmental funds and proprietary funds. 
 
Governmental Funds:  Governmental funds are used to account for activities where the emphasis is placed 
on available financial resources, rather than upon net income determination.  Therefore, unlike the 
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on the acquisition and 
use of current resources available at the end of the fiscal year.   
 
The City of Oakridge maintains four major governmental funds:   
 

• General Fund 
• Street Fund 
• Emergency Services Fund 
• Oakridge Industrial Park Fund (OIP) 

 
The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for all government funds.  The City also maintains two non-
major governmental programs:   
 

• Water Capital Reserve Fund 
• Water Bond Reserve Fund 

  



-7- 
 

The following funds are accounted for individually by the City, but are combined with the General Fund in 
the basic financial statements: 
 

• Woodstove Replacement Fund 
• Bicycle/Pedestrian Path Fund 

 
To demonstrate compliance with the budget, a “Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund 
Balances – Budget and Actual” is included for these funds. 
 
Business-Type Funds:  Business-type funds are used to account for activities where the emphasis is placed 
on net income.  The City maintains three business-type funds:  
 

• Water Fund 
• Wastewater Fund 
• Storm Water Fund 

 
A “Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual” is included 
for these funds. 
 
Notes to basic financial statements.  The notes provide additional information that is essential for a full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.  They are an 
integral part of the financial statements and should be read in conjunction with them. 
 
Required supplementary information.  In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying 
notes, this report also presents certain required supplementary information concerning budgetary 
comparisons for the general fund, street fund, and emergency service fund, information about the City’s 
progress in funding its obligation to provide pension and other post-employment benefits to its employees 
and budget to GAAP reconciliation schedule. 
 
  



-8- 
 

Government-wide Financial Analysis 
 

 
The largest portion of the City’s net position reflects its net investment in capital assets (e.g. land and right-
of-way, buildings, improvements, equipment, and infrastructure less related debt).  The City uses these 
assets to provide services to its citizens.  Consequently, these assets are not available for sale or alternative 
use.  Resources to pay the related debt used in acquiring these assets must come from other sources such as 
taxes, service fees, licenses and permits etc. Significant additions to capital assets in FY 19 are more fully 
described below. 
 
Governmental activities.  The net position of the Government funds increased $84,000 in FY 19 due to a 
number of factors. The net position decreased due to a $274,000 increase in the net liability, deferred 
outflows and deferred inflows of the pension plan. Capital assets increased $241,000 net of accumulated 
depreciation primarily reflecting the addition of the fire truck and equipment in the EFS fund of $438,000 
which was financed by the Assistance to Firefighters Fund grant.  The sale of property in OIP for net 
proceeds of approximately $366,000 increased cash balances while the  assets held for sale decreased 
$143,000  due to the value of the property sold for a net impact on net position of $223,000. The City 
recovered $166,000 in insurance proceeds for properties or equipment destroyed or damaged in the 2019 
winter storms. Other liabilities decreased $14,000 increasing the net position. The remaining                                
$286,000 decrease in net position results primarily from operational results and other activities with current 
results and activities largely reflected in the change in the current asset and current liability balances in the 
table above.   
 
 
  

6/30/2019 6/30/2018 6/30/2019 6/30/2018 6/30/2019 6/30/2018

Current and Other Assets 1,455,518$ 959,343$    657,214$    623,582$    2,112,732$ 1,582,925$ 
Capital Assets, Net 3,125,056   2,883,907   6,247,737   5,255,224   9,372,793   8,139,131   
Asset for Held for Sale 1,705,461   1,848,280   -              -              1,705,461   1,848,280   
Total Assets 6,286,035   5,691,530   6,904,951   5,878,806   13,190,986 11,570,336 

Deferred Outflows 929,271      639,163      245,973      233,395      1,175,244   872,558      

Current Liabilities 607,183      356,641      436,022      494,032 1,043,205 850,673
Net Pension, OPEB Liabilities 2,005,260   1,561,885   530,780      570,331 2,536,040 2,132,216
Other Long Term Liabilities 60,885        75,174        5,037,541   3,918,079 5,098,426 3,993,253
Total Liabilities 2,673,328   1,993,700   6,004,343   4,982,442   8,677,671   6,976,142   

Deferred Inflows 159,319      38,126        42,171        13,922        201,490      52,048        

Net Position:
Net Investment in
   Capital Assets 3,015,593   2,774,444   1,002,740   1,173,740   4,018,333   3,948,184   
Restricted 2,527,538   2,374,375   -              -              2,527,538   2,374,375   
Unrestricted (1,160,472)  (849,952)     101,670      (57,903)       (1,058,802)  (907,855)     

Total Net Position 4,382,659$ 4,298,867$ 1,104,410$ 1,115,837$ 5,487,069$ 5,414,704$ 

Net Position

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total



-9- 
 

Business-type activities: The net position of the three business-type activities (Water, Wastewater and 
Storm Water) decreased $11,000 compared to the prior year. Net investment in capital assets (net of 
depreciation and related long term and current debt) decreased $171,000 primarily reflecting continued 
investment in the 2017 Water Project assets of $961,000 net of related loans of $1,233,000 from the 
Business Oregon Infrastructure Finance Authority (IFA). Net liabilities and deferred inflows and outflows 
associated with the pension plan decreased $24,000 increasing net position in a similar amount. The 
remaining $136,000 increase in net position results from operating and other activity with current results 
and activity largely reflected in the change in current asset and current liability balances in the table above. 
 

 
 
Fund Financial Statement Analysis 
 

 
  

Source Water Wastewater Storm Water        Total

Revenues 944,104$        686,083$        26,834$         1,657,021$     
Operating Expenses 659,843         784,316         32,527           1,476,686       
Operating Income 284,261         (98,233)          (5,693)            180,335         
Non-Operating Revenue (Expenses) (160,943)        (39,191)          (7,189)            (207,323)        
Transfers In (Out) (5,808)            -                21,369           15,561           
Change in Net Position 117,510         (137,424)        8,487             (11,427)          

Beginning Net Position 108,059         876,421         131,357         1,115,837       

Ending Net Position 225,569$        738,997$        139,844$        1,104,410$     

Change in Net Position – Business-type Activities

Fund 6/30/2019 6/30/2018 Change ($) Change (%)

General Fund 147,038$    169,321$    (22,283)$     -13.2%
Street Fund 99,867        118,808      (18,941)      -15.9%
Emergency Services Fund (133,015)     (79,153)      (53,862)      -68.0%
Oakridge Industrial Park Fund 550,925      204,871      346,054      -168.9%
Other Governmental Funds 138,107      172,299      (34,192)      -19.8%
Total 802,922$    586,146$    216,776$    37.0%

Change in Fund Balance – Governmental Funds

Fund Balance



-10- 
 

The decrease in the General Fund is primarily due to salaries and other benefits related to severance of two 
former administrative employees as well as increases in other personnel costs.  This change also reflects 
increased subsidies for Public Safety that are outpacing increases in property taxes, other revenues and 
other resources such as  Administrative overhead allocation charges to other funds. At year end the balance 
in the General fund was increased by recovery of insurance proceeds from park and other properties 
damaged in the 2019 winter storm. The decrease in the Emergency Services Fund was primarily the result 
of continuing operating deficits which were not fully covered by additional General Fund subsidies. The 
increase in the Industrial Park fund was due to a large sale of property in OIP on which the buyer intends 
to build a manufacturing plant. We note that funds from these sales are largely restricted to use in OIP and 
are not available for general use by the City. Decreases in the other funds were generally due to expenditures 
that were greater than expected. (See Budget Highlights below)   
 
Capital Assets   
 
Additions to capital assets include construction in progress (CIP) and completed portions of the 2017 Water 
Improvement project (the Water Project), upgraded purification systems for Waste Water and significant 
repairs to the levee in the proprietary funds and a new fire truck and equipment in the Government funds. 
The majority of the assets in the Water Project were put in service in FY 19 and transferred from CIP to 
completed assets.  The additions in the Water Project were primarily financed by borrowings from the 
Infrastructure Finance Authority (IFA) while the fire equipment was purchased with an Assistance to 
Firefighters grant through the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA).  The City’s net 
investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities totals approximately $4.02 
million as of June 30, 2019.  The investment in capital assets includes land, right-of-way (included with 
land), buildings and improvements, improvements other than buildings (such as parks and park 
improvements), equipment  and infrastructure including streets and utilities, all depreciated through normal 
accounting practice.  The net investment amount is also shown net of the related long term and current debt. 
Capital assets are used to provide services to City residents and others and are therefore not available for 
sale or other disposition except for the occasional surplus property. 
 
Debt Management 
 
During FY 19 the City drew on its loan from the Infrastructure Finance Authority (IFA) to bring to 
substantial completion and put in service most assets in the 2017 Water Improvement Project and to cover 
additional costs associated with the project.  At the conclusion of the project and subject to certain 
conditions which management believes will be satisfied $765,000 of the loan will be forgiven. This portion 
of the loan remains on the Water Fund balance sheet until that time. This project is now scheduled to be 
completed in FY 20.  See Note 7 on pages 36-39 of the Annual Financial report and the discussion of next 
year’s budget below for additional information on debt facilities and balances and debt service 
requirements. 
 
 
  



-11- 
 

Budget Highlights 
 
The City’s general fund budget includes adjustments made during the year by Council resolution and/or 
Supplemental Budget.  All functional appropriations were within budgeted amounts, except as follows: 
 

1) In the General Fund  the following departments were overspent: 
a. In the Administration Department appropriations were overspent by $87,929  
b.  In the  Municipal court function appropriations were overspent by $2,863 
c. In the Willamette Activity Center appropriations were overspent by $2,060 
d. In the Library appropriations were overspent by $89 

2) In the Emergency Services Fund appropriations were overspent by $34,598 
3) In the Woodstove Replacement Fund appropriations were overspent by $839 
4) In the Stormwater Fund appropriations were overspent by $22,957 

 
The Emergency Services Fund balance at year end was a deficit of $133,015. As of June 30, 2019, the 
governmental activity funds had an unrestricted net position deficit of  $ 1,160,472. This deficit is primarily 
due to the net impact of the net pension liability and related deferred inflows and deferred outflows on the 
funds after accounting for the net investment in capital assets and various other restricted assets. 

 
The City administration intends to closely monitor operating revenues and expenditures in FY 20 to prevent 
these issues and to restore the Emergency Services Fund to a positive fund balance. 
 
Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget 
 
During the preparation of the budget for the ensuing fiscal year, the primary objective was to achieve 
financial stability.  With input from the public, the City Council and staff of the City are accountable for 
expending City funds.  The following are the major assumptions used in developing the FY 19-20 budget 
and operating plan. 
 

1. EMS Operations and Support  
              
The EFS fund will continue to require significant support from the General Fund in FY 20 to cover 
its operating deficits and will continue to receive a waiver of administrative overhead charges. The 
operating deficits result primarily from providing EMT and ambulance services that do not recover 
their cost due to low reimbursement rates from government sources and from serving a 
disadvantaged community with limited resources to pay for these services. Management continues 
to research grant opportunities, opportunities for operating efficiencies and possible reorganization 
and coordination with other agencies and jurisdictions to more effectively provide these services 
among other options. At the date of this report no definitive option or options have been determined. 

 
  



-12- 
 

2. Debt Service on the 2017 Water improvement Project and Water Rates 
 
During FY 20 the City will complete the current phase of the 2017 Water Improvement Project (the 
Project) and make the final draws on the original loan with IFA. The loan amount will be increased 
by $340,000 to fund the change orders from mediation agreements reached after June 30, 2109 with 
certain contractors on the project. In addition, the City anticipates additional borrowings to fund a 
new well and related assets as the well drilled during the original project was found to be 
contaminated. The City also anticipates additional borrowing to refurbish a primary existing well. 
These borrowings will increase future debt service requirements of the Water Fund. 
 
Subsequent to June 30, 2019, the City Council increased the monthly base water service rate to 
customers effective December 1, 2019. This increase was required to meet the debt service 
requirements of the loans related to the Project while a portion of the increase was to support public 
safety services through the General Fund including the services provided by EMS operations. 
 

3. Trends in Revenues and Expenditures 
 
Revenues in the General Fund are expected to be relatively flat compared to FY 19. An increase in 
General Fund expenses is expected. General fund administrative expenses are partially allocated to 
other funds based on centralized services provided to those funds by the Administration Department 
of the General Fund.  Revenues in the significant Proprietary funds, Water and Waste Water, are 
expected to increase due to the annual rate increase based on an index method and the water rate 
increase noted above.  Increases in expenses in the Proprietary Funds and additional debt service 
requirements are expected to largely offset the revenue increases. 
 

4. Grants 
 
During FY 19 the City will use funds from the Oregon Department of Transportation/ International 
Mountain Bicycle Association (ODOT/IMBA) grant to build park structures to enhance bicycling 
activities. The City has also received a grant administered by the Lane Regional Air Protection 
Agency (LRAPA) to provide a code enforcement officer for monitoring for burning and wood 
smoke violations.                                    
  

  



-13- 
 

5. Cash and Working Capital 
 

Having adequate liquid resources to fund current operating needs and meet any unexpected cash 
requirements that arise is important to the financial health of the City and provides a basis for 
continuing operations in the next year. As of June 30, 2019 the City had cash and cash equivalent 
balances of $1,047,161 of which $799,052 was restricted to use by the Street Fund, Oakridge 
Industrial Park Fund and Debt Service Funds. Cash and cash equivalents comprised most of the 
City’s working capital balance as other current assets and current liabilities netted to approximately 
$23,000. City Administration will monitor cash and working capital balances closely for each fund 
and in total in FY 20.   
 
 
 
 

                                                                       
Requests for Information 
 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances and activities for those 
with an interest in government financing.  Questions concerning any of the information provided in this 
report or requests for additional information should be addressed to: 
 
 City Administrator 
 P.O. Box 1410 
 48318 E. First Street 
 Oakridge, Oregon 97463 
 541-782-2258  
 
Please visit our website at www.ci.oakridge.or.us. 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
 LANE COUNTY, OREGON 
 
 
 BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2019

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 17,424           $ 230,685         $ 248,109         
Restricted Cash and Investments 799,052         -                     799,052         
Receivables:

Taxes 41,314           -                     41,314           
Accounts (Net) 361,845         205,960         567,805         
Insurance Proceeds 151,764         -                     151,764         
Grants 9,500             -                     9,500             
Assessments 54,101           -                     54,101           

Interfund Loans Receivable -                     9,000             9,000             
Due from Governmental Activities -                     211,569         211,569         
Capital Assets:

Land, Land Improvements, and Construction in Progress 913,894         20,300           934,194         
Other Capital Assets, Net 2,211,162      6,227,437      8,438,599      

Notes Receivable 20,518           -                     20,518           
Assets Held for Sale 1,705,461      -                     1,705,461      

Total Assets 6,286,035      6,904,951      13,190,986     

Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Pension Related Deferrals 928,870         245,867         1,174,737      
Other Post-employment Benefits 401                106                507                

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 929,271         245,973         1,175,244      

Total  Assets and Deferred Outflows 7,215,306      7,150,924      14,366,230     

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND NET POSITION

Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 143,706         72,148           215,854         
Retainage Payable -                     92,475           92,475           
Payroll Liabilities 56,502           12,714           69,216           
Interfund Loans Payable 9,000             -                     9,000             
Due to Business-Type Activities 211,569         -                     211,569         
Compensated Absences 94,024           26,681           120,705         
Accrued Interest -                     39,590           39,590           
Customer Deposits -                     65,475           65,475           
Unearned Revenue 43,804           11,958           55,762           
Current Portion of Long Term Liabilities 48,578           114,981         163,559         
Long Term Liabilities:

Net Pension Liability 1,947,939      515,608         2,463,547      
Other Post-employment Benefits Liability 57,321           15,172           72,493           
Due in More than One Year 60,885           5,037,541      5,098,426      

Total Liabilities 2,673,328      6,004,343      8,677,671      

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Net Pension Related Deferrals 116,998         30,969           147,967         
Other Post-employment Benefits 42,321           11,202           53,523           

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 159,319         42,171           201,490         

Net Position:
Net Investment in Capital Assets 3,015,593      1,002,740      4,018,333      
Restricted: Streets 150,469         -                     150,469         
Restricted: Debt Service 120,683         -                     120,683         
Restricted: Oakridge Industrial park 2,256,386      -                     2,256,386      
Unrestricted (1,160,472)     101,670         (1,058,802)     

Total Net Position $ 4,382,659      $ 1,104,410      $ 5,487,069      

-14-



  
Operating

Charges for Grants and
Expenses Services Contributions

Functions/Programs

Primary Government
Governmental Activities

General Government $ 1,021,993                $ 169,066          $ 79,936            $ -                                 
Public Safety 2,220,726                473,512          -                     433,346                      
Highways and Streets 297,113                   -                     -                     -                                 
Culture and Recreation 99,296                     -                     -                     -                                 

Total Governmental Activities 3,639,128                642,578          79,936            433,346                      

Business-Type Activities
Water 759,543                   936,208          -                     -                                 
Wastewater   812,715                   672,671          -                     -                                 
Storm Water 39,716                     26,834            -                     -                                 
Interest on Long Term Debt 72,035                     -                     -                     -                                 

Total Business-Type Activities 1,684,009                1,635,713       -                     -                                 

Total Primary Government $ 5,323,137                $ 2,278,291       $ 79,936            $ 433,346                      

CITY OF OAKRIDGE
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Capital
Grants and

Contributions

Program Revenues

-15b-



Net Revenue (Expense)

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

$ (772,991)           $ -                       $ (772,991)        
(1,313,868)        -                       (1,313,868)     

(297,113)           -                       (297,113)        
(99,296)             -                       (99,296)          

(2,483,268)        -                       (2,483,268)     

-                        176,665            176,665          
-                        (140,044)          (140,044)        
-                        (12,882)            (12,882)          
-                        (72,035)            (72,035)          
-                        (48,296)            (48,296)          

(2,483,268)        (48,296)            (2,531,564)     

Property Taxes 1,048,563         -                       1,048,563       
Franchise and License Fees 272,488            -                       272,488          
Intergovernmental 202,704            -                       202,704          
License, Permits, and Misc. Taxes 576,115            -                       576,115          
Interest and Miscellaneous 93,214              21,308              114,522          
Transfers (15,561)             15,561              -                     
Insurance Proceeds 166,341            -                       166,341          
Gain (Loss) on Sale of Property 223,197            -                       223,197          

Total 2,567,061         36,869              2,603,930       

Change in Net Position 83,793              (11,427)            72,366            

Beginning Net Position 4,298,866         1,115,837         5,414,703       

Ending Net Position $ 4,382,659         $ 1,104,410         $ 5,487,069       

-15a-



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

COMBINED BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30, 2019

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

OTHER
STREET SERVICES GOVERNMENTAL

FUND FUND FUNDS TOTAL

ASSETS:
Cash and Investments $ -                  $ -                  $ -                  $ -                  $ 17,424           $ 17,424         
Restricted Cash and Investments 18,014         85,502         -                  574,853       120,683         799,052       
Receivables:

Accounts, Net 199,477       26,132         130,172       6,064           -                    361,845       
Insurance Proceeds 151,764       -                  -                  -                  -                    151,764       
Grants 9,500           -                  -                  -                  -                    9,500           
Assessments -                  54,101         -                  -                  -                    54,101         
Taxes 41,314         -                  -                  -                  -                    41,314         
Notes -                  -                  -                  20,518         -                    20,518         

Total  Assets $ 420,069       $ 165,735       $ 130,172       $ 601,435       $ 138,107         $ 1,455,518    

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND FUND BALANCES:
Liabilities:

Accounts Payable $ 104,435       $ 13,652         $ 24,799         $ 820              $ -                    $ 143,706       
Payroll Liabilities 38,847         1,614           16,041         -                  -                    56,502         
Due to Other Funds 67,349         -                  144,220       -                  -                    211,569       
Interfund Loans Payable 9,000           -                  -                  -                  -                    9,000           
Unearned Revenue 1,200           -                  17,151         25,453         -                    43,804         

Total  Liabilities 220,831       15,266         202,211       26,273         -                    464,581       

Deferred Inflows:
Unavailable Assessment Revenues -                  50,602         -                  -                  -                    50,602         
Unavailable Receivables 15,822         -                  60,976         5,550           -                    82,348         
Unavailable Notes Receivable -                  -                  -                  18,687         -                    18,687         
Unavailable Property Tax Revenues 36,378         -                  -                  -                  -                    36,378         

Total Deferred Inflows 52,200         50,602         60,976         24,237         -                    188,015       

Fund Balances:
Restricted for:

Streets -                  99,867         -                  -                  -                    99,867         
Oakridge Industrial Park -                  -                  -                  550,925       -                    550,925       
Debt Service -                  -                  -                  -                  120,683         120,683       

Assigned 26,389         -                  -                  -                  17,424           43,813         
Unassigned 120,649       -                  (133,015)     -                  -                    (12,366)       

Total Fund Balances 147,038       99,867         (133,015)     550,925       138,107         802,922       

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows 
and Fund Balances $ 420,069       $ 165,735       $ 130,172       $ 601,435       $ 138,107         $ 1,455,518    

GENERAL
FUND

PARK
FUND

INDUSTRIALEMERGENCY

-16-



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

RECONCILIATION OF BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2019

Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the government-wide Statement of Net Position.

Fund Balances $ 802,922                

(1,947,939)            

(57,321)                 

Deferred Outflows 929,271                
Deferred Inflows (159,319)               

Net Capital Assets 3,125,056             

Assets Held for Sale 1,705,461             

Loans Payable (109,463)               

Compensated Absences (94,024)                 

Unavailable Assessment Revenues $ 50,602          
Unavailable Receivables 82,348          
Unavailable Notes Receivable 18,687          
Unavailable Property Tax Revenues 36,378          

188,015                

Total Net Position $ 4,382,659             

The cost of capital assets (land, buildings, improvements, machinery and
equipment, infrastructure, and construction in progress) is reported as an
expenditure in governmental funds. The Statement of Net Position includes those
capital assets among the assets of the City as a whole.

Long-term liabilities applicable to the City's governmental activities are not due
and payable in the current period and accordingly are not reported as fund
liabilities. All liabilities, both current and long-term, are reported in the Statement
of Net Position.

Accrued compensated absences are not due and payable in the current period and
therefore are not reported in the funds.

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and
therefore are unavailable revenue in the funds.

The cost of assets held for sale is reported as an expenditure in governmental
funds. The Statement of Net Position includes those capital assets among the
assets of the City as a whole.

The net pension liability is the difference between the total pension liability and
the assets set aside to pay benefits earned to past and current employees and
beneficiaries.

Deferred inflows and outflows of resources related to the pension plan and other
post-employment benefits include differences between expected and actual
experience, changes of assumptions, differences between projects and actual
earning, and contributions subsequent to the measurement date.

The other post-employment benefit liability is the difference between the total
other post-employment liability and the assets set aside to pay benefits earned to
past and current employees and beneficiaries.

-17-



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, 
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

 
 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS  

OTHER
GENERAL STREET SERVICES GOVERNMENTAL

FUND FUND FUND FUNDS TOTAL
REVENUES:

Property Taxes $ 1,081,212     $ -                   $ -                   $ -                   $ -                   $ 1,081,212     
Franchise and License Fees 272,488        -                   -                   -                   -                   272,488        
Rental Revenue 19,556          -                   -                   74,886          -                   94,442          
Licenses, Permits, and Misc. Taxes 282,878        293,237        -                   -                   -                   576,115        
Intergovernmental 125,986        3,905            72,813          -                   -                   202,704        
Charges for Services -                   -                   454,351        -                   -                   454,351        
Fines and Forfeitures 76,835          -                   -                   -                   -                   76,835          
Grants and Donations 79,936          -                   433,346        -                   -                   513,282        
Assessments -                   4,232            -                   -                   -                   4,232            
Interest and Miscellaneous 45,552          3,350            17,136          27,322          -                   93,360          

Total Revenues 1,984,443     304,724        977,646        102,208        -                   3,369,021     

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
General Government 731,703        -                   -                   115,800        -                   847,503        
Public Safety 935,581        -                   993,451        -                   -                   1,929,032     
Highways and Streets -                   321,665        -                   -                   -                   321,665        
Culture and Recreation 92,783          -                   -                   -                   -                   92,783          

Capital Outlay -                   -                   438,057        -                   -                   438,057        

Total Expenditures 1,760,067     321,665        1,431,508     115,800        -                   3,629,040     

Excess of Revenues Over, 
(Under) Expenditures 224,376        (16,941)        (453,862)      (13,592)        -                   (260,019)      

Other Financing Sources, (Uses)
Proceeds from Sale of Property -                   -                   -                   366,016        -                   366,016        
Insurance Proceeds 166,341        -                   -                   -                   -                   166,341        
Transfers In 2,000            -                   400,000        -                   5,808            407,808        
Transfers Out (415,000)      (2,000)          -                   (6,369)          -                   (423,369)      

Total Other Financing
Sources, (Uses) (246,659)      (2,000)          400,000        359,647        5,808            516,796        

Net Change in Fund Balance (22,283)        (18,941)        (53,862)        346,055        5,808            256,777        

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year 169,321        118,808        (79,153)        204,870        132,299        546,145        

Fund Balance - End of Year $ 147,038        $ 99,867          $ (133,015)      $ 550,925        $ 138,107        $ 802,922        

EMERGENCY INDUSTRIAL
PARK
FUND

-18-



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

RECONCILIATION OF STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - TO

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Net Change in Fund Balance $ 256,777       

(274,460)      

Capital Asset Additions, Net of Disposals 408,353  
Depreciation Expense (167,204) 

Net Adjustment 241,149       

Historical cost of Assets Held for Sale sold in the current period (142,819)      

Compensated Absences 23,223         

Property Taxes (32,649)   
Notes, Assessments and Other Receivables 12,572    

Net Adjustment (20,077)        

Change in Net Position $ 83,793         

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial resources
are not reported as revenues in the funds.

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement
of Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which depreciation exceeded
capital outlays in the current period.

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting used in the governmental funds,
expenditures are not recognized for transactions that are not normally paid with
expendable available financial resources. In the Statement of Activities, however,
which is presented on the accrual basis of accounting, expenses and liabilities are
reported regardless of when financial resources are available. This adjustment
combines the net changes in liability balances.

Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance 
and the government-wide Statement of Activities is as follows:

Expenses include the changes in net pension liability and other post-employment
benefits liability from year to year due to changes in total liability and the fair value of
pension plan net position that is available to pay pension benefits.

-19-



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
 PROPRIETARY FUNDS

June 30, 2019

WATER WASTEWATER
FUND FUND FUND TOTAL

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS:
Cash and Investments $ 133,587         $ 89,433           $ 7,665               $ 230,685         
Accounts Receivable, Net 134,166         69,134           2,660               205,960         
Interfund Loans Receivable 4,500             4,500             -                      9,000             
Due from Other Funds -                    211,569         -                      211,569         
Capital Assets:

Land 6,300             -                    14,000             20,300           
Other Capital Assets, Net 5,314,297      797,621         115,519           6,227,437      

Total  Assets 5,592,850      1,172,257      139,844           6,904,951      

Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Pension Related Deferrals 117,540         128,327         -                      245,867         
Other Post-employment Benefits 51                  55                  -                      106                

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 117,591         128,382         -                      245,973         

Total  Assets and Deferred Outflows $ 5,710,441      $ 1,300,639      $ 139,844           $ 7,150,924      

LIABILITIES. DEFERRED INFLOWS AND NET ASSETS:

Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable $ 19,752           $ 52,396           $ -                      $ 72,148           
Retainage Payable 92,475           -                    -                      92,475           
Payroll Liabilities 6,222             6,492             -                      12,714           
Unearned Revenue -                    11,958           -                      11,958           
Compensated Absences 19,929           6,752             -                      26,681           
Accrued Interest 39,590           -                    -                      39,590           
Customer Deposits 65,475           -                    -                      65,475           
Bonds Payable, due within one year 107,481         7,500             -                      114,981         

Total  Current Liabilities 350,924         85,098           -                      436,022         

Long Term Liabilities:

Bonds Payable, due in more than one year 2,309,189      177,500         -                      2,486,689      
Loan Payable 2,550,852      -                    -                      2,550,852      
Net Pension Liability 246,494         269,114         -                      515,608         
Other Post-employment Benefits Liability 7,253             7,919             -                      15,172           

Total  Liabilities 5,464,712      539,631         -                      6,004,343      

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Pension Related Deferrals 14,805           16,164           -                      30,969           
Other Post-employment Benefits 5,355             5,847             -                      11,202           

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 20,160           22,011           -                      42,171           
.

Net Position:

Net Investment in Capital Assets 260,600         612,621         129,519           1,002,740      
Unrestricted (35,031)         126,376         10,325             101,670         

Total Net Position 225,569         738,997         139,844           1,104,410      

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows
and Net Position $ 5,710,441      $ 1,300,639      $ 139,844           $ 7,150,924      

NON-MAJOR
STORM WATER

-20-



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

NON-MAJOR
WATER WASTEWATER STORM WATER
FUND FUND FUND TOTAL

OPERATING REVENUES

Charges for Services $ 936,208         $ 672,671         $ 26,834           $ 1,635,713 
Other Revenues 7,896             13,412           -                     21,308      

     Total Revenues 944,104         686,083         26,834           1,657,021 

OPERATING EXPENSES

Personnel Services 172,990         297,948         -                     470,938    
Materials and Services 486,853         486,368         32,527           1,005,748 

Total Operating Expenses 659,843         784,316         32,527           1,476,686 

Income, (Loss) From Operations 284,261         (98,233)         (5,693)            180,335    

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Interest Expense (61,243)         (10,792)         -                     (72,035)     
Depreciation (99,700)         (28,399)         (7,189)            (135,288)   

Total Nonoperating Expenses (160,943)       (39,191)         (7,189)            (207,323)   

Income, (Loss) Before Transfers 123,318         (137,424)       (12,882)          (26,988)     

Transfers In -                    -                    21,369           21,369      
Transfers Out (5,808)           -                    -                     (5,808)       

Total Transfers (5,808)           -                    21,369           15,561      

Change in Net Position 117,510         (137,424)       8,487             (11,427)     

Beginning Net Position 108,059         876,421         131,357         1,115,837 

Ending Net Position $ 225,569         $ 738,997         $ 139,844         $ 1,104,410 

-21-



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

NON-MAJOR
WATER WASTEWATER STORM WATER
FUND FUND FUND TOTAL

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash Received from Customers $ 938,443        $ 679,168        $ 26,687          $ 1,644,298     
Cash Payments to Suppliers (615,772)       (438,680)       (11,465)         (1,065,917)    
Cash Payments to Employees & Related Payroll Costs (232,037)       (269,307)       -                    (501,344)       

Net Cash From Operations 90,634          (28,819)         15,222          77,037          

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Payment of Principal of Bonds, Contracts Payable (105,371)       (7,500)           -                    (112,871)       
Capital Asset Additions (960,809)       (95,562)         (71,430)         (1,127,801)    
Interest Paid (35,249)         (10,794)         -                    (46,043)         
Issuance of debt 1,233,323     -                    -                    1,233,323     
Interfund Transfer to Reserve Fund (5,808)           -                    -                    (5,808)           

Net Cash From Capital and Related
 Financing Activities 126,086        (113,856)       (71,430)         (59,200)         

Cash Flows From Non-Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Payments on Loan to Emergency Services Fund 4,500            4,500            -                    9,000            
Short-term Loan to General Fund (cash deficit) -                    (67,349)         -                    (67,349)         
Short-term Loan to EMS Fund (cash deficit) -                    (144,220)       -                    (144,220)       
Repayment of Short-term Loan (cash deficit) (87,633)         87,633          -                    -                    

Net Cash From Non-Capital and Related
 Financing Activities (83,133)         (119,436)       -                    (202,569)       

Net Increase (Decrease) In Cash and Investments 133,587        (262,111)       (56,208)         (184,732)       

Cash and Investments at Beginning of Year -                    351,544        63,873          415,417        

Cash and Investments at End of Year $ 133,587        $ 89,433          $ 7,665            $ 230,685        

Reconciliation of Cash Flows From Operating 
Activities to Operating Income

Operating Income $ 284,261        $ (98,233)         $ (5,693)           $ 180,335        
Adjustments

Interfund Transfers In - Expense Reimbursement -                    -                    21,369          21,369          
(Increase), Decrease in Accounts Receivable (7,004)           (8,642)           (147)              (15,793)         
Increase, (Decrease) in Accounts Payable (128,919)       47,688          (307)              (81,538)         
Increase, (Decrease) in Payroll Liabilities (5,274)           (2,407)           -                    (7,681)           
Increase, (Decrease) in Unearned Revenues -                    1,727            -                    1,727            
Increase, (Decrease) in Pension Related Activities (50,495)         27,588          -                    (22,907)         
Increase, (Decrease) in OPEB Related Activities (3,795)           2,822            -                    (973)              
Increase, (Decrease) in Compensated Absences 517               638               -                    1,155            
Increase, (Decrease) in Customer Deposits 1,343            -                    -                    1,343            

Net Cash From Operations $ 90,634          $ (28,819)         $ 15,222          $ 77,037          

-22-



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

- 23 - 

 
1.   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
THE FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY 
 
The City of Oakridge is a municipal corporation governed by a mayor and an elected council who comprise the City 
Council. The daily functioning is under the supervision of the City Administrator.  As required by Generally 
Accepted Accounting Principles, all activities of the City have been included in these basic financial statements.   
 
The basic financial statements include all financial activities, organizations, and functions for which the City Council 
has financial accountability as defined by GASB Statement No. 61.  The financial reporting entity consists of (a) the 
primary government (City), (b) organizations for which the City is financially accountable, and (c) governmental 
organizations for which the City is not financially accountable, but for which the nature and significance of their 
financial relationship with the City are such that exclusion would cause the basic financial statements to be 
misleading or incomplete.  Component units are legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the 
City are financially accountable.  In addition, component units can be governmental organizations for which the City 
is not financially accountable, but for which the nature and significance of their financial relationship with the City 
are such that exclusion would cause the City’s basic financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.  No 
organizational units meet the criteria for inclusion as a component unit. 
 
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
The basic financial statements are presented at both the government-wide and fund financial level.  Both levels of 
statements categorize primary activities as either governmental or business-type.  Governmental activities, which are 
normally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, 
which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. 
 
Government-wide financial statements display information about the City as a whole.  Interfund activity has been 
eliminated from funds that are consolidated for reporting in the statements. These statements focus on the 
sustainability of the City and the change in aggregate financial position resulting from the activities of the fiscal 
period.  These aggregated statements consist of the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities.  
  
The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment is 
offset by program revenues.  Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or 
segment.  Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit 
from goods, services or privileges provided by a given function or segment, and 2) grants and contributions that are 
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment.  Taxes and other 
items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 

 
Fund financial statements display information at the individual fund level.  Each fund is considered to be a separate 
accounting entity.  Funds are classified and summarized as governmental or proprietary.  Major individual 
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial 
statements.  Non-major funds are consolidated into a single column within each fund type in the financial section of 
the basic financial statements and are detailed in the supplementary information. 

 
 



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

- 24 - 

 
1.   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
BASIS OF PRESENTATION 
  
The financial transactions are recorded in individual funds.  Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of 
self-balancing accounts that comprises its assets, liabilities, fund balances, revenues and expenditures/expenses.   
 
There are stated minimum criteria (percentage of the assets, liabilities, revenues or expenditures/expenses of either 
fund category or the governmental and enterprise combined) for the determination of major funds.  Management can 
designate a fund as major even if it does not meet these criteria.  Non-major funds are combined in one column in the 
fund financial statements and detailed in the supplementary section. 
 
These are the major governmental funds: 
 

General Fund – This fund accounts for all financial resources and expenditures, except those required to be 
accounted for in another fund.  The principal revenue sources are property taxes, franchise fees, fines and 
forfeitures, planning fees, charges for services and interest on investments. 
 
Street Fund – This fund accounts for the maintenance, construction or reconstruction of streets and 
sidewalks.  These costs are paid primarily from moneys received pursuant to the State of Oregon Gas Tax 
Apportionment, from Lane County road funds. 
 
Emergency Services Fund – This fund is a combination of the ambulance and fire departments.  Costs are 
paid primarily from ambulance user charges and a transfer from the general fund. 
 
Industrial Park Fund – This fund accounts for activities of the Oakridge Industrial Park.  Costs are paid 
primarily from rental revenues and proceeds from the sale of properties. 

 
These are the major proprietary funds: 

 
Water Fund - This fund accounts for the revenues and expenses of the water utility.  The primary revenue 
source is fees for services. 
 
Wastewater Fund - This fund accounts for the revenues and expenses of the sewer utility.  The primary 
revenue source is fees for services. 

 
MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 
 
Measurement focus is a term used to describe which transactions are recorded within the various financial 
statements.  Basis of accounting refers to when transactions are recorded regardless of the measurement focus. 
 
Government-wide Financial Statements and Proprietary Funds Financial Statements are presented on a full accrual 
basis of accounting with an economic resource measurement focus.  An economic resource focus concentrates on 
equity or a fund’s net position.  All transactions and events that affect the total economic resources (net position) 
during the period are reported.  An economic resources measurement is inextricably connected with full accrual 
accounting. Under the full accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded 
at the time liabilities are incurred regardless of the timing of related cash inflows and outflows. 
 
  



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

- 25 - 

 
1.   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED) 
 
Governmental Funds Financial Statements are presented on a modified accrual basis of accounting with a current 
financial resource measurement focus.  This focus concentrates on the fund’s resources available for spending 
currently or in the near future.  Only transactions and events affecting the fund’s current financial resources during 
the period are reported.  Similar to the connection between an economic resource measurement focus and full accrual 
accounting, a current financial resource measurement focus is inseparable from a modified accrual basis of 
accounting.  Under modified accrual accounting, revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and 
available.  Revenues are considered to be available when they are collected within the current period or soon enough 
thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.  For this purpose, revenues are considered to be available if they are 
collected within two months of the end of the current fiscal period.  Expenditures generally are recorded when a 
liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.  Property taxes, franchise fees, licenses and permits, and interest 
associated with the current financial period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been 
recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period if received within two months of year end.  All other revenues are 
considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received. 
 
An unavailable revenue liability arises in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet when potential revenue does not 
meet both the measurable and available criteria for recognition in the current period.  This unavailable revenue 
consists primarily of uncollected property taxes, assessments, and other receivables not deemed available to finance 
operations of the current period.  In the government-wide Statement of Activities, with a full accrual basis of 
accounting, revenue is recognized as soon as it is earned regardless of its availability.  Thus, the liability created on 
the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet for unavailable revenue is eliminated.   
 
Unearned revenues arise outside the scope of measurement focus and basis of accounting, such as when resources are 
received before there is legal claim to them.  For instance, when grant moneys are received prior to the incurrence of 
qualifying expenditures. 
 
Similar to the way its revenues are recorded, governmental funds only record those expenditures that affect current 
financial resources.  Principal and interest on general long-term debt are recorded as fund liabilities only when due.  
Vested compensated absences and pension costs are recorded as expenditures only to the extent that they are 
expected to be liquidated with expendable financial resources.  In the government-wide financial statements, 
however, with a full accrual basis of accounting, all expenditures affecting the economic resource status of the City 
are recognized.  Thus, the expense and related accrued liability for long-term portions of debt and compensated 
absences must be included. 
 

Since the governmental fund statements are presented on a different measurement focus and basis of accounting than 
the government-wide statements, reconciliation is provided to explain the differences between the fund based 
financial statements and the governmental column of the government-wide presentation.  This reconciliation is part 
of the financial statements. 
 
Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or 
privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions.  Internally 
dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues.  Likewise, general revenues 
include all taxes. 
 
 
  



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

- 26 - 

 
1.   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED) 
 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.  Operating revenues and 
expenses generally result from providing services, and producing and delivering goods in connection with a 
proprietary fund’s principle ongoing operations.  The principle operating revenues of the Water and Wastewater 
Funds are charges to customers for sales and services.  Operating expenses for enterprises funds include the cost of 
sales and services, administrative expenses and overhead, and depreciation on capital assets.  All revenues and 
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 
 
The City first applies restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and 
unrestricted net position are available. 
 
DEFFERED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
 
In addition to assets, the financial statements include a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This 
separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that 
applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. 
At June 30, 2019, there were deferred outflows representing pension-related and other post-employment benefits 
deferrals reported on the statement of net position.  

 
In addition to liabilities, the financial statements include a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This 
separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that 
applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The City 
has four types of items which qualify for reporting in this category. At June 30, 2019, unavailable revenue from 
property taxes, loan repayments, assessments, and other receivables is reported on the governmental funds balance 
sheet. Deferred inflows representing pension-related and other post-employment benefit deferrals are reported in the 
statement of net position. 
 
BUDGETS 
 
A budget is prepared for all funds in accordance with a modified accrual basis of accounting and legal requirements 
set forth in the Oregon Local Budget Law.  For governmental fund types, the budgetary basis of accounting is the 
same as generally accepted accounting principles, except for the differences noted under the measurement focus and 
basis of accounting footnote above.  The budget process begins early in each fiscal year with the establishment of the 
Budget Committee.  Recommendations are developed through late winter with the Budget Committee approving the 
budget in early spring.  Public notices of the budget hearing are published generally in early spring with a public 
hearing being held approximately three weeks later. City Council may amend the budget prior to adoption; however, 
budgeted expenditures for each fund may not be increased by more than ten percent without further public hearings.  
The budget is then adopted, appropriations are made, and the tax levy declared no later than June 30th. 

 
Expenditure budgets are allocated to, and appropriated by, program or organizational unit when possible.  
Expenditure budgets that are not allocated to a program or organizational unit are appropriated at the following levels 
of control: Debt Service, Contingency, and Transfers Out. 
 
 
 
  



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

- 27 - 

 
1.   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
BUDGETS (CONTINUED) 
 
The General Fund is appropriated at the department level along with transfers and contingencies. Expenditures 
cannot legally exceed the above appropriation levels except in the case of grants which could not be estimated at the 
time of budget adoption.  Appropriations lapse at the fiscal year-end. Management may amend line items in the 
budget without Council approval if appropriation levels (the legal level of control) are not changed. Supplemental 
appropriations may occur if the City Council approves them due to a need which exists which was not determined at 
the time the budget was adopted. 
 
Budget amounts shown in the basic financial statements reflect the original budget amount and appropriation 
transfers.  Expenses of the various funds were within authorized appropriations for the year ended June 30, 2019, 
with the exception of General Fund – Administration Program by $87,929; General Fund – Library Program by $89; 
General Fund – Willamette Activity Center Program by $2,060; General Fund – Municipal Court Program by 
$2,863; Emergency Services Fund – Emergency Medical Services by $34,598; Woodstove Replacement Fund – 
Woodstove Replacement Program by $839; and Storm Water Fund – Stormwater Utility Program by $22,957. 
 
ESTIMATES 
 
The preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts 
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the basic financial statements 
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from 
those estimates. 
 
ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY 
 
Deposits and investments 
Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term investments with 
original maturities of three months or less from the date of inception. 
 
Receivables and payables  
Activity between funds that represent short-term lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal 
year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds”.  All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as 
“interfund loans receivable/payable”. 
 
Recorded property taxes receivable that are collected within two months after year-end are considered measurable 
and available and, therefore, are recognized as revenue in the fund financial statements.  The remaining balance is 
recorded as unavailable revenue.  Property taxes are levied and become a lien on July 1.  Collection dates are 
November 15, February 15, and May 15 following the lien date.  Discounts are allowed if the amount due is received 
by November 15.  Taxes unpaid and outstanding on May 16 are considered delinquent. 
 
Uncollected property taxes are shown in the government-wide Statement of Net Position.  Uncollected taxes are 
deemed by management to be substantially collectible or recoverable through liens; therefore, no allowance for 
uncollectible taxes has been established. 
 
Receivables of the enterprise funds are recognized as revenue when earned, including services provided but not 
billed. Receivables in governmental and enterprise funds are stated net of any allowance for uncollectibles. 
  



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

- 28 - 

 
1.   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (CONTINUED) 
 
Supply Inventories and prepaid items  
Detailed supply inventory records are not maintained.  Supply inventories are considered to be immaterial by 
management at year end. 
 
Capital assets  
Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks, 
and similar items) are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-
wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 
(amount not rounded) and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or 
estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market 
value at the date of donation.  
 
Additions or improvements and other capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an asset, or that 
significantly increase the capacity of an asset are capitalized.  The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do 
not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized. 
 
Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.  
 
Property, plant, and equipment of the City is depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated 
useful lives: 
 
Buildings and improvements 20-30 years 
Infrastructure 33-50 years 
Furniture, equipment and vehicles 10 years 
 
Assets held for sale 
Various properties located in the Oakridge Industrial Park are currently held for sale/lease by the City. 
 
Grants 
Unreimbursed expenditures due from grantor agencies are reflected in the basic financial statements as receivables 
and revenues.  Grant revenues are recorded at the time eligible expenditures are incurred.  Cash received from 
grantor agencies in excess of related grant expenditures is recorded as a liability in the balance sheet and statement of 
net position. 
 
Compensated absences                                   
It is the policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick leave. All vacation leave is 
accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary financial statements. Sick leave may or may not be 
accrued based on whether there is a liability to pay such amounts upon termination. A liability for compensated 
absences is not reported in governmental funds in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
Statement No. 16 Accounting for Compensated Absences, except when matured. 

 
 

  



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

- 29 - 

 
1.   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (CONTINUED) 
 
Long-term obligations  
In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-term 
debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities or business-
type activities Statement of Net Position. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of 
the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or 
discount.  
 
In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts during the current 
period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances 
are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses.  
 
Retirement Plans 
Substantially all of the City's employees are participants in the State of Oregon Public Employees Retirement System 
(PERS).  For the purpose of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows 
of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about fiduciary net position of PERS and 
additions to/deductions from PERS’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are 
reported by PERS.  For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized 
when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.  Investments are reported at fair value. 
 
Net position 
Net position comprises the various net earnings from operations, non-operating revenues, expenses and contributions 
of capital.  Net position is classified in the following three categories. 
 

Net investment in capital assets – consists of all capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced 
by the outstanding balances of any bonds or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, 
construction, or improvement of those assets. 

 
Restricted – consists of external constraints placed on asset use by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws 
or regulations of other governments or constraints imposed by law through constitutional provisions or 
enabling legislation.  

 
Unrestricted – consists of all other assets that are not included in the other categories previously mentioned. 

 
 
  



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

- 30 - 

 
1.   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

 
ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (CONTINUED) 
 
Fund Balances 
GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund-type Definitions, is followed. The 
objective of this statement is to enhance the usefulness of fund balance information by providing clearer fund 
balance classifications that can be more consistently applied and by clarifying the existing governmental fund-type 
definitions. This statement establishes fund balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the 
extent to which a government is bound to observe constraints imposed on the use of the resources reported in 
governmental funds. Under this standard, the fund balance classifications are non-spendable, restricted, committed, 
assigned, and unassigned.  
 

• Non-spendable represents amounts that are not in a spendable form.  
• Restricted represents amounts that are legally restricted by outside parties for a specific purpose (such as 

debt covenants, grant requirements, donor requirements, or other governments) or are restricted by law 
(constitutionally or by enabling legislation).  

• Committed represents funds formally set aside by the governing body for a particular purpose. The use of 
committed funds would be approved by resolution.  

• Assigned represents amounts that are constrained by the expressed intent to use resources for specific 
purposes that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed.  Intent can be stipulated by 
the governing body or by an official to whom that authority has been given by the governing body.  The 
authority to classify portions of ending fund balances as assigned has been granted to the City Administrator.  

• Unassigned is the residual classification of the General Fund.  Only the General Fund may report a positive 
unassigned fund balance.  Other governmental funds would report any negative residual fund balance as 
Unassigned. 

The order of spending regarding fund balance categories is as follows: restricted resources are spent first when both 
restricted and unrestricted (committed, assigned or unassigned) resources are available for expenditures.  When 
unrestricted resources are spent, the order of spending is committed (if applicable), assigned (if applicable) and 
unassigned.   
 
There were no non-spendable or committed fund balances at June 30, 2019.  
 
Fair Value Inputs and Methodologies and Hierarchy 
Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.  Observable inputs are developed based on market 
data obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity.  Unobservable inputs are developed based on the best 
information available about the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset.  The classification of 
securities within the fair value hierarchy is based upon the activity level in the market for the security type and the 
inputs used to determine their fair value, as follows: 
 
  



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

- 31 - 

 
1.   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
Fair Value Inputs and Methodologies and Hierarchy (Continued) 
 
Level 1 – unadjusted price quotations in active markets/exchanges for identical assets or liabilities that each Fund 
can access 
 
Level 2 – other observable inputs (including, but not limited to, quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in 
markets that are active, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, inputs 
other than quoted prices that are observable for the assets or liabilities (such as interest rates, yield curves, 
volatilities, loss severities, credit risks and default rates) or other market–corroborated inputs) 
 
Level 3 – unobservable inputs based on the best information available in the circumstances, to the extent observable 
inputs are not available (including each Fund’s own assumptions used in determining the fair value of investments) 
 
The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
(Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). Accordingly, the 
degree of judgment exercised in determining fair value is greatest for instruments categorized in Level 3. The inputs 
used to measure fair value may fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In such cases, for disclosure 
purposes, the fair value hierarchy classification is determined based on the lowest level input that is significant to the 
fair value measurement in its entirety. 
 
2.   CASH AND INVESTMENTS 
 
A cash pool is maintained that is available for use by all funds.  Cash and cash equivalents consisted of: 
 

  

Deposits with Financial Institutions:
Demand Deposits and Cash on Hand $ 736,211         
Local Government Investment Pool 310,950         

Total Cash and Investments $ 1,047,161       

Reconciliation of Cash Reported In:
Governmental $ 816,476         
Business Type 230,685         

Total Cash and Investments $ 1,047,161       

Restricted and Unrestricted Cash:
Restricted Cash $ 799,052         
Unrestricted Cash 248,109         

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1,047,161       

*Cash restricted for Street Fund, Debt Service Fund, and 
  Oakridge Industrial Park Fund.



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

- 32 - 

 
2.   CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
Deposits  
Deposits with financial institutions include bank demand deposits.  The total bank balance per the bank statements as 
of June 30, 2019 was $893,896, of which $250,000 was covered by federal depository insurance and the remainder 
was collateralized by the Oregon Public Funds Collateralization Program (PFCP).  Oregon Revised Statutes require 
deposits to be adequately covered by federal depository insurance or deposited at an approved depository as 
identified by the Treasury.  
 
Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits 
In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the deposits may not be recovered.  There is 
no deposit policy for custodial credit risk. As of June 30, 2019, all deposits are insured or at qualified institutions. 
 
Investments 
Policy is to follow state statutes governing cash management.  Statutes authorize investing in banker’s acceptances, 
time certificates of deposit, repurchase agreements, obligations of the United States and its agencies and 
instrumentalities, and the Oregon State Treasurer's Local Government Investment Pool.   
 
Investments in the Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) are included in the Oregon Short-Term Fund, which is 
an external investment pool that is not a 2a-7-like external investment pool, and is not registered with the U.S. 
Securities and Exchange Commission as an investment company. Fair value of the LGIP is calculated at the same 
value as the number of pool shares owned.  The unit of account is each share held, and the value of the position 
would be the fair value of the pool’s share price multiplied by the number of shares held.  Investments in the Short-
Term Fund are governed by ORS 294.135, Oregon Investment Council, and portfolio guidelines issued by the 
Oregon Short-Term Fund Board, which establish diversification percentages and specify the types and maturities of 
investments. The portfolio guidelines permit securities lending transactions as well as investments in repurchase 
agreements and reverse repurchase agreements.  The fund’s compliance with all portfolio guidelines can be found in 
their annual report when issued.  The LGIP seeks to exchange shares at $1.00 per share; an investment in the LGIP is 
neither insured nor guaranteed by the FDIC or any other government agency. Although the LGIP seeks to maintain 
the value of share investments at $1.00 per share, it is possible to lose money by investing in the pool.  We intend to 
measure these investments at book value since it approximates fair value. The pool is comprised of a variety of 
investments.  These investments are characterized as a level 2 fair value measurement in the Oregon Short Term 
Fund’s audited financial report.  Amounts in the State Treasurer’s Local Government Investment Pool are not 
required to be collateralized. The audited financial reports of the Oregon Short Term Fund can be found here: 
 
http://www.oregon.gov/treasury/Divisions/Investment/Pages/Oregon-Short-Term-Fund-(OSTF).aspx  
If the link has expired please contact the Oregon Short Term Fund directly. 
 
As of June 30, 2019, there were the following investments and maturities: 
 

  

Investment Maturities (in months)
Investment Type Fair Value Less than 3 3-17 18-59

State Treasurer's Investment Pool 310,950$    310,950$    -$           -$           

Total 310,950$    310,950$    -$           -$           



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

- 33 - 

 
2.   CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
Interest Rate Risk 
Oregon Revised Statutes require investments to not exceed a maturity of 18 months, except when the local 
government has adopted a written investment policy that was submitted to and reviewed by the OSTFB.  There are 
no investments that have a maturity date beyond three months. 
 
Custodial Credit Risk 
Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of a failure of the counterparty to a transaction, the 
value of the deposit will not be recovered.  There is no formal investment policy for custodial credit risk.  All of the 
investments are with the LGIP.  Oregon Revised Statutes do not limit investments as to credit rating for securities 
purchased from US Government Agencies or USGSE.   
 
Concentration of Credit Risk 
Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss due to a large portion of investments with a single issuer.  To avoid 
incurring unreasonable risks inherent to over-investing in specific instruments or in individual financial institutions, 
the investment policy sets maximum limits on the percentage of the portfolio that can be invested in any one type of 
security.  State statutes do not limit the percentage of investments in the LGIP.  As of June 30, 2018, 100% of the 
investments were in the LGIP. 
 
3.  ACCRUED COMPENSATED ABSENCES 
 
The compensated absences balances at June 30, 2019 were as follows:  
 

Compensated 
Absences 

Beginning 
Balance   Additions   Deletions   

Ending 
Balance 

Governmental 
 

$    117,247    
 

$    35,401   
 

$   (58,624)  
 

$     94,024  
Business Type      25,526        13,918      (12,763)       26,681  

  $   142,773                $   120,705  
                        

 
All are considered by management to be current liabilities. 
 
4.  NOTES RECEIVABLE 
 
In June 2016, the City entered into an agreement for a $50,000 loan as partial consideration for the purchase of 
property.  The note bears interest at 4.25% per annum and is to be paid at $929.21 per month for 60 months 
beginning July, 2016.  The balance due at June 30, 2019, is $20,518. 
 
  



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

- 34 - 

 
4.  NOTES RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED) 
 
At June 30, 2019, expected future payments on notes receivable consisted of: 

 
5.  CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
Capital asset activity for governmental activities for the year ended June 30, 2019 was as follows: 
 

  

Year Ending

2020 10,316
2021 10,202

Total notes receivable $ 20,518

Non-Depreciable Capital Assets
Land and Land Improvements $ 850,560          $ -              $ -              $ 850,560          
Construction in Progress 63,334            -              -              63,334            
    Total Non-Depreciable 913,894          -              -              913,894          

Depreciable Capital Assets
Buildings and Improvements 2,073,064        -              (21,010)        2,052,054       
Vehicles and Equipment 1,462,406        408,354       -              1,870,760       
Infrastructure 726,101,849    -              -              726,101,849    
    Total Depreciable 729,637,319    408,354       (21,010)        730,024,663    

Accumulated Depreciation
Buildings and Improvements 917,559          38,107         (21,010)        934,656          
Vehicles and Equipment 1,193,523        60,078         -              1,253,601       
Infrastructure 725,556,225    69,019         -              725,625,244    
    Total Accumulated Depreciation 727,667,307    167,204       (21,010)        727,813,501    

      Net Depreciable Capital Assets 1,970,012        2,211,162       

Total Governmental Activities $ 2,883,906        $ 3,125,056       

GOVERNMENTAL CAPITAL ASSETS

July 1, 2018 Additions Deletions June 30, 2019



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

- 35 - 

 
5.  CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED) 
 
Depreciation Expense for governmental activities is charged to functions as follows: 
 

 
Capital asset activity for business-type activities for the year ended June 30, 2019 was as follows: 

 
  

General Government 42,605$     
Public Safety 103,650     
Highways and Streets 16,520      
Culture and Recreation 4,429        

 Total 167,204$   

Non-Depreciable Capital Assets
Land and Improvements $ 20,300      $ -              $ -                $ 20,300      
Construction in Progress 1,845,816  961,079   (2,806,895) -           
     Total Non-Depreciable 1,866,116  961,079   (2,806,895) 20,300      

Depreciable Capital Assets
Buildings and Improvements 1,748,975  60,561     -                1,809,536 
Furniture, Equipment and Vehicles 645,393     35,000     -                680,393    
Infrastructure 3,556,500  71,161     2,806,895  6,434,556 
      Total Depreciable 5,950,868  166,722   2,806,895  8,924,485 

Accumulated Depreciation
Buildings and Improvements 816,667     35,129     -                851,796    
Furniture, Equipment and Vehicles 599,231     8,505       -                607,736    
Infrastructure 1,145,862  91,654     -                1,237,516 
      Total Accumulated Depreciation 2,561,760  135,288   -                2,697,048 

       Net Depreciable Capital Assets 3,389,108  6,227,437 

Total Business-Type Activities $ 5,255,224  $ 6,247,737 

June 30, 2019

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES CAPITAL ASSETS

June 30, 2018 Additions Transfers



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

- 36 - 

 
5.  CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED) 
 
Depreciation Expense for business-type activities is charged as follows: 
 

 
6.  ASSESSMENTS RECEIVABLE 
 
Assessments receivable represents the uncollected amounts levied against benefited properties for the costs of local 
improvements.  Since the assessments are liens against the properties, an allowance for uncollectible amounts is not 
deemed necessary.  Assessments are payable over a period of ten years and bear interest at 7% to 10.64%.  At June 
30, 2019, the assessments receivable totaled $54,101. 
 
7.  LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS 
 
In the following section, long-term debt information is presented separately with respect to governmental and 
business-type activities.  The table below presents current year changes in those obligations, and the current portions 
due for each issue.   

 
Governmental Activities 
 
Oregon DEQ Note Payable – Based on an intergovernmental agreement entered in to with the Oregon Department 
of Environmental Quality on June 5, 1995, the City is obligated to repay the Oregon DEQ $180,000 for funds 
borrowed to help plan and develop the Bald Knob Mill site.  This loan is non-interest bearing. The balance of 
$20,000 will be paid in the upcoming fiscal year. 
  

Water $ 99,700          
Wastewater 28,399          
Storm Water 7,189            
Total $ 135,288        

Outstanding Matured Outstanding
Interest July 1, And June 30, Due Within

Issue Rates 2018 Issued Redeemed 2019 One Year

Governmental
Notes from direct borrowings and direct placements:

Oregon DEQ Note Payable 0.00% 20,000$      -$              -$              20,000$        20,000$      
Capital Lease - Motorola 3.89% 89,463       -                -                89,463          28,578       

Total Governmental 109,463$    -$              -$              109,463$      48,578$      

Business-Type
Notes from direct borrowings and direct placements:

OECDD Water Loan 1.00% 2,329,541$ -$              97,871$      2,231,670$    99,981$      
IFA Safe Drinking Water Loan 1.00% 552,529      1,233,323   -                1,785,852     -                
IFA Safe Drinking Water Forgivable Loan 1.00% 765,000      -                -                765,000        -                
2009A Series LOCAP Bonds 1.25-6.00% 385,000      -                15,000       370,000        15,000       

Total Business-Type 4,032,070$ 1,233,323$ 112,871$    5,152,522$    114,981$    



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

- 37 - 

 
7.  LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 
 
Business-Type Activities 
 
OECDD Loan – Proceeds from this loan were used to improve the water systems and the quality of the drinking 
water in the City.  The total amount of the original loan was $3,406,383, but the City was granted $250,000 in loan 
forgiveness.  The loan repayment term is 30 years with an interest rate of 1.00%.  Future annual requirements are as 
follows: 

 
Under the terms of the OECDD loan and related Promissory Notes, the City pledges its full faith and credit and 
taxing power within the Oregon Constitution to pay amounts due. Amounts due OECDD are payable from all legally 
available funds of the City including the net revenues of the water system. Events of default include 1) failing to 
make loan payments when due, 2) failing to make required payments on any other loan made by the State of Oregon 
or any other Financing Document if the default is not cured within the grace period, 3) proceedings or petitions filed 
by or against the City under bankruptcy or insolvency laws and similar actions such as appointment of a receiver, and 
4) failure of the City’s governing body to appropriate sufficient funds to fully fund all of its obligations to make loan 
repayments.  In the event of default the OECDD may 1) declare the Note due and any other amounts due and payable 
immediately, 2) foreclose liens or security interests, 3) bar the City from future awards, or 4) the State of Oregon 
may withhold amounts otherwise due the City and apply them to payments due under these loans. The City is 
required to maintain a debt service ratio in the Water Fund on an annual basis based on the ratio of net operating 
revenue to debt service requirements on the IFA loans, debt senior to the IFA loans and certain other types of debt 
obligations. 
 
  

Principal Interest Total
2020 99,980$       22,317$      122,297$      
2021 100,980       21,317        122,297        
2022 101,990       20,307        122,297        
2023 103,010       19,287        122,297        
2024 104,040       18,257        122,297        

2025-29 536,015       75,471        611,486        
2030-34 563,358       48,128        611,486        
2035-39 592,094       19,391        611,485        

2040 30,203         302            30,505          
Total 2,231,670$   244,777$    2,476,447$    



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

- 38 - 

 
7.  LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 
 
Business-Type Activities (continued) 
 
2009A Series LOCAP Bonds – On June 18, 2009 the City entered into a purchase contract to participate in the 
League of Oregon Cities Cooperative Asset Financing Program Certificates of Participation, Series 2009A.  This 
issue calls for annual repayments which include interest at 1.25 to 6%.  Future annual debt service requirements to 
maturity for this bond issue are as follows: 
 

 
 
Under the terms of the Contract and related Financing Agreement events of default include 1) failing to make loan 
payments when due and 2) proceedings or petitions filed by or against the City under bankruptcy or insolvency laws 
and similar actions such as appointment of a receiver. In the event of default the Trustee  may 1) without terminating 
the Agreement declare payable all installment payments past due or due until the end of the City’s current budget 
year, and 2) terminate the Agreement or accelerate all outstanding payments  due  requiring the City to defease the 
Agreement in its entirety. 
 
IFA Safe Drinking Water Loan – In December 2015 the City entered in to a financing contract (the Contract) with 
the Infrastructure Financing Authority.  Proceeds from this loan are being used for the 2017 Water Improvement 
Project, a project that is expected to be completed in the upcoming fiscal year.  The total amount of the original loan 
was $2,653,000 evidenced by two Promissory Notes (the Notes). Upon completion of the project and satisfaction of 
certain other conditions $765,000 of the loan under the Forgivable Promissory Note will be forgiven. Management 
believes these conditions are or will be fulfilled and forgiveness is fully expected to occur. The City has requested an 
extension of the loan beyond the original completion date of December, 2018, to complete the project and process 
the final loan draws under the original Contract. In addition, subsequent to June 30, 2019 the City has requested an 
additional $340,000 in loan proceeds from IFA to fund payments agreed to under mediation with contractors on the 
project primarily related to contractor claims of extra costs incurred by the contractors based on conditions occurring 
during construction. (Refer to Note 15 to these financial statements).   
 
The loan repayment term is 30 years with an interest rate of 1.00%.  Repayment of principal on the loan is expected 
to begin in December, 2021 based on the extension of the loan and final draws under the original Contract. A 
repayment schedule will be provided by the lender upon completion of the final draw. 
 
Under the terms of the Contract with IFA and related Promissory Notes the City pledges its full faith and credit and 
taxing power within the Oregon Constitution to pay amounts due. Amounts due IFA are payable from all legally 
available funds of the City including the net revenues of the water system. The City is required to maintain a debt 
service ratio in the Water Fund on an annual basis based on the ratio of net operating revenue to debt service 
requirements on the IFA loans, debt senior to the IFA loans and certain other types of debt obligations.  
 
  

Principal Interest Total
2020 15,000$      21,243$      36,243$      
2021 15,000        20,530        35,530        
2022 20,000        19,780        39,780        
2023 20,000        18,660        38,660        
2024 20,000        17,540        37,540        

2025-29 120,000      69,240        189,240      
2030-34 160,000      29,700        189,700      

  Total 370,000$    196,693$    566,693$    



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

- 39 - 

 
7.  LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 
 
Business-Type Activities (continued) 
 
Events of default include 1) failing to make loan payments when due, failing to make required payments on any other 
loan made by the State of Oregon or on any other Financing Document if the default is not cured within the grace 
period 2) Proceedings or petitions filed by or against the City under bankruptcy or insolvency laws and similar 
actions such as appointment of a receiver. In the event of default the IFA may terminate its obligation to make 
further payments under the Contract, declare the Note due and any other amounts due and payable immediately, 
foreclose liens or security interests or bar the City from future awards. 
 
Other than the pending increase in the IFA loan commitment the City has no lines of credit or loan or financing 
commitments from other parties as of June 30, 2019. 
 
8.  DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN 
 

PLAN DESCRIPTION 
 

The Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) consists of a single cost-sharing multiple-employer 
defined benefit plan.  All benefits of the system are established by the legislature pursuant to Oregon Revised 
Statute (ORS) Chapters 238 and 238A.  Oregon PERS produces an independently audited Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Report which can be found at:   
 
http://www.oregon.gov/pers/Pages/Financials/Actuarial-Financial-Information.aspx 
 
If the link is expired please contact Oregon PERS for this information. 
 

a. PERS Pension (Chapter 238).  The ORS Chapter 238 Defined Benefit Plan is closed to new members hired 
on or after August 29, 2003. 
 
i. Pension Benefits.  The PERS retirement allowance is payable monthly for life.  It may be selected from 

13 retirement benefit options.  These options include survivorship benefits and lump-sum refunds.  
The basic benefit is based on years of service and final average salary.  A percentage (2.0 percent for 
police and fire employees, and 1.67 percent for general service employees) is multiplied by the 
number of years of service and the final average salary.  Benefits may also be calculated under either 
a formula plus annuity (for members who were contributing before August 21, 1981) or a money 
match computation if a greater benefits results. 

 
ii. Death Benefits.  Upon the death of a non-retired member, the beneficiary receives a lump-sum refund of 

the member’s account balance (accumulated contributions and interest).  In addition, the beneficiary 
will receive a lump-sum payment from employer funds equal to the account balance, provided on or 
more of the following contributions are met: 

 
 member was employed by PERS employer at the time of death, 
 member died within 120 days after termination of PERS covered employment, 
 member died as a result of injury sustained while employed in a PERS-covered job, or 
 member was on an official leave of absence from a PERS-covered job at the time of death. 

 
  



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

- 40 - 

 
8.  DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 
 
PLAN DESCRIPTION (CONTINUED) 
 

iii. Disability Benefits.  A member with 10 or more years of creditable service who becomes disabled from 
other than duty-connected causes may receive a non-duty disability benefit.  A disability resulting 
from a job-incurred injury or illness qualifies a member (including PERS judge members) for 
disability benefits regardless of the length of PERS-covered service.  Upon qualifying for either a 
non-duty or duty disability, service time is computed to age 58 (55 for police and fire members) 
when determining the monthly benefit. 
 

iv. Benefit Changes After Retirement.  Members may choose to continue participation in a variable 
equities investment account after retiring and may experience annual benefit fluctuations due to 
changes in the market value equity investments.  Under ORS 238.360 monthly benefits are adjusted 
annually through cost-of-living changes.  The cap on the COLA will vary based on the amount of the 
annual benefit. 
 

b. OPSRP Pension Program (OPSRP DB).  The ORS Chapter 238A Defined Benefit Pension Program 
provides benefits to members hired on or after August 29, 2003. 

     
i. Pension Benefits.  This portion of OPSRP provides a life pension funded by employer contributions.  

Benefits are calculated with the following formula for members who attain normal retirement age: 
 

    Police and fire: 1.8 percent is multiplied by the number of years of service and the final average 
salary.  Normal retirement age for police and fire members is age 60 or age 53 with 25 years of 
retirement credit.  To be classified as a police and fire member, the individual must have been 
employed continuously as a police and fire member for at least five years immediately preceding 
retirement.   

 
    General service:  1.5 percent is multiplied by the number of years of service and the final average 

salary.  Normal retirement age for general service members is age 65, or age 58 with 30 years of 
retirement credit. 

 
    A member of the pension program becomes vested on the earliest of the following dates:  the date 

the member completes 600 hours of service in each of five calendar years, the date the member 
reaches normal retirement age, and, if the pension program is terminated, the date on which 
termination becomes effective. 

 
ii. Death Benefits.  Upon the death of a non-retired member, the spouse or other person who is 

constitutionally required to be treated in the same manner as the spouse, receives for life 50 
percent of the pension that would otherwise have been paid to the deceased member. 
 

iii. Disability Benefits.  A member who has accrued 10 or more years of retirement credits before the 
member becomes disabled or a member who becomes disabled due to job-related injury shall receive 
a disability benefit of 45 percent of the member’s salary determined as of the last full month of 
employment before the disability occurred. 

  



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

- 41 - 

 
8.  DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 
 

PLAN DESCRIPTION (CONTINUED) 
 

iv. Benefit Changes After Retirement.  Under ORS 238A.210 monthly benefits are adjusted annually 
through cost-of-living changes.  The cap on the COLA will vary based on the amount of the annual 
benefit. 

 
CONTRIBUTIONS 

 
PERS funding policy provides for monthly employer contributions at actuarially determined rates.  These 
contributions, expressed as a percentage of covered payroll, are intended to accumulate sufficient assets to pay 
benefits when due.  The funding policy applies to the PERS Defined Benefit Plan and the Other Postemployment 
Benefit Plans.  The state of Oregon and certain schools, community colleges, and political subdivision have 
made unfunded actuarial liability payments and their rates have been reduced.  Employer contribution rates 
during the period were based on the December 31, 2015 actuarial valuation, which became effective July 1, 
2017.   
 
PENSION LIABILITY 
 
At June 30, 2019, the City reported a net pension liability of $2,463,547 for its proportionate share of the net 
pension liability.  The pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2018, and the total pension liability used to 
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2016. The City’s 
proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the City’s long-term share of contributions to 
the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined.  At 
June 30, 2018, the City’s proportion was .016 percent. 

 
  

Difference between expected and actual experience $ 83,803           -$              
Changes in assumptions 572,770         -                
Net difference between projected and actual

earnings on pension plan investments -                    109,395         
Net changes in proportionate share and differences between 

City contributions and proportionate share of contributions 108,026         36,973           
Differences between employer contributions and 

proportionate share of contributions 80,264           1,599             
Subtotal - Amortized deferrals (below) 844,863         147,967         

City contributions subsequent to measurement date 329,874         -                    

Net deferred outflow (inflow) of resources $ 1,174,737      $ 147,967         

Deferred Outflow Deferred Inflow
of Resources of Resources



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

- 42 - 

 
8.   DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

 
FUNDING POLICY  

 
The deferred outflows of resources resulting from contributions made subsequent to the measurement date 
($329,874) will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ending June 30, 2019 
measurement date. Other amounts of pension-related deferred outflows and inflows of resources will be 
recognized in pension expense as follows: 

 
All assumptions, methods and plan provisions used in these calculations are described in the Oregon PERS 
system-wide GASB 68 reporting summary dated February 8, 2017. Oregon PERS produces an independently 
audited CAFR which can be found at:  http://www.oregon.gov/pers/EMP/Pages/GASB.aspx 
 
ACTUARIAL VALUATIONS 

 
The employer contribution rates effective July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2019 were set using the entry age 
normal actuarial cost method.  For the Tier One/Tier Two component of the PERS Defined Benefit Plan, this 
method produced an employer contribution rate consisting of (1) an amount for normal cost (estimated amount 
necessary to finance benefits earned by employees during the current service year), (2) an amount for the 
amortization unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities, which are being amortized over a fixed period with new 
unfunded actuarial liabilities being amortized over 20 years.   

 
For the OPSRP Pension Program component of the PERS Defined Benefit Plan, this method produced an 
employer rate consisting of (a) an amount for normal cost (the estimated amount necessary to finance benefits 
earned by the employees during the current service year), (b) an actuarially determined amount for funding a 
disability benefit component, and (c) an amount for the amortization of unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities, 
which are being amortized over a fixed period with new unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities being amortized 
over 16 years.  
 

  

Year ending June 30, Amount
2019 $ 354,343         
2020 258,150         
2021 7,763             
2022 57,044           
2023 19,596           

Thereafter -                    
Total $ 696,896         



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

- 43 - 

 
8.   DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

 
ACTUARIAL VALUATIONS (CONTINUED) 
 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: 
 

 
Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of value of reported amounts and assumptions about 
the probability of events far into the future.  Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as 
actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.  Experience studies 
are performed as of December 31 of even numbered years.  The method and assumptions shown are based on the 
2016 Experience Study which is reviewed for the four-year period ending December 31, 2016. 
 
Discount Rate – The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.20 percent for the Defined 
Benefit Pension Plan, a reduction from the prior measurement date discount rate of 7.50 percent.  The projection 
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from the plan members and those of 
the contributing employers are made at the contractually required rates, as actuarially determined.  Based on 
those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected 
future benefit payments of current plan members.  Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension 
plan investments for the Defined Benefit Pension Plan was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to 
determine the total pension liability.   
 

  

Valuation Date
Measurement Date
Experience Study Report
Actuarial Cost Method
Actuarial Assumptions:

Inflation Rate
Long-Term Expected Rate  7.20 percent
Discount Rate
Projected Salary Increases
Cost of Living Adjustment  

Mortality

Active Members: RP-2014 Employees, sex-distinct, generational per Unisex, Social Security Data Scale,
with collar adjustments and set-backs as described in the valuation.  

Blend of 2.00% COLA and grade COLA (1.25%/0.15%) in accordance with Moro decision, blend
based on service
Healthy retirees and beneficiaries: RP-2014 healthy annuitant, sex-distinct, generational per Unisex,
Social Security Data Scale, with collar adjustments and set-backs as described in the valuation.   

7.50 percent

Disabled retirees: RP-2014 Disabled Retirees, sex-distinct, generational per Unisex, Social Security Data
Scale, with collar adjustments and set-backs as described in the valuation.  

December 31, 2016
June 30, 2018
2016, published July, 2017
Entry Age Normal

3.50 percent overall payroll growth

2.50 percent



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

- 44 - 

 
8.   DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

 
ACTUARIAL VALUATIONS (CONTINUED)  
 
Assumed Asset Allocation: 

 

 
Source: June 30, 2018 PERS CAFR; p. 98 

 
Long-Term Expected Rate of Return: 

 
To develop an analytical basis for the selection of the long-term expected rate of return assumption, in June 2017 
the PERS Board reviewed long-term assumptions developed by both Milliman’s capital market assumptions 
team and the Oregon Investment Council’s (OIC) investment advisors. The table below shows Milliman’s 
assumptions for each of the asset classes in which the plan was invested at that time based on the OIC long-term 
target asset allocation. The OIC’s description of each asset class was used to map the target allocation to the 
asset classes shown below. Each asset class assumption is based on a consistent set of underlying assumptions 
and includes adjustment for the inflation assumption. These assumptions are not based on historical returns, but 
instead are based on a forward-looking capital market economic model. 

 
  

Asset Class/Strategy Low Range High Range
Cash 0.0% 3.0%
Debt Securities 15.0% 25.0%
Public Equity 32.5% 42.5%
Private Equity 9.5% 15.5%
Real Estate 13.5% 21.5%
Alternative Equity 0.0% 12.5%
Opportunity Portfolio 0.0% 3.0%
Total

20.0%
12.5%
10.0%
0.0%

100.0%

OIC Target
0.0%
20.0%
37.5%



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

- 45 - 

 
8.   DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

 
ACTUARIAL VALUATIONS (CONTINUED)  
 
Long-Term Expected Rate of Return (continued): 

 

 
Source: June 30, 2018 PERS CAFR; p. 72 

 
Sensitivity of the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate – The 
following presents the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 
7.20 percent, as well as what the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-perentage-point higher than the current rate. 

 
 

    1% Decrease     
Current 

Discount Rate   1% Increase 
     (6.20%)     (7.20%)   (8.20%) 
 City's proportionate share of             
 the net pension liability  $      4,117,055    $      2,463,548    $         1,098,714  

  

Compound Annual
Target (Geometric)

Asset Class Allocation* Return
Core Fixed Income 8.00 % 3.49 %
Short-Term Bonds 8.00 3.38
Bank/Leveraged Loans 3.00 5.09
High Yield Bonds 1.00 6.45
Large/Mid Cap US Equities 15.75 6.30
Small Cap US Equities 1.31 6.69
Micro Cap US Equities 1.31 6.80
Developed Foreign Equities 13.13 6.71
Emerging Market Equities 4.13 7.45
Non-US Small Cap Equities 1.88 7.01
Private Equity 17.50 7.82
Real Estate (Property) 10.00 5.51
Real Estate (REITS) 2.50 6.37
Hedge Fund of Funds - Diversi 2.50 4.09
Hedge Fund - Event-driven 0.63 5.86
Timber 1.88 5.62
Farmland 1.88 6.15
Infrastructure 3.75 6.60
Commodities 1.88 3.84
Assumed Inflation - Mean 2.50 %



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

- 46 - 

 
8.   DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

 
Changes Subsequent to the Measurement Date: 

 
As described above, GASB 67 and GASB 68 require the Total Pension Liability to be determined based on the 
benefit terms in effect at the Measurement Date. Any changes to benefit terms that occurs after that date are 
reflected in amounts reported for the subsequent Measurement Date. However, Paragraph 80f of GASB 68 
requires employers to briefly describe any changes between the Measurement Date and the employer’s 
reporting date that are expected to have a significant effect on the employer’s share of the collective Net 
Pension Liability, along with an estimate of the resulting change, if available.  
 
INDIVIDUAL ACCOUNT PROGRAM 
 
In the 2003 legislative session, the Oregon Legislative Assembly created a successor plan for OPERS.  The 
Oregon Public Service Retirement Plan (OPSRP) is effective for all new employees hired on or after August 29, 
2003, and applies to any inactive OPERS members who return to employment following a six month or greater 
break in service.  The new plan consists of the defined benefit pension plans and a defined contribution pension 
plan (the Individual Account Program or IAP).  Beginning January 1, 2004, all OPERS member contributions 
go into the IAP portion of OPSRP.    OPERS’ members retain their existing OPERS accounts, but any future 
member contributions are deposited into the member’s IAP, not the member’s OPERS account.  Those 
employees who had established an OPERS membership prior to the creation of OPSRP will be members of both 
the OPERS and OPSRP system as long as they remain in covered employment. Members of OPERS and 
OPSRP are required to contribute six percent of their salary covered under the plan which is invested in the 
IAP. 

 
Additional disclosures related to Oregon PERS not applicable to specific employers are available online at the 
below website, or by contacting PERS at the following address: PO BOX 23700 Tigard, OR 97281-3700. 
 
http://www.oregon.gov/pers/EMP/Pages/GASB.aspx 

 
9.   POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) GASB 75 
 

PLAN DESCRIPTION 
 

The City operates a single-employer retiree benefit plan that provides postemployment health, dental and vision 
insurance benefits to eligible employees and their spouses.  There are active and retired members in the plan. All 
classes of employee are eligible to continue coverage upon retirement. Qualified spouses, domestic partners, and 
children may qualify for coverage. Coverage for retirees and eligible dependents continues until Medicare 
eligibility for each individual (or until dependent children become ineligible).  
 
Benefits and eligibility for members are established through the collective bargaining agreements.  The post-
retirement healthcare plan is established in accordance with Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) 243.303.  ORS 
stipulated that for the purpose of establishing healthcare premiums, the rate must be based on all plan members, 
including both active employees and retirees.  The difference between retiree claims cost, which because of the 
effect of age is generally higher in comparison to all plan members, and the amount of retiree healthcare 
premiums represents the City’s implicit employer contribution. The City did not establish an irrevocable trust (or 
equivalent arrangement) to account for the plan. 

  



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

- 47 - 

 
9.   POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) GASB 75 (CONTINUED) 
 
 FUNDING POLICY 

 
The benefits from this program are paid by the City on a self-pay basis and the required contribution is based on 
projected pay-as-you go financing requirements. There is not obligation on the part of the City to fund these 
benefits in advance.  
 
ACTUARIAL METHODS AND ASSUMPTIONS 
 
The City engaged an actuary to perform an evaluation as of July 1, 2018 using entry age normal, level percent of 
salary Actuarial Cost Method. The Single Employer Pension Plan liability was determined using the following 
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods including the measurement:  
 

 
 

 
 
 
Mortality rates were based on rates adopted by the Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) for its 
December 31, 2016 actuarial valuation of retirement benefits. 
 

 

Discount Rate per year 3.50%
General Inflation Rate per year 2.50%
Salary Scale per year 3.50%

Health Care Cost Trend Medical and vision:
Year Pre-65 Trend
2018 7.00%
2019 7.00%
2020 5.50%

2021-2025 5.00%
2026-2029 4.75%
2030-2033 5.00%

2034 5.25%
2035 5.75%

2036-2038 6.00%
2039-2045 5.75%
2046-2050 5.50%
2051-2061 5.25%
2062-2065 5.00%

2066+ 4.70%

Dental: 4.50% per year

Health care cost trend affects both the 
projected health care costs as well as the 
projected health care premiums.



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

- 48 - 

 
9.   POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) GASB 75 (CONTINUED) 

 
ACTUARIAL METHODS AND ASSUMPTIONS (CONTINUED) 
 
Turnover rates were based on percentages developed for the valuation of benefits under Oregon PERS and vary 
by years of service.  
 
Disability rates were not used. 
 
Retirement rates were based on Oregon PERS assumptions.  Annual rates are based on age, Tier / OPSRP, and 
duration of service. 
 
The projection of benefits for financial reporting purpose does not explicitly incorporate the potential effects of 
legal or contractual funding limitations.  

 
Changes in Medical Benefit OPEB Liability: 

 

 
Sensitivity of the Net Other Post-Employment Benefit Liability to Changes in Discount and Trend Rates:  
 
The following presents the net other post-employment benefit liability (NOL), calculated using the discount rate 
of 3.50 percent, as well as what the liability would be if it was calculated using a discount rate 1-percentage-
point lower (2.50 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (4.50 percent) than the current rate.  A similar sensitivity 
analysis is then presented for changes in the healthcare cost trend assumption. 

 

 
 
  

Changes in Total OPEB Liability
June 30, 2018 to June 30, 2019
Balance as of June 30, 2018 $ 108,969
Changes for the year:

Service cost 14,003
Interest on total OPEB liability 4,366
Effect of changes to benefit terms 0
Effect of economic/demographic gains or losses (44,007)
Effect of assumption changes or inputs (8,801)
Benefit payments (2,037)

Balance as of June 30, 2019 $ 72,493

Increase (Decrease)
Total OPEB Liability

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate

Total OPEB Liability 78,996$           72,493$           

Current
1% Decrease Trend Rate

Total OPEB Liability 63,552$           72,493$           

1% Increase
66,537$                

1% Increase
93,220$                



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

- 49 - 

 
9.   POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) GASB 75 (CONTINUED) 
 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows or inflow of resources related to pension will be recognized in pension 
expense as follows: 

 
Other amounts currently reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
other postemployment benefits will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 

 
10.   INTERFUND TRANSFERS AND BALANCES 

 
 Transfers were made during the year to fund operations and reserves.  Transfers are comprised as follows: 

 
 

  

Deferred Outflow Deferred Inflow
of Resources of Resources

Difference between expected and actual experience (39,325)$        -$                  
Changes in assumptions or inputs (14,197)          -                    
Benefit payments -                    507               
Total as of June 30, 2019 (53,522)$        507$              

Year ending June 30, Amount
2019 $ (6,410)           
2020 (6,410)           
2021 (6,410)           
2022 (6,410)           
2023 (6,410)           

Thereafter (21,472)          
Total $ (53,522)          

Due From Due To 
Transfers Out Transfers In Other Funds Other Funds

General Fund 424,000$   2,000$       -$              76,349$     
Street Fund 2,000         -                -                -                
Emergency Services Fund -                400,000     -                144,220     
Oakridge Industrial Park Fund 6,369         -                -                -                
Water Fund 5,808         4,500         4,500         -                
Water Capital Reserve Fund -                5,808         -                -                
Wastewater Fund -                4,500         216,069     -                
Storm Water Fund -                21,369       -                -                

438,177$   438,177$   220,569$   220,569$   



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

- 50 - 

 
10.   INTERFUND TRANSFERS AND BALANCES (CONTINUED) 

 
Interfund loans as of June 30, 2019, include a $9,000 balance due from General Fund to the Water ($4,500) and 
Wastewater ($4,500) Funds for purchase of a Police vehicle.  The loan is to be repaid over four (4) years at 0% 
interest with the final payment to be made in the next fiscal year. 

 
Cash deficits in the General Fund ($67,349) and EMS Fund ($144,220) are reported as due from Wastewater 
Fund in the fund financial statements and the government-wide financial statements. 

 
11.  PROPERTY TAX LIMITATIONS 

 
The State of Oregon has a constitutional limit on property taxes for schools and non-school government 
operations.  The limitation provides that property taxes for non-school operations are limited to $10.00 for each 
$1,000 of property market value.  This limitation does not apply to taxes levied for principal and interest on 
general obligation bonded debt. An additional limit reduces the amount of operating property tax revenues 
available.  This reduction was accomplished by rolling property values for 1997-98 back to their 1995-96 values 
less 10% and limiting future tax value growth of each property to no more than 3% per year, subject to certain 
exceptions.  Taxes levied to support bonded debt are exempted from the reductions.  The Constitution also sets 
restrictive voter approval requirements for most tax and many fee increases and new bond issues.  

 
12.  RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

There is exposure to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; and 
omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.  Commercial insurance is purchased to minimize its 
exposure to these risks.  Settled claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage for the past three years. 

 
13.  COMMITMENTS & CONTINGENCIES 
 

Substantially all amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by 
grantor agencies, principally the federal government.  Any disallowed claims, including amounts already 
collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds.  The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be 
disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time, although the management expects such amounts, if 
any, to be immaterial. 
 
As of June 30, 2019, the City was engaged in mediation proceedings with contractors on the City’s 2017 Water 
Improvement Project. Please refer to Note 15 of these financial statements. 
 

14.  DEFICIT FUND BALANCES, NET POSITION 
 

At June 30, 2019, the following fund had a negative fund balance and/or unrestricted net position: 
 
Emergency Services Fund – Fund Balance                ($    133,015)     
Water Fund – Unrestricted Net Position                    ($      35,031) 
Governmental Activities – Unrestricted Net Position  ($ 1,160,472) 

 
The deficit fund balance for the Emergency Services Fund reflects ongoing issues in which the costs of 
providing services significantly exceeds related revenues.  The deficit shown is also net of support provided 
through the General Fund in addition to the ESF’s own resources. Management and the City Council continue 
to discuss options for addressing these issues.  

  



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

- 51 - 

 
14.  DEFICIT FUND BALANCES, NET POSITION (CONTINUED) 

 
As of June 30, 2019 the Water Fund had a deficit unrestricted net position of ($35,031). The prior year deficits 
were primarily due to a difference in timing of expenditures on Water Improvement Project and receipt of loan 
funds for those projects which was resolved in FY 2019. The remaining deficit will be resolved by receipt of the 
final loan disbursements in FY 20. In addition, subsequent to June 30, 2019 the City Council adopted a water 
utility fee rate increase which will, among other objectives, also address this deficit. Please refer to Note 7. 
 
The deficit unrestricted net position for Governmental Activities is primarily the result of net pension liability, 
net of related deferred inflows and outflows. 

 
15.  SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 

As a result of events involving the City’s 2017 Water Improvement Project the City entered into mediation with 
the primary contractor and a subcontractor on the Project primarily over claims of additional costs incurred by 
those parties from delays and other issues. Subsequent to June 30, 2019 and as a result of mediation the City 
Council approved payments of $250,000 and $140,000 to these parties, respectively. Payment of these amounts 
is pending. The City has requested in increase loan funding from the IFA under the existing loan agreement for 
these payments and IFA has agreed to this request. 
 
On November 7, 2019, the City Council approved an $8.54 increase in the monthly base rate for water services 
to be effective December 1, 2019. This increase was to ensure compliance with the debt service requirements 
of the  IFA loan agreements and Promissory Note for the 2017 Water Improvement Program and to support 
public safety functions in the General and EFS funds.   

 
16.  NEW PRONOUNCEMENTS 
 

GASB Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, Including Direct Borrowings and Direct 
Placements, became effective for fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2018.  Refer to Note 7 for additional 
information on the City’s implementation of this statement. 
 
 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
 LANE COUNTY, OREGON 
 
 
 REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 

  



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
ACTUAL AND BUDGET - BUDGETARY BASIS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

GENERAL FUND
VARIANCE
TO FINAL
BUDGET

ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

REVENUES:
Property Taxes $ 971,000         $ 1,055,241      $ 1,081,212      $ 25,971              
Franchise and License Fees 257,000         267,000         272,488         5,488                
Charges for Internal Services 586,000         586,000         586,000         -                        
Licenses, Permits, Miscellaneous Taxes 185,000         286,759         282,878         (3,881)               
Intergovernmental Revenues 140,651         140,651         125,986         (14,665)             
Planning Fees 4,000             4,000             700                (3,300)               
Fines and Forfeitures 86,000           86,000           76,835           (9,165)               
Interest 5,700             5,700             12,326           6,626                
Grants and Donations 178,900         178,900         4,936             (173,964)           
Rentals and Leases 24,500           24,500           19,556           (4,944)               
Miscellaneous 32,700           32,700           28,206           (4,494)               

Total Revenue 2,471,451      2,667,451      2,491,123      (176,328)            
EXPENDITURES:

Administrative 856,788         906,788         (1) 994,717         (87,929)             
Building/Planning 48,000           190,000         (1) 119,144         70,856              
Police 1,001,902      1,001,902      (1) 935,581         66,321              
Library 28,525           32,525           (1) 32,614           (89)                    
Parks 192,360         192,360         (1) 30,059           162,301             
Willamette Activity Center (WAC) 28,050           28,050           (1) 30,110           (2,060)               
Municipal Court 73,725           73,725           (1) 76,588           (2,863)               
Not Allocated: -                     

Materials & Services 53,101           53,101           (1) 49,416           3,685                
Contingency 15,000           15,000           (1) -                     15,000              
 Total Expenditures 2,297,451      2,493,451      2,268,229      225,222             

Excess of Revenues Over, (Under) Expenditures 174,000         174,000         222,894         48,894              
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES, (USES):

Insurance Proceeds -                     -                     166,341         (166,341)           
Transfers In 10,000           10,000           -                     10,000              
Transfers Out (409,000)        (409,000)        (1) (409,000)        -                        

Total Other Financing Sources, (Uses) (399,000)        (399,000)        (242,659)        (156,341)           

Net Change in Fund Balance (225,000)        (225,000)        (19,765)          205,235             
Beginning Fund Balance 225,000         225,000         149,414         (75,586)             
Ending Fund Balance $ -                     $ -                     129,649         $ 129,649             

Reconciliation to Governmental Fund Balance as required by GASB 54 - Ending Fund Balance:
Interfund Loan from Water/Sewer (9,000)            
Woodstove Replacement Fund 22,313           
Bicycle / Pedestrian Path Fund 4,076             
Fund Balance as required by GASB 54 $ 147,038         

(1)  Appropriation Level

-52-



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
ACTUAL AND BUDGET- BUDGETARY BASIS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

STREET FUND
VARIANCE
TO FINAL
BUDGET

ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

REVENUES:

Gas Taxes $ 180,000         $ 180,000         $ 239,237         $ 59,237               
Franchise Fees 5,000             5,000             -                     (5,000)                
Licenses, Permits, Miscellaneous Taxes 65,000           65,000           54,000           (11,000)              
Intergovernmental Revenues 66,000           66,000           3,905             (62,095)              
Assesments 16,782           16,782           4,232             (12,550)              
Interest -                     -                     1,839             1,839                 
Miscellaneous 2,500             2,500             1,511             (989)                   

Total Revenues 335,282         335,282         304,724         (30,558)              

EXPENDITURES:

Street Program 398,782         398,782         (1) 321,665         77,117               
Not Allocated:

Contingency 7,500             7,500             (1) -                     7,500                 
 

      Total Expenditures 406,282         406,282         321,665         (84,617)              

Excess of Revenues Over, (Under)
Expenditures (71,000)          (71,000)          (16,941)          54,059               

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES, (USES):
Transfer Out (2,000)            (2,000)            (1) (2,000)            -                         

Total Other Financing Sources, (Uses) (2,000)            (2,000)            (2,000)            -                         

Net Change in Fund Balance (73,000)          (73,000)          (18,941)          54,059               

Beginning Fund Balance 73,000           73,000           118,808         45,808               

Ending Fund Balance $ -                     $ -                     $ 99,867           $ 99,867               

(1)  Appropriation Level

-53-



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
ACTUAL AND BUDGET- BUDGETARY BASIS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

EMERGENCY SERVICES FUND
VARIANCE
TO FINAL
BUDGET

ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

REVENUES:

Charges for Services $ 510,589         $ 510,589         $ 454,351         $ (56,238)              
Intergovernmental Revenue 72,490           72,490           72,813           323                    
Grants and Donations 430,306         430,306         433,346         3,040                 
Interest 100                100                78                  (22)                     
Miscellaneous 8,000             8,000             17,058           9,058                 

Total Revenues 1,021,485      1,021,485      977,646         (43,839)              

EXPENDITURES:

Emergency Medical Services 1,396,910      1,396,910      (1) 1,431,508      (34,598)              

Total Expenditures 1,396,910      1,396,910      1,431,508      (34,598)              

Excess of Revenues Over, (Under) Expenditures (375,425)        (375,425)        (453,862)        (78,437)              

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES, (USES):
Transfers In 400,000         400,000         400,000         -                         

Total Other Financing Sources, (Uses) 400,000         400,000         400,000         -                         

Net Change in Fund Balance 24,575           24,575           (53,862)          (78,437)              

Beginning Fund Balance (24,575)          (24,575)          (79,153)          (54,578)              

Ending Fund Balance $ -                     $ -                     $ (133,015)        $ (133,015)            

(1)  Appropriation Level

-54-



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
ACTUAL AND BUDGET- BUDGETARY BASIS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

OAKRIDGE INDUSTRIAL PARK FUND
VARIANCE
TO FINAL
BUDGET

ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

REVENUES:

Loan Repayments $ 11,079           $ 11,079           $ 10,998           $ (81)                     
Rental Income 65,000           65,000           74,886           9,886                 
Miscellaneous 500                500                16,324           15,824               

Total Revenues 76,579           76,579           102,208         25,629               

EXPENDITURES:

Oakridge Industrial Park 164,500         164,500         (1) 115,800         48,700               
Not Allocated:

Debt Service 20,000           20,000           (1) -                     20,000               
Contingency 110,881         110,881         (1) -                     110,881             

Total Expenditures 295,381         295,381         115,800         179,581             

Excess of Revenues Over, (Under) (218,802)        (218,802)        (13,592)          205,210             
  Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES, (USES):
Proceeds From Sale of Property 20,000           20,000           366,016         346,016             
Transfers Out -                     -                     (1) (6,369)            (6,369)                

Total Other Financing Sources, (Uses) 20,000           20,000           359,647         339,647             

Net Change in Fund Balance (198,802)        (198,802)        346,055         544,857             

Beginning Fund Balance 198,802         198,802         204,870         6,068                 

Ending Fund Balance $ -                     $ -                     $ 550,925         $ 550,925             

(1)  Appropriation Level

-55-



(a) (b) (b/c) Plan fiduciary
Oakridge Oakridge NPL as a net position as

Year proportion of proportionate share (c) percentage of a percentage of
Ended  the net pension  of the net pension Covered of covered the total pension

June 30, liability (NPL) liability (NPL) payroll payroll liablity

2019 0.016% 2,463,547$            1,217,781$     202.3% 82.1%
2018 0.015% 2,023,247              1,179,331       171.6% 83.1%
2017 0.016% 2,335,232              1,131,680       206.4% 80.5%
2016 0.016% 910,219                 1,100,465       82.7% 91.9%
2015 0.020% (340,884)                784,684          -43.4% 103.6%
2014 0.020% 767,445                 725,066          105.8% 92.0%

(b) (b/c)
(a) Contributions in (a-b) (c) Contributions

Year Statutorily relation to the Contribution Oakridge as a percent
Ended required statutorily required deficiency covered of covered

June 30, contribution contribution (excess) payroll payroll

2019 124,349$        124,349$               -$                   1,292,592$     9.62%
2018 218,306          218,306                 -                     1,217,781       17.93%
2017 214,396          214,396                 -                     1,179,331       18.2%
2016 223,873          223,873                 -                     1,131,680       19.8%
2015 82,196            82,196                   -                     1,100,465       7.5%
2014 85,423            85,423                   -                     784,684          10.9%

SCHEDULE OF THE PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET OPEB BENEFIT LIABILITY

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

The amounts presented for each fiscal year were actuarial determined at December 31 and rolled forward to the 
measurement date.

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirements to show information for 10 years.  However, until a full 10-year 
trend has been compiled, information is presented only for the years for which the required supplementary information is 
available.

CITY OF OAKRIDGE
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - PERS
June 30, 2019

-56-



2018 2019

Total OPEB, Beginning 99,538$              108,969$            

Service Cost 14,929                14,003                
Interest on Total OPEB Liability 3,251                  4,366                  
Effect of Economic/Demographic Gains/Losses -                     (44,007)              
Effect of Assumptions Changes or Inputs (7,916)                (8,801)                
Benefits Payments (833)                   (2,037)                

Net Change in OPEB Liability 9,431                  (36,476)              

Total OPEB, Ending 108,969$            72,493$              

Covered-employee Payroll 1,217,781$         1,292,592$         

Total OPEB Liability as a percentage
    of Covered-employee Payroll 8.9% 5.6%

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirements to show information for 10 years.  However, until a full 10-
year trend has been compiled, information is presented only for the years for which the required supplementary 
information is available.

HEALTH INSURANCE IMPLICIT RATE SUBSIDY

CITY OF OAKRIDGE
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - OPEB
June 30, 2019

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

-57-



 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
 LANE COUNTY, OREGON 
 
 
 SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 
  
  



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TOTAL

ASSETS:
Cash and Investments $ 17,424              $ -                       $ 17,424          
Restricted Cash and Investments -                       120,683            120,683        

Total Assets $ 17,424              120,683            $ 138,107        

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS, AND FUND BALANCES:

Fund Balances:
Restricted for:

Debt Service $ -                       $ 120,683            $ 120,683        
Assigned 17,424              -                       17,424          

Total Fund Balances 17,424              120,683            138,107        

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Fund Balances $ 17,424              $ 120,683            $ 138,107        

FUND

June 30, 2019

FUND

BOND
RESERVE

FUND

CAPITAL
PROJECTS

WATER
CAPITAL
RESERVE

DEBT
SERVICE

FUND

WATER

-58-



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

 

TOTAL

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES, (USES):
Transfers In $ 5,808                $ -                       $ 5,808              

Total Other Financing
  Sources, (Uses) 5,808                -                       5,808              

Net Change in Fund Balance 5,808                -                       5,808              

Beginning Fund Balance 11,616              120,683            132,299          

Ending Fund Balance $ 17,424              $ 120,683            $ 138,107          

DEBT
SERVICE

CAPITAL
PROJECTS

WATER
CAPITAL

FUND FUND

WATER
BOND

RESERVE
FUND

RESERVE
FUND

-59-



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
ACTUAL AND BUDGET- BUDGETARY BASIS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

WATER FUND RESERVE
VARIANCE
TO FINAL
BUDGET

ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES, (USES):
$ 5,808             $ 5,808             $ 5,808             $ -                         

Total Other Financing Sources, (Uses) 5,808             5,808             5,808             -                         

Net Change in Fund Balance 5,808             5,808             5,808             -                         

Beginning Fund Balance 11,616           11,616           11,616           -                         

Ending Fund Balance $ 17,424           $ 17,424           $ 17,424           $ -                         

(1)  Appropriation Level

Transfers In

-60-



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
ACTUAL AND BUDGET- BUDGETARY BASIS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

WATER BOND RESERVE FUND
VARIANCE
TO FINAL
BUDGET

ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

Net Change in Fund Balance $ -                     $ -                     $ -                     $ -                         

Beginning Fund Balance 120,683         120,683         120,683         -                         

Ending Fund Balance $ 120,683         $ 120,683         $ 120,683         $ -                         

(1)  Appropriation Level

-61-



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
ACTUAL AND BUDGET- BUDGETARY BASIS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

WOODSTOVE REPLACEMENT FUND
VARIANCE
TO FINAL
BUDGET

ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

REVENUES:

Grants and Donations $ 75,000           75,000           $ 75,000           $ -                         
Miscellaneous Income -                     -                     4,320             4,320                 

Total Revenues 75,000           75,000           79,320           4,320                 

EXPENDITURES
Woodstove Replacement Program 77,000           77,000           (1) 77,839           (839)                   
Not Allocated:

Contingency 8,831             8,831             -                     8,831                 

85,831           85,831           77,839           7,992                 

(10,831)          (10,831)          1,481             12,312               

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES, (USES):
(10,000)          (10,000)          (1) -                     10,000               

Total Other Financing Sources, (Uses) (10,000)          (10,000)          -                     10,000               

(20,831)          (20,831)          1,481             22,312               

Beginning Fund Balance 20,831           20,831           20,832           1                        

Ending Fund Balance $ -                     $ -                     $ 22,313           $ 22,313               

Note: This fund's activities have been combined with the General Fund activities in accordance with GASB 54 because there were
no substantial restricted or committed revenues.

(1)  Appropriation Level

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues, Over (Under) Expenditures

Transfers Out

Net Change in Fund Balance

-62-



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
ACTUAL AND BUDGET- BUDGETARY BASIS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

BICYCLE / PEDESTRIAN PATH FUND
VARIANCE
TO FINAL
BUDGET

ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

EXPENDITURES
Bicycle/Pedestrian Path Program $ 15,000           $ 15,000           (1) $ -                         $ 15,000               
Not Allocated:

Contingency 4,076             4,076             (1) -                         4,076                 

Total Expenditures 19,076           19,076           -                         19,076               

Excess of Revenues Over, (Under) (19,076)          (19,076)          -                         (19,076)              
     Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES, (USES):
Transfer In 2,000             2,000             2,000                 -                         
Transfer Out -                     (1) (15,000)              (15,000)              

Total Other Financing Sources, (Uses) 2,000             2,000             (13,000)              (15,000)              
  

Net Change in Fund Balance (17,076)          (17,076)          (13,000)              4,076                 

Beginning Fund Balance 17,076           17,076           17,076               -                         

Ending Fund Balance $ -                     $ -                     $ 4,076                 $ 4,076                 

Note: This fund's activities have been combined with the General Fund activities in accordance with GASB 54 because there were
no substantial restricted or committed revenues.

(1)  Appropriation Level

-63-



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
ACTUAL AND BUDGET - BUDGETARY BASIS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

WATER FUND
VARIANCE
TO FINAL
BUDGET

ORIGINAL FINAL  POSITIVE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

REVENUES:   

Charges for Services $ 930,359         $ 930,359         $ 936,208         $ 5,849                  
Miscellaneous 1,500             1,500             7,896             6,396                  

Total Revenues     931,859         931,859         944,104         12,245                

EXPENDITURES:

Water Utility 2,248,899      2,248,899      (1) 1,674,458      574,441              
Not Allocated:

Debt Service 142,445         142,445         (1) 140,589         1,856                  
Contingency 5,000             5,000             (1) -                     5,000                  

Total Expenditures 2,396,344      2,396,344      1,815,047      581,297              

Excess of Revenues Over, (Under) 
    Expenditures (1,464,485)     (1,464,485)     (870,943)        593,542              

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES, (USES):
Loan Proceeds 713,793         713,793         1,233,323      519,530              
Repayment of Interfund Loan 4,500             4,500             4,500             -                         
Capital Grants and Donations 765,000         765,000         -                     (765,000)            
Transfers Out (5,808)            (5,808)            (1) (5,808)            -                         

Total Other Financing Sources 1,477,485      1,477,485      1,232,015      (245,470)            

Net Change in Fund Balance 13,000           13,000           361,072         348,072              

Beginning Fund Balance (13,000)          (13,000)          (277,243)        (264,243)            

Ending Fund Balance $ -                     $ -                     83,829           $ 83,829                

Reconciliation to Net Position:
Capital Assets, net of depreciation 5,320,597      
Interfund Loan to PD 4,500             
Net Pension Liability (246,494)        
Pension Related Deferred Outflows 117,540         
Pension Related Deferred Inflows (14,805)          
Other Post-employment Benefits (OPEB) Liability (7,253)            
OPEB Related Deferred Outflows 51                  
OPEB Related Deferred Inflows (5,355)            
Accrued Interest (39,590)          
Long Term Debt (4,967,522)     
Compensated Absences (19,929)          

Total Net Position $ 225,569         

(1)  Appropriation Level

-64-



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
ACTUAL AND BUDGET - BUDGETARY BASIS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

WASTEWATER FUND
VARIANCE
TO FINAL
BUDGET

ORIGINAL FINAL  POSITIVE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

REVENUES:

Charges for Service $ 666,960         $ 666,960         $ 672,671         $ 5,711                  
Interest 250                250                -                     (250)                    
Miscellaneous 4,000             4,000             13,412           9,412                  

Total Revenues 671,210         671,210         686,083         14,873                

EXPENDITURES:

Wastewater Utility 872,840         907,840         (1) 848,831         59,009                
Not Allocated:

Debt Service 20,143           20,143           (1) 18,292           1,851                  
Contingency 267,198         232,198         (1) -                     232,198              

Total Expenditures 1,160,181      1,160,181      867,123         293,058              

Excess of Revenues Over, (Under) 
  Expenditures (488,971)        (488,971)        (181,040)        307,931              

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES, (USES):
Repayment of Interfund Loan 4,500             4,500             4,500             -                          

Total Other Financing Sources, (Uses) 4,500             4,500             4,500             -                          

Net Change in Fund Balance (484,471)        (484,471)        (176,540)        307,931              

Beginning Fund Balance 484,471         484,471         475,830         (8,641)                 

Ending Fund Balance $ -                     $ -                     299,290         $ 299,290              

Reconciliation to Net Position:
Capital Assets, net of depreciation 797,621         
Interfund Loan to PD 4,500             
Net Pension Liability (269,114)        
Pension Related Deferred Outflows 128,327         
Pension Related Deferred Inflows (16,164)          
Other Post-employment Benefits (OPEB) Liability (7,919)            
OPEB Related Deferred Outflows 55                  
OPEB Related Deferred Inflows (5,847)            
Long Term Debt (185,000)        
Compensated Absences (6,752)            

Total Net Position $ 738,997         

(1)  Appropriation Level

-65-



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
ACTUAL AND BUDGET - BUDGETARY BASIS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

STORM WATER FUND
VARIANCE
TO FINAL
BUDGET

ORIGINAL FINAL  POSITIVE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

REVENUES:

Charges for Services $ 26,650           $ 26,650           $ 26,834           $ 184                     
 

Total Revenues 26,650           26,650           26,834           184                     

EXPENDITURES:

Stormwater Utility 81,000           81,000           (1) 103,957         (22,957)               
Not Allocated:

Contingency 16,006           16,006           (1) -                     16,006                

Total Expenditures 97,006           97,006           103,957         (6,951)                 

Excess of Revenues Over, (Under) 
    Expenditures (70,356)          (70,356)          (77,123)          7,135                  

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES, (USES):
Transfers In -                     21,369           21,369                

Total Other Financing Sources -                     -                     21,369           21,369                

Net Change in Fund Balance (70,356)          (70,356)          (55,754)          28,504                

Beginning Fund Balance 70,356           70,356           66,079           (4,277)                 

Ending Fund Balance $ -                     $ -                     10,325           $ 24,227                

Reconciliation to Net Position:
Capital Assets, net of depreciation 129,519         

Total Net Position $ 139,844         

(1)  Appropriation Level

-66-



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF PROPERTY TAX TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
OF TAXES UNCOLLECTED

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

IMPOSED BALANCE
LEVY OR DISCOUNTS/
BALANCE ADJUSTMENTS

TAX UNCOLLECTED
YEAR

Current: 

2018-19 $ 1,056,457         $ 269                 $ 1,037,820         $ 18,906                  

Prior Years:
2017-18 17,825              (567)                8,572                8,686                    
2016-17 11,131              (473)                5,548                5,110                    
2015-16 8,078                (366)                5,209                2,503                    
2014-15 7,388                213                 6,669                932                       
2013-14 5,699                (227)                4,911                561                       
2012-13 & Prior 21,855              (567)                16,672              4,616                    

  Total Prior 71,976              (1,987)             47,581              22,408                  

Total All
  Funds $ 1,128,433         $ (1,718)             $ 1,085,401         $ 41,314                  

 
GENERAL

RECONCILIATION TO REVENUE: FUND

Cash Collections by County Treasurer Above $ 1,085,401             
Accrual of Receivables:

June 30, 2019 (2,949)                   
June 30, 2018 4,936                    
Other adjustments (6,176)                   

Total Revenue - General Fund $ 1,081,212             
 

AT  7/1/18
BY COUNTY
TREASURER

TO
ROLLS

COLLECTIONS
CASH UNCOLLECTED

OR
UNSEGREGATED

AT 6/30/19

-67-



 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
 LANE COUNTY, OREGON 
 
 
 GRANT COMPLIANCE REVIEW 
 
  
 



 
 

 

CFDA
FEDERAL AGENCY/PASS-THROUGH AGENCY NUMBER

UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

Passed through Oregon Infrastructure Authority:

Drinking Water State Revolving Funds Cluster:

Direct Loan Financing:
Capitalization Grants for Drinking Water State Revolving Funds 66.468 (1) $ 1,317,529 $ 1,233,323      $ 2,550,852 

Subtotal - Drinking Water State Revolving Funds Cluster 1,317,529 1,233,323      2,550,852 
 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY:

Assistance to Firefighters Grant 97.044 (1) 430,306         

Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency Response (SAFER) 97.083 6,840             

TOTAL FEDERAL EXPENDITURES $ 1,317,529 $ 1,670,469      $ 2,550,852 

(1) Indicates Major Program

CITY OF OAKRIDGE
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

BALANCE

ENDING
LOAN

BEGINNING
LOAN

BALANCE

CURRENT
YEAR

EXPENDITURES

-68-



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS  

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

 

-69- 
 

 
Significant Accounting Policies  
 
NOTE A – BASIS OF PRESENTATION  
 
The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal award activity of City of 
Oakridge (the City). The information in this schedule is prepared in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 
US Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the schedule presents only a selected portion of 
the operations of the City, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position or changes in net 
position of the City.  
 
NOTE B – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  
 
Expenditures on the Schedule are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded 
when measurable and available, or in the case of grants where the expenditure is the prime factor for determining 
eligibility, when the expenditure is made. Expenditures are recorded when a liability is incurred. Such 
expenditures are recognized using the Uniform Guidance wherein certain types of expenditures may or may not 
be allowable or may be limited as to reimbursement. The City has elected not to use the 10 percent de minimus 
indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance.  
 
NOTE C – OUTSTANDING BALANCES OF FEDERAL LOANS 
 
As of June 30, 2019, the outstanding balance on the Direct Loan Financing for the Capitalization Grant for 
Drinking Water State Revolving Funds was $2,550,852. The entire balance of the loan is reported on the SEFA as 
it is subject to continuing compliance requirements. 
 
 
  



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
 LANE COUNTY, OREGON 
 
 
 REPORTS ON LEGAL AND OTHER REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS 
 
 
 
 
 



 

-70- 
 

 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
REQUIRED BY OREGON STATE REGULATIONS 

 
 
City Council 
City of Oakridge 
Lane County, Oregon 
 
 
We have audited the basic financial statements of the City of Oakridge, Lane County, Oregon (the 
City) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019 and have issued our report thereon dated December 
15, 2019.  We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Governmental Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 
 
Compliance 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grants, including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified 
in Oregon Administrative Rules 162-10-000 through 162-10-320 of the Minimum Standards for 
Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the determination of financial statements amounts.  However, providing an 
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, 
we do not express such an opinion. 
 
We performed procedures to the extent we considered necessary to address the required comments 
and disclosures which included, but were not limited to the following: 
 
• Deposit of public funds with financial institutions (ORS Chapter 295). 
• Indebtedness limitations, restrictions and repayment. 
• Budgets legally required (ORS Chapter 294). 
• Insurance and fidelity bonds in force or required by law. 
• Programs funded from outside sources. 
• Authorized investment of surplus funds (ORS Chapter 294). 
• Public contracts and purchasing (ORS Chapters 279A, 279B, 279C). 
 
The City exceeded its legally budgeted appropriations as follows: 

• In the General Fund, the administrative function was overspent by $87,929, the Willamette 
Activity Center function was overspent by $2,060, the library function was overspent by 
$89 and the municipal court function was overspent by $2,863. 

• In the Emergency Services Fund, the appropriation for emergency services was overspent 
by $34,598.   

• In the Industrial Park Fund, the City made a transfer of $6,396 that was not appropriated.  



 

-71- 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
REQUIRED BY OREGON STATE REGULATIONS - CONTINUED 

 
• In the Woodstove Replacement Fund, the appropriation for the woodstove replacement 

program was overspent by $839. 
• In the Stormwater Fund, the appropriation for stormwater utility services was overspent by 

$22,957. 
• In the Bicycle/Pedestrian Path Fund, the City made a transfer of $15,000 that was not 

appropriated. 
 
The Emergency Service Fund’s June 30, 2019 ending fund balance was negative $133,015, an 
increase of $53,862 over the prior year’s negative ending fund balance of $79,153. 
 
The Wastewater Fund made operating loans to the General and EMS funds for a total advance 
of $211,569.  Local budget law requires inter-fund loans to be authorized by an official 
resolution or ordinance stating the fund to which the loan is made, the purpose of the loan, and 
principal amount of the loan.  We found no resolution for the two loans advanced from the 
Wastewater Fund. 

 
No other instances came to our attention that caused us to believe the City was not in substantial 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants, including the 
provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules 162-10-000 
through 162-10-320 of the Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations. 
 
OAR 162-10-0230 Internal Control 
In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal control over financial 
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion 
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the City’s internal control over financial reporting.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial reporting.   
 
We noted certain matters that we consider to be material weaknesses in internal control and have 
reported these findings in the accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control 
over Financial Reporting in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards.  Refer to Schedule 
of Findings and Questioned Costs Item 2019-002. 
 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the City Council, and 
the Oregon Secretary of State and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other 
than these specified parties. 
 
 

 
 
Brenda Bartlett, CPA 
SGA Certified Public Accountants and Consultants, LLP 
Bend, Oregon 
 
December 15, 2019 
  



 

-72- 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED 

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
 
To the City Council 
City of Oakridge, Oregon 
 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial 
statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Oakridge, State of Oregon (City), as of and 
for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon 
dated December 15, 2019. 
 
Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City’s 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s 
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s 
internal control. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding 
paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. However, as described in the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control 
that we consider to be material weaknesses and significant deficiencies. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. We consider the deficiency described as 2019-002 
in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs to be a material weakness. 
  



 

-73- 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS - CONTINUED 

 
 
A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that 
is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 
 
Compliance and Other Matters 
In connection with our engagement to audit the financial statements of the City, we performed tests 
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, 
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial 
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not 
an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our 
tests disclosed one instance of noncompliance that is required to be reported under Government 
Auditing Standards and which is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs as item 2019-001.  Additionally, if the scope of our work had been sufficient to 
enable us to express opinions on the basic financial statements, other instances of noncompliance 
or other matters may have been identified and reported herein. 
 
City’s Response to Findings 
The City’s response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs and corrective action plan. The City’s response was 
not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, 
Accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal 
control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 

 
 
SGA Certified Public Accountants and Consultants, LLP 
Bend, Oregon 
 
December 15, 2019 



 

-74- 
 

 

 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR 
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY 

THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 
 
 
To the City Council 
City of Oakridge, Oregon 
 
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 
We have audited the City of Oakridge, Oregon’s (City) compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct 
and material effect on each of the City’s major federal program for the year ended June 30, 2019. 
The City’s major federal program is identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of 
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 
 
Management’s Responsibility 
Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and 
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City’s major federal 
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We 
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and 
the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards 
(Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a 
major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
about the City’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as 
we considered necessary in the circumstances. 
 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each 
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City’s 
compliance. 
 
Opinion on Major Federal Program 
In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal 
program for the year ended June 30, 2019. 
  



 

-75- 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR 
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY 

THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE - CONTINUED 
 
Other Matters 
The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance which are required to 
be reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and which are described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2019-003 and 2019-004. Our 
opinion on each major federal program is not modified with respect to these matters. 
 
The City’s response to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit is described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs and corrective action plan. The City’s 
response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, 
accordingly, we express no opinion on the response. 
 
Report on Internal Control over Compliance 
Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control 
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and 
performing our audit of compliance, we considered the City’s internal control over compliance 
with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal 
program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and 
report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over 
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s 
internal control over compliance. 
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control 
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing 
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in 
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance 
with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected 
and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is 
a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type 
of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in 
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in 
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and 
therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. 
We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to 
be material weaknesses.  However, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 
2019-003 and 2019-004, that we consider to be significant deficiencies.   
 
  



 

-76- 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR 
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY 

THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE - CONTINUED 
 
The City’s response to the internal control over compliance findings identified in our audit is 
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs and corrective action 
plan.  The City’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of 
compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response. 
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope 
of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the 
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 

 

 
 
Brenda Bartlett, CPA 
SGA Certified Public Accountants and Consultants, LLP 
Bend, Oregon 
 
December 15, 2019 
 



 

-77- 
 

CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

 
 
Section I - Summary of Auditor’s Results 
 
Financial Statements 
 
Type of report the auditor issued on whether the financial  
statements audited were prepared in accordance  
with GAAP:          Unmodified 
 
Internal control over financial reporting: 
• Material weaknesses identified?    Yes 
• Significant deficiencies?     None reported 
 
Noncompliance material to the financial statements noted?  No 
 
Federal Awards 
 
Internal control over major federal programs: 
• Material weaknesses identified?    No 
• Significant deficiencies identified?    Yes 
 
Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major 
federal programs:       Unmodified 
 
Any audit findings that are required to be reported 
in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)?    Yes 
 
Identification of major federal programs: 
 
CFDA No(s).   Name of Federal Program or Cluster     
66.468    Capitalization Grants for Drinking Water State Revolving Funds 
97-044    Assistance to Firefighters 
 
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and 
Type B programs       $750,000 
 
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?    No 
  



 

-78- 
 

CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - CONTINUED 

 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

 
 
Section II – Financial Statement Findings 
 
Non-Compliance with Oregon Budget Law 
 
2019-001:  Oversight of overall actual spending to legally budgeted amounts and negative 
fund balances 
 
Criteria:  Procedures should be implemented to (1) ensure expenditures stay within legally 
budgeted amounts approved by the City Council and (2) address the ongoing negative fund balance 
in the Emergency Service Fund.   
 
Condition:  Several funds included legal appropriation categories which were overspent and the 
Emergency Service (EMS) Fund continues to report a negative fund balance, both circumstances 
which violate Oregon Local Budget Law.  We note in the EMS fund, during the current year, actual 
revenues were significantly less than budgeted and expenditures significantly exceeded the amount 
budgeted. 
 
Effect:  The City is in violation of local budget law and spending in excess of amounts approved 
by the City Council.   
 
Cause:  Management does not have a process in place to effectively monitor actual revenue and 
expenses against the budget. 
 
Recommendation:  Management should implement a process where each funds’ operating results 
versus budget are reviewed monthly and presented to City Council.  Anticipated over-expenditures 
should be avoided and the City should comply with the proper supplemental budget process when 
a potential overspending situation cannot be avoided.  Management and the Council should 
develop a plan to provide future sustainability for the EMS Fund.   
 
View of responsible officials and planned corrective actions:  The City agrees with this finding.  
Please refer to the corrective action plan on Pages 81-83. 
 
Material Weakness 
 
2019-002:  Oversight of Third-Party Emergency Service Billing Provider 
 
Criteria:  Management should implement procedures designed to ensure the completeness of 
receipts from the emergency service billing provider. 
  



 

-79- 
 

CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - CONTINUED 

 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

 
2019-002:  Oversight of Third-Party Emergency Service Billing Provider, continued 
 
Condition:  The City contracts with a third-party billing provider for billing and collecting funds 
related to ambulance and fire runs.  There are no processes in place to ensure the billing provider 
is (1) billing all runs reported by the City at the approved contracted rates, or (2) ensuring the City 
is receiving all of the revenue for ambulance and fire services to which it is entitled. 
 
Effect:  The City would not be aware if the third-party billing provider was not turning over the 
full amount due each month.  Contractual insurance adjustments and bad debt writeoffs could be 
inflated and retained by the billing provider and the City would not be aware of it. 
 
Cause:  Lack of procedure to reconcile internal run records with the amounts collected and turned 
over by the service provider. 
 
Recommendation:  The City should implement new internal control procedures designed to (1) 
reconcile internal run information with the number of incidents reported as billed by the provider, 
(2) reconcile amounts actually billed for each service to the amount required to be billed per the 
contract, (3) review adjustment and write off information and reconcile it to internally generated 
expectations (for example, the City may able to request copies of the insurance Explanation of 
Benefits from the service provider and use this report to reconcile the amounts reported by the 
provider each month, (4) review amounts turned over to collections for reasonableness, and (5) 
review the service provider billing for service charge against the number of services billed out.   
 
View of responsible officials and planned corrective actions:  The City agrees with this finding.  
Please refer to the corrective action plan on Pages 81-83. 
 
Section III – Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 
 
Department of Homeland Security 
 
2019-003:  Assistance to Firefighters Grant, CFDA #97.044, Grant Period September 1, 2017 
through July 30, 2019 
 
Significant deficiency in internal control over Federal Program matching requirement 
 
Condition:  The City has no internal controls in place to ensure that federal program matching 
requirements are complied with. 
 
Criteria:  City management should ensure internal controls over compliance with federal grant 
matching requirements are in place.   
  



 

-80- 
 

CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
LANE COUNTY, OREGON 

 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - CONTINUED 

 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

 
Section III – Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs - continued 
 
Effect:  Because the matching requirement was not effectively monitored, the City did not spend 
the full amount funds required under their federal program agreement. 
 
Cause:  Lack of internal control to monitor the grant’s matching requirement. 
 
Recommendation:  The City should implement central tracking of all federal grants, which would 
include analysis of all significant compliance requirements, and regular monitoring of related 
matching requirements when applicable. 
 
View of responsible officials and planned corrective actions:  The City agrees with this finding.  
Please refer to the corrective action plan on Pages 81-83. 
 
Department of Homeland Security 
 
2019-004:  Assistance to Firefighters Grant, CFDA #97.044, Grant Period September 1, 2017 
through July 30, 2019 
 
Significant deficiency in internal control over Procurement compliance requirement 
 
Condition:  The City did not maintain written procedures for procurement transactions for federal 
programs as required by the Uniform Guidance.     
 
Criteria:  The City must document their internal policy for federal procurement, including written 
standards of conduct covering conflicts of interest and governing the actions of its employees 
engaged in the selection, award and administration of contracts.   
 
Effect:  Because there were no written procedures for procurement, City staff have no formal 
policy guidance to ensure they are complying with federal procurement rules when making 
purchases with federal funding.   
 
Cause:  Lack of documentation of the City’s policies for federal procurement transactions. 
 
Recommendation:  The City should take steps to create written procurement policy that complies 
with the requirements set forth in the Uniform Guidance (CFR 200.318). 
 
View of responsible officials and planned corrective actions:  The City agrees with this finding.  
Please refer to the corrective action plan on Pages 81-83. 
 
Section IV – State Award Findings and Questioned Costs 
 
None reported. 



 

-81- 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Corrective Action Plan 
June 30, 2019 

 
Section II Financial Statement Findings 

 
 
Finding: 2019-001 Oversight of overall actual spending to legally budgeted amounts 

and negative fund balances. 
 
Name of contact person Bryan Cutchen City Administrator 
 

Corrective action: Beginning in December 2019, a monthly report 
of operating results vs. budget will be presented to City Council with 
areas of concern and proposed action annotated. These actions 
would include reduction of future expenditures for the remainder of 
the year or a supplemental budget where appropriate to increase 
appropriations.   
 
In addition, a more rigorous and transparent budgeting process will 
be put in place for FY 2021 to more accurately estimate budgeted 
amounts so that overages are not simply a matter of faulty budgeting 
and to give City Council a better understanding of the operating 
budget and ensure it meets Oregon budgeting laws, is balanced and 
is achievable. 
 
To address overspending will require increasing revenues and 
decreasing expenditures. The city has begun already by increasing 
water revenues and ensuring the city is operating as efficiently as 
possible through proper oversight and financial management. If 
more substantial measures are required they will be identified in the 
FY21 budget process. 

 
Proposed completion date June 1, 2020. 
 
Finding: 2019-001  EMS Operations and financial results 
 
Name of Contact Person Bryan Cutchen City Administrator 
 



 

-82- 
 

The administration and City Council are fully aware of the financial 
issues with EMS where the costs of service significantly exceed 
revenues and are exploring various options to resolve the issue in 
the FY 2021. These include further grant opportunities, joint 
operations  with other jurisdictions, reduction in expenditures, 
reductions in the scope of service and alternative revenue sources 
such as assessments et. This fund has been supported by the General 
Fund and this support in FY 20 should eliminate the deficit fund 
balance in the EMS fund. 
 
However, the City recognizes that the level of support to the EMS 
fund in the past several years is not sustainable in the future and will 
take action to make the EMS Fund financially viable.  

 
Proposed completion date June 1, 2020. 
 
Finding 2019-002  Oversight of Third Party Emergency Service Billing Provider 
 
Name of Contact Person William Jones Finance Director 
 

The City Finance Director will work with the EMS department to 
establish and implement a set of procedures to determine that the 
third party service provider is properly processing and reporting 
billings and collections related to EMS services from inception to 
turnover to the collection agency or write off. These procedures will 
also include the operations of the collection agencies. These 
procedures will be carried out by a combination of EMS personnel 
and the Finance Director’s office. 

  
Proposed completion date March 31, 2020. 
 

Federal Award Findings 
 
Finding 2019-003 Federal Award Findings-Deficiency in Internal Controls over 

Federal matching requirements. 
 
Name of Contact Person Bryan Cutchen City Administrator 
 

Effectively immediately all Federal Grants (and other Grants) will 
be monitored by both the operating department involved and the 
Finance Directors or City Administrator’s office. All essential 
documents will be maintained in both locations with a central file 
maintained in the FD or CA office with the original documents. In 
addition a file will be maintained in both locations with critical 
requirements and dates pertaining to compliance with the grant 
requirements (matching funds required, matching funds spent to 



 

-83- 
 

date, grant funds spent to date, key dates such as expiration dates, 
extension requests etc.) Critical dates will calendared with a 
reminder so that they are not missed. This file will be reviewed 
monthly.    

 
Proposed completion date December 31, 2019. 
 
Finding 2019-004 Federal Award Findings-Deficiency in Internal Controls over 

Federal requirements-Procurement Policy Documentation 
 
Name of Contact Person Bryan Cutchen City Administrator 
 

The City Employees have access to computer based procurement 
standards for both federal and state levels and can use that as a 
resource however, the Administration agrees that a written 
document specific to the City must be maintained ensuring that all 
procurement standards for federal, state and other applicable 
jurisdictions are met and that any criteria specific to the City 
procurement processes are documented. This documentation is 
already in process.  

 
Proposed completion date December 31, 2019. 
  



 

-84- 
 

 
 
 

 
 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 
 
 
Finding: 2018-1 
 
Audit finding: Year- end cutoff procedures for accounts payable should be established so 

that expenditures and expenses are recorded in the proper fiscal year. 
Several exceptions were found in the Fiscal Year 2018 audit. 

 
Recommendation: Employees should be trained in accounts payable cutoff procedures and 

review invoices received after year end to ensure proper fiscal year end 
reporting. 

 
Management response:  Agree. Procedures were discussed with accounts payable.  
 
Current status:  Accounts payable clerk is aware of cutoff criteria. Absence of Financial Director 

at June 30, 2019 hindered reinforcement of procedures. In fiscal year 2020 
procedures will be reinforced. In addition, the Financial Director will 
review all invoices and payments made subsequent to year end for proper 
cutoff as will consulting accountant during audit preparations. 

 
Finding: 2018-2 
 
Audit finding:   Management did not track all new leases signed during the fiscal year 2019 and a 

lease that should have been capitalized was not. 
 
Recommendation:  City should maintain a central tracking depository for all leases and they should 

be flagged for analysis of GAAP reporting requirements.  
 
Management response:  Agree. Procedure will be established for tracking new leases and 

department heads will be made aware of requirements.  All new leases will 
be flagged and sent to the outside CPA for analysis of GAAP reporting 
requirements. 

 
Current status:  Department heads have been reminded to report all new leases to the Financial 

Director and the FD will review the budget at the beginning of the year 
which should contain all significant lease activity (operating or capital) for 
evidence of capital leases.  The FD will review for possible capital leases 
and forward any such items on to the outside CPA for review and that CPA 
will also review for these items during audit preparation.   

 
 



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
Lane County, Oregon

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
Lane County, Oregon

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

CITY COUNCIL TERM EXPIRES

Judy Rowland, Mayor December 31, 2018

Gary Carl, Council President December 31, 2018

Paul Forcum December 31, 2020

Kathy Holston December 31, 2020

Josh McMillin December 31, 2018

Kevin Gobelman December 31, 2018

James Affa December 31, 2018

All Council members receive mail at the address listed below.

ADMINISTRATIVE

Louis Gomez, City Administrator
Susan LaDuke, City Recorder / Finance Director

City of Oakridge
P.O. Box 1410

Oakridge, Oregon 97463



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
Lane County, Oregon

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

Independent Auditors’ Report.................................................................................................. 1-4

Management’s Discussion and Analysis ............................................................................... 5-11

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Government-Wide Financial Statements:
Statement of Net Position ..................................................................................................12
Statement of Activities ......................................................................................................13

Fund Financial Statements:
Combined Balance Sheet – Governmental Funds .............................................................14
Reconciliation of Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds to

Statement of Net Position ..............................................................................................15
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in

Fund Balance – Governmental Funds............................................................................16
Reconciliation of Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in

Fund Balance – Governmental Funds – To Statement of Activities .............................17
Proprietary Financial Statements:

Statement of Net Position ..................................................................................................18
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in

Net Position....................................................................................................................19
Combining Statement of Cash Flows ................................................................................20

Notes to Basic Financial Statements................................................................................ 21-52

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance –
Actual and Budget – Budgetary Basis:

General Fund..................................................................................................................53
Street Fund .....................................................................................................................54
Emergency Service Fund ..............................................................................................55

Schedule of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (PERS) ...........................56
Schedule of Employer Contributions (PERS)........................................................................57
Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios .......................................58

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Non-Major Governmental Funds Combining Statements:
Combining Balance Sheet..................................................................................................59
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances ..........60



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
Lane County, Oregon

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page
Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance –

Actual and Budget – Budgetary Basis:
Non-Major Governmental Funds:
Oakridge Industrial Park Fund...................................................................................61
Water Reserve Fund...................................................................................................62
Water Bond Reserve Fund.........................................................................................63
Woodstove Replacement Fund ..................................................................................64
Bicycle / Pedestrian Path Fund ..................................................................................65

Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance –
Actual and Budget – Budgetary Basis:

Proprietary Funds:
Water Fund.................................................................................................................66
Wastewater Fund .......................................................................................................67
Storm Water Fund......................................................................................................68

Schedule of Property Tax Transactions and Balances of Taxes Uncollected........................69

REPORTS ON LEGAL AND OTHER REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

Independent Auditor’s Report Required by Oregon State Regulations........................... 70-71

SINGLE AUDIT REQUIREMENTS

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards........................................................................72
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards ...................................................73
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance

And Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards ............................... 74-75

Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major Program
and on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance ......... 76-77

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.................................................................... 78-80
Corrective Action Plan...........................................................................................................81



To the City Council
City of Oakridge
Lane County, Oregon

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
City of Oakridge, Oregon (the City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.



-2-

Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of
Oakridge, Oregon, as of June 30, 2018, and the respective changes in financial position, and,
where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information on pages 53-55, net
pension liability information presented on page 56, and the other post-employment benefit
information on page 58, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
management’s discussion and analysis, net pension liability information, the net other post-
employment benefit information, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods
of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

The budgetary comparison statements for the general and special revenue funds are the
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and
the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated in all material respects in relation
to the basic financial statements as a whole.



-3-

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The combining nonmajor fund
financial statements, budgetary comparison schedules and schedule of property tax transactions,
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of
additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and
is also not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal
awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and
the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated in all material respects in relation
to the basic financial statements as a whole. The budgetary comparison schedules and schedule
of property tax transactions have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on them.

Emphasis of a Matter
As described in Note 9 to the financial statements, the City adopted GASB Statement No 75,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pension, during
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. The net position of the City’s governmental activities as of
June 30, 2017 has been restated to reflect the change in accounting principle. Our opinion is not
modified with respect to this matter.

As described in Note 15 to the financial statements, the beginning net position of the water fund
has been restated to reflect water utility revenue that was earned during the 2016-17 fiscal year.
Additionally, the general and street funds beginning fund balances and the net position of the
City’s governmental activities have been restated to reflect gas and transient room tax collections
during 2017-18 that related to the 2016-17 fiscal year. Our opinion is not modified with respect to
this matter.



-4-

Reports on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
January 19, 2019, on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Oakridge, Oregon’s
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City of
Oakridge, Oregon’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

In accordance with Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, we have
issued our report dated January 19, 2019, on our consideration of compliance with certain
provisions of laws and regulations, including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as
specified in Oregon Administrative Rules. The purpose of that report is to describe our testing
of compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on compliance.

Brenda Bartlett, CPA
SGA Certified Public Accountants and Consultants, LLP
Bend, Oregon

January 19, 2019



-5-

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The management of the City of Oakridge, Oregon, presents this narrative overview and analysis to

facilitate both a short and a long-term analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year

ending June 30, 2018. This Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is based on currently

known facts, decisions, and conditions that existed as of the date of the independent auditor’s report.

Financial Highlights

 The City’s net position has remained stable through active management, maximization of grant

funding, and conservative decision-making regarding expenditures. However, implementation of

Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Pronouncement No. 68 related to pension

accounting, and changes in the related unfunded actuarial pension liability, have resulted in a

significant decrease to the City’s overall net position.

 After several years of deficit fund balances, the City’s General Fund turned the corner in Fiscal

Year (“FY”) 2013-14 with a positive ending fund balance; a trend which continues this fiscal

year.

 Emergency Services continues to receive attention from management and City Council to achieve

stabilized funding and recover from a declining fund balance.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The following discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial

statements and other required supplementary information. The City’s basic financial statements comprise

three components:

 Government-wide financial statements

 Fund financial statements

 Notes to the basic financial statements

Government-wide financial statements: The government-wide financial statements are designed to

provide readers with a broad overview of the City’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector

business.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on the City’s assets, deferred inflows, liabilities, and

deferred outflows, as applicable, with the difference between them reported as net position. Over time,

increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of

the City is improving or deteriorating.



-6-

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the City’s net position changed during the

most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving

rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of cash flow. Thus revenues and expenses are reported

in this statement for some items that will result in a cash flow in a future period. Examples of such items

include earned, but uncollected property taxes, and earned, but unused compensated absences.

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally

supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are

intended to recover all (or a significant portion) of their costs through user fees and charges (business-

type activities).

The governmental activities include:

 Administration

 Police

 Parks

 Library

 Willamette Activity Center

 Woodstove Replacement Funds

 Streets and Local Improvement Districts

 Emergency Services Department (Fire and Ambulance Funds)

 Oakridge Industrial Park

 Debt Reserves

 Capital Projects Funding

The business-type activities include:

 Water

 Wastewater

 Stormwater

Fund financial statements: A fund is a group of accounts that is used to maintain control over resources

that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City uses fund accounting to ensure

and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be

divided into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental Funds: Governmental funds are used to account for activities where the emphasis is

placed on available financial resources, rather than upon net income determination. Therefore, unlike the

government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on the acquisition

and use of current resources available at the end of the fiscal year.

The City of Oakridge maintains three major governmental funds:

 General Fund

 Street Fund

 Emergency Services Fund



-7-

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for all government funds. The City also maintains three

non-major governmental programs:

 Industrial Park Fund

 Water Capital Reserve Fund

 Water Bond Reserve Fund

The following funds are tracked individually by the City, but are combined with the General Fund in the

basic financial statements:

 Woodstove Replacement Fund

 Bicycle/Pedestrian Path Fund

To demonstrate compliance with the budget, a “Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balances – Budget and Actual” is included for these funds.

Business-Type Funds: Business-type funds are used to account for activities where the emphasis is

placed on net income. The City maintains three business-type funds:

 Water Fund

 Wastewater Fund

 Storm Water Fund

A “Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual” is included

for these funds.

Notes to basic financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential for a full

understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. They are an

integral part of the financial statements and should be read in conjunction with them.

Required supplementary information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying

notes, this report also presents certain required supplementary information concerning budgetary

comparisons for the general fund, street fund, and emergency service fund, information about the City’s

progress in funding its obligation to provide pension and other post-employment benefits to its employees

and budget to GAAP reconciliation schedule.



-8-

Government-wide Financial Analysis

6/30/2018 6/30/2017 6/30/2018 6/30/2017 6/30/2018 6/30/2017

Current and Other Assets 959,343$ 999,725$ 623,582$ 606,670$ 1,582,925$ 1,606,395$

Capital Assets, Net 2,883,907 2,865,307 5,255,224 3,786,519 8,139,131 6,651,826

Asset for Held for Sale 1,848,280 1,773,096 - - 1,848,280 1,773,096

Total Assets 5,691,530 5,638,128 5,878,806 4,393,189 11,570,336 10,031,317

Deferred Outflows 639,163 988,068 233,395 350,286 872,558 1,338,354

Current Liabilities 356,641 295,316 494,032 325,710 850,673 621,026

Net Pension, OPEB Liabilities 1,561,885 1,724,035 570,331 611,197 2,132,216 2,335,232

Other Long Term Liabilities 75,174 - 3,918,079 2,714,516 3,993,253 2,714,516

Total Liabilities 1,993,700 2,019,351 4,982,442 3,651,423 6,976,142 5,670,774

Deferred Inflows 38,126 14,710 13,922 5,216 52,048 19,926

Net Position:

Net Investment in

Capital Assets 2,774,444 2,845,307 1,173,740 958,993 3,948,184 3,804,300

Restricted 321,224 304,413 - - 321,224 304,413

Unrestricted 1,203,199 1,442,415 (57,903) 127,843 1,145,296 1,570,258

Total Net Position 4,298,867$ 4,592,135$ 1,115,837$ 1,086,836$ 5,414,704$ 5,678,971$

Net Position

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total

The largest portion of the City’s net position reflects its net investment in capital assets (e.g. land and

right-of-way, buildings, improvements, equipment, and infrastructure). The City uses these assets to

provide services to its citizens. Consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.

Resources to pay the related debt used in acquiring these assets must come from other sources.

Governmental activities. Generally, the assets, liabilities, and net position of the governmental activities

did not change significantly from the prior year with the exception of a substantial increase in current

liabilities. Changes in these and other balances resulted in an overall $252,855 decrease in net position of

governmental activities during FY2017-18.

Business-type activities: The three business-type activities (Water, Wastewater, and Storm Water)

remained fairly flat when compared to the prior year with an overall $6,077 increase in net position of

business-type activities during FY2017-18.



-9-

Fund Financial Statement Analysis

The decrease in General Fund is primarily due administrative salary increases and continuing increased

subsidies for Public Safety that are outpacing increases in property taxes and other resources. The

increase in the Emergency Services Fund is primarily the result of the additional General Fund subsidy

along with a waiver of administrative overhead charges. The increase in Street Fund in primarily due to a

one-time adjustment related to timing of state gas tax receipts.

Capital Assets

Additions to capital assets include construction in progress for Water Improvement projects and new

Police vehicles. The City’s net investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type

activities totals approximately $3.95 million as of June 30, 2018. The investment in capital assets

includes land, right-of-way (included with land), buildings and improvements, improvements other than

buildings (such as parks and park improvements), equipment (including a new mower), and infrastructure

including streets and utilities, all depreciated through normal accounting practice.

Source Water Wastewater Storm Water Total

Revenues 900,100$ 652,061$ 25,608$ 1,577,769$

Operating Expenses 755,205 632,662 21,896 1,409,763

Operating Income 144,895 19,399 3,712 168,006

Non-Operating Revenue (Expenses) (108,145) (40,428) (7,548) (156,121)

Transfers In (Out) (5,808) - - (5,808)

Change in Net Position 30,942 (21,029) (3,836) 6,077

Beginning Net Position 31,603 897,450 135,193 1,064,246

Prior Period Adjustment 45,514 - - 45,514

Ending Net Position 108,059$ 876,421$ 131,357$ 1,115,837$

Change in Net Position – Business-type Activities

Fund 6/30/2018 6/30/2017 Change ($) Change (%)

General Fund 169,321$ 272,517$ (103,196)$ -37.9%

Street Fund 118,808 95,400 23,408 24.5%

Emergency Services Fund (79,153) (161,659) 82,506 51.0%

Other Governmental Funds 337,170 374,260 (37,090) -9.9%

Total 546,146$ 580,518$ (34,372)$ -5.9%

Change in Fund Balance – Governmental Funds

Fund Balance



-10-

Debt Management

See Note 7 on pages 36-38 for additional information on debt facilities and balances.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The City’s general fund budget includes adjustments made during the year by Council resolution and/or

Supplemental Budget. All functional appropriations were within budgeted amounts.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget

During the preparation of the budget for the ensuing fiscal year, the primary objective was to maintain

financial stability. Due to the combined effort of Council, community and staff the City is accountable

for expending City funds and continues to watch its finances very closely. Stable funding for Emergency

Services continues to be a focus. The following are the major assumptions used in developing the FY

2018-19 budget:

 Major capital projects include continued progress on the Water Improvement (Tank 7) project,

which is expected to be completed in spring of 2019 using a combination of Federal grant and

loan funds. Utilities are also expecting to complete regular maintenance on the sewer plant,

wells, reservoirs and well fields, as well as replacement of old sewer lines to minimize the inflow

and infiltration of heavy flows of water into the sewer plant.

 An increase in General Fund administrative overhead, which is partially allocated to other funds,

is intended to fund a payroll specialist position that will assist with records management and

capital projects assigned as needed.

 Emergency Services continues to receive attention from management and City Council, working

with union officials, a restructure of the department was completed and took effect July 1st 2018.

This restructure includes a rotation of part-time temporary workers to insure full staffing of

ambulances, the addition of a Training Officer, which the city hopes will compliment and

improve work conditions for the regular full time staff, These changes were implemented to

hopefully reduce overtime and provides a safer environment for staff, as well as better coverage

for the community. The city will monitor the results of this change and continue to look at ways

to sustain funding for ambulance and fire services.

 A portion of the contingency line in the General Fund has been designated for future PERS

increases.



-11-

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances and activities for

those with an interest in government financing. Questions concerning any of the information provided in

this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to:

City Administrator

P.O. Box 1410

48318 E. First Street

Oakridge, Oregon 97463

541-782-2258

Please visit our website at www.ci.oakridge.or.us.



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



CITY OF OAKRIDGE

Lane County, Oregon

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2018

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 303,437 $ 415,417 $ 718,854

Restricted Cash and Investments 233,736 233,736

Receivables:

Taxes 71,976 71,976

Accounts (Net) 242,693 190,165 432,858

Assessments 62,094 62,094

Notes 30,447 30,447

Grants 14,960 14,960

Interfund Loans Receivable 18,000 18,000

Capital Assets:

Land, Land Improvements, and Construction in Progress 913,894 1,866,116 2,780,010

Other Capital Assets, Net 1,970,013 3,389,108 5,359,121

Assets Held for Sale 1,848,280 1,848,280

Total Assets 5,691,530 5,878,806 11,570,336

Deferred Outflows of Resources:

Pension Related Deferrals 633,945 231,489 865,434

Other Post-employment Benefits 5,218 1,906 7,124

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 639,163 233,395 872,558

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows 6,330,693 6,112,201 12,442,894

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND NET POSITION

Liabilities:

Accounts Payable 87,455 196,747 284,202

Retainage Payable 49,414 49,414

Payroll Liabilities 46,052 20,395 66,447

Interfund Loans Payable 18,000 18,000

Compensated Absences 117,247 25,526 142,773

Accrued Interest 13,596 13,596

Customer Deposits 64,132 64,132

Unearned Revenue 53,598 10,231 63,829

Current Portion of Long Term Liabilities 34,289 113,991 148,280

Long Term Liabilities:

Net Pension Liability 1,482,063 541,184 2,023,247

Other Post-employment Benefits Liability 79,822 29,147 108,969

Due in More than One Year 75,174 3,918,079 3,993,253

Total Liabilities 1,993,700 4,982,442 6,976,142

Deferred Inflows of Resources:

Pension Related Deferrals 38,126 13,922 52,048

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 38,126 13,922 52,048

Net Position:

Net Investment in Capital Assets 2,774,444 1,173,740 3,948,184

Restricted: Streets 200,541 200,541

Restricted: Debt Service 120,683 120,683

Unrestricted 1,203,199 (57,903) 1,145,296

Total Net Position $ 4,298,867 $ 1,115,837 $ 5,414,704

-12-



Operating

Charges for Grants and

Expenses Services Contributions

Functions/Programs

Primary Government

Governmental Activities

General Government $ 998,667 $ 436,405 $ 158,511 $

Public Safety 1,949,012 472,803

Highways and Streets 265,106 2,970

Culture and Recreation 86,091

Total Governmental Activities 3,298,876 912,178 158,511

Business-Type Activities

Water 863,350 899,239

Wastewater 673,090 641,808

Storm Water 29,444 25,608

Total Business-Type Activities 1,565,884 1,566,655

Total Primary Government $ 4,864,760 $ 2,478,833 $ 158,511 $

CITY OF OAKRIDGE

Lane County, Oregon

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Capital

Grants and

Contributions

Program Revenues

-13-



Net Revenue (Expense)

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total

$ (403,751) $ $ 1,189,832

(1,476,209) 945,606

(262,136) 5,940

(86,091)

(2,228,187) (2,228,187)

35,889 35,889

(31,282) (31,282)

(3,836) (3,836)

771 771

(2,228,187) 771 (2,227,416)

Property Taxes 1,005,679 1,005,679

Franchise and License Fees 257,964 257,964

Intergovernmental 174,364 174,364

License, Permits, and Misc. Taxes 486,346 486,346

Assesments 2,128 2,128

Interest and Miscellaneous 43,045 11,114 54,159

Transfers 5,808 (5,808)

Total 1,975,334 5,306 1,980,640

Change in Net Position (252,853) 6,077 (246,776)

Beginning Net Position, Restated 4,530,269 1,064,246 5,594,515

Prior Period Adjustment 21,451 45,514 66,965

Ending Net Position $ 4,298,867 $ 1,115,837 $ 5,414,704

-13-



CITY OF OAKRIDGE

Lane County, Oregon

COMBINED BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2018

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

EMERGENCY OTHER

STREET SERVICES GOVERNMENTAL

FUND FUND FUNDS TOTAL

ASSETS:

Cash and Investments $ 32,397 $ $ 22,715 $ 248,325 $ 303,437

Restricted Cash and Investments 20,832 92,221 120,683 233,736

Due From Other Funds 77,445 77,445

Receivables:

Accounts, Net 145,836 26,860 64,438 5,559 242,693

Notes 30,447 30,447

Grants Receivable 14,960 14,960

Assessments 62,094 62,094

Taxes 71,976 71,976

Total Assets $ 348,486 $ 181,175 $ 102,113 $ 405,014 $ 1,036,788

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND FUND BALANCES:

Liabilities:

Accounts Payable $ 50,317 $ 5,682 $ 25,654 $ 5,802 $ 87,455

Payroll Liabilities 31,265 1,705 13,082 46,052

Due to Other Funds 77,445 77,445

Interfund Loans Payable 18,000 18,000

Unearned Revenue 448 23,270 29,880 53,598

Total Liabilities 100,030 7,387 139,451 35,682 282,550

Deferred Inflows:

Unavailable Assessment Revenues 54,980 54,980

Unavailable Receivables 10,108 41,815 32,162 84,085

Unavailable Property Tax Revenues 69,027 69,027

Total Deferred Inflows 79,135 54,980 41,815 32,162 208,092

Fund Balances:

Restricted for:

Streets 118,808 118,808

Woodstove Replacement 20,832 20,832

Debt Service 120,683 120,683

Assigned 17,076 216,487 233,563

Unassigned 131,413 (79,153) 52,260

Total Fund Balances 169,321 118,808 (79,153) 337,170 546,146

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows

and Fund Balances $ 348,486 $ 181,175 $ 102,113 $ 405,014 $ 1,036,788

GENERAL

FUND

-14-



CITY OF OAKRIDGE

Lane County, Oregon

RECONCILIATION OF BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2018

Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the government-wide Statement of Net Position.

Fund Balances $ 546,146

(1,482,063)

(79,822)

Deferred Outflows 639,163

Deferred Inflows (38,126)

Net Capital Assets 2,883,906

Assets Held for Sale 1,848,280

Loans Payable (109,463)

(117,247)

Compensated Absences

Unavailable Assessment Revenues $ 54,980

Unavailable Receivables 84,085

Unavailable Property Tax Revenues 69,029

208,093

Total Net Position $ 4,298,867

The cost of capital assets (land, buildings, improvements, machinery and

equipment, infrastructure, and construction in progress) is reported as an

expenditure in governmental funds. The Statement of Net Position includes those

capital assets among the assets of the City as a whole.

Long-term liabilities applicable to the City's governmental activities are not due and

payable in the current period and accordingly are not reported as fund liabilities. All

liabilities, both current and long-term, are reported in the Statement of Net Position.

Accrued compensated absences are not due and payable in the current period and

therefore are not reported in the funds.

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and

therefore are unavailable revenue in the funds.

The cost of assets held for sale is reported as an expenditure in governmental funds.

The Statement of Net Position includes those capital assets among the assets of the

City as a whole.

The net pension liability is the difference between the total pension liability and the

assets set aside to pay benefits earned to past and current employees and

beneficiaries.

Deferred inflows and outflows of resources related to the pension plan and other

post-employment benefits include differences between expected and actual

experience, changes of assumptions, differences between projects and actual

earning, and contributions subsequent to the measurement date.

The other post-employment benefit liability is the difference between the total other

post-employment liability and the assets set aside to pay benefits earned to past and

current employees and beneficiaries.

-15-



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
Lane County, Oregon

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

EMERGENCY OTHER
GENERAL STREET SERVICES GOVERNMENTAL

FUND FUND FUND FUNDS TOTAL
REVENUES:

Property Taxes $ 1,018,452 $ $ $ $ 1,018,452

Franchise and License Fees 257,964 257,964
Rental Revenue 20,219 88,756 108,975
Licenses, Permits, and Misc. Taxes 214,715 271,631 486,346
Intergovernmental 102,560 71,804 174,364
Charges for Services 306,000 2,970 475,031 784,001
Fines and Forfeitures 69,140 69,140
Grants and Donations 158,511 158,511
Assessments 9,087 9,087
Interest and Miscellaneous 39,133 9,438 21,579 13,767 83,917

Total Revenues 2,186,694 293,126 568,414 102,523 3,150,757

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
General Government 898,678 70,196 968,874
Public Safety 887,437 845,908 1,733,345
Highways and Streets 4,856 284,464 289,320
Culture and Recreation 81,330 81,330

Capital Outlay 64,294 75,225 139,519

Total Expenditures 1,936,595 284,464 845,908 145,421 3,212,388

Excess of Revenues Over,
(Under) Expenditures 250,099 8,662 (277,494) (42,898) (61,631)

Other Financing Sources, (Uses)
Transfers In 2,000 360,000 5,808 367,808
Transfers Out (360,000) (2,000) (362,000)

Total Other Financing
Sources, (Uses) (358,000) (2,000) 360,000 5,808 5,808

Net Change in Fund Balance (107,901) 6,662 82,506 (37,090) (55,823)

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year 272,517 95,400 (161,659) 374,260 580,518

Prior Period Adjustment 4,705 16,746 21,451

Fund Balance - End of Year $ 169,321 $ 118,808 $ (79,153) $ 337,170 $ 546,146

-16-



CITY OF OAKRIDGE

Lane County, Oregon

RECONCILIATION OF STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - TO

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Net Change in Fund Balance $ (55,823)

(148,305)

Capital Asset Additions, Net of Disposals 142,003

Less: Amount Financed (89,463)

Depreciation Expense (123,402)

Net Adjustment (70,862)

Historical cost of Assets Held for Sale sold in the current period 75,184

Compensated Absences (23,503)

Property Taxes (12,773)

Notes, Assessments and Other Receivables (16,771)

Net Adjustment (29,544)

Change in Net Position $ (252,853)

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial resources

are not reported as revenues in the funds.

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement

of Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and

reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which depreciation exceeded

capital outlays in the current period.

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting used in the governmental funds,

expenditures are not recognized for transactions that are not normally paid with

expendable available financial resources. In the Statement of Activities, however, which

is presented on the accrual basis of accounting, expenses and liabilities are reported

regardless of when financial resources are available. This adjustment combines the net

changes in liability balances.

Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance

and the government-wide Statement of Activities is as follows:

Expenses include the changes in net pension liability and other post-employment

benefits liability from year to year due to changes in total liability and the fair value of

pension plan net position that is available to pay pension benefits.

-17-



CITY OF OAKRIDGE

Lane County, Oregon

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2018

WATER WASTEWATER

FUND FUND FUND TOTAL

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS:

Cash and Investments $ $ 351,544 $ 63,873 $ 415,417
Accounts Receivable, Net 127,162 60,490 2,513 190,165

Due from Other Funds 9,000 96,633 105,633

Capital Assets:

Land 6,300 14,000 20,300

Construction in Process 1,845,816 1,845,816

Other Capital Assets, Net 2,607,372 730,458 51,278 3,389,108

Total Assets 4,595,650 1,239,125 131,664 5,966,439

Deferred Outflows of Resources:

Pension Related Deferrals 138,953 92,536 231,489

Other Post-employment Benefits 1,144 762 1,906

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 140,097 93,298 233,395

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows $ 4,735,747 $ 1,332,423 $ 131,664 $ 6,199,834

LIABILITIES. DEFERRED INFLOWS AND NET ASSETS:

Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable $ 191,732 $ 4,708 $ 307 $ 196,747

Retainage Payable 49,414 49,414

Payroll Liabilities 11,496 8,899 20,395

Unearned Revenue 10,231 10,231

Compensated Absences 19,412 6,114 25,526

Accrued Interest 13,596 13,596

Customer Deposits 64,132 64,132

Due to Other Funds 87,633 87,633

Bonds Payable, due within one year 106,491 7,500 113,991

Total Current Liabilities 543,906 37,452 307 581,665

Long Term Liabilities:

Bonds Payable, due in more than one year 2,415,550 185,000 2,600,550

Loan Payable 1,317,529 1,317,529

Net Pension Liability 324,850 216,334 541,184

Other Post-employment Benefits Liability 17,496 11,651 29,147

Total Liabilities 4,619,331 450,437 307 5,070,075

Deferred Inflows of Resources:

Pension Related Deferrals 8,357 5,565 13,922

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 8,357 5,565 13,922

.

Net Position:

Net Investment in Capital Assets 570,504 537,958 65,278 1,173,740

Unrestricted (462,445) 338,463 66,079 (57,903)

Total Net Position 108,059 876,421 131,357 1,115,837

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows

and Net Position $ 4,735,747 $ 1,332,423 $ 131,664 $ 6,199,834

NON-MAJOR

STORM WATER

-18-



CITY OF OAKRIDGE

Lane County, Oregon

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

NON-MAJOR

WATER WASTEWATER STORM WATER

FUND FUND FUND TOTAL

OPERATING REVENUES

Charges for Services $ 899,239 $ 641,808 $ 25,608 $ 1,566,655

Other Revenues 861 10,253 11,114

Total Revenues 900,100 652,061 25,608 1,577,769

OPERATING EXPENSES

Personnel Services 423,227 306,462 729,689

Materials and Services 331,978 326,200 21,896 680,074

Total Operating Expenses 755,205 632,662 21,896 1,409,763

Income, (Loss) From Operations 144,895 19,399 3,712 168,006

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Interest Expense (34,844) (11,128) (45,972)

Depreciation (73,301) (29,300) (7,548) (110,149)

Total Nonoperating Expenses (108,145) (40,428) (7,548) (156,121)

Income, (Loss) Before Transfers 36,750 (21,029) (3,836) 11,885

Transfers Out (5,808) (5,808)

Total Transfers (5,808) (5,808)

Change in Net Position 30,942 (21,029) (3,836) 6,077

Beginning Net Position, Restated 31,603 897,450 135,193 1,064,246

Prior Period Adjustment 45,514 45,514

Ending Net Position $ 108,059 $ 876,421 $ 131,357 $ 1,115,837

-19-



CITY OF OAKRIDGE

Lane County, Oregon

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

NON-MAJOR

WATER WASTEWATER STORM WATER

FUND FUND FUND TOTAL

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Cash Received from Customers $ 900,388 $ 657,451 $ 25,484 $ 1,583,323

Cash Payments to Suppliers (164,520) (331,116) (21,589) (517,225)

Cash Payments to Employees & Related Payroll Costs (383,266) (285,333) (668,599)

Net Cash From Operations 352,602 41,002 3,895 397,499

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities:

Payment of Principal of Bonds, Contracts Payable (105,485) (7,500) (112,985)

Capital Asset Additions (1,534,284) (44,572) (1,578,856)

Interest Paid (35,415) (11,130) (46,545)

Issuance of debt 1,317,529 1,317,529

Interfund Transfer to Reserve Fund (5,808) (5,808)

Net Cash From Capital and Related

Financing Activities (363,463) (63,202) (426,665)

Cash Flows From Non-Capital and Related Financing Activities:

Payments on Loan to Emergency Services Fund 4,500 4,500 9,000

Short-term Loan from Wastewater to Water (cash deficit) 6,361 (6,361)

Net Cash From Non-Capital and Related

Financing Activities 10,861 (1,861) 9,000

Net Increase (Decrease) In Cash and Investments (24,061) 3,895 (20,166)

Cash and Investments at Beginning of Year 375,605 59,978 435,583

Cash and Investments at End of Year $ $ 351,544 $ 63,873 $ 415,417

Reconciliation of Cash Flows From Operating

Activities to Operating Income

Operating Income $ 144,895 $ 19,399 $ 3,712 $ 168,006

Adjustments

Prior Period Adjustment 45,514 45,514

(Increase), Decrease in Accounts Receivable (46,206) 256 (124) (46,074)

Increase, (Decrease) in Accounts Payable 167,458 (4,916) 307 162,849

Increase, (Decrease) in Payroll Liabilities (659) 1,914 1,255

Increase, (Decrease) in Unearned Revenues 5,134 5,134

Increase, (Decrease) in Pension Related Activities 37,000 20,490 57,490

Increase, (Decrease) in OPEB Related Activities 2,792 1,859 4,651

Increase, (Decrease) in Compensated Absences 828 (3,134) (2,306)

Increase, (Decrease) in Customer Deposits 980 980

Net Cash From Operations $ 352,602 $ 41,002 $ 3,895 $ 397,499

-20-



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
Lane County, Oregon

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

-21-

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

THE FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY

The City of Oakridge is a municipal corporation governed by a mayor and an elected council
who comprise the City Council. The daily functioning is under the supervision of the City
Administrator. As required by Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, all activities of the
City have been included in these basic financial statements.

The basic financial statements include all financial activities, organizations, and functions for
which the City Council has financial accountability as defined by GASB Statement No. 61. The
financial reporting entity consists of (a) the primary government (City), (b) organizations for
which the City is financially accountable, and (c) governmental organizations for which the City
is not financially accountable, but for which the nature and significance of their financial
relationship with the City are such that exclusion would cause the basic financial statements to
be misleading or incomplete. Component units are legally separate organizations for which the
elected officials of the City are financially accountable. In addition, component units can be
governmental organizations for which the City is not financially accountable, but for which the
nature and significance of their financial relationship with the City are such that exclusion would
cause the City’s basic financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. No organizational
units meet the criteria for inclusion as a component unit.

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements are presented at both the government-wide and fund financial
level. Both levels of statements categorize primary activities as either governmental or business-
type. Governmental activities, which are normally supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent
on fees and charges for support.

Government-wide financial statements display information about the City as a whole. For the
most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. These
statements focus on the sustainability of the City and the change in aggregate financial position
resulting from the activities of the fiscal period. These aggregated statements consist of the
Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities.

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges
provided by a given function or segment, and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and
other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general
revenues.



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
Lane County, Oregon

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

-22-

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Fund financial statements display information at the individual fund level. Each fund is
considered to be a separate accounting entity. Funds are classified and summarized as
governmental or proprietary. Major individual governmental funds and major individual
enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. Non-major
funds are consolidated into a single column within each fund type in the financial section of the
basic financial statements and are detailed in the supplementary information.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The financial transactions are recorded in individual funds. Each fund is accounted for by
providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprises its assets, liabilities, fund
balances, revenues and expenditures/expenses.

There are stated minimum criteria (percentage of the assets, liabilities, revenues or
expenditures/expenses of either fund category or the governmental and enterprise combined) for
the determination of major funds. Management can designate a fund as major even if it does not
meet these criteria. Non-major funds are combined in one column in the fund financial
statements and detailed in the supplementary section.

These are the major governmental funds:

General Fund – This fund accounts for all financial resources and expenditures, except
those required to be accounted for in another fund. The principal revenue sources are
property taxes, franchise fees, fines and forfeitures, planning fees, charges for services
and interest on investments.

Street Fund – This fund accounts for the maintenance, construction or reconstruction of
streets and sidewalks. These costs are paid primarily from moneys received pursuant to
the State of Oregon Gas Tax Apportionment, from Lane County road funds and Lane
Electric franchise fees.

Emergency Services Fund – This fund is a combination of the ambulance and fire
departments. Costs are paid primarily from ambulance user charges and a transfer from
the general fund.

These are the major proprietary funds:

Water Fund - This fund accounts for the revenues and expenses of the water utility.
The primary revenue source is fees for services.

Wastewater Fund - This fund accounts for the revenues and expenses of the sewer
utility. The primary revenue source is fees for services.



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
Lane County, Oregon

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

-23-

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Measurement focus is a term used to describe which transactions are recorded within the various
financial statements. Basis of accounting refers to when transactions are recorded regardless of
the measurement focus.

Government-wide Financial Statements and Proprietary Funds Financial Statements are
presented on a full accrual basis of accounting with an economic resource measurement focus.
An economic resource focus concentrates on equity or a fund’s net position. All transactions and
events that affect the total economic resources (net position) during the period are reported. An
economic resources measurement is inextricably connected with full accrual accounting. Under
the full accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded at the time liabilities are incurred regardless of the timing of related cash inflows and
outflows.

Governmental Funds Financial Statements are presented on a modified accrual basis of
accounting with a current financial resource measurement focus. This focus concentrates on the
fund’s resources available for spending currently or in the near future. Only transactions and
events affecting the fund’s current financial resources during the period are reported. Similar to
the connection between an economic resource measurement focus and full accrual accounting, a
current financial resource measurement focus is inseparable from a modified accrual basis of
accounting. Under modified accrual accounting, revenues are recognized as soon as they are
both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collected
within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For
this purpose, revenues are considered to be available if they are collected within two months of
the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is
incurred, as under accrual accounting. Property taxes, franchise fees, licenses and permits, and
interest associated with the current financial period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual
and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period if received within two
months of year end. All other revenues are considered to be measurable and available only when
cash is received.

An unavailable revenue liability arises in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet when potential
revenue does not meet both the measurable and available criteria for recognition in the current
period. This unavailable revenue consists primarily of uncollected property taxes, assessments,
and other receivables not deemed available to finance operations of the current period. In the
government-wide Statement of Activities, with a full accrual basis of accounting, revenue is
recognized as soon as it is earned regardless of its availability. Thus, the liability created on the
Governmental Fund Balance Sheet for unavailable revenue is eliminated.

Unearned revenues arise outside the scope of measurement focus and basis of accounting, such
as when resources are received before there is legal claim to them. For instance, when grant
moneys are received prior to the incurrence of qualifying expenditures.



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
Lane County, Oregon

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

-24-

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Similar to the way its revenues are recorded, governmental funds only record those expenditures
that affect current financial resources. Principal and interest on general long-term debt are
recorded as fund liabilities only when due. Vested compensated absences and pension costs are
recorded as expenditures only to the extent that they are expected to be liquidated with
expendable financial resources. In the government-wide financial statements, however, with a
full accrual basis of accounting, all expenditures affecting the economic resource status of the
City are recognized. Thus, the expense and related accrued liability for long-term portions of
debt and compensated absences must be included.

Since the governmental fund statements are presented on a different measurement focus and
basis of accounting than the government-wide statements, reconciliation is provided to explain
the differences between the fund based financial statements and the governmental column of the
government-wide presentation. This reconciliation is part of the financial statements.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as
program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services, and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principle ongoing operations. The
principle operating revenues of the Water and Wastewater Funds are charges to customers for
sales and services. Operating expenses for enterprises funds include the cost of sales and
services, administrative expenses and overhead, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues
and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

The City first applies restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which
both restricted and unrestricted net position are available.

DEFFERED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

In addition to assets, the financial statements include a separate section for deferred outflows of
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a
consumption of net position that applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an
outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. At June 30, 2018, there were deferred
outflows representing pension-related and other post-employment benefits deferrals reported on
the statement of net position.



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
Lane County, Oregon

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

-25-

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

In addition to liabilities, the financial statements include a separate section for deferred inflows
of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents
an acquisition of net position that applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an
inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The City has four types of items which qualify for
reporting in this category. At June 30, 2018, unavailable revenue from property taxes, loan
repayments, assessments, and other receivables is reported on the governmental funds balance
sheet. Deferred inflows representing pension-related and other post-employment benefit deferrals
are reported in the statement of net position.

BUDGETS

A budget is prepared for all funds in accordance with a modified accrual basis of accounting and
legal requirements set forth in the Oregon Local Budget Law. For governmental fund types, the
budgetary basis of accounting is the same as generally accepted accounting principles, except for
the differences noted under the measurement focus and basis of accounting footnote above. The
budget process begins early in each fiscal year with the establishment of the Budget Committee.
Recommendations are developed through late winter with the Budget Committee approving the
budget in early spring. Public notices of the budget hearing are published generally in early
spring with a public hearing being held approximately three weeks later. The Board may amend
the budget prior to adoption; however, budgeted expenditures for each fund may not be increased
by more than ten percent. The budget is then adopted, appropriations are made, and the tax levy
declared no later than June 30th.

Expenditure budgets are allocated to, and appropriated by, program or organizational unit when
possible. Expenditure budgets that are not allocated to a program or organizational unit are
appropriated at the following levels of control: Debt Service, Contingency, and Transfers Out.

The General Fund is appropriated at the department level along with transfers and contingencies.
Expenditures cannot legally exceed the above appropriation levels except in the case of grants
which could not be estimated at the time of budget adoption. Appropriations lapse at the fiscal
year-end. Management may amend line items in the budget without Board approval if
appropriation levels (the legal level of control) are not changed. Supplemental appropriations
may occur if the District Board approves them due to a need which exists which was not
determined at the time the budget was adopted.

Budget amounts shown in the basic financial statements reflect the original budget amount and
appropriation transfers. Expenses of the various funds were within authorized appropriations for
the year ended June 30, 2018, with the exception of General Fund – Municipal Court Program
and Woodstove Replacement Fund – Woodstove Replacement Program, which exceed
authorized appropriations by $1,099 and $4,168, respectively.



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
Lane County, Oregon

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

-26-

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

ESTIMATES

The preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the basic financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY

Deposits and investments
Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of inception.

Receivables and payables
Activity between funds that represent short-term lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at
the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds”. All other
outstanding balances between funds are reported as “interfund loans receivable/payable”.

Recorded property taxes receivable that are collected within two months after year-end are
considered measurable and available and, therefore, are recognized as revenue in the fund
financial statements. The remaining balance is recorded as unavailable revenue. Property taxes
are levied and become a lien on July 1. Collection dates are November 15, February 15, and
May 15 following the lien date. Discounts are allowed if the amount due is received by
November 15. Taxes unpaid and outstanding on May 16 are considered delinquent.

Uncollected property taxes are shown in the government-wide Statement of Net Position.
Uncollected taxes are deemed by management to be substantially collectible or recoverable
through liens; therefore, no allowance for uncollectible taxes has been established.

Receivables of the enterprise funds are recognized as revenue when earned, including services
provided but not billed. Receivables in governmental and enterprise funds are stated net of any
allowance for uncollectibles.

Supply inventories and prepaid items
Detailed supply inventory records are not maintained. Supply inventories are considered to be
immaterial by management at year end.



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
Lane County, Oregon

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

-27-

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Capital assets
Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads,
bridges, sidewalks, and similar items) are reported in the applicable governmental or business-
type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined
as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in
excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if
purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at
the date of donation.

Additions or improvements and other capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an
asset, or that significantly increase the capacity of an asset are capitalized. The costs of normal
maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets lives
are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.
Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is
included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed.

Property, plant, and equipment of the City is depreciated using the straight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

Buildings and improvements 20-30 years
Infrastructure 33-50 years
Furniture, equipment and vehicles 10 years

Assets held for sale
Various properties located in the Oakridge Industrial Park are currently held for sale/lease by the
City.

Grants
Unreimbursed expenditures due from grantor agencies are reflected in the basic financial
statements as receivables and revenues. Grant revenues are recorded at the time eligible
expenditures are incurred. Cash received from grantor agencies in excess of related grant
expenditures is recorded as a liability in the balance sheet and statement of net position.

Compensated absences
It is the policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick leave. All
vacation leave is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary financial
statements. Sick leave may or may not be accrued based on whether there is a liability to pay
such amounts upon termination. A liability for compensated absences is not reported in
governmental funds in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement
No. 16 Accounting for Compensated Absences, except when matured.



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
Lane County, Oregon

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

-28-

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Long-term obligations
In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governmental activities or business-type activities Statement of Net Position. Bond
premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective
interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and
discounts during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing
sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while
discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses.

Retirement plans
Substantially all of the City's employees are participants in the State of Oregon Public
Employees Retirement System (PERS). For the purpose of measuring the net pension liability,
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension
expense, information about fiduciary net position of PERS and additions to/deductions from
PERS’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by
PERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported
at fair value.

Net position
Net position comprises the various net earnings from operations, non-operating revenues,
expenses and contributions of capital. Net position is classified in the following three categories.

Net investment in capital assets – consists of all capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds or other borrowings
that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

Restricted – consists of external constraints placed on asset use by creditors, grantors,
contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or constraints imposed by law
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted – consists of all other assets that are not included in the other categories
previously mentioned.



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
Lane County, Oregon

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

-29-

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Fund balances
GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund-type Definitions, is
followed. The objective of this statement is to enhance the usefulness of fund balance
information by providing clearer fund balance classifications that can be more consistently
applied and by clarifying the existing governmental fund-type definitions. This statement
establishes fund balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to
which a government is bound to observe constraints imposed on the use of the resources reported
in governmental funds. Under this standard, the fund balance classifications are non-spendable,
restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned.

 Non-spendable represents amounts that are not in a spendable form.

 Restricted represents amounts that are legally restricted by outside parties for a specific

purpose (such as debt covenants, grant requirements, donor requirements, or other

governments) or are restricted by law (constitutionally or by enabling legislation).

 Committed represents funds formally set aside by the governing body for a particular

purpose. The use of committed funds would be approved by resolution.

 Assigned represents amounts that are constrained by the expressed intent to use resources

for specific purposes that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or

committed. Intent can be stipulated by the governing body or by an official to whom that

authority has been given by the governing body. The authority to classify portions of

ending fund balances as assigned has been granted to the City Administrator.

 Unassigned is the residual classification of the General Fund. Only the General Fund

may report a positive unassigned fund balance. Other governmental funds would report

any negative residual fund balance as Unassigned.

The order of spending regarding fund balance categories is as follows: restricted resources are
spent first when both restricted and unrestricted (committed, assigned or unassigned) resources
are available for expenditures. When unrestricted resources are spent, the order of spending is
committed (if applicable), assigned (if applicable) and unassigned.

There were no non-spendable or committed fund balances at June 30, 2018.



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
Lane County, Oregon

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

-30-

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Fair value inputs and methodologies and hierarchy
Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
Observable inputs are developed based on market data obtained from sources independent of the
reporting entity. Unobservable inputs are developed based on the best information available
about the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset. The classification of
securities within the fair value hierarchy is based upon the activity level in the market for the
security type and the inputs used to determine their fair value, as follows:

Level 1 – unadjusted price quotations in active markets/exchanges for identical assets or
liabilities that each Fund can access

Level 2 – other observable inputs (including, but not limited to, quoted prices for similar
assets or liabilities in markets that are active, quoted prices for identical or similar assets
or liabilities in markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are
observable for the assets or liabilities (such as interest rates, yield curves, volatilities, loss
severities, credit risks and default rates) or other market–corroborated inputs)

Level 3 – unobservable inputs based on the best information available in the
circumstances, to the extent observable inputs are not available (including each Fund’s
own assumptions used in determining the fair value of investments)

The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable
inputs (Level 3 measurements). Accordingly, the degree of judgment exercised in determining
fair value is greatest for instruments categorized in Level 3. The inputs used to measure fair
value may fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In such cases, for disclosure
purposes, the fair value hierarchy classification is determined based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
Lane County, Oregon

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

-31-

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS

A cash pool is maintained that is available for use by all funds. Cash and cash equivalents
consisted of:

Deposits with Financial Institutions:
Demand Deposits and Cash on Hand $ 436,606
Local Government Investment Pool 515,984

Total Cash and Investments $ 952,590

Reconciliation of Cash Reported In:
Governmental $ 537,173
Business Type 415,417

Total Cash and Investments $ 952,590

Restricted and Unrestricted Cash:
Restricted Cash $ 233,736
Unrestricted Cash 718,854

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 952,590

Deposits
Deposits with financial institutions include bank demand deposits. The total bank balance per
the bank statements as of June 30, 2018 was $486,052, of which $250,000 was covered by
federal depository insurance and the remainder was collateralized by the Oregon Public Funds
Collateralization Program (PFCP). Oregon Revised Statutes require deposits to be adequately
covered by federal depository insurance or deposited at an approved depository as identified by
the Treasury.

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits
In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the deposits may not be
recovered. There is no deposit policy for custodial credit risk. As of June 30, 2018, all deposits
are insured or at qualified institutions.

Investments
Policy is to follow state statutes governing cash management. Statutes authorize investing in
banker’s acceptances, time certificates of deposit, repurchase agreements, obligations of the
United States and its agencies and instrumentalities, and the Oregon State Treasurer's Local
Government Investment Pool.



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
Lane County, Oregon

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

-32-

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS - continued

Investments in the Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) are included in the Oregon Short-
Term Fund, which is an external investment pool that is not a 2a-7-like external investment pool,
and is not registered with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission as an investment
company. Fair value of the LGIP is calculated at the same value as the number of pool shares
owned. The unit of account is each share held, and the value of the position would be the fair
value of the pool’s share price multiplied by the number of shares held. Investments in the
Short-Term Fund are governed by ORS 294.135, Oregon Investment Council, and portfolio
guidelines issued by the Oregon Short-Term Fund Board, which establish diversification
percentages and specify the types and maturities of investments. The portfolio guidelines permit
securities lending transactions as well as investments in repurchase agreements and reverse
repurchase agreements. The fund’s compliance with all portfolio guidelines can be found in
their annual report when issued. The LGIP seeks to exchange shares at $1.00 per share; an
investment in the LGIP is neither insured nor guaranteed by the FDIC or any other government
agency. Although the LGIP seeks to maintain the value of share investments at $1.00 per share,
it is possible to lose money by investing in the pool. We intend to measure these investments at
book value since it approximates fair value. The pool is comprised of a variety of
investments. These investments are characterized as a level 2 fair value measurement in the
Oregon Short Term Fund’s audited financial report. Amounts in the State Treasurer’s Local
Government Investment Pool are not required to be collateralized. The audited financial reports
of the Oregon Short Term Fund can be found here:

http://www.oregon.gov/treasury/Divisions/Investment/Pages/Oregon-Short-Term-Fund-
(OSTF).aspx

If the link has expired please contact the Oregon Short Term Fund directly.

As of June 30, 2018, there were the following investments and maturities:

Investment Maturities (in months)

Investment Type Fair Value Less than 3 3-17 18-59

State Treasurer's Investment Pool 515,984$ 515,984$ $ $

Total 515,984$ 515,984$ $ $

Interest Rate Risk
Oregon Revised Statutes require investments to not exceed a maturity of 18 months, except when
the local government has adopted a written investment policy that was submitted to and reviewed
by the OSTFB. There are no investments that have a maturity date beyond three months.



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
Lane County, Oregon

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

-33-

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS - continued

Custodial Credit Risk
Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of a failure of the counterparty
to a transaction, the value of the deposit will not be recovered. There is no formal investment
policy for custodial credit risk. All of the investments are with the LGIP. Oregon Revised
Statutes do not limit investments as to credit rating for securities purchased from US
Government Agencies or USGSE.

Concentration of Credit Risk
Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss due to a large portion of investments with a single
issuer. To avoid incurring unreasonable risks inherent to over-investing in specific instruments
or in individual financial institutions, the investment policy sets maximum limits on the
percentage of the portfolio that can be invested in any one type of security. State statutes do not
limit the percentage of investments in the LGIP. As of June 30, 2017, 100% of the investments
were in the LGIP.

NOTE 3 - ACCRUED COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The compensated absences balances at June 30, 2018 were as follows:

Beginning
Balance

Ending
Balance

Governmental $ 93,744 $ 117,247
Business Type 27,832 25,526

$ 121,576 $ 142,773

All are considered by management to be current liabilities.

NOTE 4 - NOTES RECEIVABLE

In November 2013, the City entered into an agreement with Orchid Health Collective, LLC for
an Economic Development Loan of $11,000. The note bears interest at 1% per annum and is to
be paid at $310.29 per month for 36 months beginning June 1, 2014. The balance was paid off in
the current year.

In June 2016, the City entered into an agreement for a $50,000 loan as partial consideration for
the purchase of property. The note bears interest at 4.25% per annum and is to be paid at
$929.21 per month for 60 months beginning July, 2016. The balance due at June 30, 2018, is
$30,447.



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
Lane County, Oregon

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

-34-

NOTE 4 - NOTES RECEIVABLE - continued

At June 30, 2018, expected future payments on notes receivable consisted of:

Year Ending

2019 9,188$

2020 10,449

2021 10,810

Total notes receivable 30,447$

NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for governmental activities for the year ended June 30, 2018 was as follows :

Non-Depreciable Capital Assets

Land and Land Improvements $ 850,560 $ $ $ 850,560

Construction in Progress 64,749 1,415 63,334

Total Non-Depreciable 915,309 1,415 913,894

Depreciable Capital Assets

Buildings and Improvements 2,073,064 2,073,064

Vehicles and Equipment 1,318,990 143,416 1,462,406

Infrastructure 726,101,849 726,101,849

Total Depreciable 729,493,903 143,416 729,637,319

Accumulated Depreciation

Buildings and Improvements 879,513 38,046 917,559

Vehicles and Equipment 1,164,843 28,680 1,193,523

Infrastructure 725,499,549 56,676 725,556,225

Total Accumulated Depreciation 727,543,905 123,402 727,667,307

Net Depreciable Capital Assets 1,949,998 1,970,012

Total Governmental Activities $ 2,865,307 $ 2,883,906

GOVERNMENTAL CAPITAL ASSETS

July 1, 2017 Additions Deletions June 30, 2018



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
Lane County, Oregon

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

-35-

NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS – continued

Depreciation Expense for governmental activities is charged to functions as follows:

General Government 31,444$

Public Safety 76,497

Highways and Streets 12,192

Culture and Recreation 3,269

Total 123,402$

Capital asset activity for business-type activities for the year ended June 30, 2018 was as
follows:

Non-Depreciable Capital Assets

Land and Improvements $ 20,300 $ $ $ 20,300

Construction in Progress 338,018 1,507,798 1,845,816

Total Non-Depreciable 358,318 1,507,798 1,866,116

Depreciable Capital Assets

Buildings and Improvements 1,748,975 1,748,975

Furniture, Equipment and Vehicles 636,677 8,716 645,393

Infrastructure 3,494,159 62,341 3,556,500

Total Depreciable 5,879,811 71,057 5,950,868

Accumulated Depreciation

Buildings and Improvements 782,143 34,524 816,667

Furniture, Equipment and Vehicles 589,698 9,533 599,231

Infrastructure 1,079,769 66,093 1,145,862

Total Accumulated Depreciation 2,451,610 110,150 2,561,760

Net Depreciable Capital Assets 3,428,201 3,389,108

Total Business-Type Activities $ 3,786,519 $ 5,255,224

June 30, 2018

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES CAPITAL ASSETS

June 30, 2017 Additions Deletions



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
Lane County, Oregon

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

-36-

NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS – continued

Depreciation Expense for business-type activities is charged as follows:

Water $ 73,301

Wastewater 29,301

Storm Water 7,548

Total $ 110,150

NOTE 6 - ASSESSMENTS RECEIVABLE

Assessments receivable represents the uncollected amounts levied against benefited properties
for the costs of local improvements. Since the assessments are liens against the properties, an
allowance for uncollectible amounts is not deemed necessary. Assessments are payable over a
period of ten years and bear interest at 7% to 10.64%. At June 30, 2018, the assessments
receivable totaled $62,094.

NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM DEBT

In the following section, long-term debt information is presented separately with respect to
governmental and business-type activities. The table below presents current year changes in
those obligations, and the current portions due for each issue.

Governmental Activities

Oregon DEQ Note Payable – Based on an intergovernmental agreement entered in to with the
Oregon Department of Environmental Quality on June 5, 1995, the City is obligated to repay the
Oregon DEQ $180,000 for funds borrowed to help plan and develop the Bald Knob Mill site.
This loan is non-interest bearing. The balance of $20,000 will be paid in the upcoming fiscal
year.



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
Lane County, Oregon

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

-37-

NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM DEBT - continued

Outstanding Matured Outstanding

Interest July 1, And June 30, Due Within

Issue Rates 2017 Issued Redeemed 2018 One Year

Governmental

Oregon DEQ Note Payable 0.00% 20,000$ $ $ 20,000$ 20,000$

Capital Lease - Motorola 3.89% 89,463 89,463 14,289

Total Governmental 20,000$ $ $ 109,463$ 34,289$

Business-Type

OECDD Water Loan 1.00% 2,427,551$ $ 98,010$ 2,329,541$ 98,991$

IFA Safe Drinking Water Loan 1.00% 1,317,529 1,317,529

2009A Series LOCAP Bonds 1.25-6.00% 400,000 15,000 385,000 15,000

Total Business-Type 2,827,551$ 1,317,529$ 113,010$ 4,032,070$ 113,991$

Business-Type Activities

OECDD Loan – Proceeds from this loan were used to improve the water systems and the quality
of the drinking water in the City. The total amount of the original loan was $3,406,383, but the
City was granted $250,000 in loan forgiveness. The loan repayment term is 30 years with an
interest rate of 1.00%. Future annual requirements are as follows:

Principal Interest Total

2019 98,991$ 23,307$ 122,298$

2020 99,980 22,317 122,297

2021 100,980 21,317 122,297

2022 101,990 20,307 122,297

2023 103,010 19,287 122,297

2024-28 530,708 80,778 611,486

2029-33 557,780 53,706 611,486

2034-38 586,232 25,253 611,485

2039-40 149,870 1,812 151,682

Total 2,329,541$ 268,084$ 2,597,625$



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
Lane County, Oregon

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

-38-

NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM DEBT - continued

2009A Series LOCAP Bonds – On June 18, 2009 the City entered into a purchase contract to
participate in the League of Oregon Cities Cooperative Asset Financing Program Certificates of
Participation, Series 2009A. This issue calls for annual repayments which include interest at
1.25 to 6%. Future annual debt service requirements to maturity for this bond issue are as
follows:

Principal Interest Total

2019 15,000$ 21,925$ 36,925$

2020 15,000 21,243 36,243

2021 15,000 20,530 35,530

2022 20,000 19,780 39,780

2023 20,000 18,660 38,660

2024-28 115,000 75,680 190,680

2029-33 150,000 38,700 188,700

2034 35,000 2,100 37,100

Total 385,000$ 218,618$ 603,618$

IFA Safe Drinking Water Loan – The City entered in to a loan agreement with the
Infrastructure Financing Authority. Proceeds from this loan are being used to improve the water
systems, a project that is expected to be completed in the upcoming fiscal year. The total amount
of the original loan was $2,653,000 but was reduced to $1,888,000 after the City was granted
$765,000 of loan forgiveness. The loan repayment term is 30 years with an interest rate of
1.00%. Repayment is expected to begin in December, 2019.

NOTE 8 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

Plan Description

The Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) consists of a single cost-sharing
multiple-employer defined benefit plan. All benefits of the system are established by the
legislature pursuant to Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) Chapters 238 and 238A. Oregon PERS
produces an independently audited Comprehensive Annual Financial Report which can be found
at:

http://www.oregon.gov/pers/Pages/Financials/Actuarial-Financial-Information.aspx

If the link is expired please contact Oregon PERS for this information.



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
Lane County, Oregon

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

-39-

NOTE 8 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN - continued

a. PERS Pension (Chapter 238). The ORS Chapter 238 Defined Benefit Plan is closed to
new members hired on or after August 29, 2003.

i. Pension Benefits. The PERS retirement allowance is payable monthly for life. It
may be selected from 13 retirement benefit options. These options include
survivorship benefits and lump-sum refunds. The basic benefit is based on years
of service and final average salary. A percentage (2.0 percent for police and fire
employees, and 1.67 percent for general service employees) is multiplied by the
number of years of service and the final average salary. Benefits may also be
calculated under either a formula plus annuity (for members who were
contributing before August 21, 1981) or a money match computation if a greater
benefits results.

ii. Death Benefits. Upon the death of a non-retired member, the beneficiary receives a
lump-sum refund of the member’s account balance (accumulated contributions
and interest). In addition, the beneficiary will receive a lump-sum payment from
employer funds equal to the account balance, provided on or more of the
following contributions are met:
 member was employed by PERS employer at the time of death,
 member died within 120 days after termination of PERS covered

employment,
 member died as a result of injury sustained while employed in a PERS-

covered job, or
 member was on an official leave of absence from a PERS-covered job at

the time of death.
iii. Disability Benefits. A member with 10 or more years of creditable service who

becomes disabled from other than duty-connected causes may receive a non-duty
disability benefit. A disability resulting from a job-incurred injury or illness
qualifies a member (including PERS judge members) for disability benefits
regardless of the length of PERS-covered service. Upon qualifying for either a
non-duty or duty disability, service time is computed to age 58 (55 for police and
fire members) when determining the monthly benefit.

iv. Benefit Changes After Retirement. Members may choose to continue participation
in a variable equities investment account after retiring and may experience annual
benefit fluctuations due to changes in the market value equity investments. Under
ORS 238.360 monthly benefits are adjusted annually through cost-of-living
changes. The cap on the COLA will vary based on the amount of the annual
benefit.



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
Lane County, Oregon

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

-40-

NOTE 8 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN - continued

b. OPSRP Pension Program (OPSRP DB). The ORS Chapter 238A Defined Benefit
Pension Program provides benefits to members hired on or after August 29, 2003.

i. Pension Benefits. This portion of OPSRP provides a life pension funded by
employer contributions. Benefits are calculated with the following formula for
members who attain normal retirement age:
Police and fire: 1.8 percent is multiplied by the number of years of service and the
final average salary. Normal retirement age for police and fire members is age 60
or age 53 with 25 years of retirement credit. To be classified as a police and fire
member, the individual must have been employed continuously as a police and
fire member for at least five years immediately preceding retirement.
General service: 1.5 percent is multiplied by the number of years of service and
the final average salary. Normal retirement age for general service members is
age 65, or age 58 with 30 years of retirement credit.
A member of the pension program becomes vested on the earliest of the following
dates: the date the member completes 600 hours of service in each of five
calendar years, the date the member reaches normal retirement age, and, if the
pension program is terminated, the date on which termination becomes effective.

ii. Death Benefits. Upon the death of a non-retired member, the spouse or other
person who is constitutionally required to be treated in the same manner as the
spouse, receives for life 50 percent of the pension that would otherwise have
been paid to the deceased member.

iii. Disability Benefits. A member who has accrued 10 or more years of retirement
credits before the member becomes disabled or a member who becomes disabled
due to job-related injury shall receive a disability benefit of 45 percent of the
member’s salary determined as of the last full month of employment before the
disability occurred.

iv. Benefit Changes After Retirement. Under ORS 238A.210 monthly benefits are
adjusted annually through cost-of-living changes. The cap on the COLA will
vary based on the amount of the annual benefit.

Contributions

PERS funding policy provides for monthly employer contributions at actuarially determined
rates. These contributions, expressed as a percentage of covered payroll, are intended to
accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. The funding policy applies to the PERS
Defined Benefit Plan and the Other Postemployment Benefit Plans. The state of Oregon and
certain schools, community colleges, and political subdivision have made unfunded actuarial
liability payments and their rates have been reduced. Employer contribution rates during the
period were based on the December 31, 2015 actuarial valuation, which became effective July 1,
2017.



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
Lane County, Oregon

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

-41-

NOTE 8 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN - continued

Pension Liability

At June 30, 2018, the City reported a net pension liability of $2,023,247 for its proportionate
share of the net pension liability. The pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2017, and
the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2015. The City’s proportion of the net pension liability
was based on a projection of the City’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan
relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. At
June 30, 2017, the City’s proportion was .016 percent.

Difference between expected and actual experience $ 97,845 $

Changes in assumptions 368,802

Net difference between projected and actual

earnings on pension plan investments 20,844

Net changes in proportionate share and differences between

City contributions and proportionate share of contributions 7,631 49,308

Differences between employer contributions and

proportionate share of contributions 108,925 2,740

Subtotal - Amortized deferrals (below) 604,047 52,048

City contributions subsequent to measurement date 261,387

Net deferred outflow and inflow of resources $ 865,434 $ 52,048

of Resources of Resources

Deferred Outflow Deferred Inflow

Funding Policy

$261,387 of contributions subsequent to measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the
net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2019. The subtotal amounts of pension-related
deferred outflows and inflows of resources (prior to City contributions subsequent to measurement
date) will be recognized in pension expense as follows:



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
Lane County, Oregon

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

-42-

NOTE 8 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN - continued

Year ending June 30, Amount

2019 $ 118,234

2020 279,903

2021 190,746

2022 (40,967)

2023 4,083

Total $ 551,999

All assumptions, methods and plan provisions used in these calculations are described in the
Oregon PERS system-wide GASB 68 reporting summary dated February 8, 2017. Oregon PERS
produces an independently audited CAFR which can be found at:
http://www.oregon.gov/pers/EMP/Pages/GASB.aspx

Actuarial Valuations

The employer contribution rates effective July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2017 were set using the
entry age normal actuarial cost method. For the Tier One/Tier Two component of the PERS
Defined Benefit Plan, this method produced an employer contribution rate consisting of (1) an
amount for normal cost (estimated amount necessary to finance benefits earned by employees
during the current service year), (2) an amount for the amortization unfunded actuarial accrued
liabilities, which are being amortized over a fixed period with new unfunded actuarial liabilities
being amortized over 20 years.

For the OPSRP Pension Program component of the PERS Defined Benefit Plan, this method
produced an employer rate consisting of (a) an amount for normal cost (the estimated amount
necessary to finance benefits earned by the employees during the current service year), (b) an
actuarially determined amount for funding a disability benefit component, and (c) an amount for
the amortization of unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities, which are being amortized over a fixed
period with new unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities being amortized over 16 years.



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
Lane County, Oregon

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

-43-

NOTE 8 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN - continued

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions:

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of events far into the future. Actuarially determined amounts
are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new
estimates are made about the future. Experience studies are performed as of December 31 of
even numbered years. The method and assumptions shown are based on the 2014 Experience
Study which is reviewed for the four-year period ending December 31, 2014.

Valuation date December 31, 2015 rolled forward to June 30, 2017

Experience Study Report 2014, Published September 2015

Actuarial assumptions:

Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal

Amortization method

Amortized as a level percentage of payroll as layered amortization bases over

a closed period; Tier One/Tier Two UAL is amortized over 20 years and

OPSRP pension UAL is amortized over 16 years

Asset valuation method Market value of assets

Inflation rate 2.50 percent (reduced from 2.75%)

Investment rate of return 7.50 percent (reduced from 7.75%)

Projected salary increase 3.50 percent

Cost of living adjustments

(COLA)

Blend of 2% COLA and graded COLA (1.25%/0.15%) in accordance with

Moro decision, blend based on service.

Healthy retirees and beneficiaries:

RP-2000 Sex-distinct, generational per Scale BB (changed from Scale AA),

with collar adjustments and set-backs as described in the valuation. Active

members: Mortality rates are a percentage of healthy retiree rates that vary

by group, as described in the valuation. Disabled retirees: Mortality rates are a

percentage (70% for males and 95% for females; changed from 65% for

males and 90% for females) of the RP-2000 sex-distinct, generational per

Scale BB, disabled mortality table (changed from static combined disabled

mortality sex-distinct table).

Mortality



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
Lane County, Oregon

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

-44-

NOTE 8 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN - continued

Discount Rate – The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.50 percent
for the Defined Benefit Pension Plan. The projection of cash flows used to determine the
discount rate assumed that contributions from the plan members and those of the contributing
employers are made at the contractually required rates, as actuarially determined. Based on
those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to
make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term
expected rate of return on pension plan investments for the Defined Benefit Pension Plan was
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Assumed Asset Allocation:

Source: June 30, 2018 PERS CAFR; p. 98

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return:

To develop an analytical basis for the selection of the long-term expected rate of return
assumption, in July 2013 the PERS Board reviewed long-term assumptions developed by both
Milliman’s capital market assumptions team and the Oregon Investment Council’s (OIC)
investment advisors. The table below shows Milliman’s assumptions for each of the asset classes
in which the plan was invested at that time based on the OIC long-term target asset allocation.
The OIC’s description of each asset class was used to map the target allocation to the asset
classes shown below. Each asset class assumption is based on a consistent set of underlying
assumptions and includes adjustment for the inflation assumption. These assumptions are not
based on historical returns, but instead are based on a forward-looking capital market economic
model.

Asset Class/Strategy Low Range High Range

Cash 0.0% 3.0%

Debt Securities 15.0% 25.0%

Public Equity 32.5% 42.5%

Private Equity 9.5% 15.5%

Real Estate 13.5% 21.5%

Alternative Equity 0.0% 12.5%

Opportunity Portfolio 0.0% 3.0%

Total

20.0%

12.5%

10.0%

0.0%

100.0%

OIC Target

0.0%

20.0%

37.5%



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
Lane County, Oregon

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

-45-

NOTE 8 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN – continued

Source: June 30, 2018 PERS CAFR; p. 72

Sensitivity of the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount
rate – The following presents the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated
using the discount rate of 7.50 percent, as well as what the City’s proportionate share of the net
pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point
lower or 1-perentage-point higher than the current rate.

Decrease Rate

(6.50%) (7.50%)

City's proportionate share of

the net pension liability (asset) 3,447,983$ 2,023,247$ 831,905$

(8.50%)

Increase

Compound Annual

Target (Geometric)

Asset Class Allocation* Return

Core Fixed Income 8.00 % 3.49 %

Short-Term Bonds 8.00 3.38

Bank/Leveraged Loans 3.00 5.09

High Yield Bonds 1.00 6.45

Large/Mid Cap US Equities 15.75 6.30

Small Cap US Equities 1.31 6.69

Micro Cap US Equities 1.31 6.80

Developed Foreign Equities 13.13 6.71

Emerging Market Equities 4.13 7.45

Non-US Small Cap Equities 1.88 7.01

Private Equity 17.50 7.82

Real Estate (Property) 10.00 5.51

Real Estate (REITS) 2.50 6.37

Hedge Fund of Funds - Diversified 2.50 4.09

Hedge Fund - Event-driven 0.63 5.86

Timber 1.88 5.62

Farmland 1.88 6.15

Infrastructure 3.75 6.60

Commodities 1.88 3.84

Assumed Inflation - Mean 2.50 %



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
Lane County, Oregon

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

-46-

NOTE 8 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN - continued

Changes Subsequent to the Measurement Date:

As described above, GASB 67 and GASB 68 require the Total Pension Liability to be
determined based on the benefit terms in effect at the Measurement Date. Any changes to benefit
terms that occurs after that date are reflected in amounts reported for the subsequent
Measurement Date. However, Paragraph 80f of GASB 68 requires employers to briefly describe
any changes between the Measurement Date and the employer’s reporting date that are expected
to have a significant effect on the employer’s share of the collective Net Pension Liability, along
with an estimate of the resulting change, if available.

Individual Account Program

In the 2003 legislative session, the Oregon Legislative Assembly created a successor plan for
OPERS. The Oregon Public Service Retirement Plan (OPSRP) is effective for all new
employees hired on or after August 29, 2003, and applies to any inactive OPERS members who
return to employment following a six month or greater break in service. The new plan consists
of the defined benefit pension plans and a defined contribution pension plan (the Individual
Account Program or IAP). Beginning January 1, 2004, all OPERS member contributions go into
the IAP portion of OPSRP. OPERS’ members retain their existing OPERS accounts, but any
future member contributions are deposited into the member’s IAP, not the member’s OPERS
account. Those employees who had established an OPERS membership prior to the creation of
OPSRP will be members of both the OPERS and OPSRP system as long as they remain in
covered employment. Members of OPERS and OPSRP are required to contribute six percent of
their salary covered under the plan which is invested in the IAP.

Additional disclosures related to Oregon PERS not applicable to specific employers are available
online at the below website, or by contacting PERS at the following address: PO BOX 23700
Tigard, OR 97281-3700.

http://www.oregon.gov/pers/EMP/Pages/GASB.aspx

NOTE 9 - POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS
(OPEB) GASB 75

Plan Description

The City operates a single-employer retiree benefit plan that provides postemployment health,
dental and vision insurance benefits to eligible employees and their spouses. There are active
and retired members in the plan. All classes of employee are eligible to continue coverage upon
retirement. Qualified spouses, domestic partners, and children may qualify for coverage.
Coverage for retirees and eligible dependents continues until Medicare eligibility for each
individual (or until dependent children become ineligible).



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
Lane County, Oregon

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

-47-

NOTE 9 - POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS
(OPEB) GASB 75 - continued

Benefits and eligibility for members are established through the collective bargaining
agreements. The post-retirement healthcare plan is established in accordance with Oregon
Revised Statutes (ORS) 243.303. ORS stipulated that for the purpose of establishing healthcare
premiums, the rate must be based on all plan members, including both active employees and
retirees. The difference between retiree claims cost, which because of the effect of age is
generally higher in comparison to all plan members, and the amount of retiree healthcare
premiums represents the City’s implicit employer contribution. The City did not establish an
irrevocable trust (or equivalent arrangement) to account for the plan

Funding Policy

The benefits from this program are paid by the City on a self-pay basis and the required
contribution is based on projected pay-as-you go financing requirements. There is not obligation
on the part of the District to fund these benefits in advance.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

The City engaged an actuary to perform an evaluation as of June 30, 2016 using entry age
normal, level percent of salary Actuarial Cost Method. The Single Employer Pension Plan
liability was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods
including the measurement:

Discount Rate per year, based on a 20-year general obligation bond yield index 3.58%

General Inflation Rate per year 2.50%

Salary Scale per year 3.50%



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
Lane County, Oregon

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

-48-

NOTE 9 - POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS
(OPEB) GASB 75 - continued

Health Care Cost Trends:

Mortality rates were based on rates adopted by the Oregon Public Employees Retirement System
(PERS) for its December 31, 2016 actuarial valuation of retirement benefits.

Turnover rates were based on percentages developed for the valuation of benefits under Oregon
PERS and vary by years of service.

Disability rates were not used

Retirement rates were based on Oregon PERS assumptions. Annual rates are based on age, Tier
/ OPSRP, and duration of service.

The projection of benefits for financial reporting purpose does not explicitly incorporate the
potential effects of legal or contractual funding limitations.

Year Trend Year Trend

2017 7.50 % 2036-2040 6.00 %

2018 6.00 2041-2043 5.75

2019 5.50 2044-2052 5.50

2020-2025 5.25 2053-2063 5.25

2026 5.00 2064 + 5.00

2027-2029 5.25

2030 5.75

2031-2035 6.25



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
Lane County, Oregon

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

-49-

NOTE 9 - POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS
(OPEB) GASB 75 - continued

Changes in Medical Benefit OPEB Liability:

Sensitivity of the Net Other Post-Employment Benefit Liability to Changes in Discount and
Trend Rates:

The following presents the net other post-employment benefit liability (NOL), calculated using
the discount rate of 3.75 percent, as well as what the liability would be if it was calculated using
a discount rate 1-percentage-point lower (2.75 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (4.75
percent) than the current rate. A similar sensitivity analysis is then presented for changes in the
healthcare cost trend assumption.

June 30, 2018 1% Current 1%

Decrease Discount Rate Increase

Total OPEB Liability 119,898$ 108,969$ 98,999$

1% Current 1%

Decrease Trend Rate Increase

Total OPEB Liability 94,112$ 108,969$ 126,920$

Balance at June 30, 2017 99,538$

Change for the year:

Service cost 14,929

Interest on total OPEB liability 3,251

Effect of assumptions changes or inputs (7,916)

Benefit payments (833)

Balance as of June 30, 2018 108,969$



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
Lane County, Oregon

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

-50-

NOTE 9 - POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS
(OPEB) GASB 75 - continued

Amounts reported as deferred outflows or inflow of resources related to pension will be
recognized in pension expense as follows:

Difference between expected and actual experience $

Changes in assumptions 7,124

Subtotal - Amortized deferrals (below) $ 7,124

Deferred Outflow

of Resources

Year ending June 30, Amount

2019 $ 792

2020 792

2021 792

2022 792

2023 792

Thereafter 3,164

Total $ 7,124

NOTE 10 - INTERFUND TRANSFERS AND BALANCES

Transfers were made during the year to fund operations and reserves. Transfers are comprised as
follows:

Due From Due To

Transfers Out Transfers In Other Funds Other Funds

General Fund 369,000$ 2,000$ 77,445$ 18,000$

Street Fund 2,000

Emergency Services Fund 60,000 360,000 77,445

Oakridge Industrial Park Fund 60,000

Water Fund 5,808 4,500 9,000 87,633

Water Capital Reserve Fund 5,808

Wastewater Fund 4,500 96,633

436,808$ 436,808$ 183,078$ 183,078$



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
Lane County, Oregon

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

-51-

NOTE 10 - INTERFUND TRANSFERS AND BALANCES - continued

Interfund loans as of June 30, 2018, include an $18,000 balance due from General Fund to the
Water ($9,000) and Wastewater ($9,000) Funds for purchase of a Police vehicle. The loan is to
be repaid over four (4) years at 0% interest with the first repayment made in the prior fiscal year.

Cash deficits in the EMS Fund ($77,445) and Water Fund ($87,633) are reported in the fund
financial statements as due from General Fund and Wastewater Fund, respectively. These due
to/from balances are eliminated for reporting purposes on the government-wide financial
statements.

NOTE 11 - PROPERTY TAX LIMITATIONS

The State of Oregon has a constitutional limit on property taxes for schools and non-school
government operations. The limitation provides that property taxes for non-school operations
are limited to $10.00 for each $1,000 of property market value. This limitation does not apply to
taxes levied for principal and interest on general obligation bonded debt. An additional limit
reduces the amount of operating property tax revenues available. This reduction was
accomplished by rolling property values for 1997-98 back to their 1995-96 values less 10% and
limiting future tax value growth of each property to no more than 3% per year, subject to certain
exceptions. Taxes levied to support bonded debt are exempted from the reductions. The
Constitution also sets restrictive voter approval requirements for most tax and many fee increases
and new bond issues.

NOTE 12 - RISK MANAGEMENT

There is exposure to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. Commercial insurance is
purchased to minimize its exposure to these risks. Settled claims have not exceeded this
commercial coverage for the past three years.

NOTE 13 - COMMITMENTS & CONTINGENCIES

Substantially all amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and
adjustment by grantor agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims,
including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The
amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at
this time, although the management expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

As of June 30, 2018, the City’s contract commitment to the primary engineer on the Water
System Improvements project for work yet to be performed is approximately $1,157,414.



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
Lane County, Oregon

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

-52-

NOTE 14 - DEFICIT FUND BALANCES

At June 30, 2018, the following fund had a negative fund balance:

Emergency Services Fund – Fund Balance ($ 79,153)
Water Fund – Fund Balance – budgetary basis ($ 277,245)

The deficit fund balance for the Emergency Services Fund reflects ongoing funding issues
combined with a substantial decrease in ambulance runs in the first part of the year. As of the
end of the year, ambulance billings are back to expected levels, with management and City
Council actively managing this fund.

The deficient budgetary fund balance for the Water Fund is due to timing of loan disbursements
on Water Improvement Projects. Loan proceeds of approximately $379,000 related to FY18
construction expenditures will be requested in FY19, which will resolve the deficit.

NOTE 15 - PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

On the Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Net Position of
Proprietary Funds for the year ended June 30, 2018, the City has reported a $45,514 prior period
adjustment to properly reflect water utilities revenues that were earned as of the end of the prior
year.

The beginning fund balance for the general fund has been restated in the amount of $4,705 to
reflect unrecorded transient room tax revenue for the 2016-2017 fiscal year. The beginning fund
balance for the Street Fund has been restated in the amount of $16,746 to reflect unrecorded state
gas tax revenue for the 2016-17 fiscal year.

NOTE 16 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The City paid a settlement in termination of a contract in the amount of $101,558.

NOTE 17 - NEW PRONOUNCEMENTS

GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits
other than Pension became effective for those periods beginning after June 15, 2017. Refer to
Note 9 for additional information on the City’s implementation of this statement.



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



CITY OF OAKRIDGE

Lane County, Oregon

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

ACTUAL AND BUDGET - BUDGETARY BASIS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

GENERAL FUND

VARIANCE

TO FINAL

BUDGET

ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE

BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

REVENUES:

Property Taxes $ 940,000 $ 940,000 $ 1,018,452 $ 78,452

Franchise and License Fees 257,000 257,000 257,964 964

Charges for Services 306,000 306,000 306,000

Licenses, Permits, Miscellaneous Taxes 169,900 169,900 214,715 44,815

Intergovernmental Revenues 133,500 133,500 102,560 (30,940)

Planning Fees 4,000 4,000 1,160 (2,840)

Fines and Forfeitures 101,000 101,000 69,140 (31,860)

Interest 5,500 5,500 9,550 4,050

Grants and Donations 375,900 375,900 153,511 (222,389)

Rentals and Leases 27,500 27,500 20,219 (7,281)

Miscellaneous 27,400 27,400 28,423 1,023

Total Revenue 2,347,700 2,347,700 2,181,694 (166,006)

EXPENDITURES:

Administrative 631,049 631,049 (1) 590,784 40,265

Building/Planning 40,000 75,000 (1) 69,136 5,864

Police 1,011,712 1,000,712 (1) 940,109 60,603

Library 25,905 31,905 (1) 29,565 2,340

Parks 183,300 148,300 (1) 25,296 123,004

Willamette Activity Center (WAC) 28,200 28,200 (1) 26,469 1,731

Municipal Court 70,394 75,394 (1) 76,493 (1,099)

Not Allocated:

Materials & Services 201,000 201,000 (1) 157,418 43,582

Contingency 20,061 20,061 (1) 20,061

Total Expenditures 2,211,621 2,211,621 1,915,270 296,351

Excess of Revenues Over, (Under) Expenditures 136,079 136,079 266,424 130,345

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES, (USES):

Orchid Health Collective Loan Payment 3,721 3,721 3,721

Transfers In 6,000 6,000 6,000

Transfers Out (369,000) (369,000) (1) (369,000)

Total Other Financing Sources, (Uses) (359,279) (359,279) (369,000) 9,721

Net Change in Fund Balance (223,200) (223,200) (102,576) 120,624

Beginning Fund Balance 223,200 223,200 247,284 24,084

Prior Period Adjustment 4,705 4,705

Ending Fund Balance $ $ 149,413 $ 149,413

Reconciliation to Governmental Fund Balance as required by GASB 54 - Ending Fund Balance:

Interfund Loan from Water/Sewer (18,000)

Woodstove Replacement Fund 20,832

Bicycle / Pedestrian Path Fund 17,076

Fund Balance as required by GASB 54 $ 169,321

(1) Appropriation Level

-53-



CITY OF OAKRIDGE

Lane County, Oregon

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

ACTUAL AND BUDGET- BUDGETARY BASIS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

STREET FUND

VARIANCE

TO FINAL

BUDGET

ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE

BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

REVENUES:

Gas Taxes $ 180,000 $ 180,000 $ 210,001 $ 30,001

Franchise Fees 5,000 5,000 (5,000)

Licenses, Permits, Miscellaneous Taxes 65,000 65,000 61,630 (3,370)

Intergovernmental Revenues 66,000 66,000 2,970 (63,030)

Assesments 16,750 16,750 9,087 (7,663)

Miscellaneous 2,045 2,045 9,438 7,393

Total Revenues 334,795 334,795 293,126 (41,669)

EXPENDITURES:

Street Program 400,690 400,690 (1) 284,464 116,226

Not Allocated:

Contingency 82,355 82,355 (1) 82,355

Total Expenditures 483,045 483,045 284,464 (198,581)

Excess of Revenues Over, (Under)

Expenditures (148,250) (148,250) 8,662 156,912

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES, (USES):

Transfer Out (2,000) (2,000) (1) (2,000)

Total Other Financing Sources, (Uses) (2,000) (2,000) (2,000)

Net Change in Fund Balance (150,250) (150,250) 6,662 156,912

Beginning Fund Balance 150,250 150,250 95,400 (54,850)

Prior Period Adjustment 16,746

Ending Fund Balance $ $ $ 118,808 $ 102,062

(1) Appropriation Level

-54-



CITY OF OAKRIDGE

Lane County, Oregon

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

ACTUAL AND BUDGET- BUDGETARY BASIS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

EMERGENCY SERVICES FUND

ACTUALS

VARIANCE

TO FINAL

BUDGET

ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE BUDGET GAAP

BUDGET BUDGET (NEGATIVE) BASIS ADJUSMENTS BASIS

REVENUES:

Charges for Services $ 498,175 $ 498,175 $ (23,144) $ 475,031 $ 475,031

Intergovernmental Revenue 71,804 71,804 71,804 71,804

Grants and Donations 18,627 (18,627)

Interest 100 100 (4) 96 96

Miscellaneous 6,670 6,670 14,813 21,483 21,483

Total Revenues 576,749 595,376 (26,962) 568,414 568,414

EXPENDITURES:

Emergency Medical Services 876,749 895,376 (1) 49,468 845,908 845,908

Total Expenditures 876,749 895,376 49,468 845,908 845,908

Revenues Over, (Under) Expenditures (300,000) (300,000) 22,506 (277,494) (277,494)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES, (USES):

Transfers In 360,000 360,000 360,000 360,000

Transfers Out (60,000) (60,000) (1) (60,000) 60,000

Total Other Financing Sources, (Uses) 300,000 300,000 300,000 60,000 360,000

Net Change in Fund Balance 22,506 22,506 60,000 82,506

Beginning Fund Balance (101,659) (101,659) (60,000) (161,659)

Ending Fund Balance $ $ $ (79,153) $ (79,153) $ - $ (79,153)

(1) Appropriation Level

-55-



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
Lane County, Oregon

SCHEDULE OF THE PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

JUNE 30, 2018

(b)

Employer's

Year proportionate share (c)

Ended of the net pension Covered

June 30, liability (asset) (NPL) payroll

2018 0.016 % 2,023,247$ 1,179,331$ 171.6 % 83.1 %

2017 0.016 2,335,232 1,131,680 206.4 80.5

2016 0.016 910,220 1,100,465 82.7 91.9

2015 0.015 (340,884) 784,684 (43.4) 103.6

2014 0.015 767,445 725,066 105.8 92.0

This schedules is presented to illustrate the requirements to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year trend

has been compiled, information is presented only for the years for which the required supplementary information is available.

(a)

Employer's

proportion of

the net pension

liability (NPL) liablity

the total pension

a percentage of

net position as

Plan fiduciary

payroll

of covered

percentage

NPL as a

(b/c)

-56-



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
Lane County, Oregon

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS (PERS)

JUNE 30, 2018

Contributions in Contributions

Year Statutorily relation to the Contribution as a percent

Ended required statutority required deficiency Covered of covered

June 30, contribution contribution (excess) payroll payroll

2018 218,306$ 218,306$ $ 1,217,781$ 17.9 %

2017 214,396 214,396 1,179,331 18.2

2016 223,873 223,873 1,131,680 19.8

2015 82,196 82,196 1,100,465 7.5

2014 85,423 85,423 784,684 10.9

This schedules is presented to illustrate the requirements to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year trend

has been compiled, information is presented only for the years for which the required supplementary information is available.

-57-



CITY OF OAKRIDGE

Lane County, Oregon

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY

AND RELATED RATIOS

HEALTH INSURANCE IMPLICIT RATE SUBSIDY

Last 10 Fiscal Years

2018

Total OPEB, beginning 99,538$

Service cost 14,929

Interst on total OPEB liability 3,251

Effect of assumptions changes or inputs (7,916)

Benefit payments (833)

Net change in OPEB liability 9,431

Total OPEB, ending 108,969$

Covered-employee payroll 1,217,781$

Total OPEB liability as a percentage of

employee covered payroll 8.9%

The schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed

as they become available.

-58-



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



CITY OF OAKRIDGE

Lane County, Oregon

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

INDUSTRIAL

TOTAL

ASSETS:

Cash and Investments $ 236,709 $ 11,616 $ $ 248,325

Restricted Cash and Investments 120,683 120,683

Accounts Receivable 5,559 5,559

Notes Receivable 30,447 30,447

Total Assets $ 272,715 11,616 120,683 $ 405,014

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS, AND FUND BALANCES:

Liabilities:

Accounts Payable $ 5,802 $ $ $ 5,802

Unearned Revenue 29,880 29,880

Total Liabilities 35,682 35,682

Deferred Inflows:

Unavailable Revenue - Accounts Receivable 3,550 3,550

Unavailable Revenue - Notes Receivable 28,612 28,612

Total Deferred Inflows 32,162 32,162

Fund Balances:

Restricted for:

Debt Service 120,683 120,683

Assigned 204,871 11,616 216,487

Total Fund Balances 204,871 11,616 120,683 337,170

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Fund Balances $ 272,715 $ 11,616 $ 120,683 $ 405,014

JUNE 30, 2018

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

BOND

RESERVE

FUND

DEBT

SERVICE

FUND

PARK

FUND

CAPITAL

RESERVE

FUND

WATER WATER

-59-



CITY OF OAKRIDGE

Lane County, Oregon

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

INDUSTRIAL

TOTAL

REVENUES:

Rental Revenue $ 88,756 $ $ $ 88,756

Loan Repayments 13,759 13,759

Miscellaneous 8 8

Total Revenues 102,523 102,523

EXPENDITURES:

Oakridge Industrial Park 145,421 145,421

Total Expenditures 145,421 145,421

Excess of Revenues Over,

(Under) Expenditures (42,898) (42,898)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

Transfers In 5,808 5,808

Total Other Financing Sources 5,808 5,808

Net Change in Fund Balance (42,898) 5,808 (37,090)

Beginning Fund Balance 247,769 5,808 120,683 374,260

Ending Fund Balance $ 204,871 $ 11,616 $ 120,683 $ 337,170

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS FUND

WATER WATER

CAPITAL BOND

PARK RESERVE RESERVE

FUND FUND FUND

DEBT

SERVICE

-60-



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
Lane County, Oregon

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
ACTUAL AND BUDGET- BUDGETARY BASIS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

OAKRIDGE INDUSTRIAL PARK FUND

ACTUALS

VARIANCE
TO FINAL
BUDGET

ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE BUDGET GAAP
BUDGET BUDGET (NEGATIVE) BASIS ADJUSTMENTS BASIS

REVENUES:

Loan Repayments $ 11,079 $ 11,079 $ (2,680) $ 13,759 $ $ 13,759
Rental Income 63,100 63,100 25,656 88,756 88,756
Miscellaneous 500 15,500 (15,492) 8 8

Total Revenues 74,679 89,679 12,844 102,523 102,523

EXPENDITURES:

Oakridge Industrial Park 115,900 155,900 (1) 10,479 145,421 145,421
Not Allocated:

Debt Service 20,000 20,000 (1) 20,000
Contingency 189,785 164,785 (1) 164,785

Total Expenditures 325,685 340,685 195,264 145,421 145,421

Excess of Revenues Over, (Under) (251,006) (251,006) 208,108 (42,898) (42,898)
Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES, (USES):
Proceeds From Sale of Property 20,000 20,000 (20,000)
Repayment of Interfund Loan 60,000 60,000 (1) 60,000 (60,000)

Total Other Financing Sources, (Uses) 80,000 80,000 (20,000) 60,000 (60,000)

Net Change in Fund Balance (171,006) (171,006) 188,108 17,102 (60,000) (42,898)

Beginning Fund Balance 171,006 171,006 16,763 187,769 60,000 247,769

Ending Fund Balance $ $ $ 204,871 $ 204,871 $ - $ 204,871

(1) Appropriation Level

-61-



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
Lane County, Oregon

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
ACTUAL AND BUDGET- BUDGETARY BASIS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

WATER FUND RESERVE
VARIANCE
TO FINAL
BUDGET

ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES, (USES):
$ 5,808 $ 5,808 $ 5,808 $

Total Other Financing Sources, (Uses) 5,808 5,808 5,808

Net Change in Fund Balance 5,808 5,808 5,808

Beginning Fund Balance 5,808 5,808 5,808

Ending Fund Balance $ 11,616 $ 11,616 $ 11,616 $

(1) Appropriation Level

Transfers In

-62-



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
Lane County, Oregon

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
ACTUAL AND BUDGET- BUDGETARY BASIS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

WATER BOND RESERVE FUND
VARIANCE
TO FINAL
BUDGET

ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

Net Change in Fund Balance $ $ $ $

Beginning Fund Balance 120,683 120,683 120,683

Ending Fund Balance $ 120,683 $ 120,683 $ 120,683 $

-63-



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
Lane County, Oregon

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
ACTUAL AND BUDGET- BUDGETARY BASIS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

WOODSTOVE REPLACEMENT FUND
VARIANCE
TO FINAL
BUDGET

ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

REVENUES:

Grants and Donations $ 5,000 5,000 $ 5,000 $

Total Revenues 5,000 5,000 5,000

EXPENDITURES
Woodstove Replacement Program 12,302 12,302 (1) 16,470 (4,168)

12,302 12,302 16,470 (4,168)

(7,302) (7,302) (11,470) (4,168)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES, (USES):
(6,000) (6,000) (1) 6,000
(6,000) (6,000) (1) 6,000

Total Other Financing Sources, (Uses) (12,000) (12,000) 12,000

(19,302) (19,302) (11,470) 7,832

Beginning Fund Balance 19,302 19,302 32,302 13,000

Ending Fund Balance $ $ $ 20,832 $ 20,832

Note: This fund's activities have been combined with the General Fund activities in accordance with GASB 54 because there were
no substantial restricted or committed revenues.

(1) Appropriation Level

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues, Over (Under) Expenditures

Special Payments
Transfers Out

Net Change in Fund Balance

-64-



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
Lane County, Oregon

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
ACTUAL AND BUDGET- BUDGETARY BASIS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

BICYCLE / PEDESTRIAN PATH FUND
VARIANCE
TO FINAL
BUDGET

ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

EXPENDITURES
Bicycle/Pedestrian Path Program $ 15,000 $ 15,000 (1) $ 4,856 $ 10,144
Not Allocated:

Contingency 6,932 6,932 (1) 6,932

Total Expenditures 21,932 21,932 4,856 17,076

Excess of Revenues Over, (Under) (21,932) (21,932) (4,856) (26,788)
Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES, (USES):
Transfer In 2,000 2,000 2,000

Total Other Financing Sources, (Uses) 2,000 2,000 2,000

Net Change in Fund Balance (19,932) (19,932) (2,856) 17,076

Beginning Fund Balance 19,932 19,932 19,932

Ending Fund Balance $ $ $ 17,076 $ 17,076

Note: This fund's activities have been combined with the General Fund activities in accordance with GASB 54 because there were
no substantial restricted or committed revenues.

(1) Appropriation Level

-65-



CITY OF OAKRIDGE

Lane County, Oregon

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

ACTUAL AND BUDGET - BUDGETARY BASIS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

WATER FUND
VARIANCE

TO FINAL

BUDGET

ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE

BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

REVENUES:

Charges for Services $ 887,575 $ 887,575 $ 899,239 $ 11,664

Grants and Donations 765,000 765,000 (765,000)

Miscellaneous 1,500 1,500 861 (639)

Total Revenues 1,654,075 1,654,075 900,100 (753,975)

EXPENDITURES:

Water Utility 3,097,206 3,097,206 (1) 2,248,844 848,362

Not Allocated:

Debt Service 142,445 142,445 (1) 140,925 1,520

Contingency 136,975 136,975 (1) 136,975

Total Expenditures 3,376,626 3,376,626 2,389,769 986,857

Excess of Revenues Over, (Under)

Expenditures (1,722,551) (1,722,551) (1,489,669) 232,882

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES, (USES):

Loan Proceeds 1,560,793 1,560,793 1,317,529 (243,264)

Repayment of Interfund Loan 4,500 4,500 4,500

Transfers Out (5,808) (5,808) (1) (5,808)

Total Other Financing Sources 1,559,485 1,559,485 1,316,221 (243,264)

Net Change in Fund Balance (163,066) (163,066) (173,448) (10,382)

Beginning Fund Balance 291,271 291,271 (149,311) (440,582)

Prior Period Adjustment 45,514 45,514

Ending Fund Balance $ 128,205 $ 128,205 (277,245) $ (405,450)

Reconciliation to Net Position:

Capital Assets, net of depreciation 4,459,488

Interfund Loan to PD 9,000

Net Pension Liability (324,850)

Pension Related Deferred Outflows 138,953

Pension Related Deferred Inflows (8,357)

Other Post-employment Benefits (OPEB) Liability (17,496)

OPEB Related Deferred Outflows 1,144

Accrued Interest (13,596)

Long Term Debt (3,839,570)

Compensated Absences (19,412)

Total Net Position $ 108,059

(1) Appropriation Level

-66-



CITY OF OAKRIDGE

Lane County, Oregon

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

ACTUAL AND BUDGET - BUDGETARY BASIS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

WASTEWATER FUND

VARIANCE

TO FINAL

BUDGET

ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE

BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

REVENUES:

Charges for Service $ 630,925 $ 630,925 $ 641,808 $ 10,883

Interest 250 250 (250)

Miscellaneous 21,500 21,500 10,253 (11,247)

Total Revenues 652,675 652,675 652,061 (614)

EXPENDITURES:

Wastewater Utility 771,605 791,605 (1) 658,018 133,587

Not Allocated:

Debt Service 20,143 20,143 (1) 18,628 1,515

Contingency 345,101 345,101 (1) 345,101

Total Expenditures 1,136,849 1,156,849 676,646 480,203

Excess of Revenues Over, (Under)

Expenditures (484,174) (504,174) (24,585) 479,589

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES, (USES):

Repayment of Interfund Loan 4,500 4,500 4,500

Total Other Financing Sources, (Uses) 4,500 4,500 4,500

Net Change in Fund Balance (479,674) (499,674) (20,085) 479,589

Beginning Fund Balance 499,674 499,674 495,915 (3,759)

Ending Fund Balance $ 20,000 $ 475,830 $ 475,830

Reconciliation to Net Position:

Capital Assets, net of depreciation 730,458

Interfund Loan to PD 9,000

Net Pension Liability (216,334)

Pension Related Deferred Outflows 92,536

Pension Related Deferred Inflows (5,565)

Other Post-employment Benefits (OPEB) Liability (11,651)

OPEB Related Deferred Outflows 762

Long Term Debt (192,500)

Compensated Absences (6,115)

Total Net Position $ 876,421

(1) Appropriation Level

-67-



CITY OF OAKRIDGE

Lane County, Oregon

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

ACTUAL AND BUDGET - BUDGETARY BASIS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

STORM WATER FUND

VARIANCE

TO FINAL

BUDGET

ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE

BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

REVENUES:

Charges for Services $ 26,000 $ 26,000 $ 25,608 $ (392)

Total Revenues 26,000 26,000 25,608 (392)

EXPENDITURES:

Stormwater Utility 51,000 51,000 (1) 21,896 29,104

Not Allocated:

Contingency 30,072 30,072 (1) 30,072

Total Expenditures 81,072 81,072 21,896 59,176

Net Change in Fund Balance (55,072) (55,072) 3,712 58,784

Beginning Fund Balance 55,072 55,072 62,367 7,295

Ending Fund Balance $ $ 66,079 $ 66,079

Reconciliation to Net Position:

Capital Assets, net of depreciation 65,278

Total Net Position $ 131,357

(1) Appropriation Level

-68-



CITY OF OAKRIDGE

Lane County, Oregon

SCHEDULE OF PROPERTY TAX TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

OF TAXES UNCOLLECTED

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

IMPOSED BALANCE

LEVY OR CASH UNCOLLECTED

BALANCE ADJUSTMENTS COLLECTIONS OR

TAX UNCOLLECTED UNSEGREGATED

YEAR AT 6/30/18

Current:

2017-18 $ 1,049,408 27,660 (5,813) 998,110 $ 17,825

Prior Years:

2016-17 26,066 (17) (5,787) 9,165 11,131

2015-16 16,243 31 (4,357) 3,777 8,078

2014-15 11,830 (5) (1,278) 3,169 7,388

2013-14 7,915 (1) (412) 1,805 5,699

2012-13 5,870 (236) 332 5,302

2011-12 & Prior 17,939 (747) 639 16,553

Total Prior 85,863 8 (12,817) 18,887 54,151

Total All

Funds $ 1,135,271 $ 27,668 $ (18,630) $ 1,016,997 $ 71,976

GENERAL

RECONCILIATION TO REVENUE: FUND

Cash Collections by County Treasurer Above $ 1,016,997

Accrual of Receivables:

June 30, 2017 (1,445)

June 30, 2018 2,949

Other adjustments (6,924)

Total Revenue $ 1,011,577

DEDUCT

AT 7/1/17

BY COUNTY

TREASURER

TO

ROLLSDISCOUNTS

-69-



REPORTS ON LEGAL AND OTHER
REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS



-70-

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
REQUIRED BY OREGON STATE REGULATIONS

City Council
City of Oakridge
Lane County, Oregon

We have audited the basic financial statements of the City of Oakridge, Lane County, Oregon
(the City) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and have issued our report thereon dated
January 19, 2019. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Governmental Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States.

Compliance
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grants, including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as
specified in Oregon Administrative Rules 162-10-000 through 162-10-320 of the Minimum
Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, noncompliance with which could have
a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statements amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

We performed procedures to the extent we considered necessary to address the required
comments and disclosures which included, but were not limited to the following:

 Deposit of public funds with financial institutions (ORS Chapter 295).
 Indebtedness limitations, restrictions and repayment.
 Budgets legally required (ORS Chapter 294).
 Insurance and fidelity bonds in force or required by law.
 Programs funded from outside sources.
 Authorized investment of surplus funds (ORS Chapter 294).
 Public contracts and purchasing (ORS Chapters 279A, 279B, 279C).

In connection with our testing we noted instances of noncompliance with local budget law. The
City transferred contingency funds by resolution in the Oakridge Industrial Park Fund in the
amount of $25,000. Because the transfer exceeded 15% of the amount originally appropriated in
the fund, a supplemental budget should have been adopted before transferring the amount
exceeding 15% of the fund’s original appropriation.



-71-

Additionally, the City exceeded its appropriation in two funds: Municipal Court Program,
$1,099; and Woodstove Replacement Fund, $4,168. No other instances came to our attention that
caused us to believe the City was not in substantial compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grants, including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as
specified in Oregon Administrative Rules 162-10-000 through 162-10-320 of the Minimum
Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations.

OAR 162-10-0230 Internal Control
In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial reporting.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the City Council, and
the Oregon Secretary of State and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other
than these specified parties.

Brenda Bartlett, CPA
SGA Certified Public Accountants and Consultants, LLP
Bend, Oregon

November 19, 2018



SINGLE AUDIT REQUIREMENTS



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
Lane County, Oregon

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

CURRENT

CFDA YEAR

FEDERAL AGENCY/PASS-THROUGH AGENCY NUMBER EXPENDITURES

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE:

Community Facilities Loans and Grants 10.766 $ 52,672

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION:

Passed through Infrastructure Finance Authority
Direct Loan Financing:
Capitalization Grants for Drinking Water State Revolving Funds 66.468 1,317,529 (1)

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY:

Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency Response (SAFER) 97.083 18,507

TOTAL FEDERAL EXPENDITURES $ 1,388,708

(1) Indicates Major Program

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

-72-



CITY OF OAKRIDGE
Lane County, Oregon

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

-73-

Significant Accounting Policies

NOTE A – BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal award
activity of City of Oakridge (the City). The information in this schedule is prepared in
accordance with the requirements of Title 2 US Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Because the schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of
the City, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position or changes in net
position of the City.

NOTE B – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures on the Schedule are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recorded when measurable and available, or in the case of grants where the
expenditure is the prime factor for determining eligibility, when the expenditure is made.
Expenditures are recorded when a liability is incurred. Such expenditures are recognized using
the Uniform Guidance wherein certain types of expenditures may or may not be allowable or
may be limited as to reimbursement. The City has elected not to use the 10 percent de minimus
indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

NOTE C – FEDERAL LOANS

During the fiscal year, the City received a federal loan through the Oregon’s Drinking Water
State Revolving fund. The final award consisted of $1,888,000 of loan along with a grant of
$765,000. The City drew down against the loan in the amount of $1,317,529 during the year
ended June 30, 2018. There were no beginning balances of the loan; $570,471 remains available
for the subsequent fiscal year project expenses.



-74-

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the City Council
City of Oakridge, Oregon

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Oakridge, State of Oregon (City), as of and
for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon
dated January 19, 2019.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
City’s internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding
paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. However, as described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, we identified certain deficiencies in
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses and significant deficiencies.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. We consider the deficiencies described
as 2018-1 and 2018-2 in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs to be
material weaknesses.



-75-

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that
is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those
charged with governance.

Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit,
and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government
Auditing Standards.

City’s Response to Findings
The City’s response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs and corrective action plan. The City’s response was
not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and,
Accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other
purpose.

SGA Certified Public Accountants and Consultants, LLP
Bend, Oregon

January 19, 2019



-76-

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY

THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the City Council
City of Oakridge, Oregon

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
We have audited the City of Oakridge, Oregon’s (City) compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a
direct and material effect on each of the City’s major federal program for the year ended June
30, 2018. The City’s major federal program is identified in the summary of auditor’s results
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City’s major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and
the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types
of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on
a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
about the City’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as
we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for
each major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the
City’s compliance.

Opinion on Major Federal Program
In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal
program for the year ended June 30, 2018.



-77-

Report on Internal Control over Compliance
Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the City’s internal control
over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on
each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the
Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material
weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility
that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is
less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that
we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope
of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Brenda Bartlett, CPA
SGA Certified Public Accountants and Consultants, LLP
Bend, Oregon

January 19, 2019



-78-

CITY OF OAKRIDGE
Lane County, Oregon

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Section I - Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements

Type of report the auditor issued on whether the financial
statements audited were prepared in accordance
with GAAP: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:
 Material weaknesses identified? Yes
 Significant deficiencies? None reported

Noncompliance material to the financial statements noted? No

Federal Awards

Internal control over major federal programs:
 Material weaknesses identified? No
 Significant deficiencies identified? None reported

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major
federal programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings that are required to be reported
in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? No

Identification of major federal programs:

CFDA No(s). Name of Federal Program or Cluster
66.468 Capitalization Grants for Drinking Water State Revolving Funds

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and
Type B programs $750,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? No



-79-

CITY OF OAKRIDGE
Lane County, Oregon

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Section II – Financial Statement Findings

Material Weaknesses

2018-01: Proper fiscal year reporting of expenditures and expenses

Criteria: Procedures should be implemented to ensure proper training and oversight of the
employee in charge of accounts payable so that expenditures and expenses are charged to the
proper fiscal year.

Condition: Auditor proposed a significant number of adjustments for proper accounts payable
cut off. During the documentation of internal control, the employee in charge of accounts
payable was unaware that invoices received at year end should be reviewed for proper fiscal year
reporting.

Effect: Expenses and expenditures could be charged to the incorrect fiscal year.

Cause: Lack of training or oversight of new accounts payable personnel.

Recommendation: For new employees, ensure training for cut off at year end, and implement
oversight procedures to review invoices received after year end to ensure proper fiscal year
reporting.

View of responsible officials and planned corrective actions: The City agrees with this finding.
Please refer to the corrective action plan on Page 81.

2018-02: Proper reporting of financing lease obligations

Criteria: Management should track all new leases signed during the fiscal year so that they can
be properly assessed for potential reporting requirements under GAAP.

Condition: The City entered into a lease financing arrangement for radios on October 15, 2017.
The lease requires annual payments, the first of which was due on October 15, 2018. The City
did not capitalize the assets or report the obligation as required under GAAP.

Effect: Capital assets and related lease obligations could be understated.



-80-

CITY OF OAKRIDGE
Lane County, Oregon

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

2018-02: Proper reporting of financing lease obligations (continued)

Cause: Lack of procedure to track and communicate new lease obligations to those in charge of
preparing the financial statements at year end.

Recommendation: The City should maintain a central tracking repository for all leases and all
new leases should be flagged for analysis of GAAP reporting requirements.

View of responsible officials and planned corrective actions: The City agrees with this finding.
Please refer to the corrective action plan on Page 81.

Section III – Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None reported.

Section IV – State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None reported.



-81-

Corrective Action Plan

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

Section II – Financial Statement Findings

Finding: 2018-01

Name of contact person: Susan LaDuke. City Recorder/Finance Director (CR/FD)

Corrective Action: Each June, the CR/FD will review cut off procedure with account payable
clerk. CR/FD and outside CPA will provide oversight of invoices received
after year-end to ensure proper fiscal year is reported.

Proposed Completion Date: Immediately.

Finding: 2018-2

Name of contact person: Susan LaDuke, CR/FD

Corrective Action: The CR/FD, outside CPA and City Administer will create a procedures for
tracking all new leases. Procedure will be discussed and explained to all
department heads to insure proper implementation and ongoing
compliance with tracking. All new leases will be flagged and sent to
outside CPA for analysis of GAAP reporting requirements.

Proposed Completion Date: March 31, 2019.























Business of the City Council 
City of Oakridge, Oregon 

July 01, 2021 
 

Agenda Title: RTMP Application 
 
 
 

 

Proposed Council Action: Motion from 
the floor to approve. 

Agenda Item No: 10.3 
 

Exhibit: (1)  
(2) Approved RTMP Allocations 

 
     Agenda Bill Author: Bryan Cutchen 

City Administrator: Bryan Cutchen 
 
 
 

ISSUE: The city council approved RTMP allocations at the regular session on 6/17/2021. A single 
RTMP application was inadvertently not included in the group of applicants. It is requested 
the city council review and render a decision on the application.    

 

FISCAL IMPACT: $750 
 
 
OPTIONS: (1) Approve the application. 

(2) Disapprove the application. 
 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends option (1). 
 
 
 
 

RECOMMENDED MOTION: 
 I move we approve the RTMP application for $750 to the Oakridge Disc Golf Club to 
support the Middle Fork Open. 

 











2021 RTMP Requests

Event
For 
Profit

Yrs 
Awarded  Expenses 

 Funding 
Requested  % of Total POC Approved  Awarded 

Awarded 
Percent 
of Ask

Concerts in the Park N 4,995.00$        2,497.50$                50% Rustie Ackland 1,750.00$       1,750.00$     70%
Oakridge Triple Summit Challenge Y 2 6,600.00$        2,000.00$                30% Devin VansCoy 1,750.00$       1,750.00$     88%
Westfir 50k Y 0 4,400.00$        1,000.00$                23% Devin VansCoy 1,000.00$       1,000.00$     100%
Oakridge/Westfir Tree Planting Festival N 2,875.00$        1,625.00$                57% Judy Rowland 1,625.00$       1,625.00$     100%
Keg & Cask N 16,000.00$      5,250.00$                33% Amy Kelley 1,750.00$       1,750.00$     33%
OAC Art Events and Gallery N 8,400.00$        5,950.00$                71% Rene Gobelman 1,750.00$       1,750.00$     29%

43,270.00$      18,322.50$             42% 9,625.00$       9,625.00$    

Annual RTMP Allotment 18,775.00$      Remaining 9,150.00$       9,150.00$    
Funding Requested 18,322.50$     



Business of the City Council 
City of Oakridge, Oregon 

July 01, 2021 
 

Agenda Title: Oakridge 4th of July 
Celebration 

 
 
 

 

Proposed Council Action: Motion from 
the floor. 

Agenda Item No: 10.4 
 

Exhibit: (1) Application 
         

 
     Agenda Bill Author: Bryan Cutchen 

City Administrator: Bryan Cutchen 

 
 
 

ISSUE: Given the significance of the event and the current drought conditions, approval of the 
city council is requested to hold 4th of July fireworks at Greenwaters Park. The ODF South 
Cascade office will be raising their fire danger level to moderate at 12:01am Friday, June 25, 
2021.  

 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: $2,500 expenditure to support the event.  
 
 
OPTIONS: (1) Approve the fireworks with or without contingencies. 

(2) Disapprove the fireworks. 
 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends option (1) unless the fire danger level moves to extreme. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RECOMMENDED MOTION: 
 I move we approve the Oakridge 4th of July Fireworks if the fire danger level remains 

below Extreme.  
 







Business of the City Council 
City of Oakridge, Oregon 

July 01, 2021 
 

Agenda Title: Concerts in the Park Fee 
Waiver and Alcohol Permit 

 
 
 

 

Proposed Council Action: Motion from 
the floor. 

Agenda Item No: 10.5 
 

Exhibit: (1) Application 
         

 
     Agenda Bill Author: Bryan Cutchen 

City Administrator: Bryan Cutchen 

 
 
 

ISSUE: Concerts in the Park will be holding a single concert on August 21, 2021 at the 
Greenwaters Amphitheater. They are requesting a fee waiver of $300 and approval of an 
alcohol permit.  

 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: $300 of unrealized rent revenue.  
 
 
OPTIONS: (1) Approve the fee waiver and permit. 

(2) Disapprove either one or both requests. 
 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends option (2), approving the permit but disapproving the 
fee waiver. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RECOMMENDED MOTION: 
 I move we approve the fee waiver / alcohol permit for the Concerts in the Park event.  

  
 











   

 
 
 
 
                                          
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ISSUE: The city fee schedule should be reviewed and approved each fiscal year.   
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: None 
 
 
 
OPTIONS: 1) Adopt Resolution 08-2021.      
                   2) Do not adopt Resolution 08-2021 or request a revision.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Option 1.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  

I move we adopt Resolution 08-2021, the City of Oakridge Fee Schedule for Fiscal Year 21-
22.  

Business of the City Council 
City of Oakridge, Oregon 

July 01, 2021 
 

Agenda Title: FY 21-22 Schedule of Fees 
Resolution  
 

 

 

Proposed Council: Motion from the floor 
and a vote 

Agenda Item No: 13.1 
 
Exhibit:  (1) Resolution 08-2021  

   (2) FY2021-2022 Schedule of Fees  
   (3) FY2020-2021 Schedule of Fees 

Agenda Bill Author: Bryan Cutchen 
City Administrator: Bryan Cutchen 



RESOLUTION NO. 08-2021 
  

A RESOLUTION SETTING FEES FOR  
CITY SERVICES, PERMITS, OR APPLICATIONS 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Oakridge presently charges for a variety of services, permits,  
 and applications, and  
 
WHEREAS, such charges are currently each set by separate resolution or authority of 
 the City Council as need arises and consequently are adopted at different times, 
 and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council agrees that administration of the various charges would be 
 greatly simplified if all such charges would be consolidated into one resolution 
 where both city staff and the citizens of the City of Oakridge could determine any 
 of the fees charged by City,  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Oakridge, 
Oregon that the fees set forth in the attached exhibit shall be charged for the appropriate 
service, permit, and/or application effective with billings on July 01, 2021. 
 
PASSED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAKRIDGE THIS ____day of ____, 
2021. 
 
APPROVED AND SIGNED BY THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF OAKRIDGE THIS ____ 
day of ______, 2021. 
 
Signed: ______________________________ 
  Kathy Holston, Mayor 

 
Attest:  ______________________________ 
  Jackie Sims, Assistant City Recorder 

 
Ayes:   
Nays 



 
                                                           

 The City of Oakridge is an equal opportunity, affirmative action institution committed to cultural diversity and compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act. 

City of Oakridge 
Fee Schedule 

Effective: July 1, 2021 
 
Ambulance 
 
 Ambulance Transport Resident)  $2,000 
  plus per mile charge   $35 
 Ambulance Transport (Non-Resident) $2,500 
  plus per mile charge   $35 
 Extra Attendant    $55/hr Resident 
       $70/hr Non-Resident 
 Waiting Time     $65/hr Resident    
       $80/hr Non-Resident  
 Sit Up Patients     60% of the base rate 
 Ambulance Aid Call    60% of the base rate 
 
Animal Control 
 
 Dog Licenses     1 year  $20.00 
       3 year   $40.00 
 
      Spayed/Neutered &    1 year   $10.00 
 Seniors (55+)/Support Animal  3 year   $20.00 
      
 Cat Registration                                   $10.00 
 
 Animal Impound Fees 
 
  First Time    $40 
       Second Time    $80 
       Third Time    $120 
   
 Animal Adoption Fee    $100.00 including spay/neuter 
 
 Miscellaneous Fees 
 
  Kennel Care (per day)    $20.00 
  Euthanasia    $100.00 



City of Oakridge Fees - Page 2 of 6 

 
Business Licenses     $60.00 per year, $10.00 per month late fee    
 
  Exempt if gross income is under $5000 per year. 
 

City Facilities 
 
 Greenwaters Park  
 
  Community Building    $80/day 
  Sheltered Picnic Area   $40.00/day 
  Amphitheater    $500.00/day   
  Entire Park    $1000/day 
 
 Willamette Activity Center 
 
  Rooms, Kitchen    $25 per day 
  Gym     $100 per day 
       $25 cleaning and closing deposit,  
        if required 
 
  Oakridge Fire Hall Charges  $25 per day 
       $25 cleaning and closing deposit,  
        if required 
   

Osprey Park    $100 per day 
  Salmon Creek Park   $100 per day 
  Diamond View Park   $100 per day 
  OIP Overflow Parking   $200 per day 
  Old Public Works Bldg   $200 per day 
 
Fire Department  
 For responses outside the city boundaries and do not involve residents or property 
owners of the City of Oakridge, City of Westfir or the Hazeldell Rural Fire Protection District. 
 Response charge    $250 minimum 
 Engine or Water Tender   $150 per hour 
 Rescue vehicle     $100 per hour 
 Medic unit     $55 per hour 
 Heavy extrication services   $50 
 Responder charge    $20 per hour, per person   



City of Oakridge Fees - Page 3 of 6 

FireMed 
 
 Basic      $75.00 
 With Life Flight (air lift)   $134.00 
 
Library  
 
 Overdue Fines     $0.15 per day up to replacement cost 
 Copies      $0.35 
 Replacement Library Cards   $1.00 
 Out of City Library Cards   $15 per year 
 
Liquor License 
 
 Renewal Application    $35, $10.00 per month late fee 
 
Photocopies/Faxes 
 
 Copies      $0.35 
  Legal     $0.40 
  Color     $1.25 
 Mailed copies add    $0.12 per page with $1.00 minimum 
 
 Faxes      $0.55 per page local call area  
        with $1.10 minimum 
       $1.25 per page for long distance  
        with $2.50 minimum 
  
 If the request for records requires personnel to spend 15 minutes or more searching or 

reviewing records prior to their release or copying, the minimum fee shall be the fully 
loaded rate of the staff individual involved, with billing increments set at one quarter 
hour. 

 
Planning Permits 
 
 Conditional Use Permit   $300 
 Temporary Use Permit   $250 
 Annexation     $1,600 
 Variance     $220 
 Zone Change     $425 
 Plan Amendment    $1100 
 Appeal      $300 
 PUD Preliminary    $320 
 PUD Final Plus $20 Per Lot   $220 



City of Oakridge Fees - Page 4 of 6 

 Site Review     $300-$700* 
 Minor Partition    $150 
 Major Subdivision    $250 
 
 *Staff determination based on complexity of review 

 
Police Department 
 
 Vehicle Impound Fee    $125 
 Vehicle Impound Storage Fee   $30 (per day) 

Fingerprints     $20 
Monthly Enforcement and Abatement Fee $1000 
 

Public Works 
 

Water Connection (tap) Charge: 
              ¾” Meter $500 or cost of installation, whichever is 

greater 
 1” Meter $550 or cost of installation, whichever is 

greater 
 1 ½” Meter $750 or cost of installation, whichever is 

greater 
 2” Meter & over $1,000 or cost of installation, whichever is 

greater 
 

Sewer Connection (tep) Charge 
 Single Dwelling $400 
 Multiple Dwelling $350 + $50 for each additional unit using 

same tap point 
 Other Buildings $400 + $50 for each additional unit using 

same tap point 
 Mobile Home Park $400 + $50 for each additional space using 

same tap point 
 

  
Monthly Water Service Charges 
 (Increased every July 1 by the CPI-W) 
 
  Residential (base rate includes 1st 1,000 gallons used) 
 
  Meter Size Base Rate Fire Flow Use Rate 
 
  Up to 1” $ 40.67 $1.00  $3.55/1,000 gal.  
 



City of Oakridge Fees - Page 5 of 6 

  Commercial 
 
  Meter Size Base Rate  Fire Flow Use Rate 
 
  ¾  $40.18   $1.00  $4.16/1,000 gal.  
  1”  $63.41   $1.00  $4.16/1,000 gal. 
  1 ½”  $129.41  $1.00  $4.16/1,000 gal. 
  2”  $219.38  $1.00  $4.16/1,000 gal. 
  3”  $466.43  $1.00  $4.16/1,000 gal.  
  4”  $851.29  $1.00  $4.16/1,000 gal. 
 
 Water users outside the City shall pay the rates as calculated above plus 100%. 
 
 Monthly Sewer Service Charges 
 (Increased every July 1 by the CPI-W) 
 
  Type of Dwelling, Unit or Use   Base Rate per Month 
 
 Individual detached residential dwelling  $36.20  
 
 Any combination of dwelling units, hotels,  $36.20 per occupied unit 
 rooming houses, apartments, mobile home     
 parks without RV spaces. 
       

Mobile home parks with RV spaces $35.79 for the first 19,000 gal. water 
plus; $35.77 for each additional 

        5,000 gal. of water used. 
             

Any combination of businesses,  $36.20 per dwelling or business unit  
or businesses and dwellings plus; $36.20 per 5,000 gal. of water 

used after allowing for 5,000 gal. per 
dwelling and 19,000 gal. per 
business. 

            
 Industrial user with primarily industrial waste Established by the Council   
        based on an analysis of  
        expected flows and nature 
        of waste. 
  
 Water Service Restoration Charge 
  
  Regular hours service call   $30.00 
  After hours service call   $50.00 



City of Oakridge Fees - Page 6 of 6 

Processing fee for delinquency first time $30.00     
 Processing fee for delinquency thereafter $75.00 

 
Stormwater Charge     $1.79 monthly 

 
 Excavation Permit Fees 
   
  50 cubic yards or less   No fee 
  51-100 cubic yards   $20 
  101-1,000 cubic yards   $25 
  10,001-100,000   $30 for the first 10,000 cubic yards 
   Each additional 10,000 $20 
  100,001-200,000 cubic yards  $150 for the first 100,000 cubic yards 
   Each additional 10,000 S15 
  200,001 and up   $325 for the first 200,000 cubic yards 
   Each additional 10,000 $10 
 
 Grading Permit Fees 
 
  50 cubic yards or less    $20 
  51-100 cubic yards   $25 
  101-1,000 cubic yards   $25 for the first 100 cubic yards 
   Each additional 100  $15 
  1,001-10,000 cubic yards  $85 for the first 1,000 cubic yards 
   Each additional 1,000  $11 
  10,000-100,000 cubic yards  $200 for the first 10,000 cubic yards 
   Each additional 10,000 $40 
  
 Public Improvement Permit    $20 
 (sidewalk, curb & gutter, driveway, and drainage permit)   
 
Social Gambling 
 
 Owner       $250 
 Non-owner     $100 
 
Storm Water Assessment Fee   $1.76 per month per account 
 
Tobacco License     $  40 
 
Revised: July 1, 2021 















   

 
 
 
 
                                          
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ISSUE: ORS 294.471 permits the governing body to create a supplemental budget for the fiscal 
year in which the regular budget has been adopted for certain and specific reasons. In this case, 
for clarity and transparency, this supplemental budget was developed to account for a loss of 
anticipated revenue. This revenue was anticipated from the adoption of a public safety fee.   
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: As described in the exhibit. 
 
 
 
OPTIONS: (1) Adopt the resolution. 
                   (2) Reject the resolution. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends adoption of the resolution. 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: I move we adopt Resolution 09-2021, providing a supplemental 
budget for fiscal year 2021-2022.    
 

Business of the City Council 
City of Oakridge, Oregon 

July 01, 2021 
 

Agenda Title: Resolution Adopting a 
Supplemental Budget for Fiscal Year 2021-
2022 
 

 

 

Proposed Council Action: A motion to 
approve the proposed resolution. 

Agenda Item No: 13.2 
 
Exhibit: (1) CA Statement on Supplemental 

  (2) Resolution 09-2021 
   (2) Exhibit 
Agenda Bill Author: Eric Kytola 
City Administrator: Bryan Cutchen 



 

 

City Administrator Statement on the Supplemental Budget 
 

In over a decade of deficit spending, the city has used all accessible capital to spend or borrow against. It is impossible to 
delay action any further. Revenues must be increased, or expenditures reduced.  

  

Sixteen hours of budget committee deliberations and several hours of city council sessions culminated in a budget being 
passed which included anticipated revenue from a public safety fee which would preserve critical city services and keep a 
local EMS capability.  

 

The city twice has attempted to raise public safety revenue, once at the ballot box which was soundly defeated, and once 
with city council, who chose to ignore the follow-through actions required to realize this anticipated revenue. The 
majority of the citizens and their elected officials have spoken. 

 

So, I present to you an austere supplemental budget which balances by solely relying upon spending reductions.  To 
highlight the significant impacts: 

 

o Transition the employment of the Finance Director to a contractual basis to save on health and benefit 
expenses. 

o Eliminate Administrative Department overtime, resulting in a reduction of customer service at city hall. 
o Reduction in professional & non-professional legal expenses, putting the city at greater risk. 
o Eliminate parks temporary help labor expenses, resulting in closing all park restrooms except Greenwaters 

and the rest area.  
o Eliminate OFD volunteer stipend, likely resulting in reduced participation rates and staffing shortages. 
o Reduce OFD temporary help expenses, eliminating a local second call out capability in most cases. This could 

place the city in risk of incurring fines or losing the ALS provider status of ASA 7 because of non-performance. 
o If legal, the FireMed program will be terminated and premiums returned to reduce the demand on the 

ambulance.  
o A reduction of force in the Police Department, resulting in less active patrol and code enforcement, 

increasing standby duty. Calls with no threat to life or safety will be prioritized and responded to during 
regular hours as able. 

o Reduction of overtime at the Police Department.  
o Reduction in professional expenses in the enterprise funds, delaying capital investment projects.  
o The Junk Amnesty program will be terminated to preserve overtime for critical services.  

 

This supplemental budget is presented for transparency and clarity, but is not required under Oregon budget law because it 
only addresses reductions, not increases in expenditures. In the absence of a supplemental budget, staff will be required to 
make reductions unilaterally to remain within the resources of the current adopted budget.  

 

This is not the Oakridge I envisioned two years ago when I arrived, but it is the Oakridge the citizens and city council have 
chosen to afford.  

  



 

 

 

 

Total Requirements Dept/Fund Adopted FY20-21 Supplemental FY21-22 Percentage Change 

(exc. Enterprise & Restricted) Administration $866,356 $707,121 18% 

 
Planning $111,500 $96,800 13% 

 
Police $1,072,324 $965,530 10% 

 
Library $34,465 $30,750 11% 

 
Parks $93,636 $66,600 29% 

 
WAC $65,536 $36,025 45% 

 
Municipal Court $83,864 $77,865 7% 

 
Fire/EMS $1,163,951 $946,630 19% 

   
Ave. 19% 

 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 09-2021 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING A SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021-
2022 AND MAKING APPROPRIATIONS  

The City of Oakridge resolves the following:  

WHEREAS, ORS 294.471 permits the governing body of a municipal corporation to make 

a supplemental budget for the fiscal year for which the regular budget has been prepared 

if one or more of the following circumstances exist:  

  

a. An occurrence or condition that is not ascertained when preparing the 

original budget or a previous supplemental budget for the current year or 

current budget period and that requires a change in financial planning. 

b. A pressing necessity that could not reasonably be foreseen when preparing 

the original budget or a previous supplemental budget for the current year 

or current budget period and that requires prompt action. 

c. Funds that are made available by another unit of federal, state or local 

government and the availability of which could not reasonably be foreseen 

when preparing the original budget or a previous supplemental budget for 

the current year or current budget period. 

d. A request for services or facilities the cost of which is to be supplied by a 

private individual, corporation or company or by another governmental unit 

and the amount of which could not be accurately estimated when preparing 

the original budget or a previous supplemental budget for the current year 

or current budget period. 

e. Proceeds from the involuntary destruction, involuntary conversion, or sale of 

property that necessitates the immediate purchase, construction or 

acquisition of different facilities in order to carry on governmental operations. 

f. Ad valorem property taxes that are received during the fiscal year or budget 

period in an amount sufficiently greater than the amount estimated to be 

collected such that the difference will significantly affect the level of 

government operations to be funded by the taxes as provided in the original 

budget or a previous supplemental budget for the current year or current 

budget period. 

g. A local option tax described in ORS 294.476 that is certified for extension on 

the assessment and tax roll under ORS 310.060 for the fiscal year or budget 

period in which the local option tax measure is approved by voters. 

h. A reduction in available resources that requires the governing body to 

reduce appropriations in the original budget or a previous supplemental 

budget for the current year or current budget period. 

i. The original budget of the municipal corporation adopted under 

ORS 294.456 did not include estimated requirements to pay debt service 

pursuant to ORS 294.477 or the actual requirements are different from the 

https://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/294.476
https://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/294.476
https://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/310.060
https://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/294.456
https://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/294.477


estimated requirements included in the original budget or a previous 

supplemental budget. 

WHEREAS, the supplemental budget proposed meets one or more requirements of ORS 
294.471;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Oakridge 

hereby adopts a supplemental budget in the attached exhibit for fiscal year 2021-2022 in 

the amounts shown for each Fund and, 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the amounts shown below as appropriations for the 
fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021 and for purposes shown are hereby appropriated for 
each Fund. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution shall be effective immediately upon its 
passage. 

PASSED BY THE COUNCIL of the City of Oakridge this _____ day of ____, 2021.  

APPROVED AND SIGNED BY THE MAYOR of the City of Oakridge this ___ day of ____, 
2021. 

                                                                              

Attest: 

 
___________________________  ___________________________ 
 
Bryan Cutchen, City Administrator  Kathy Holston, Mayor 

Ayes:                    Nays 



Fund-General

Resources

Total Resources $3,213,426
Imposed Public Safety Fee ($540,000)
Loan from Water Fund $50,000

Resources Total ($490,000) $2,723,426 ($490,000)

Expenditures/Appropriations

Admin $758,792 ($75,882) $682,910 ($75,882)
Police $1,112,090 ($142,170) $969,920 ($142,170)
Library $30,750 ($4,000) $26,750 ($4,000)
Parks $66,600 ($22,770) $43,830 ($22,770)
Not Allocated to Program

transfers out $970,297 ($236,000) $734,297 ($236,000)
Expenditures Total ($480,822)

Fund-Streets

Street Program

Transfers in/(out) $2,000 ($2,000) $0 ($2,000)

Fund-Emergency Services Fund

Fire & Ambulance Services $1,182,030 ($236,250) $945,780 ($236,250)

Fund-Bicycle/Pedestrian Path Fund
Contingency $10,076 ($2,000) $8,076 ($2,000)

Fund-Water

Water Utility $796,585 ($12,000) $784,585 ($12,000)

Interfund Loans $0 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000

$38,000

Fund-Waste Water

Wastewater Utility $784,210 ($8,000) $776,210 ($8,000)

Total Unappropriated, all funds $998,281

General Fund ($9,178)
Streets $2,000

Emergency Services $250
Water $34,800

Waste Water $8,000
$35,872 $1,034,153 $35,872

Supplemental Budget- FY 2022

To reflect the required FY 2022 budget reductions due to loss of anticipated revenue.

Impact on 

Resources/ 

AppropriationsCurrent Budget

Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 

Budget



Summary of adjustments

Adopted 6/21 revenue expenditure Balance at 7/1

General 3,264,796           (490,000)          (490,000)        2,774,796               
Street 434,000               -    -   434,000                  
Emergency 1,182,630            -   (236,000)        946,630                  
Water - Cap Res 54,040                54,040                    
Wood Stove 17,312                17,312                    
Bike/Ped path 10,076                (2,000)              8,076                      
Water - bond res 120,683              120,683                  
OIP 547,100              547,100                  
Water 1,293,700           72,800             22,800           1,366,500               
Waste water 1,007,567            -   1,007,567               
Storm water 69,050                69,050                    

8,000,954           (419,200)          (703,200)        7,345,754               

Change in:



Business of the City Council 
City of Oakridge, Oregon 

July 01, 2021 
 

Agenda Title: Public Hearing for Sale of 
Real Property 

 
 
 
 

Proposed Council Action: Obtain public 
testimony of interested persons.   

Agenda Item No: 14 
 

Exhibit: None 
         

 
     Agenda Bill Author: Bryan Cutchen 

City Administrator: Bryan Cutchen 

 

ISSUE: Per ORS 221.725 the Governing Body must hold a public hearing to hear testimony from 
interested persons before any sale of city real property.  The property in question is Lot 34 at 
the Oakridge Industrial Park, Map and Taxlot # 21-35-15-00-04000.  The property is zoned 
heavy industrial. The City is selling the property to enable continued development of the 
Oakridge Industrial Park.   
Lot 34  
Proposed Buyer: Middle Fork Property Management, LLC, metal fabrication and sculpture.  
Sale price: $350,000 with addendum to equally share in utility extension infrastructure project 
valued at 95,000. Appraised price $389,000. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: estimated $395,750 depending on project price.   

 
 
OPTIONS: (1) Authorize the city administrator to execute the sales agreement 

(2) Do not authorize the city administrator to execute the sales agreement 
(3) Postpone deliberation to allow for additional information 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends option (1) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: 

 I move we direct the city administrator to execute the sales agreement of Lot 34 at 
the Oakridge Industrial Park.   
  

 


	Agenda
	Item 8.0 Consent Agenda
	Item 10.1 Westfir Police IGA
	IGA

	Item 10.2 Well #2 Loan
	Application

	Item 10.3 RTMP Application
	Application
	Summary

	Item 10.4 4th of July Celebration
	Application

	Item 10.5 Fee Wavier & Alcohol Permit
	Application

	Item 13.1 Schedule of Fees
	Resolution 08-2021
	2021-2022 Fee Schedule
	2020-2021 Fee Schedule

	Item 13.2 
	CA Statement 
	Resolution 08-2021
	Supplemental Budget

	Item 14 Public Hearing



